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In Memoriam

Elena J. Weeber
June 2, 2000
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT

3o GOOD GOVERNMENT STARTS HERE
31

Please consider volunteering to serve on one of the Town Boards, Committees, or Commissions listed below. Citizen
participation results in a stronger and more responsible local government. The only qualifications are a willingness to learn and
a desire to participate in the future of Norfolk.

2

3 To volunteer, fill out this tear-off page and mail it to the Board of Selectmen, Box 316, Norfolk, MA 02056. If you have any
4 questions, please call the Selectmen' s office at 528- 1408.

1
BOARD OF APPEALS 5 Years NORFOLK COUNTY ADVISORY BOARD 1 Year

2 Associate Member 1 Year ADA COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE 1 Year
ARTS COUNCIL 3 Years CAPITAL OUTLAY COMMITTEE 2 Years
CEMETERY COMMISSION 3 Years CONSERVATION COMMISSION 3 Years
COUNCIL ON AGING 3 Years DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 3 Years
HISTORICAL COMMISSION 3 Years REGISTRAR OF VOTERS 3 Years
NORFOLK COUNTY ADVISORY BOARD 1 Year MIRROR LAKE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 1 Year
ROAD SAFETY COMMITTEE 1 Year PERMANENT BUILDING COMMITTEE 3 Years
ZONING BYLAW COMMITTEE 1 Year INSURANCE COMMITTEE 1 Year
CORRECTIONS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 1 Year UNDERGROUND UTILITY COMMITTEE 1 Year
TOWN BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 1 Year

Name:     Home Phone:

Work Phone: E-Mail Address:

Home Address:

s Areas of Interest:

Occupation:
t L

Experience or Education:

e

Appointed Position(s) you would be interested in:   

ki

7
3.

fI

p,)
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w GENERAL GOVERNMENT

ELECTED OFFICERS NORFOLK SCHOOL COMMITTEE
Maureen Howard 2001

TERM Beth Gilbert 2002
EXPIRES Nina Roe 2002

MODERATOR Edward Piscitelli 2003
Frank J. Gross 2001 J. David Kennedy 2003

BOARD OF SELECTMEN KING PHILIP REGIONAL SCHOOL COMMITTEE
i Joyce E. Terrio 2001 George T. Cronin, Jr.   2003

John J. McFeeley 2002 Jane P. Morris 2002
R. William Perron 2003

4,       CONSTABLES
TOWN CLERK Jeffrey Janes 2001

J Marie Chiofolo 2002 E. Christopher Bettencourt, resigned 2001i
a

BOARD OF ASSESSORS
APPOINTED TOWN OFFICERSJohn G. Robbins 2001

Donna L. Putt 2001
t

David A. Roche 2002 MODERATOR APPOINTMENTS

BOARD OF HEALTH ADVISORY BOARD
6 Dr. Thomas R. Gilbert L001 A. Graham Sterling 2001

Peter Chipman 2002 Norman Gentry 2001
John Hurley 2001 Nancy Seitz 2001

Marc V.Waldman 2001
LIBRARY TRUSTEES Edward V. Cannon, Jr. 2001

Frances M. Holman 2003 Kathleen Johnson 2001
b Kenneth W. Nelson 2001 James F. Ward 2002

Harvey R. Boulay 2002 Jonathan P. Smith 2002
Glenn R. Beernink 2002

WATER COMMISSIONERS
Deborah J. Robbins 2003 PEPSONNEL BOARD
Lawrence Kennedy 2001 Lori J. Hurley 2003
Donna L. Pratt 2002 Lawrence E. Corcoran 2002

Janyce Conklin 2003
HOUSING AUTHORITY David Wildman 2002

Robert G. Boucher 2001 Paul F. Reilly 2002
Walter Zagieboylo 2005
Joanne T.Smith 2003 BYLAW COMMITTEE
Thomas J. Collins, Jr. 2003 Vida E. Holmes 2003

1 Matthew Capofreddi 2002 Elinor H. Pearson 2003

George T. Cronin, Jr.  2001
PLANNING BOARD Donald E. Newhall 2002

Arthur A. Spruch 2001 Marie Chiofolo 2002
Francis Fitzpatrick 2001
Robert F. Nicodemus 2002
Steven G. McClain 2002
David J. LaPointe 2003

1

RECREATION COMMISSION
Barbara Gillis 2001
Joseph Byrne 2001
Thomas R' I'erpstra 2002
Noelle D. Tonelli 2002
Julie Chapski 2003

k

i



GENERAL GOVERNMENT

BOARD OF HEALTH APPOINTMENTS LIBRARY ASSOCIATES-SCHOOL

Elizabeth Lehan
11

2 BOARD OF HEALTH AGENTS Kathryn Astley

2 William R. Dorney 2001

3 Betsy Fijol 2001 TOWN CLERK APPOINTMENT

3 Marie Chiofolo 2001

Elaine C. Coombs 2001 ASSISTANT TOWN CLERK

Hilary Penlington 2001 Elaine C. Coombs

3 Diane Goudy 2001

2 James F. Delaney 2001 BOARD OF SELECTMEN APPOINTMENTS

SANITARIAN TOWN ADMINISTRATOR

Mark Oram 2001 Greg L. Balukonis

FINANCE DIRECTOR' S APPOINTMENTS
TOWN COUNSEL

George A. Hall, Jr.

TREASURER/COLLECTOR

Jane Cunniff Lepardo
TRI-COUNTY VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL SCHOOL
COMMITTEE

CHIEF ASSESSOR
Ronald E. Janosko- 2002

Deborah J. Robbins
SEALER OF WEIGHTS AND MEASURES

ASSISTANT TOWN ACCOUNTANT
Peter S. Hildebrandt

Lorraine H. Foley
Robert J. Shannon, Assistant

ASSISTANT TREASURER
OFFICER OF VETERANS' GRAVES

Cheryl A. Kelley
Arthur R. Keenan

LIBRARY TRUSTEES APPOINTMENTS
LOCAL INSPECTOR-SHADE TREE MANAGER AND
PEST CONTROL

DIRECTOR OF LIBRARIES
Remo R. Vito, Jr.

Robin A. Glasser TREE WARDEN

Remo R. Vito, Jr.
ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR

Francena M. Johnson
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR APPOINTMENTS

YOUTH LIBRARIANS

Sarina Bluhm
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE- ACCOUNTANT

John Spinney
Susan L. Gagner

TECHNICAL SERVICES
POLICE DEPARTMENT

Marion T. Graham
CHIEF OF POLICE

LIBRARY ASSOCIATES Charles H. Stone, Jr.

Ann Asci

Anne Czarnowski LIEUTENANT

Bonnie Durand Jonathan M. Carroll, Sr.

Patricia Slovacek
Jennifer Robinson SERGEANTS

Paul J. Murphy

SCHOOL LIBRARIANS David R. McConnell

Robert J. ShannonDiane Balut I

Mary Carney Timothy P Heinz

9



GENERAL GOVERNMENT
REGULAR POLICE OFFICERS

FIRE DEPARTMENT
Alan F. Washkewits
Stephen K. Plympton

CHIEF OF FIRE DEPARTMENTDavid J. Holt
William F. KelleyWinslow Karlson, III

Thomas G. Degnim
DEPUTY CHIEF

Leo F. Ethier, Jr.
Stephen A. Wood

Glen R. Eykel
David J.. Eberle

LIEUTENANTS
Susan Fornaciari

Peter J. Petruchik, EMT/Full- Time FF

RESERVE POLICE OFFICERS Joseph W. Nolan

Louis Droste David C. Holmes, Jr., EMT

Donna M. McGowan Bruce E. Hamlin

POLICE/FIRE COMMUNICATIONS EMS DIRECTOR

Joy Leonard John M. Malaney, III, FF/EMT
Janet M. Poirier
Sarah J. Hill FIRE DEPARTMENT PERSONNEL
Eric VanNess Patricia A. Bixby, FF/EMT
E. Christopher Bettencourt, part time Wayne E. Burton,FF

Helena R. Findlen, part time Richard F. Clancy, Jr., FF/EMT, Full-Time
Donna M. McGowan, part time Peter R. Curran, FF

Michael P. Findlen, FF/EMT
SPECIAL POLICE OFFICERS Gregory M. Graves, FF

Albert A. Leverone Mark W. Haigh, FF/EMT
Charles E. Ray Stephen R. Hamlin, FF/EMT
J. William Meau Peter S. Hildebrandt, FF/EMT
William F. Kelley Pamela P. Holmes, FF/EMT
Harry L. Sanborn, Jr.   David W. Johnston, FF
Janet M. Poirier Douglas E. Johnston, FF/EMT, Full-Time
Joy Leonard Mark R. Kantzer, FF/EMT
Hilary Penlington John F. Kelley, FF/EMT, Full-Time
Edward Nolan James F. Leary, Jr., FF
E. Christopher Bettencourt Leo E. MacDonald, FF/EMT
William Davis James J. Masterson, FF/EMT, resigned
Joyce E. Terrio C. Scott Thayer, FF/EMT, resigned
John J. McFeeley
R. William Perron FOREST WARDEN
Police Chaplain Rev. Robert Connor William F. Kelley, Chief
Police Chaplain Rev. Merritt Nielson
Police Chaplain Rev. Stephen Arnold HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT

POLICE MATRONS SUPERINTENDENT OF STREETS
Helena R. Findlen Remo R. Vito, Jr.
Joy Leonard
Janet M. Poirier HIGHWAY PERSONNEL
Sarah J. Hill

Kenneth Salisbury, Foreman
Donna M. McGowan Thomas Benedetti, Assistant Foreman

Paul Vito, Head Mechanic
James Lambirth, Mechanic
Stephen Daley
Robert Joyce, Resigned

Raymond Mullaney
Jake White

10
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT

TRANSFER STATION ASSOCIATE MEMBER- 1 year term
Walter Kelly, Head Monitor/Operator Robert Garrity 2001
John Finitsis Nancy M. Lancellotti 2001

Paul Mullaney

ADA COMPLIANCE COMM.
GROUNDS MAINTENANCE Thomas Terpstra 2001

Alan Washkewits, Jr.      
Mary Nuhibian 2001

Kenneth Joyce Barbara Ward 2001
Michael Ramsey Kurt Unitt 2001

Greg L. Balukonis, ex- officio
INSPECTION DEPARTMENT

ARTS COUNCIL- 3 year term
BUILDING COMMISSIONER

Shirley Boulay 2002
Gerald E. Hughes

Nina Roe 2002

Joann Sueltenfuss 2002
LOCAL INSPECTOR/ ASST. ZONING OFFICER Tina Addison 2002

Paul J. Coelho
Rosemary Calnan 2002

Christina Krouk 2002
ZONING OFFICER

Gerald E. Hughes
CAPITAL OUTLAY COMMITTEE- 2 year term

William F. Sharkey 2001
INSPECTOR OF WIRES

Terri Monjar 2002
William R. Bain

CEMETERY COMMISSION- 3 year term
ASSISTANT INSPECTOR OF WIRES

Robert L. Kirby 2001
J. William Carberry

Paul L. Kozak, Sr.     2002

INSPECTOR OF GAS FITTINGS
Frank J. Gross 2003

Edward Forsberg
CONSERVATION COMMISSION- 3 year term

PLUMBING INSPECTOR Andrew W. Bakinowski 2001

Brian T. Butler 2001James K. Murray
James R. Giebfried 2002

INSPECTOR OF ANIMALS Allan M. Shaw 2002

Hilary Penlington
Joseph Simmons 2002 t,

Cynthia C. Andrade 2003Pi

ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER Aimee Dudley 2003il
Hilary Penlington

COUNCIL ON AGING- 3 year termSteven Penlington, Assistant
Irene Cahalane 2001 r'
George ClintonEMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIRECTOR g 2001

Edward Nolan Harriet Fisher 2001
Richard Connors 2001

FIRE OFFICER John Evans 2002

William R Kelley, Chief Rhoda Mandell 2002 r,,,

Georgia Jones 2002

BOARDS-COMMISSIONS- COUNCILS Martin Moeckel 2003 I.

Authorized by Statute or Bylaw Frederick J. Kenney 2003

Appointed by Board of Selectmen Deborah Owen 2003

BOARD OF APPEALS- 5 year term DESIGN REVIEW BOARD- 3 year term

Bruce A, Simpson 2001 John Buchholz, Selectmen appt.     2001 II

Lisa K. Keating 2002 Sarojit Malik, Selectmen appt.       20021', '

John M. Burke 2003
Brian D. Wolf 2004

Lorraine M. Sweeney 2005
1
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT

GOLF STUDY COMMITTEE BOARDS AND COMMITTEES
Joseph Byrne 2001 APPOINTED BY BOARD OF SELECTMEN
John J. Czyzewski 2001

Todd Monjar 2001 MIRROR LAKE ADVISORY COMMITTEE
John Vancura 2001 Joseph Gilio 2001

Frank McDonald 2001
HISTORICAL COMMISSION- 3 year term Marge Stockbridge 2001

Mary Power 2001

Suzanne Burns 2001 ROAD SAFETY COMMITTEE
William Domineau 2001 Charles H. Stone, Jr.   2001
Thelma Ravinski 2001 Remo R. Vito, Jr.       2001
Marcia Johnston 2001 Joseph.Sebastiano 2001
M. Elizabeth Pyne 2001 Beth Strubeck 2001
Geraldine Tasker 2002 Nicole Vaphiades 2001

William Crump 2001
REGISTRAR OF VOTERS- 3 year term John J. McFeeley, ex- officio

Donna Bentley- D 2002

Charles E. Burnett- R 2001 PERMANENT BUILDING COMM- 3 year term
Marie Chiofolo- U, Town Clerk 2001 Robert P. Lowndes 2002

Maty Ellen Gattoni- D 2003 David Capone 2002

Fred Pfischner 2003
VETERAN' S SERVICES Winsor Bowden III 2003

Robert Smith 2001

ZONING BYLAW STUDY COMMITTEE
MBTA ADVISORY BOARD REPRESENTATIVE Robert Nicodemus, Selectmen 2001

Greg L. Balukonis 2001 Glendon Coulter, Selectmen 2001

METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COUNCIL,       INSURANCE COMMITTEE
REPRESENTATIVE Raymond J. Turano 2001

Francis Fitzpatrick 2001 Bruce Shapiro 2001

Loretta Jacobs 2001
SOUTHWEST AREA PLANNING COUNCIL

Francis Fitzpatrick 2001 CORRECTIONS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Lisa Newell 2001
NORFOLK COUNTY ADVISORY BOARD MEMBER

Timothy Ahearn 2001
Edgar A. Miranda 2001

UNDERGROUND UTILITY COMMITTEE
Remo R. Vito, Jr.       2001

Albert L. Michel 2001

George J. Tamer 2001

TOWN BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE

Salley Vesty 2001

Stacey Flanagan 2001

PLANNING BOARD ASSOCIATE MEMBER

Apptd. jointly by Board of Selectmen/Planing Bd.)
Kevin Darcy 2001

12
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ANNUAL REPORT OF Town Administrator annually compile budget information for

THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN
the subsequent Fiscal Year for presentation to the Board of
Selectmen who are required by town bylaw to present an annual
budget needed to operate the town for the next year.

We are pleased to present to you our Annual Report for
the year 2000. The Board of Selectmen are required by Article The Selectmen meet weekly on Mondays at 7: 00 PM
V, Section 1 of the Norfolk Bylaws to annually submit a report during the year for regular meetings, except during the summer
of all elected and appointed officials, boards, committees,       months from mid-June through August when the meetings are
councils and commissions. This provides the townspeople with held hi- weekly. The meetings are held at Town Hall and are
a summary of the activities of the town' s governing

bodies. We open to the public. We invite any interested persons to attend.
are also required to present a report on the Town' s financial If any person is interested in speaking or addressing the chair
transactions and balances. All of this information can be at the meeting we strongly suggl.st that they call the Board of
found herein. This is our town report for the calendar year Selectmen' s office at 528- 1408 to be scheduled. Our meetings
2000, covering the period from January 1, 2000 to December are also broadcast live on Norfolk Cable on cable channel 22.
31, 2000.  Agendas are posted in Town Hall forty-eight hours in advance

of the meeting and those interested in being scheduled are
The members of the Board of Selectmen are the Town' s expected to recognize this limitation. Since the Selectmen are

Chief executive officers. This form of government became individually designated as liaisons to other boards or committees
established in New England early in the seventeenth century.      we also attend many meetings or hearings before other boards
At that time towns had no regularly elected town officials.       and committees transacting town business.

Town meeting would periodically `select' prominent citizens to
carry out the mandates of the town meeting

and to perform the In May, James R. Giebfried left the board after six years
business of the town between the town meetings. Dorchester of dedicated service. R. William Perron succeeded him. We
in 1633 became the first Massachusetts town to adopt this new congratulate Bill on his election and welcome the new thoughts

form of local government by establishing a Board of Selectmen.       and energy that he brings to the board. We also sadly miss Jim
Today, 302 towns in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts with his wealth of experience, sage advice and steady, dedicated
maintain this traditional form of government. Most towns, like leadership. This is the third year in a row that an incumbent did
Norfolk have a three- person board with most of the remainder not remain with the board. Following the election, the board
having a five-person board. One town, Wakefield, has a seven-      reorganized electing Joyce E. Terrio as Chairman and John
member board. Despite the number of members, the legal J. McFeeley as Clerk.

authority of selectmen is limited to actions by the board as
a whole.  

As a result of the complete transition of the board to new
members over the last three years, the board has formulated

Members of the Norfolk Board of Selectmen are elected a new agenda for the future. We are placing an emphasis on
to a three- year term. The terms of each selectmen are

staggered reordering the budget process, re- establishing a Capital
L such that one of the three positions is open for election each Outlay Committee, improving communications between boards

year. In May of each year, following the
election, the board and the public, streamlining the administrative processes in

reorganizes and the member in the third year of their current town government, involving more people in the government,
1 term is elected as chairperson. This member acts as primary improving roads, and building the infrastructure that has been
L liaison to the Town Administrator, chairs the meetings, 

sets allowed to deteriorate over the years. We are also not hesitating
1 the agenda, recognizes the participants, and in general sets the to explore new ideas. Bill Perron, for example has been tireless

overall administrative direction for the board, The chairperson in his efforts to relocate the MBIA train station. We will have
also represents the board and signs contracts on behalf of a town web page. We will have an emphasis on economic

I the board in those cases where it is not necessary for the full revitalization.

1 board to sign.
The past year has been an interesting and exciting year,

The Town Administrator is appointed by and reports to despite the fact that it started with a non- event. The problems
the Board of Selectmen. One full time Administrative

Assistant predicted with Y2K did not happen. The town, and the rest
I and one Clerk also assist the Town Administrator. It is the of the world survived. On the first of January, a task force

responsibility of the Town Administrator to lead and coordinate of seven employees came to Town Hall and other locations
the daily affairs of the town that are not statutorily

assigned to and went through a predetermined checklist. All systems
another appointed or elected board. The Finance Office, Police responded flawlessly.

Department, Fire Department, Highway Department, among
others report to the Town Administrator with the oversight There were several major personnel changes during the

of the Board of Selectmen. The Finance Director and the year. In May, David Okun our Treasurer/ Collector resigned

13
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT

to assume a position with the Town of Weston. David had Highway Department costs. It was discussed whether theproven himself to he an invaluable asset to the town. After
fees would be per user or per event or field. The Highwayan exhausting search the town appointed a new Treasurer,      Department and the Recreation Commission will investigateJane Lepardo. She has had prior municipal experience with the options and make a proposal before years end. TransferWestwood and prior financial experience with BayBank for 7 Station fees were recomputed and adjusted according. We metf 1/ 2 years. Jane began in August and has been doing a splendid with Jofran Corporation, a new business in town, to look atjob despite the enormous work in front of her. We commend
streamlining some of the ways the town could improve itsher for the rapid adjustment that she has made. In November licensing process. A Financial Review Committee was formedi

the board received notice that our Building Commissioner of to look at town wide financial issues. They have met severalueighteen years had announced intentions to retire by the end times to discuss mutual financial difficulties. The Capital Outlayof the year. Gerry Hughes had been an extraordinary asset to Committee was reinstituted and the board asked the Highwaythe town during this time. His Department had also been the Department to prepare a ten year Capital Improvement Programtraining ground to many other inspectors and commissioners for the roads. We are attempting to reform the Economicover the years. His loss to the town presented the board with Development Committee to help us guide future growth.a difficult selection process. Because of the importance of
t the position, the board asked the Town Administrator and the Perhaps the most publicized event of the year came withis Building Commissioner to review their selection with them the announcement in early August from the Water Departmentprior to any offer or acceptance. It is anticipated that a selection that some routine laboratory samples were reported to havewould be made in January.     

evidence of e- coli bacteria. Although subsequent samples did
not confirm this data, it was necessary to report these findingsThere were also a number of departures and appointments to the state. The state then ordered that a boil order be placed on0

made at the department and committee level during the year.      the Department and the water supply until the e- coli questiony Sandra J. Myatt left the Arts Council. Jamie Masterson left the had been cleared up. Although there are 157 strains of e- coliFire Department, Scott Thayer also resigned as a firefighter/EMT
and only two make an individual sick, the situation was severeafter 13 years. Pat Lang, KathrynKathr n Rodman, and Priscilla
enough to demand the highest attention. The response ofTsarides resigned from the Council on Aging, Irene Cahalane all departments involved was outstanding. The message wasand Deborah Owens were appointed to the Council. Ernie quickly brought to the attention of the public, the boil orderAlix resigned from the Permanent Building Committee. Jim was issued, and the water supply was chlorinated. The matterGiebfried was congratulated for his six years of service to
was resolved before it became a major problem. In reality,the town as a Selectman. He was appointed to the Conserva-      
subsequent tests never confirmed the initial e- coli data but thetion Commission. Aimee Dudley was also appointed to the board was very pleased with actions of all town agencies tovr Conservation Commission. Jim Lafave, the Information Systems assure our preparedness.

Manager, for the town left in February to accept private
employment. Jim was shared with the School Department top Another significant event was the replacement of thecare for both municipal and school facilities.  

Miller Street Bridge. The town has been trying to no avail for a
number of years to have the crumbling bridge on Miller StreetOf special importance to us were two other changes
replaced. Representative Scott Brown and Commissioner Mat-during the year. The board accepted the resignation of Maryann
thew Amorello from the Massachusetts Highway' Departmentr

Magner from the Conservation Commission after serving for agreed to give Norfolk a single lane` aqua' bridge. These bridgeseighteen years. Thelma Ravinski stepped down as Ca- Chairman
are good for up to 15 years. The Town Highway Department-1

of the Historical Commission. She will remain a member of did the engineering and installed the footings for the bridge,i the Commission. These are two fine people who have made a
which was installed by District 5 of Mass Highway. Thedifference in our town. The board has explored a number of
bridge, although not pretty, is in place insuring the safety zconcepts and methods for achieving a balanced budget. The of the travelers.

revenue picture has been bleak. The average revenue had
been between 5.8% and 6%. 1 his past year it was only 3. 4%.     The Senior Center issues were finally resolved. The boardThe Chapter 70 reimbursements to the town for schools have

worked closely with Town Counsel and the Council on Aging to7 averaged 15' 1 to 20% over the prior six years. Last year it was
bring the legal difficulties to a satisfactory closing. In June, the1 just over 7%. If this trend continues, and we suspect it will, the

hoard reached a settlement with the abutters on Medway Branchschools will not have state support for the programs that they and Tucker Road regarding the Senior Center. Construction of  'need for our children and the financing of the school programs
the Senior Center has begun and will be completed during ther may suffer. In a response, the board has explored alternative
summer of 2001. This was a job that was well done by all. Tofunding opportunities. The Recreation Committee agreed to the

help with some of the funding, the Council on Aging appliedconcept of user fees for the recreation fields. The fees would for a CDF2 grant with the state to offset part of the costs ofcover the expense portion and not the labor portion of the finishing the lower level.

14



GENERAL GOVERNMENT

7e The board conducted a departmental/ town committee ultimately replace existing taxes within the tax base. The
3y communications meeting during August to facilitate the primary beneficiaries will be the seniors and low- income
to communication program that we announced. It was a huge households.

et success. The boards gathered to discuss their goals and efforts

et and felt enfranchised to continue the efforts within their We are also happy to report that the voters at the town
at departments. Additional meetings are planned. meeting and at the special ballot questions approved our public
is safety efforts. The Fire Department was able to add two Full
d The town has been vigilant in maintaining a zero- tolerance Time Firefighter/EMT's and the Police were able to add the two

jl towards the sale of alcohol to minors. The police have conducted positions lost in the 1996 cutbacks. In addition, the police clerk

y several sting operations in addition to their normal surveillance position was also reinstated.

y of the licensed establishments. The board had four hearings

n during the last year and has made that message clear to all We are also proud to see that our Veterans Day activities
e involved. We are determined to support the police in keeping have reached the level of attention that they deserved. Generally,

our youth free from harm and safe from others on the road.      the town has observed Memorial Day events with a parade and
An appeal of our decision by one retailer to the state Alcohol a small reception following the ceremonies. Due to the efforts

1 Beverage Commission only resulted in a victory for the town of veteran Arthur Keenan, the town has been improving its
t and an affirmation of our determination.       activities on Veterans Day as well. Art has been the central force

behind creating a memorable Veterans Day celebration for us.
i Maureen McPike, a past member of the board met with On November 11, 2000 the dedication of the Walter Day

us on several occasions to discuss coordinating Census 2000.      Fisher Bridge resulted in a celebration with the participation

1 She conducted testing and training of the residents to help in of over 500 people. There were the veterans, the scouts, the

1 taking the federal census. Norfolk went through the process elementary school band, and the parents. Thanks, Art for
i very smoothly. The Norfolk Cable Advisory Committee was your fine work.

disbanded after successfully negotiating a new cable contract
with MediaOne. Even after disbanding, the committee was We would like to acknowledge the efforts of our staff,

vigilant in reversing an incorrect rate increase in January. Our Greg L. Balukonis, Marian Harrington, and Dorothy Strohl
continued thanks were extended to the efforts of this fine team.      who serve this board, and the public, in a pleasant and helpful

They negotiated a contract with MediaOne that commanded the manner. We also want to thank all employees for a; job well

highest reimbursement to the town when compared to any other done. We appreciate your efforts and hope that you keep up

town in the state, Others are now benefiting from the trail the good work.

that we blazed together. Again, we extend our sincere thanks

to the committee and to their legal counsel Bill Solomon for One of Norfolk' s finest traditions is they involvement of

their outstanding work.  the townspeople and independent leagues and clubs who freely vf

give their time and experience to make our government work.

Despite the closing of most of the services at Caritas We have been fortunate to have you with us along the way. It is
Southwood, the board was able to extract significant other reassuring to find the quantity and quality of volunteerism has
benefits to the town. In February, the board signed a purchase grown to meet the need as the problems of local government

and sale agreement with Caritas accepting a parcel of property become increasingly complex. We are grateful for the work of
from Caritas Southwood. This 25- acre parcel is alongside the all board and committee members who spend many evenings t,

previously purchased Lind property and adds to the town owned out of their homes in addressing town business. We truly F

conservation land. We are proud that we were alert to this appreciate the dedication of all of you who make Norfolk the

opportunity to enhance open space within the town at no cost to 4lecial place that it is.       f,

the taxpayer. Later, the board was able to negotiate an agreement vo
with Caritas Southwood that the paramedic unit will remain in Respectfully Submitted,
town in town facilities for the next two years. The unit was to be

terminated upon the closing of the hospital. We hope that we can Board of Selectmen

continue this arrangement even after this time period.
Joyce E. Terrrio, Chairman 1

Our commitment to open space and land preservation John J. McFeeley, Clerk 4
tt

was also confirmed with our initiation of discussions for the R. William Perron, Member t

Community Preservation Act. This act calls for additional taxes
for the purpose of providing funds for several land purchase
opportunities. However, these taxes will be selective and will 4

i
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT

ANNUAL REPORT OF VOTER REGISTRATION
THE TOWN CLERK

The Town Clerk acting in her capacity as a Registrar of
Voters held five late night registration sessions and one SaturdayThe year 2000 was an extremely busy year in the Town

Clerk' s Office. The Town Clerk supervised five elections: the re;. stration session from 9 am until 8 pm. The Town Clerk
Presidential Primary, the Annual Town Election, a Special Town Office also remained open five additional evenings until 8 pm
Election, the State Primary and the General Election for state to offer extra hours for absentee voting.
office and for president. The close proximity of the Annual
Town Election to the Special Town Election placed a particular There are 5, 721 voters in the Town of Norfolk
strain on the election staff.

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to those ANNUAL TOWN ELECTIONindividuals whose loyalty and hard work made each of these
elections a success. The dedication of my election staff is one of MAY 2, 2000
the many rewarding aspects of this position. I would be remiss
if I did not take this opportunity to also publicly thank Toby Pursuant to the Warrant for the Annual Town Meeting,

the inhabitants of Precincts 1, 2, and 3 of the Town of NorfolkLyons, Superintendent of Buildings for the School Department,
who meets me at the school on every election morning at 6 am,      qualified to vote in town affairs assembled in MacBride
the staff of the Highway Department who are always there when Auditorium at the Freeman Centennial School on Tuesday,
I need them before and after every election and to recognize May 2, 2000 to act upon Article 1, the Annual Town Election
the Norfolk Police Department whose professionalism and

of Town Officials.

assistance is so valuable to me.

Polls were declared open at 7: 00 am. Election officers
were duly sworn in by Warden Thelma Ravinski. The ballotThere were two Town Meetings in 2000. The Town Clerk

is responsible for taking the minutes and performing all the boxes for all three precincts were found to be in good working
necessary follow-up procedures. The Warrant for the Annual order and registered zero,

Town Meeting contained 37 articles, and the Fall Town Meeting
Instructions to voters and specimen ballots were posted atWarrant contained 43 articles, There were several General

and Zoning Bylaw changes passed which require lengthy and the entrance to each precinct as required by state law. A total of
detailed procedure for submission to the Attorney General' s voters cast their ballots with the following results
Office for his approval. All financial articles were certified and
submitted to the Department of Revenue as required by state MODERATOR FOR ONE YEAR
law. Minutes of both town

meetings were circulated to every
Frank J. Gross

1, 120

Town department as a courtesy of this office.  Blanks
189

All Others
8

Dog owners are reminded that all dogs over the age of six
months must be licensed and proof provided of current rfoes SELECTMAN FOR THREE YEARS
inoculation as well as spaying or neutering. Licenses are to be James R. Giebfried

617
renewed yearly beginning January 1. An additional$ 25.00 late R. William Perron

659
fee per license will be charged to owners who fail to re- license

Blanks
39

by May 1. Dog owners are also reminded that Norfolk does have All Others
2

an Animal Control Bylaw. Copies of the bylaw are available
in the Town Clerk' s Office.    ASSESSOR FOR THREE YEARS

John G. Robbins 956
We are in receiptof the materials for passport processing.      

Blanks
356

We are awaiting the training schedule to be established by the All Others
5

Federal Passport Agency. Once we receive our training, we will
begin accepting passport applications. BOARD OF HEALTH MEMBER FOR THREE YEARS

Phomas R. Gilbert
681

Alan ChapskiVITAL STATISTICS 590
i3lanks

44
All OthersBirths

128 2
Deaths

36Marriages
37

16



GENERAL GOVERNMENT

BOARD OF HEALTH MEMBER FOR ONE YEAR James R. Giebfried and John J. McFeeley, Selectmen of Norfolk,
John J. Hurley 871 the inhabitants of Norfolk qualified to vote in elections and
Blanks 384 town affairs met in the King Philip Senior High School, 201
All Others 62 Franklin Street, Wrentham, MA on Saturday, May 6, 2000,

at 9: 00 AM in the morning. There and then to act on the
HOUSING AUTHORITY MEMBER FOR FIVE YEARS following articles. The meeting was called to order at 9: 05 AM
Walter Zagieboylo 962      ' by Moderator Frank J. Gross who introduced the Town Clerk,
Blanks 349 the Finance Director, the Town Administrator, members of the

All Others 6 Board of Selectmen, Town Counsel and the Advisory Board
Chairman, who introduced the members of the Board. There

HOUSING AUTHORITY MEMBER TO FILL 2 YEAR were 332 registered voters in attendance. Sworn as counters

UNEXPIRED TERM were Jonathan Smith, James Martin and Bruce Simpson.

Matthew Cappofreddi

Paul DeBois 9 ARTICLE 1

Maureen Buck 1

Blanks 1, 297 Article 1 was the Annual Election of town officers, which

took place on Tuesday, May 2, 2000
Library Trustee for Three Years
Frances M. Holman 984 ARTICLE 2

Blanks 330

All Others 3 The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
unanimously to amend the Town of Norfolk Personnel Bylaw by

Planning Board Member for Three Years changing the Classification Schedule as follows:
David J. LaPointe 888

Blanks 425 From:
All Others 4 ADMINISTRATIVE/CLERICAL

Administrative Assistant

Recreation Commission Member for Three Years Building Department 1
Julie A. Chapski 689 Grade 9

Craig S. Koch 478

Blanks 148 To:     i

All Others 2 TECHNICAL/ PROFESSIONAI,     iI
Administrative Assistant t

Norfolk School Committee Member for Three Years Building Department k

J. David Kennedy 722 Grade K.

Edward D. Piscitelli 798

Blanks 1, 111 ARTICLE 3

All Others 3

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
King Philip School Committee Member for Three Years to fix the salary and compensation of alt elected officers of the
George T. Cronin 1, 076 Town as provided for by Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter
Blanks 241 41, Section 108; and to authorize any Town board or committee t

to employ for additional salary or compensation any of its
Water Commissioner for Three Years members and to fix the salary or compensation thereof for the
Deborah J. Robbins 997 fiscal year commencing on July 1, 2000: Moderator - $ 1. 00,

Blanks 315Selectmen - 3 members at $ 200.00 each - $ 600, Assessors

All Others 5       - 3 members at $ 200.00 each - $ 600.00, Planning Board - 5

members at $ 200.00 each - $ 1, 000. 00, Board of Health - 3

NORFOLK RECORDS
members at$ 200.00 each- $ 600.00 Water Commissioners- 3

ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
members at$ 200.00 each-$ 600.0 and Town Clerk-$ 40,000.00 t
and further, the Advisory Board recommended and the Town

MAY 6, 2000 voted to raise and appropriate $ 17, 888, 080. 00, transfer
79,900 from Ambulance Receipts Reserved for Appropriation,   

Pursuant to a warrant dated April 25, 2000, signed by transfer $ 20,000. 00 from Cemetery Sale of Lots Receipts
Reserved/ Cemetery Perpetual Care, transfer $ 40,000.00 from
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Overlay Reserve, transfer$ 377,040.00 from Water Revenue, to The Moderator explained the procedures to be followed
defray the departmental and incidental expenses of the Town for consideration of the Omnibus Budget. The Budget would
not otherwise provided for, for the fiscal year commencing be read in its entirety, both balanced budget as recommended
July 1, 2000; and to raise and appropriate contingent on by the Advisory Board and their recommendations for the
approval through a referendum override ballot vote the sum additional appropriation contingent upon the passage of the
of $415, 951. 00 for a total of $18,405, 020.00 to defray the override, should the Selectmen vote to hold an Override
departmental and incremental expenses of the Town for the Election. During the budget reading, holds would be called on
fiscal year commencing July 1, 2000.  any items for which further discussion was desired. Following

regular procedure, at the conclusion of all discussion, a vote
would be taken on all items.

May 2000 Town Meeting FY00 FY01 FY01 Override Appropriation
Omnibus Budget Appropriation Departmental Recommended Increment Contingent on

Request Override*
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Moderator

Salary 1 1 1
Expense 265 265 265

Total 266 266 266 0 266

Selectmen

Salary( mved temp cik on ConCo 124, 156 156,642 118, 170
Expense 25,390 25, 390 25,390
Commite Funds 1 1 1

Total 149,547 182,033 143,561 0 143,561

Advisory Board
Salary 3, 981 4,008 4,008
Expense 5, 650 6, 150 6, 150
Reserve Fund 40,000 40,000 40,000

Total 49,541 50, 158 50,158 0 50,158

Municipal Finance

Salary 351, 256 356,467 356,467
Expense 61, 990 66,270 56,270
Audit 10, 500 10,500 10,500Total 423, 746 433,237 432,237 0 432,237

Board of Assessors

Salary 600 600 600
Expense 1, 500 2,000

Total
1, 500

2, 100 2,600 2, 100 0 2,100

Town Counsel

Legal Fees 20,000 36,000 36,000
Retainer Fees 19, 200 19, 200 19, 200

Total 39,200 55,200 55,200 0 55,200

Personnel Board

Salary 2,410 2,437 2,437Expense 1, 600 1, 600 1, 600
Total 4,010 4,037 4,037 0 4,037
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May 2000 Town Meeting FY00 FY01 FY01 Override Appropriation

Omnibus Budget Appropriation Departmental Recommended Increment Contingent on

Request Override'

Information Technology Coordinator
Salary 15, 675 33,646 16, 146

Expense 5, 861 5, 861 5, 861

Total 21,536 39,507 22,007 0 22,007

Computer Committee

Expense 100 100 100

Total 100 100 100 0 100

Tax Title/Foreclosure
Expense 20,000 20,000 20,000

Total 20,000 20,000 20,000 0 20,000

Town Hall Operations
Expense 86,000 93, 300 99,800

Total 86,000 93,300 99,800 0 99,800

Town Clerk

Salary 53, 197 64,344 56,548

Expense 2,800 4, 155 3, 300

Total 55,997 68,499 59,848 0 59,848

3A
F

Elections

Salary 3,321 6, 690 6, 690

Expense 4,675 8,425 8,050 A"

Total 7,996 15, 115 14,740 0 14,740 I
Voter Registration

Salary
750 750 750

Expense 6,250 7, 800 7,800

Total 7,000 8,550 8,550 0 8, 550

Conservation
t'

Salary( mved temp elk from BoS) 13, 229 19, 788 18,068

Expense 4, 187 4, 666 4,250 i.

Total 17,416 24,454 22,318 t)     22, 318 t

Planning Board 4.

Salary_      
37, 146 51, 663 37, 504

q
Expense 41, 200 42,300 42,301)

Total 78,346 93,963 79,804 0 79,804

4'

Zoning Board of Appeals
Salary

18, 913 19,097 19, 097

Expense 1, 381 1, 711 1, 711

20,294 20,808 20,808 0 20,808

Total hh,
fif

Engineering 0,
Expense

950 950 950 x

Total
950 950 950 0 950

I
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT
May 2000 Town Meeting FY00 FY01 FY01 Override Appropriation--tOmnibus Budget Appropriation Departmental Recommended Increment Contingent on

Request
Override*Permanent Building Committee

Salary 5, 673 6, 893 6, 893
Expense

600 650 650Total
7,273 7,543 7,543 0 7,543

Building/Liability Insurance
Expense 117, 757 145,000 125,000Total

117,757 145,000 125,000 0 125,000
Town Reports

Expense
5, 225

Total
5,225 5,225

5,225 5,225 5,225 0 5,225

Total General Government 1, 114,300 1, 270,545 1, 174,252 0 1, 174,252
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police

Salary 992,572
Expense

1, 150, 117 1, 064.961 82,672 1, 147,633
Total

78, 066 79,566 79,566 9,486
1, 070,638 79,566 1, 144,527

89,052
92, 158 1, 236,685

Fire

Salary 317,297
Expense 424,445 384,945

Total
37,570 50,670 43, 670

354,867 475,115 428,615 0 428,615
Ambulance

Salary 72,664
Expense 50,150 50, 150

Tuition& Training
7,000 9, 000 8,000

Total 23,000 24,750 23,500
102,664 83,900 81,650 0 81,650

Building Department
Salary 129,848
Expense 132,856 131, 103

fatal 4,485 5,325 4, 625
134,333 138, 181 135,728 0 135,728

Weights& Measures

Salary
Expense

525 551 551
Total 31 31 31

556 582 582 0 583 a
Emergency Management

Salary
599

Expense 600 600
Fatal 1, 870 1, 900 1, 9002,469 2,500 2,500 0 2,500
Animal Inspector

SalaryGlary 1, 863 1, 919 1, 919
Total 100 100 100

1, 963 2, 019 2,019 0 2,500
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May 2000 Town Meeting FY00 FY01 FY01 Override Appropriation
Omnibus Budget Appropriation Departmental Recommended Increment Contingent on

Request Override*

Animal Control

Salary 11,590 12,402 12, 402
Expense 2,040 2,500 2,500

Total 13, 630 14,902 14,902 0 14, 902

Tree Warden

Salary 2,750 5, 530 2,750

Expense 22, 150 22,810 22,810

Shade Tree Salary 0 0 0

Shade Tree Expense 1, 500 2,500 1, 500

Total 26,400 30,840 27,060 0 27,060

Fire/ Police Communication

Salary 171, 968 171, 823 171, 823

Expense 4, 900 4,900 4,900
1

Total 176,868 176,723 176,723 0 176,723

Fire/Police Station

Expense 367,985 36,985 36,985

Total 36,985 36,985 36,985 0 36,985

Total Public Safety 1, 921,373 2, 191,430 2, 051, 291 92, 158 2, 143,449

EDUCATION

Norfolk Elementary 6,773, 120 7,: 30,348 7, 189, 189       $ 288,623 7,477,812

King Philip Regional 2,892,024 3, 168,394 3, 093,575
4

Tri- County Regional 209,910 164,281 164,281

1
Total Education 9, 875,054       $ 10,863.023 10,447,045       $ 288,623 10,735,668

PUBLIC WORKS

Highway
Salary 374,569 377,693 376,613

ir

Expense 146,867 183, 960 148,936

Total 521,436 561, 653 525,549 0 525,549

Town Vehicle Fuel J

Expense 40, 135 32,845 32,845

Total 40,135 32,845 32,845 0 32,845

Snow& Ice
is

Expense 108, 000 123, 777 108,000

Total 108,000 123,777 108,000 0 108,000

Grounds Maintenance q
o

Salary 66,357 73,969 73,969

Expense 17,711 29,770 29,770
j

Total 84,068 103,739 103,739 0 103,739

IN
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT

May 2000 Town Meeting FY00 FY01 FY01 Override Appropriation
Omnibus Budget Appropriation Departmental Recommended Increment Contingent on

Request Override*
WATER DEPARTMENT
Salaries 176,415 183, 227 183,227

General Operating Expenses 137,294 137,294 137,294
Projects 32,500 32,500 32,500
Indirect Costs 72, 136 73,965 73,965

Total Water Department 418,345 426,986 426,986

Debt( funded in Omnibus Budget through water revenues)       377,040

Grand Total Water Department 804,026

The budget items which had been held were then read ARTICLE S
and discussed in order.

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
The main motion as moved and seconded was approved in favor by a vote declared by the Moderator to be a 2/3 vote to

by a voice vote.
transfer $ 154,912.00 from the Stabilization Fund to purchase
the following:

Ib close off further action on this article, a motion made
to reconsider Article 3 was defeated by a unanimous vote.)   Library Books- Cl, C2, C3 School 34,600.00

Technology Needs- Cl, C2, C3 School       $ 120,312.00ARTICLE 4

The Advisory Board further recommended to transfer
The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted      $ 185, 000. 00 from Prison Mitigation Funds to transfer

unanimously to transfer the sum of$ 426,986.00 from Water      $ 188, 592.00 from Free Cash to fund the following capitalDepartment Revenues to fa; r,d the Water Department maintenance purchases.

and operating expenses for fiscal year commencing July 1,
2000 as follows:

Salaries 183, 227 00
Expenses 243, 759. 00

Total Water Department 426,986.00
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT

CAPITAL PURCHASES FY01

Cruiser Police 27,600

King Philip Capital King Philip 43,357

Playgrounds F/C- removal School 16, f90

Automated External Defibrillators Police/Fire 14, 000

G-7 Wide Area Mower Grounds Maintenance 28,000

Boiler Replacement Police Station 20,000

Binding Vital Records Town Clerk 2, 000

Mobile Video Camera Police 4,601)

Phase 1 - Large Diameter Hose Replacement Fire 30,000

Special Projects Highway 89,671

Stair Treads School 8, 200

HO Day Furnishings School 41, 714

Copy Machine Replacement Selectmen 15, 000

Replace Ventilation Saw Fire 1, 250

Replace Town Hall Doors Selectmen 9,000

HO Day Copiers School 9,250

F/C Bathroom Renovation School 10,000

Paint/Sand/Salt Shed Highway 3, 800

Total
373, 592

At this point a motion was made and seconded to amend ARTICLE 7

the main motion by adding $ 27,600. 00 to fund the purchase
of an additional police cruiser. The Town voted 142 YES and The Advisory Board recommended and the' i':' ow n voted
64 NO in favor of the motion as amended. ( The town voted to unanimously to authorize the Board of Water Commissioners
transfer $ 216, 192.00 from Free Cash rather than $ 188, 592.00 to take by eminent domain pursuant to Massachusetts General
to change the total for Capital Purchases from $ 373, 592.00 Laws Chapter 79 the fee simple interest in land off Gold Street,

to$ 401, 192.00.)  Norfolk shown as ' lot 2' on a Plan of Land recorded in the
Norfolk County Registry of Deeds as Plan 111 of 2000 in

To close off further action on this article, a motion to Plan Book 472, and entitled" Plan of Land in Norfolk, Mass"

reconsider Article 5 was defeated on a voice vote.)    Prepared for the Town of Norfolk Water Department, 28

December 1999 by Landmark Engineering of New England,
At this time ( 12:00 Noon) it was moved, seconded and Inc., consisting of approximately 32. 29 : tett-. ' ind formerly

voted to adjourn to 1: 30 PM to take up action on the articles owned by Catherine R. Boschen, Alice S. Boschen and Andrew 1
yet to be acted upon.     H. Boschen, And that no betterments shall be assessed with the

taking, all trees and improvements on the land shall he included
The Moderator reconvened the meeting at 1: 30 PM. There in the taking and no damages shall be awarded.

were 115 voters in attendance.
ARTICLE 8

ARTICLE 6
The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted unanimously to authorize the Board of Water Commissioners

unanimously in favor of Indefinite Postponement of Article 6. to take by eminent domain pursuant to Massachusetts General
Laws Chapter' 79 the fee simple interest in land of Gold Street,

To see if the Town will vote to transfer from Water Norfolk shown as ` parcel A' on a Plan of I..and recorded in

revenues or retained earnings a sum of money for acquisition the Norfolk County Registry of deeds as Plan 111 of 2000

of land in the Gold Street well area for water supply protection in Plan Book 472, and entitled ' Plan of Land in Norfolk,

purposes; or take any other action relative thereto.)   
Mass,' Prepared for the Town of Norfolk Water Department, 28
December 1999 by Landmark Engineering of New England,
Inc., consisting of approximately 5. 02 acres and formerly
owned by Anne B. Gronroos. And that no betterments shall
be assessed with the taking, all trees and improvements on
the land shall be included in the takings and no damages shall
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT

ARTICLE 9 Upon request, the Moderator recounted the votes and
when the votes were recounted it resulted in 73 YES and 35

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted NO a total of 108 votes of which 2/ 3rds would require 73;
unanimously to authorize the Board of Selectmen to accept and the Moderator declared that the 73 votes constituted an '.
gifts of land for municipal purposes.   affirmative vote on the article.

ARTICLE 10 A voice vote to approve the $ 78, 000. 00 was passed
unanimously.

Two motions were made under Article 10, the first

motion was a motion to borrow$ 300, 000.00 for the purpose of ARTICLE 11

designing, constructing, originally equipping and furnishing a
new Senior Center, including the payment of all costs incidental The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
and related thereto, and that to meet this appropriation, the to transfer from Free Cash
Town Treasurer, with the approval of the Board of Selectmen,

is hereby authorized to borrow said amount in accordance with ARTICLE 12

Chapter 44, Section 7( 3) of the General Laws, or any other
enabling authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the Town The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted in
therefor, provided however, that any borrowing or expenditure favor of indefinite Postponement ofArticle 12.
of funds authorized by this vote shall be in addition to any other
amounts previously qpropriated for this purpose. The second To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate,
part of the motion was to transfer$ 78, 000.00 from Free Cash to transfer from any available source of funds a sum of money
pay for the first year' s debt service on this borrowing. to pay unpaid bills of a prior year pursuant to Massachusetts

General Laws Chapter 44, Section 64; or take any other action
After both of these motions had been made, Mr.McFeeley relative thereto.)

made a motion which was duly seconded to substitute a new
motion which would move to indefinitely postpone Article There were no unpaid bills)
10. After discussion, this motion failed on a counted vote of
50 NO and 45 YES.  ARTICLE 13

The main motion for the bond issue was discussed and The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted to
after a counted vote to 68 YES and 35 NO for a total of 103 transfer$ 25,000.00 to fund a feasibility study, for the purpose
votes requiring 69 affirmative votes for passage, the Mod.: ator of building a municipal golf course in the Town of Norfolk,
declared that it was not a vote. 

and that the funds be expended under the authority of the
Board of Selectmen.

ARTICLE 13

Move to transfer

from: Acct Number Acct Name Amount
01. 5122.8719 ATM 99- Replace Tramp House Roof 1, 000.00
01. 5122.8717 ATM 95- Police Feasibility Study 4,000.00
01. 5122.8520 STM 94- ADA Renovation 2,589. 70
01. 5152.4010 Personnel Expense 900.00
01. 5154. 1100 Information Technology Salaries 2,000,00
01. 5154.4010 Information Technology Expense 2,000,0001. 5.154.8211 ATM 99- Y2K Contingency 3, 000.0001 5158.4010 Tax Title

2,000.0001 5159.4011 Town Hall Encumbered Funds 450.0001. 5176. 1100 ZBA Salaries
2,000.0001. 5176.4011 ZBA Encumbered Funds 378.0001. 51 X95. 3430 town Reports

359.0001. 5220.8549 Dire- Copy Machine ATM 99 216.0001. 5231, 1100 Ambulance Salaries 4,000.0001. 5295.4010 Tree Warden Expenses 82.89
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To:    Acct. Number Acct. Name Amount

01. 5420.4800 Highway Fuel& Utilities 1, 000.00

01. 5420.8532 Highway- Overhead Garage Door ATM 99 4,214.00

01. 5431. 8531 Transfer Station Transport Vehicle Cover ATM 99 1, 400.01.

01. 5431. 8190 Transfer Station Compactor/Container ATM 99 200.00

01. 5431.4011 Transfer Station Encumbered Funds 2. 000.00

01. 5440.7110 Sewerage- Solid Waste Disposal 468. 30

01. 5710.9010 Debt- Bond Registration Fee 1, 175. 00

01. 5710.9170 Debt- Certification Notes/ Bonds 600.00

37. 5189.8923 PBC- Pond St. Recreation 3, 243. 80

Free Cash 74,500.00

Total 114,676.69

01. 5122.xxxx Selectmen- Special Election 700.00

01. 5220. 1100 Fire Salaries 3, 000.00

01. 5220.4010 Fire Expenses 3, 800.00

01. 5231. 4010 Ambulance Expenses 1, 050.00

01. 5423. 4010 Snow& Ice 13,700.00

01. 5132.1100 Finance Salaries 2,000.00

01. 5151. 3090 Town Counsel Legal Fees 6, 400.00

01. 5151. 3890 Town Counsel Retainer 2,000.00

01. 5152.1100 Personnel Board Salaries 900.00

01. 5159.4010 Town Hall Expenses 6, 000.00

01. 5161. 4027 Special Elections 4, 300.00

01. 5171. 1100 Conservation Salaries 2, 000.00

01. 5175. 3060 Planning Board Engineering
3, 243. 80

01. 5210. xxxx Police budget( Contract Settlement) 36,000.00

01. 5295. 1100 Tree Warden Salaries 82.89

01. 5431. 4224 Transfer Station Facility Maintenance 4,500.00

01. 5420.4220 Special Projects 25,000.00

Total
114,676.69

ARTICLE 14 Board, Board of Health, Conservation Commission, Zoning
Board ofAppeals and Building Department, Find Town Counsel,

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted ex- officio and non-voting.    

to authorize the Board of Selectmen to appoint the following
committees unless otherwise noted:   Corrections Advisory Committee- 3 members

Arts Council- 9 members
Economic Development Committee  -  5 members

appointed jointly by the Board of Selectmen and the Planning

Bay Circuit Regional 2 members Board

ADA Compliance Committee - 5 members, plus Town Regional Sewage Package Treatment Plant Study Coni-

Administrator, ex-officio and non voting mittee- 3 members appointed jointly by the Board of Selectmen
and the Planning Board

Insurance Advisory Committee- 5 members
Open Space Committee - 5 members as follows: one q

Recycling/Solid Waste Advisory committee- 5 members
member to be a member or designee of the Recreation Com-

and Highway Superintendent, ex- officio and non-voting
mission, one member to be a member or designee of the
Conservation Commission, one member to be a member or

Zoning Bylaw Study Committee- 7 members appointed designee of the Planning Board, and two others to be appointed li

as follows: two members appointed by the Board of Selectmen,      jointly by the Planning Board and Conservation Commission. j
and one member of designee each appointed by the Planning
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Town Beautification Committee- 3 members ARTICLES 18 THROUGH 24

Golf Study Committee- 5 members The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section

Reports were presented to the meeting by the King 53E 1/ 2, to authorize the use of revolving funds for the
Philip Regional High School Committee, the Cable Advisory purpose of

Committee, the Road Safety Committee and the Recreation
Commission.  

Article 18) A Planning Board Revolving Fund for
receipt of subdivision performance inspection fees, as

James Giebfried offered a status report on the Art Gallery they may be established by the Planning Board, with
located in the upper level of the Town Hall.     the authorization to the Planning Board to expend funds

in the account for services related to the inspection
Town Administrator, Greg Balukonis, took this opportunity and approval of subdivisions, such payments not to

to announce to the meeting that the Norfolk Treasurer/ Collector, exceed $ 40,000 in the aggregate during Fiscal Year
David B. Okun, would be leaving the Town of Norfolk to fill 2001 and

a position in the Town of Weston as of May 26, 2000. Mr.
Balukonis commended Mr. Okun for his excellent work over his Article 19) A Planning Board Revolving Fund for5 year tenure and wished him well in his new endeavor.

receipt of mitigation funds required by the Planning
Board under the Shade Tree Act and Scenic Roads Act,ARTICLE 15
with the authorization to the Planning Board to expend
funds in the account for the purchase and plantingThe Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted to of replacement trees, such payments not to exceed

accept the provisions of Section 59 or Chapter 127 of the Acts 40,000 in the aggregate during Fiscal Year 2001of 1999( Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 59, Section 5K) and

providing for a senior tax relief work program.

Article 20) A Planning Board Revolving Fund forARTICLE 16
receipt of mitigation funds required by the Planning
Board relative to off-site improvements required dueThe Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted to to the approval of subdivisions and site plans, with the

authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter into an intermunicipal
authorization to the Planning Board to expend fundsagreement with the area towns to participate in the Charles in the account for such off-site improvements, suchRiver Household Hazardous Waste Consortium to allow the

collection and disposal of hazardous waste from the xc idents
payments not to exceed $ 300,000 in the aggregate
during Fiscal Year 2001 and

of Norfolk at a centrally located household hazardous waste
disposal facility.      

Article 21) A Department of Environmental Protection
ARTICLE 17 Cross Connection Control Program, said revolving

fund shall be credited with receipts from Inspection
The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted in

Services under the authority and direction of the Board
of Water Commissioners, such expenditures not tofavor or indefinite Postponement ofArticle 17. exceed$ 5,000 and

To see if the Town will vote to authorize a Recreational
Article 22) A Conservation Commission RevolvingField Maintenance Revolving Fundpursuant to Massachusetts

iGeneral Laws, Chapter 44, Section 53E 1/ 2for receipt

ofFund
pursuant to receive and disburse wetland hearing

p application fees for payment of legal advertisementuser fees collected though the use offield space at various for said hearing, in an amount not to exceed $ 5, 000town facilities, with expenditures from said fund not to exceed
duringduring Fiscal Year 2001 and50,000 in theaggregate fiscal year 2001, said fund to

he expended under authority of the Highway Superintendent;    
Article 23) A revolving fund for the purpose ofpayingor take any other action relative thereto,)

the expenses of snow removal including maintenance
and replacement of equipment, from private property
to include the King Philip Regional School and
subdivision roads as required by the Planning Board
rules and regulations; said fund to be credited with
receipt of fees charged for this service under the
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authority and direction of the Board of Selectmen, Wireless Communications Overlay District 2. This
such expenditures not to exceed $ 5, 000 in Fiscal district shall include all land in the B1 Zoning District
Year 2001 and with an existing ground elevation at or above Elevation

284 feet elevation, mean sea level( 1927) datum.

Article 24) A revolving fund for the purpose of
paying expenses related to the collection of parking The Advisory Board further recommended and the
ticket violations said fund to be credited with receipts Town voted unanimously to amend the use table Section D.2,
collected not to exceed $ 1, 000 in Fiscal Year 2001;      Transportation and Utility uses paragraph D.2. b.5 " Wifeless
under the direction of the Board of Selectmen Communications Facility" by adding, the words, limited to the

Wireless Communications Overlay District 1' and by deleting
ARTICLE 25 SP( 1) under the column for C2, C3, C5.

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted ARTICLE 28

unanimously to accept and authorize the Board of Selectmen
to enter into contracts for the expenditure of Chapter 90 Planning Board member, Arthur Spruch, made a motion
funds allocated by the Commonwealth for the construction,      to amend the main motion by adding the word ` footprint' after
reconstruction, or improvements of public roads and other the word ` building' in the third line of paragraph 3 thereof.
improvements within the Town, as requested by the Selectmen,      The motion was seconded and the Town voted unanimously

and to authorize the Treasurer to borrow or bond, pursuant to any in favor of the amendment.

applicable statute in anticipation of reimbursement.

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
ARTICLE 26 unanimously to amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by adding

a new Section F.9 a. 18. of the Sign Regulations to read as

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted follows:

unanimously to authorize the Board of Selectmen to release
or acquire by gift, purchase, or otherwise, such easements as Section F.9.a. 18. in particular instances the SPGA may

may be necessary for drainage purposes and the laying out issue Special Permits for larger signs as specifically noted, if it

of public ways.   is determined that the architecture of the building, the location

of the building with reference to the street or the nature of the
At this point, Arthur Spruch, Planning Board member,      establishment is such that the sign should be permitted in the

presented a written report of the Planning Board with respect public interest. In granting such permission, the SPGA shall

to its zoning articles,     specify the size and location of the sign or signs and impose
such other terms and restrictions as may be deemed to be in the

ARTICLE 27 public interest. Any applicant under this provision shall provide
the following: a) a drawing to scale showing the proposed sign,

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted all existing signs maintained on the premises and a plot plan and

unanimously to amend Section F.13 of the Norfolk Zoning sketch plan of the building facade including the location of the

Bylaws by adding a new first paragraph to read as follows:   proposed and any existing signs; b). Perspectives, rendering..
photographs, or other representation sufficient to show the nature

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY OVER-      of the proposed sign, its effect on the immediate surroundings,

LAY DISTRICTS. and the reasons for allowing it"

Wireless Communications Overlay District 1. This Amend Section F.9. a. 11. by adding` except to a maximum

district shall include land between Dean Street and of 15 feet by Special Permit' so that Section F.9. a. 11. will
Rockwood Road limited to Assessors' Map 9, Block now read, ' No freestanding SIGN shall he higher than 10
32, Lots 33, 36,38, and 100, and Map 10, Block 32,      feet from the averaged finished grade of adjoining ground

Lots 3, 4, 8, 12, 41, 74, 76 and Map 10, Block 34,       to the top of the SIGN except to a maximum of 15 feet by
Lot 134; however, WIRELESS COMMUNICATION Special Permit

FACILITIES other than appurtenant ground equipment

may be placed on or within existing transmission Amend Section F.9.b. i.c.2. by adding the words,' with the

towers only.     
size' added between the words` premises' and' not' and adding

except by the Special Permit with 12 square feet allowed for
each 10,000 square feet of building footprint to a maximum
of 48 square feet" at the end so the Section will now read,
One wall SIGN for each separate and distinct establishment
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advertising the goods or services rendered on the premises with Section 2

the size not exceeding 12 square feet in area except by Special
Permit with 12 square feet allowed for each 10, 000 square feet The owner or authorized agent of a burnt or dangerous
of building to a maximum of 48 square feet.   building shall provide for its removal upon being issued an

order by the Board of Selectmen, Board of Health, or Building
Amend Section F.9. b. 1. c. 4. by adding the words ' with Commissioner. If the Owner or his authorized agent fails to

the size' added after the word ` establishments' and adding the comply with an order issued by one of the above town agencies
words ` except by Special Permit to a maximum of 24 square pursuant to the relevant Massachusetts General Laws Chapter
feet at the end so the Section will now read," One freestanding 139, Sections 1- 3B, Chapter 111, Sections 123- 125; or Chapter
SIGN on the ground for each separate BUILDING housing one 143, Section 6- 11, the Town may demolish or secure any burnt
or more establishments, with the size not exceeding 12 square or dangerous building or structure and recover its costs as
feet in area per side except by Special Permit to a maximum provided by law.
of 24 square feet".

Violators of this section shall be subject to a fine of three
Amend Section F.9.b. l. c. 7 by adding' with the size' added hundred dollars ($ 300) for each day the burnt or dangerous

after the word` SIGN' and the words` except by Special Permit structure is not demolished or secured after receiving written
to a maximum of 24 square feet' added at the end so the Section notice requiring said actions be performed.
will now read," A non- residential subdivision shall be permitted
on freestanding SIGN with the size not exceeding 12 square ARTICLE 31
feet per side except by Special Permit to a maximum of 24
square feet".  

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
unanimously in favor of indefinite Postponement of Article

ARTICLE 29 31.

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted To see ifthe Town will vote to amend the Town ofNorfolkunanimously to amend the Town of Norfolk Bylaws, Article Bylaws, Article X-Police Regulations, by adding the followingXIII, Section 3 ( Dog Regulations) by deleting Sub- Section new Section 35; or take any other action relative thereto.
G. Appeal, in its entirety and replacing it with the following
new Sub-Section G.  

No person or persons shall perform any outside work,
including, but not limited to, construction, renovation,G. APPEAL
demolition, loading or unloading materials, and equipment
mobilization/ demobilization, including running equipment.The owner or keeper of any dog that has been ordered motors between the hours of 7:00p.m. and 7:00 a.m. No outside

restrained or muzzled under this bylaw may, within seven( 7)      construction work, as described herein, shall be performeddays after such an order or restraint, file a request in writing on Sundays without the Police Chief's prior consent. Thiswith the Animal Control Officer that the restraining order be section shall not apply to private homeowners and contractors
vacated, or released. Requests shall be filed by the Animal performing emergency repairs, and to domestic equipment suchControl Officer with the District Court Ciro who shall schedule as lawnmowers and power saws or activities defined by 310a hearing pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter CMR 7.10. Violation of this section shall be subject to a fine of140, Section 173A, as amended.       

three hundred dollars($ 300) for each violation.)

The Animal Control Officer may file a complaint with the ARTICLE 32
District Court Clerk if the owner or keeper of any dog under
a permanent restraint order continues to be a public nuisance, The Advisory Board recommended and the Town votedor has failed to pay lines within 30 days after receiving written unanimously in favor of Indefinite Postponement of Articlenotice under Section H of this Bylaw. 32.

The decision of the Court shall he final and conclusive To see if the Town will vote and amend the Personnelon all parties.  

Bylaw by adding toArticle ll the following new sub-section; or
ARTICLE 30 take any other action relative thereto:

B(4) The Town Administrator is responsible for carryingThe Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted to out the day to day administration of the Personnel Bylaw,amend the Town of Norfolk Bylaws, Article XI-Fire Department
specifically the authority to decide all questions relating toRegulations by adding the following new Section 2.  hiring new employees, job classification, reclassification,
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re-evaluation, and promotion. The Town Administrator shall use its authority to appropriate such sums as will levy' taxes to
also be responsible for development and implementation of the maximum limit authorized by Proposition 2- 1/ 2, so called,
uniform personnel policies for all employees covered under for fiscal year 2001.

the Personnel Bylaw. The provisions of this section shall
supersede any conflicting language contained elsewhere in All articles in the Warrant having been acted upon, it
this Bylaw.)       was moved, seconded and voted to dissolve the meeting at

4:30 PM.

ARTICLE 33

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
SPECIAL ELECTION

unanimously to authorize the Board of Selectmen to accept any TUESDAY, JUNE 13, 2000

monies received through grants applied for by various Town
Departments/ Boards.   Pursuant to a duly posted Warrant for a Special Election,

the inhabitants of Precincts 1, 2, and 3 of the Town of Norfolk,

ARTICLE 34 qualified to vote in town affairs, assembled in MacBride
Auditorium in the Freeman-Centennial Elementary School on

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted Tuesday, June 13, 2000.

unanimously to accept all State and Federal Grants and
reimbursements for the Water Department which do not require The polls were open from 7: 00 AM to 8:00 PM. A total of

matching funds from the Town or any representative or agency 2,099 voters cast their ballots with the following results:

thereof, and will not obligate or encumber any resident of the
Town of Norfolk without a vote at Town Meeting.   

Question 1

ARTICLE 35 Shall the Town of Norfolk be allowed to assess an

additional$ 92,158 in real estate and personal property taxes for
y

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted the purposes of funding the Police salary and expense accounts;
to authorize the Board of Selectmen to advertise in a local the said amount to be used for the hiring of two( 2) new patrol

newspaper and sell at public sale from time to time, as it may officers and related expenses, and hiring an administrative

deem in the best interest of the Town, any and all lands or support clerk for the Police Department for the fiscal year

portions thereof which the Town has acquired or may acquire beginning on July First, Two Thousand?

as Tax Title land, so called, such sales to be made on behalf
of the inhabitants of the Town of Norfolk, and to authorize

Yes 1, 122

the Selectmen to expend from the proceeds of such sale the
No 958

necessary costs of recording fees, documentary stamps, and
Blanks 19

auctioneer' s fees, if required.       
Total 2,099

ARTICLE 36
Question 2

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
Shall the Town of Norfolk be allowed to assess an

unanimously to grant the Board of Selectmen permission to sell
additional $ 35, 170 in real estate and personal property taxes

surplus property of the Town, exclusive of buildings and land,      for.the purposes of funding the Library salary account; the said

no longer needed by the Town.  
amount to be used for the hiring of a new Reference Librarian,
and making the Youth Librarian position full•, i, oe by adding

ARTICLE 37 7 hours per week for the fiscal year beginning on July First,
Two Thousand?

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
unanimously to appropriate to the Stabilization Fund, established

Yes 1, 141

pursuant to the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws,  
No 941

Chapter 40, Section 5B an amount equal to the difference
Blanks 17

between the amount the Town is authorized to levy for fiscal
Total 2,099

year 2001 Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes and the
sum of all amounts so levied excepting said appropriation, it
being the intent of this Town Meeting for these purposes to
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Question 3 COUNCILOR

Blanks 118

Shall the Town of Norfolk be allowed to assess an All Others 56

additional $ 184,079 in real estate and personal property taxes

for the purposes of funding the Elementary School budget the SENATOR IN GENERAL COURT

said amount to be used for providing services for the growing Daryl Hanlin 52

school population by adding 2 additional classes with related Earl Henry Sholley 72

costs, increasing the services of the developmental reading Blanks 43

teacher for the fiscal year beginning on July First, Two All Others 5

Thousand?

REPRESENTATIVE IN GENERAL COURT

Yes 1, 207 Scott P. Brown 163
No 868 Blanks 9

Blanks 24 All Others 2

Total 2,099

CLERK OF COURTS

Question 4 Daniel M. Dewey 108

Blanks 66

Shall the Town of Norfolk be allowed to assess an All Others 0

additional$ 104,544 in real estate and personal property taxes
for the purposes of funding the elementary school budget; the REGISTER OF DEEDS

said amount to be used for adding the World Language Program Bruce Olsen 112

in compliance with the Education Reform Act for the fiscal year Blanks 56

beginning July First, T\ vo Thousand?  All Others 6

COUNTY COMMISSIONER
Yes 1, 119 Blanks 335
No 955 All Others 13
Blanks 25

Total 2,099 DEMOCRATIC BALLOT

STATE PRIMARY ELECTION SENATOR IN CONGRESS

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 19, 2000 Edward M. Kennedy 127

Blanks 18

All Others 1
Pursuant to the duly posted and distributed Warrant for

the State Primary Election, the inhabitants of Precincts 1, 2,      REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
and 3 of the Town of Norfolk, qualified to vote, assembled in Barney Frank 119

MacBride Auditorium of the Freeman- Centennial Elementary Blanks 27 !-
School on Tuesday, September 19, 2000.      All Others 0

The polls were open from 7: 00 AM to 8:00 PM. A total of COUNCILOR
320 voters cast their ballots; with the following results:       Kelly A. Timilty 71

Terence J. O'Malley 42
REPUBLICAN BALLOT

Blanks 20

SENATOR IN CONGRESS
All Others 0

Jack B Robinson, III 93 SENATOR IN GENERAL COURT
Blanks 75 Cheryl Jacques 126
All Others 6 Blanks 20

REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
All Others p

Martin D. Travis 111
Blanks 61
All Others 2
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REPRESENTATIVE IN GENERAL COURT Selectmen Chair, Joyce ' Terrio announced that Mr. Paul
John D. Vozzella 83 Borelli has donated a parcel of land to the Town of Norfolk
Blanks 49 which will allow for the expansion of the Library.
All Others 14

Representative Scott Brown addressed the Town Meeting
CLERK OF COURTS and provided it with a legislative update.
Walter F. Timilty, Jr.    97

Blanks 49 Senator Jacques also addressed the Town Meeting.
All Others 0

On a motion by Marie Chofoio, seconded by Joyce Terrio,
REGISTER OF DEEDS it was unanimously voted to waive the reading of the Warrant
Peter H. Collins 47 and the Return ori the Warrant.

Mary Ellen Cronin 60

Paul D. Harold 19 ARTICLE 1
Blanks 20

All Others 0 Mie Advisory Board recommended and the ' Town voted
unaninssus>ly to transfer $.35, 711 from Account# 01. 5299. 4010,

COUNTY COMMISSIONER Fire/ Police Station, to pay the following invoice from fiscal
John M. Gillis 55 year 2( 100: Unitirst Corporation$ 35. 70.
William P. O'Donnell 100

Blanks 137 ARTICLE 2
All Others 0

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
NORFOLK RECORDS unanimously to transfer$ 28,( i00 from Account# 01. 5913XXXX,

Employee Benefits, to Account# 01. 5151. 3090, Town Counsel
SPECIAL TOWN MEETING Legal Fees, and to raise and appropriate $ 26, 915 to fund

OCTOBER 28, 2000 increased fuel and heating costs as follows:

Pursuant to a warrant dated September 25, 2000, signed 3, 150 to Account # 01. 5420.4801), Highway- Fuel and
by Joyce E. Terrio, John J. McFeeley and R. William Perron,       Utilities.

Selectmen of Norfolk, the inhabitants of Norfolk qualified to

vote in elections and town affairs met in the King Philip Senior 3, 750' lb Account # 01. 5420.4800, Fire/ Police Station I.

High School, 210 Franklin Street, Wrentham, MA on Saturday,      - Fuel and Utilities

October 28, 2000 at 9: 00 in the morning, there and then to act
on the following articles. The meeting was called to order at 1, 950 to Account# 01. 5159.4800, Town Hall Operations 4

9: 10 AM by Moderator Frank Gross, who introduced the Town      - Fuel and Utilities 1

Clerk, The Finance Director, the Town Administrator, members
of the Board of Selectmen, Town Counsel and the Advisory 13, 600 to Account# 01. 5422.4800, Town Vehicle Fuel 1

Board Chairman, who introduced the members of the Board

There were 231 registered voters in attendance. Sworn as 4, 465 to Account # 01, 5431. 4800, Transfer Station

counters were James Martin, Dorothy Strohl and Deborah      - Fuel and Utilities and to transfer $ 2, 950 from Account

Robbins.   01. 5132. 1100, Finance Salaries, and $ 4, 400 from Account

01. 5154. 1100, Information Technology Salaries for a total
Town Clerk, Marie Chiofolo, introduced several students of$ 7, 350 to Account# 01. 5122. 1100, Selectmen Salaries and

who had volunteered their time to assist with the audio and video to transfer $ 1, 000 from Account #- 01. 5159.4011, Town Hall y
equipment. They are Lisa Pittsley, Melissa Taddeo, Michael encumbered funds, to Account # 01. 5122,7820 Committee

i

Ferrara, Christine White, Cindy Spiess and Tom Gemelli.     Funds, to fund Veterans' Day activities,

Mr. Gross made the following announcements. The A motion made by David Wildman,  seconded by e
Council on Aging would be selling lunch during the break. The Lori Hurley to delete the transfer of $2, 950 from Account

Veterans' Day Celebration is scheduled for Saturday November      # 01, 5132.1100, Finance. Salaries,s, and $ 4,400 from Account

11th. There will be a parade at 10: 15 AM. There will be parking      # 01. 5154. 1100, Information Technology Salaries, for a total
at the Day School and buses will be available to transport of$ 7,350 to Account# 01. 5122.1100, Selectmen Salaries was

spectators to the Cemetery. Refreshments will be served at the lost on a voice vote.

Day School after the parade.
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ARTICLE 3 No betterments shall be assessed with the taking, all trees and
improvements on the land shall be included in the taking, and

The Advisory Board recommended and moved that the no damages shall be awarded.

Town raise and appropriate$ 90,600 to fund the Senior Center

Construction, Account # 39.5541. 8x' 01. In answer to a query ARTICLE 5

the Finance Director stated there woad be no money to fund
Article 13 if the motion as made was passed. The Moderator The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
then determined that the funding for Article 3 would directly unanimously to transfer from Water Department retained
affect the funding for Article 13 and that is was appropriate earnings the sum of $73, 350 for the purpose of making
that the two articles should he discussed simultaneously. After improvements to the Gold Street Pump Station, Spruce Road
over two hours of discussion, Nina Roe made a motion, duly Pump Station and the Water Tank.
seconded, to amend the main motion by substituting a new
motion to read as follows: ' Move the Town transfer $ 70,309 ARTICLE 6

from additional lottery aid and to raise and appropriate$ 19, 691
from Chapter 70 Supplemental Aid for the construction of the The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
Senior Center, Account # 39.5541. 8801'. The Town voted in unanimously to appropriate $ 735, 000 for the purpose of
favor of amending the main motion.   building a water treatment facility and for making necessary

improvements to the Spruce Pond Pump Station, and that to
The Main Motion as amended was voted affirmatively raise this appropriation the Treasurer, with the approval of the

by a unanimous vote.  Board of Selectmen, be authorized to borrow $ 735, 000 under
the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 44,

A motion duly made and seconded to reconsider Article Section 8 or any other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or3 did not pass
notes of the Town therefore.

ARTICLE 13 ARTICLE 7

The Moderator brought Article 13 forward for further The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
discussion and vote. The Advisory Board recommended and unanimously to authorize the Transfer from Water Department
moved that Article 13 be indefinitely postponed. A motion retained earnings the sum of $66, 200 for the purpose of
was made to substitute the main motion with I, new motion acquiring 14.24 acres of land in the Gold Street Well area for
to read: ` Move that the Town raise and appropriate from Ch

water supply protection purposes. Said land being identified by70 Supplemental Aid the sum of $ 129, 546 for the purpose the Town Assessor' s records as Parcel 9- 32- 16
of elementary school operations.' The Town voted in favor of
amending the main motion.  ARTICLE 8

The main motion as amended was voted in the affirmative The Advisory Board recommended and the Town votedby the Town Meeting.  
unanimously to Indefinitely Postpone Article 8 as written in the
Warrant since the request was funded in the transfer of funds

A motion was made and seconded to reconsider Article voted in Article 3 of this Town Meeting.13, the motion was lost on a voice vote.

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate or
ARTICLE 4

transfer from any available source of funds, a sum of money
to be added to the Selectmen' s Salary to increase clericalThe Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted hours in the Board of Selectmen' s Office; or take any otherunanimously to authorize the Board of Water Commissioners action relative thereto."

to take by eminent domain pursuant to General Laws Chapter
79 the fee simple interest in those two certain parcels of land ARTICLE 9
formerly owned by Leo C. Braun, et al, and shown as Parcel A,
11. 608 acres and Parcel B, 3.82 acres, totaling 15. 428 acres on The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voteda plan of land entitled" Plan of Land in Norfolk, Mass:' Dated

unanimously to transfer$ 25,000 from the Workers Compensa-3 April 2000, Scale 1'= 80', by Landmark Engineering of New tion Trust to Account# 01. 51.93. 7400, Building/LiabilityEngland, Inc., said plan being recorded at the Norfolk County Account.
Registry of Deeds in Plan Book 474 as Plan No. 228 of 2000.
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ARTICLE 10 ARTICLE 15

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted The Advisory Board recommended and moved that article
unanimously to appropriate the sum of$ 185, 000 and that to 15 be Indefinitely Postponed.
meet such appropriation the Treasurer with the approval of the

Board of Selectmen is hereby authorized to borrow the sum of A motion was made and seconded to substitute a new
185, 000 pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 44,      motion to read: " To raise and appropriate the sum of$ 25,000

Section 7( 1) to construct sanitary sewers along the Old Populatic to fund a study of the Norfolk Personnel Bylaw Classification
Road, including shared costs with the Town of Franklin, and and Compensation Schedule."

to secure easements necessary for the installation of sewer
lines and services; 100% of said project costs to be assessed to A motion was then made to amend the amendment by
property owners in the form of a betterment as provided for by deleting the words raise and appropriate and inserting the words
Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 83, Section 23. Stabilization Fund so that the motion would read" To appropriate

the sum of$ 25, 0t:-) from the Stabilization Fund to fund a study
ARTICLE 11 of the Town of Norfolk Personnel Bylaw Classification and

Compensation Schedule.

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
unanimously to enter into an intermunicipal Agreement with A counted vote on this second amendment was 27 YES,

the Town of Franklin concerning provisions for municipal 44 NO and the amendment did not carry.
sanitary sewerage services to Norfolk residents located on
Old Populatic Road.    The vote was then held on the first amendment and that

failed to carry on a voice vote.
ARTICLE 12

The main motion to indefinitely postpone was voted
The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted by the Town.

to transfer the sum of $53, 000 from Additional Lottery Aid
to the School Department for the purpose of construction of To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
a new playground. or transfer from available funds, a sum of$ 25,000 to fund a

Study of the Town of Norfolk Personnel Bylaw Classification
At 12:30 PM the Town Clerk made a motion to adjourn and Compensation Schedules: or take any other action relative

the meeting and reconvene at 1: 30 PM at the King Philip High thereto."

School. The motion passed unanimously.
ARTICLE 16

The second session of the October 28th Special Town

Meeting was called to order by the Moderator at 1: 30 PM. There The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
were 165 registered voters in attendance. James Martin, Dorothy in favor to raise and appropriate $ 58, 735 to fund the Highway
Strohl and Debbie Robbins were sworn as counters.   Special Projects Account# 01. 5450.4208

ARTICLE 14 ARTICLE 17

George Cronin, member of the King Philip School The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted in
Committee, introduced Bill McAulduff, Superintendent of the favor of Indefinite Postponement of Article 17.    t

King Philip Regional School District, who provided a detailed
presentation to the Town Meeting. After much discussion,      To see if the Town will vote to allow the Board of
the Advisory Board recommended and moved and the Town Selectmen to enter into agreements to allow the Town of
voted to approve the $ 2,600,000 indebtedness authorized by Norfolk to serve as the host community for the Charles River
the Regional District School Committee of the King Philip Household Hazardous Waste Facility; or take any other action
Regional School District on September 5, 2000, for the relative thereto."

cost of architectural and engineering services for plans and
specifications for the construction of a new high school and the ARTICLE 18

construction of an addition to and remodeling and renovations
to the existing middle school.  The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted

to authorize the Town to establish a Conservation Management
t 3i

A motion made and seconded to reconsider Article 14 Revolving Fund pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws c

was lost on a voice vote. Chapter 44, Section 53E 1/ 2 from which to proceeds from
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the sale of timber and to disburse said funds to develop and 4.0 Policy
oversee management activities and projects on Town-owned At times it may be deemed advisable for
conservation land, in an amount not to exceed $ 5, 000 during a non- exempt employee to work beyond
fiscal year 2001. Said funds to be expended by the Conservation the regular scheduled number of hours and
Commission.       be granted compensatory time in lieu of

compensation, Such compensatory time will
ARTICLE 19 be granted at the discretion of the employee.

The Department must approve, in advance,
The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted in writing, requests for accrual and use of

in favor to authorize the Board of Library. Trustees to apply compensatory time.
for and accept state funds for the purposes of defraying all or
part of the cost of the design, construction, and equipping of an Non- exempt employees may accrue compen-
addition to the Norfolk Public Library building.   satory time up to an amount equal to their

regular week' s scheduled work hours. No
ARTICLE 20 employee shall lose any accrued compensa-

tory time.
The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted

to amend the Town of Norfolk bylaws, Article X - Police Compensatory time will accrue at straight
Regulations, by adding the following new Section 35:    time for eligible hours which otherwise would

be compensated at straight time, and will
No person or persons shall cause, allow or permit the accrue at a rate of 1. 5 for eligible hours

operation of equipment or machinery associated with site work,  which otherwise would be compensated at
construction, or demolition between the hours of 7 p. m. and 7 that rate.

a.m. Monday through Saturday, and all hours on Sunday, and
State holidays without the expressed approval of the Board of A motion was made by Selectmen, McFeeley, seconded
Selectmen, and the issuance of a work permit by the Chief of by Selectman Terrio to Indefinitely Postpone Article 21. This
Police. Such regulations shall not apply to domestic equipment motion was defeated on a voice vote.

such as lawnmowers and power saws or activities defined by 310
CMR 7. 10. Violations of this Section shall be subject to a fine of The main motion as made by the Advisory Board was
three hundred dollars($ 300.) far each violation."     then voted in the affirmative by the Town.

i

ARTICLE 21 At 5: 07 PM a motion was made and seconded to adjourn

the meeting to Monday, October 30, 2000 at 7: 30 PM at King fThe Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted Philip High School i

to amend the Town of Norfolk Personnel Bylaws by adding
a piety section as follows:       i,

The third session of the October 28th Special Town i
Meeting was called to order by the Moderator on Monday,XXVII COMPENSATORY TIME October 30, 2000, at 7:45 PM at the King Philip High School.1. 0 Application

This policy applies to employees under the There were 58 registered voters in attendance. James i
Town Personnel Bylaw.     Martin, Dorothy Strobl and Debbie Robbins were sworn as ilcounters.

2,0 Definition

Compensatory. timeis paid time off from ARTICLE 22

work in exchange for unpaid time previously
worked in excess beyond an employee' s The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
regular scheduled work hours,      to indefinitely Postpone Article 22.

3, 0 Exempt Employees
A motion to amend the main motion by substituting aEmployees in exempt positions are not entitled new motion which adopts the words on Page 13 in.the Advisory t

to compensatory time and will not receive Board recommendations. After discussion the amendment was
additional payment, or time off for excess defeated by a counted vote of 27 NO, 15 YES.
work hours under any circumstances.

The main motion to Indefinitely Postpone was voted in
the affirmative by the Town,

oi
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To see if the Town will vote to add to the Town ofNorfolk Joseph Sebastiano spoke for the Road Safety Committee
Personnel Bylaws a new section entitled WORK AT HOME saying that the committee would be rejuvenating itself in the
as follows: upcoming year.      P

XXVI WORKAT HOME Arthur Spruch representing the Planning Board discussed
1. 0 Application the goals of the Planning Board. Some of the articles presented

This policy applies to all employees under in this Warrant are reflective of the goals outlined in the Planning
the Town Personnel Bylaw. 1'

y Board' s Growth Management Study.       1

2.0

Policyi
ARTICLE 25 4

The Town believes that employees should l`

perform their work at their Town Work Site. It The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
is the Town' spolicy not to allow at-home work.       unanimously to accept a gift of land, or take by eminent domain s

If an employee cannotperform his/her duties pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 79 and s1

at the Town Work Site, written authorization further to accept as a public way, Cress Brook Road, a distance 1
is required in advance by the Employee' s of 492. 15 feet more or less from Medway Street to end of cul de t
supervisor, and the Personnel Board. Once sac together with the utility, sight lint', sidewalk, future through
approved, at-home work must be separately roadway, tree planting, and drainage easements as laid out by
noted on an employee' s time sheet, including the Board of Selectmen in accordance with the acceptance plan

days and hours worked. A copy of the autho-      consisting of two sheets ( Plan and Profile sheet which is x.

rization will be on file in the Finance Depart-      dated April 15, 1999 and revised February 15, 2000, and June
ment;  23, 2000 and Easement Plan sheet dated June 23, 2000 and i  '

i' revised September 8, 2000 and October 19, 2000) drawn by
or take any other action relative thereto."  Commonwealth Engineers and Consultants, Inc. of Providence, 4  ,

Rhode Island.      

ARTICLE 23 h

ARTICLE 26
r i,

The Advisory Board recommended and moved to amend Vis.

the Town of Norfolk. Personnel Bylaw, page 1, Section The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
1. PERSONNEL BOARD by deleting the last sentence in unanimously to accept a gift of land, or take by eminent domain 4

Paragraph 3 which now reads as follows: Three members shall pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 79 and further

constitute a quorum for the transaction of the business of to accept as a public way, Evans Lane, a distance of 498.85 feet O Zvi
f the board and the affirmative vote of three members shall be more or less from Needham Street to end of cul de sac with the l

necessary for any official act of the board. And replacing that utility, sight line, sidewalk, and drainage easements as laid out
sentence with the following: Three members shah conatltute a bythe Board of Selectmen in accordance with the acceptance l'p i

I quorum for the transaction of business and a maiority vote shall plan dated August 29, 2000, drawn by Dunn& M+t: nzie, Inc. 1.

4 be necessary to constitute an official act of the board of Norfolk Massachusetts,

The Iown Meeting voted no and this motion; did not A motion was made and seconded to bring Articles 45 and fiy'
carry.      46 forward, The motion passed on a voice vote.  it  >,

IARTICLE 24.   ARTICLE 45
t

To see if the Town will vote to choose any, committee,     The Advisory Board recommended and moved to amend
or hear or act on the report of any committee, town officer,       the Norfolk Zoning Bylaws, as noted in Article 45 as printed in i 1
or instruct any committee or town officer; or take arty other the warrant and to amend that wording in Article 45 by: 1. s%

action thereon.

1.  Deleting the proposed paragraphs H.2. b. 3. a. and
i

Moved and seconded and,approved by voice vote to hear 1L2.b.3.b. and substituting in their place the following Y ,

the following reports. paragraph H,2,b.3:      

Georgia Jones, Chair of the Council on Aging thanked H.2.b.3. The maximum number of BUILDING LOTS

the members of the Council for all their hard work throughout in a tract to be developed under the Open Space Preservation

this past year which culminated wi>:h the beginning of the Bylaw shall be equal to the number of BUILDING LOTS which

construction of the new Senior Center.  could be developed through a conventional subdivision of the J
o.A
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tract, plus ten percent ( 10%). The burden of proof shall be flood plains, by the minimum LOT area for the zoning district
upon the AF L LICANT in determining the allowable number in which the tract is located, and then multiplying the result
of BUILDING, LOTS, which shall be demonstrated through by seventy- five percent( 75%). Documentation shall include a
submission of a preliminary plan of the conventional subdivision.      plan showing the tract, all wetlands and flood plains, and the
The Planning Board reserves the right to challenge the status applicable calculations.

of any LOT.'

Insert a new paragraph H.2.b.4. as follows:
ANI)

H.2. b.4. In addition to SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS
2.   Revising the wording of Paragraph H. 2. f.3. by and other accessory uses allowed in the zoning district, an

substituting the following wording from that currently Open Space Preservation development may contain a small
shown on the warrant so that the new final sentence wastewater treatment facility serving only the LOTS in the
of Section H. 2.f.3. will read as follows:    development.

The open space may also be proposed to be used for Submitted by Planning Board
underground wastewater disposal from septic systems or
small wastewater treatment plants, subject to documentation Delete subsection H.2. c " Intensity Requirements" in
provided to the Planning Board that impacts will be minimal its entirety, and substitute in its place the following: H.2.c.
and diminution of the value of the open space will not be Intensity Requirements H.2. c. 1. The Planning Board may
significant, but the open space shall not be used for wastewater grant a reduction of all intensity regulations in Section E.1. b.,
treatment STRUCTURES."    Schedule of Dimensional Regulations, for all portions of

an Open Space Preservation development if the PlanningAND
Board finds that such reduction will result in better design and
improved protection of natural and scenic resources, and will

3.   Deleting in its entirety the last provision of the article,      otherwise comply with this Bylaw.
relating to amendment of subsection H.2.g. l.

H.2.c.2 The requirement for Continuous Buildable Lot
Article 45 as printed in the Warrant:    Area( Section E. 1. f.)shall apply to each LOT in an Open Space

Preservation development. The Continuous Buildable Lot Area
ARTICLE 45.   

shall be computed as sixty percent ( 60%) of the minimum

LOT area for the zoning district in which the LOT is located,
To see if the Town will vote to amend the Zoning Bylaws,      regardless of any reduction in LOT area granted by the PlanningSection H.2. Open Space Preservation, as follows:    Board for the Open Space Preservation development.

In paragraph II.2.b. 1., replace the words" ten( 10) acres"    H.2.c.3. In no instance shall any LOT deviate from thewith the words" five( 5) acres".
following minimum requirements:

In paragraph H.2.b. 1, replace the words" R- 2 and/ or R- 31 Minimum Frontage 50 ft.with the words iR- 1, R- 2 and/ or R-3". Minimum front yard setback 30 ft.
Minimum side/ rear yard setbacks 15 ft.

Delete paragraph i-1. 2.b.3 in its entirety, and substitute
in its place the following: H2.b.3 The maximum number of Delete parara hs H.2.e. 1., H. 2. e. 2., H.2. e. 3., andBUILDING LOTS in a tract to be developed under the Open H.2.e. 4., and substitute in their place the following:Space Preservation Bylaw shall be determined in either of the
following two ways, at the sole discretion of the applicant: H.2.e. 1. A tract of land developed as an Open Space

Preservation development shall contain land set asideH.2•b•3. a. The number of BUILDING LOTS which could
as permanent open space. The minimum area of suchbe developed through a conventional subdivision of the tract,    
permanent open space( which shall not include land setplus ten percent ( 10%). The burden of proof shall be upon aside for roads and/ or parking areas) shall be determinedthe APPLICANT in determining the allowable number of in relation to the average area of all LOTS in the develop-BUILDING LOTS, which shall be demonstrated through ment, as follows:

submission of a preliminary plan of the conventional subdivision.
The Planning Board reserves the right to challenge the status Required Open Space = Total Tract Area Times ( One
of any LOT. H.2.b.3. b. The maximum number of LOTS may minusAverage area of all BUILDING LOTS in the developmentbe computed by dividing the tract area, less all wetlands and divided by Minimum LOT size from Section E. 1. b.)
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In no case, however, shall the Required Open Space ARTICLE 44
be less than twenty- five percent ( 25%) of the total area of

the tract of land. The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
unanimously to amend the Town of Norfolk Zoning Bylaws

H.2. e. 2. The following areas shall not comprise a greater Section H.2.e. 5., by replacing the words" twenty( 20%) percent"

percentage of the required open space than the percentage of with the words ' five( 5%) percent so that Section H. 2. e. 5. will
such areas found in the overall tract of land:   now read as follows:

Wetlands and buffer areas as defined in MGL Chapter No more than five( 5%) percent of the open space shall be

131; Land within the Town of Norfolk' s Flood Plain - Wetland covered by manmade IMPERVIOUS SURFACES.
Protection District; Floodplains as shown on the National

Flood Insurance Program Flood Insurance Rate Map Zone ARTICLE 46

A:A1- 30

The Advisory Board recommended and moved that the
None of the required open space shall consist of drainage Town vote to amend the Zoning Bylaw by inserting a new

easements. Section E. 2.g. " Estate Lots" as follows, provided that if any
portion of the amendment be disapproved or declared invalid,

H.2.e. 3. Open space shall be planned as large contiguous the entire amendir nt shall be nullified and by amending
units wherever possible, but may be in more than one parcel Article 46 by:
provided that the size and shape of such parcels are appropriate

and accessible for the intended uses as determined by the 1.  Rewording Section E.2.h. 2. f. by deleting the current
Planning Board.      Section E.2. h. 2.f and substituting in place thereof

the following: " The Estate LOT shall have been on
11. 2.. e. 4. Where possible, existing trees and vegetation a plan or in a deed recorded at the Norfolk County

shall be preserved and integrated into the landscape design plan Registry of Deeds before January 1, 2000, and shall
to ensure visual privacy between STRUCTURES, abutting not have been held in common ownership with any
properties and neighborhoods.      abutting LOT is itself in conformity with the area,

frontage, and setback requirements of this Zoning
Amend paragraph H.2.f.3. by adding the following new Bylaw."

sentence at the end of the paragraph:   
2.  Renumbering Section E. 2.h. 2. h. so that it will now

The open space may also be used for underground be Section E.2. h. 2.g. and
wastewater disposal from septic systems or small wastewater

treatment plants, but shall not be used for wastewater treatment 3.  Substituting Zoning Board of Appeals for Planning
STRUCTURES.      Board in Sections E.2.h. 1. Special Permit and Section

E.2.h. 2.g
Amend subsection H.2.g. 1. " Concept Plan/Preliminary

Plan" by deleting the second paragraph( relating to conventional 4.  Deleting all wording in Section E.2.h. g. after the
subdivision plan) and substituting in its place the following:     word` underground'.

If the APPLICANT proposes to determine the maximum So that Article 46 will now read:

number of BUILDING LOTS in relation to the number of LOTS

which could be developed through conventional subdivision To see if the Town will vote to amend the Zoning Bylaws
of the tract, a preliminary plan for a conventional subdivision of the Town of Norfolk by inserting a new Section E. 2.g." Estate
shall be submitted along with the plan for the Open Space Lots". as follows:

Preservation development:
Tab.Estate Lots

or take any action relative thereto." JE

E.2.h.1. Special Permit

The Town Meeting voted unanimously to adopt this
article.    The Zoning Board of Appeals may grant a Special Permit

to allow construction of a SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING on a

It was moved and seconded to bring Article 44 forward LOT in a Residence District lacking the minimum FRONTAGE
at this time.       required for the district, subject to the criteria for" estate lots"

set forth herein.
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E.2. h. 2. Criteria For Estate Lots Delete Section E.2.h.2. a. in its entirety
Delete Section E. 2.h. 2. e, in its entirety

E 2. h. 2. a. The area of the Estate LOT shall be at least Delete Section E.2.h. 2.f. in its entirety
three times the Minimum Lot Size for the district as set forth Renumber the remaining E.2.h.2 Sections sequentially
in Section E. Lb•       Delete Section E.2.h. 3. c. in its entirety

E.2. h. 2. b. The Estate LOT shall have at least 50 feet of The motion was lost on a voice vote.
FRONTAGE as set forth in subsection E.:i. e.. 1.

Jonathan Smith, Advisory Board member, made a motion
E. 2. h. 2. e. Front, rear, and side YARD setbacks. All to amend Article 46 by deleting Section E.2. h. 2.f. only. This

buildings shall be located a minimum distance of 50 feet from motion was lost on a voice vote.
abutting property lines.

The Town voted 35 YES to 11 NO, declared a 2/ 3 vote by
E. 2. h.2.d. The Estate LOT shall comply with the require..      the Moderator, to accept the main motion as amended.

ntents of Sections E.. i. e. and E. 1, d., except that paragraph
E. Lc.2. shall not apply. A LOT width of at least fifty( L) feet A motion to reconsider Article 46 did not pass.
shall be maintained at all points between the FRONTAGE and
the rear of the DWELLING.  ARTICLE 27

E. 2. 11. 2. e. The contiguous buildable LOT area as deli red The Advisory Board recommended to adopt a new zoningin Section E. 1. 1.( i. e., land that is not located within a designated map dated September 28, 2000, prepared by Judith Nitsch
flood plain or wetland) shall he at least two times the Minimum Engineering, Inc. and revise Section C.2. a. of the Town of
Lot Size for the district.

Norfolk Zoning Bylaws, by deleting the current section and
replacing it with a new section to read as follows:

E. 2.h.2. f. The Estate LOT shall have been on a plan or
in a deed recorded at the Norfolk County Registry of Deeds C.2.a. Said districts are located and bounded as shown on
before January 1, 2000, and shall not have been held in common a map entitled " Zoning Map, Norfolk, Massachusetts", dated
ownership with any abutting LOT as of that date, unless such September 28, 2000 as most recently amended. The Zoningabutting LOI is itself in conformity with the area, frontage, and Map, with all explanatory matter thereon is hereby made a
setback requirements of this Zoning Bylaw,   part of the bylaw.

E.2.h.2.g. All utilities shall be installed underground. A motion was made and seconded to amend the main
motion by deleting Toils End Road from the zoning mapE.2.h. 3. Application and Approval
and to change the date from September 28, 2000 to October
23, 2000.

F.2. h,3. a. The APPLICANT shall submit with the special
permit application a plan depicting the proposed Estate LOT.     The Town voted unanimously in favor of the amendment.The plan shall be prepared by a registered landscape architect,      The Town voted unanimously in favor of the main motioncis it engineer or land surveyor, and shall be in such form as as amended,

will be required for recording with the Registry of Deeds or
filling with the Land Court.   ARTICLE 28

E.2,h. 3. b. In determining whether or not to grant a special The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
permit for an Estate LOT and in determining what conditions,      

unanimously to amend the Town of Norfolk Zoning Bylawsif any, to impose on such a special permit, the Zoning Board of by deleting the reference" Article 22, Norfolk Town.Meeting"Appeals may consider circumstances relating to soil conditions,      from Example B.
topography, lot history, wetlands, proposed building locations,
and public safety and convenience.   ARTICLE 29

E.2. 11. 3. c. The special permit shall contain a recorded The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
restriction against further division of the Estate LOT creating to amend the Town of Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by amendingany additional BUILDING LOTS.'     

Section B. Definitions, by adding the words ' or Building
Sites' after the second " LOTS" so that the definition shallGraham Sterling,Advisory Board member, made a motion read as follows:

to amend Article 46 as follows:
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PLANNED MULTI- LOT DEVELOPMENT- Develop-     ARTICLE 33

merit of not less than 80,000 square feet of land into a group of
LOTS or BUILDING Sites as a part of a common scheme so that The Advisory Board recommended and The Town voted
such LOTS or BUILDING Sites need not be self-sustaining; and unanimously to amend the Town of Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by
adequate, common provisions are made for parking, drainage,       adding a new Section C. 1. f. to read as follows:
septic' disposal and other infrastructure needs of the LOTS,
BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES so accommodated.      C. 1. f.There shall be a Wireless Communications Overlay

District(s) overlaying the Zoning Map as follows:
ARTICLE 30

s C.1. f.I. Wireless Communications Overlay District 1 as
The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted indicated on the Zoning Map.

unanimously to amend the Town of Norfolk Zoning glylaws by
adding a new Section C.1. e. to read as follows:       ARTICLE 34

There shall be an Adult Business Overlay District The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
overlaying the Cl District as depicted in Example 1a of the to amend the Town of Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by adding to

Norfolk Zoning Bylaw.  Section C. 1. f. the following:

ARTICLE 31 C. 1. f.2 Wireless Communications Overlay District 2 as
indical>d on the Zoning Map.

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
unanimously to amend the Town of Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by ARTICLE 35

1 changing the beginning of Section F.13 so that the current third
paragraph will become the first paragraph.    The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted

unanimously to amend the Town of Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by
ARTICLE 32 adding to Section F.13 a new overlay district as follows:

The Advisory Board recommended to amend the Town Wireless Communications Overlay District 3, This district

of Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by deleting the current Section F.13 shall include all land within the HM& PO( Health Maintenance

Wireless Communications Overlay District 1 and replacing it and Professional Office) District limited to Assessors Maps

with the following new paragraph:      26 and 27, Block 80, Lot 3 within 300 feet of the Walpole
Town Line.

Wireless Communications Overlay District 1. This district
shall include land between the Millis Town Line and the Walpole ARTICLE 36

Town Line limited to Assessors Map 9, Block 31, Lot 1 and
Map 90, Block 32 Lots 33, 36,38 and 100, and Map 10, Block The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
32, Lots 3, 4, 8, 12, 41, 74, 76 and Map 10, Block 34, Lot 134,       unanimously to amend the Town of Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by
Map 15, Block 35, Lots 40, 36, 41, and 50, Map 15, Block 54,       adding to Section C.? f.theock35,Logi
Lots 30, 40, and 95, Map 16, Block 35, Lots 38 and 49, Map 16,     

0,

Block 54, Lot 102, Map 22, Block 54, Lots 138, 42, 102, and C.1. f.3. Wireless Communications Overlay District 3 as

58, Map 22, Block 76, Lots 14, 19, 49, 32, 31 and 41, Map 23,       indicated on the Zoning Map.
Block 54, Lot 101, however,WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS

FACILITIES within the underlying Residence ( R) or( B) Use ARTICLE 37

Districts, other than appurtenant ground equipment, shall be
placed on or within existing transmission towers used for high The Advisory Board recommended to amend the Zoning
voltage electric transmission lines only. Map for the Town of Norfolk as prepared by Judith Nitsch i

Engineering, Inca and dated September 28, 2000 and revised
t

Arthur Spruch made a motion to amend the main motion September 29, 2000 by adding Wireless Communications

by deleting the words ` Residence ( R), or Business ( B)' from Facility Overlay Districts 1, 2, and 3 to the Zoning Map.
the main motion. The Town voted unanimously to accept the
amendment.      The Planning Board made a motion which was seconded

to amend the main motion by deleting Toils End Road from the
I.

The Town voted unanimously to accept the main motion Zoning Map and changing the map date to October 24, 2000.  i
as amended.       The amendment passes on a unanimous vote.      i

41.
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The Town then voted unanimously to accept the main ARTICLE 40
motion as amended.

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
ARTICLE 38 unanimously to amend the Town of Norfolk Zoning Bylaws

by amending Section 1. 7.b. Special Permit Uses by the Zoning
The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted Board of Appeals by deleting the words, ` Telecommunications

unanimously to amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by revising and cellular towers consisting of Wireless Communications
Section F.13. b by adding the following words at the end of the Facilities on an existing structure, ( with the exception of an
sentence: ` however, if the antennas are placed on or within an equipment Building, if any)' and replacing them with the
existing transmission tower, the height of the antennas shall not following:
exceed a height greater than the highest point of the existing
tower used for electric transmission lines so the new Section Telecommunications and cellular towers consisting of
F 13. b. will now read:  Wireless Communications Facilities limited to the Wireless

Communications Overlay District 2 as provided for in Section
F.13. b. The Height of the antenna of' the WIRELESS F.13.

COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY shall not exceed a height of
110 feet as measured from the vertical distance from the grade ARTICLE 41
to its highest point; however if the antennas are placed on
or within an existing transmission tower, the height of the The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
antennas shall not exceed a height greater than the highest unanimously to amend the Town of Norfolk Zoning Bylaws
point of the existing tower used for high voltage electric by adding to Section 1. 7.b. Special Permit Uses by the Zoningtransmission lines.     

Board ofAppeals the following:

ARTICLE 39
WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY equip-

ment Building limited to the Wireless Communications Overlay
The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted District 2 as provided for in Section R13.

unanimously to amend the Zoning Bylaws by revising Section
D.2.b.5. WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY limited
to Wireless Communications Overlay District 1 and adding
Wireless Communications Overlay District 3", by adding the

words, " and as provided of in Section F.13", and by deleting
the " No" under the columns for HM& PO and B2-B4 and
substituting in place thereof" SP", and by deleting ( 1) after
SP in the R district, and deleting the note. at the bottom of the
chart which reads, " Note ( 1): Allowed by special permit as
described in Section F.13" so that Section D.2.b.5 will now
read as follows:

R HM B1 B2- Cl C2/ C4
PO B-4 C3/

D.2.b.5. WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY
C5

SP SP Sp NO
limited to Wireless Communications Overlay District 1
and Wireless Communications Overlay District 3..
and as provided for in Section F13

See Section I. ** See Section J.*** See Section K.
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ARTICLE 42 STATE ELECTION

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 7, 2000

unanimously to amend the Town of Norfolk Zoning Bylaws by
amending Section K.7. b. Special Permit Uses by the Zoning

ELECTORS OF PRESIDENT AND VICE PRESIDENT

Board of Appeals by adding the following:     Browne and Olivier 29

Buchanan and Higgins, Sr.     10

Telecommunications consisting of WIRELESS COM-      Bush and Cheney 2, 199

MUNICATIONS FACILITIES limited to the Wireless Corn-      Gore and Lieberman 2, 055

munications Overlay District 1 as provided for in Section
Hagelin and Tompkins 1

F. 13.       
Nader and LaDuke 282

Blanks 25

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY Equip-      
All Others 11

ment Building limited to the Wireless Communications Overlay
District 1 as provided for in Section F.13.      

SENATOR IN CONGRESS

Edward M. Kennedy 2, 744

ARTICLE 43
Carla A. Howell 867

lack E. Robinson, III 680

The Advisory Board recommended and the Town voted
Dale E. Friedgen 14

unanimously to amend the Town of Norfolk Zoning Bylaws Philip Hyde, III 8

Section F.11. a. by adding the words ' or structure' between the Philip F. Lawlor 61

word ` BUILDING' and ` shall' so the first sentence of Section
Blanks 227

F.11. a will now read as follows: 
All Others 11

In all districts no BUILDING or structure shall be
REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS

constructed or externally enlarged an no use shall be expanded Barney Frank 2, 720

in ground area or established in an existing BUILDING except
David J. Euchner 336

in conformity with a site plan bearing an endorsement of
Martin D. Travis 1, 335

approval by the Planning Board unless Site Plan Approval is
Blanks 214

specifically exempted herein.    
All Others 5

All articles in the Warrant having been acted upon, it
COUNCILLOR

was moved, seconded and voted to adjourn this meeting at Kelly A. Timilty 2,891

10:40 p.m.
Blanks 1, 682

All Others 39

Marie to
SENATOR Ili GENERAL COURT

Town Clerk 2, 980Cheryl Jacques

Earl Henry Sholley 1, 405

Blanks 225

All Others 2

REPRESENTATIVE IN GENERAL COURT

Scott P. Brown 3, 456

John D. Vozzella 965

Blanks 186

All Others 5

CLERK OF COURTS

Daniel M. Dewey 1, 872

Walter F. Timilty, Jr. 1, 920

Blanks 814

All Others 6
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REGISTER OF DEEDS QUESTION 3

Paul D. Harold 1, 713 LAW PROPOSED BY INITIATIVE PETITION

Bruce Olsen 2, 013

Blanks 881 Do you approve of a law summarized below, on which no
All Others 5 vote was taken by the Senate or the House of Representatives

before May 3, 2000?
COUNTY COMMISSIONER

John M. Gillis 1, 916 A YES VOTE would prohibit dog races where betting
William P. O' Donnell 2,285 or wagering occurs.

Blanks 4,984

All Others 39 A NO VOTE would make no change in the laws governing
dog racing.

QUESTION 1

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTITUTION YES 2,070

NO 2,436

I) o you approve of the adoption of an amendment to the BLANKS 106

constitution summarized below, which was approved by the
General Court in joint sessions of the two houses on June 9,      QUESTION 4

1998 ( years 186 • nays 3); and again on June 28, 2000 ( yeas LAW PROPOSED BY INITIATIVE PETITION
188- nays 0)?

Do you approve of a law summarized below, on which no
A YES VOTE would amend the constitution to require vote was taken by the Senate or the House of Representatives

that the periodic redrawing of district boundaries for state before May 3, 2000?
legislators and governor's councilors use new census data two

years earlier than under the current.   AYES VO1'> would reduce the state personal income tax
rate in steps over three years to 5%

A NC) VOTE would make no change in the current four-
year process for redrawing such district boundaries. A NO VOTE would make no change in the state income

tax laws.
YES 3, 205

NO 1, 185 YES 3, 131

BLANKS 222 NO 1, 378

QUESTION 2
BLANKS 108

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTITUTION QUESTION 5

LAW PROPOSED BY INITIATIVE PETITION
Do you approve of the adoption of an amendment to

the constitution summarized below, which was approved by Do you approve of a law summarized below, on which no
the General Court in joint sessions of the two houses on July vote was taken by the Senate or the House of Representatives
29, 1998 ( yeas 155 - nays 34): and again on June 28, 2000 before May 3, 2000?
yeas 144- nays 45)?

A YES VOTE would require health insurance carriers to
A YES VOTE would amend the constitution to limit the guarantee certain rights to their patients and providers, and it

voting rights of incarcerated felons.    would prohibit the conversion of non-profit hospitals, HMO's,
and health insurers into for-profit entities until a system is

A NO VOTE would make no change in the voting rights created to provide comprehensive health care coverage for all
of incarcerated felons.  Massachusetts residents.

YES 3, 369 A NO VOTE would make no change in the laws governing
NO 1, 104 health insurance and health care.
BLANKS 139

YES 1, 881

NO 2,549

BLANKS 182
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QUESTION 6 TOWN COUNSEL
LAW PROPOSED BY INITIATIVE PETITION

During 1999, the vast majority of the requests to Town
Do you approve of a law summarized below, on which no Counsel for advice or for the review of documents stemmed

vote was taken by the Senate or the House of Representatives from land development issues, primarily including issues arising
before May 3, 2000?     from proposed subdivisions, or the proposed conversion of

land subject to agricultural or charitable restrictions. We have
AYES VOTE would allow a state personal income tax or

advised the Conservation Commission and Zoning Bylaw
corporate excise tax credit for Massachusetts tolls and motor

Study Committee on changes to local wetlands regulations
vehicle excise taxes.      

and zoning amendments, respectively. We have advised the
Planning Board on zoning issues and on numerous forms and

A NO VOTE would make no change in state tax laws,  agreements required to condition and control the construction of

subdivisions. We have advised several boards on Open Meeting
YES 2,216

Law and conflict of interest questions, reviewed numerous
NO 2, 244 contracts, and pursued the acquisition of several parcels of land
BLANKS 152

for conservation or drinking water protection purposes.

QUESTION 7 On the litigation front, several cases were advanced or
LAW PROPOSED BY INITIATIVE PETITION resolved. The Town's appeal of the Superior Court's decision

in Rogers v. Board of Appeals was taken up by the Supreme
Do you approve of a law summarized below, on which no Judicial Court, was briefed by both parties, and remains under

vote was taken by the Senate or the House of Representatives advisement by the Court. The SJC also granted further appellate
before May 3, 2000?     review of an Appeals Court decision judgment in favor of the

Town in Whelan v. Board of Appeals, and, in January of this
A YES VOTE would create a state income tax deduction year, found that the Board of Appeals denial of a variance

for charitable contributions.     relative to Mr. Whelan' s property on Holbrook Street was
lawful. Our office also tried to the Superior Court an appeal

A NO VOTE would make no change in the state income by Ruth Weitzler from the Board of Appeals denial of zoning
tax laws.   relief relative to her nonconforming lot at 5 Franklin Avenue,

and obtained a judgment in favor of the Board. We successfully
YES 3, 522 defended a taxpayer's denial of an abatement request to the
NO 927 Appellate Tax Board, and settled an administrative appeal to the
BLANKS 163 Department of Environmental Protection relative to the scope

of the recently enacted Rivers Protection Act as applied to a
QUESTION 8 Main Street property. Attempts to settle the dispute over the
LAW PROPOSED BY INITIATIVE PETITION extent of Fredrickson Road were unsuccessful, however, and

the case remains pending.
Do you approve of a law summarized below, on which no

vote was taken by the Senate or the House of Representatives Three new cases were filed against the Town in 1999. The
before May 3, 2000?     general contractor for the new Town Hall brought suit against

the Town seeking additional payments and damages relative to
A YES VOTE would change state laws governing drug-      that project which have been in dispute since its completion

dependency treatment and fines paid and money and property in 1998. Abutters to the proposed new Senior Center also filed
forfeited in connection with drug crimes.       two appeals, one from the Board of Appeals decision granting

a special permit, and the second from the site plan approval
A NO VOTE would make no change in the laws governing granted by the Planning Board. The first of these was rendered

drug- dependency treatment and fines and forfeitures on drug moot by the adoption of a zoning amendment by the Town
crimes Meeting in November.

YES 2,098

NO 2,338
BLANKS 176
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We note with sadness the passing of our predecessor, Paul topics such as scope of authority, exercising your discretion,
Maggioni, in a tragic automobile accident in Italy last autumn.      procedural due process and the mechanics of decision- making,
We wish to acknowledge the importance of his good work in creating a proper record of Board decisions and enforcement
the resolution of several of the cases that are reported above,      of those decisions. The second part of the evening covered the •

and the continuing influence of his good counsel over the years topic of sovereign immunity. the public duty rule an civil rights
to those officers and hoards whose sound decision- making in violations. Fifty- eight individuals attended our workshop.
1999 prevented many disputes.

The Southeastern Regional Services Group looks forward
Respectfully submitted,     to continuing its mission of providing procurement services,

researching and analyzing issues of common municipal con-
George A. Hall, Jr.  cern and administering grants for its seventeen member munic-
Anderson& Kreiger, 1„ 1.. P ipalities. As we begin our eighth year of service, we are

pleased with the on-going support of our Board of Directors

SOUTHEASTERN REGIONALJ

and the achievements that we have made together.

SERVICES GROUP Catherine Salisbury,
SERSG Regional Administrator

The year 201111 heertn with the preparation of a grant

application that was filed in February on behalf of the Boards
of Health of the City of Taunton and Towns of Easton, East
Bridgewater, Raynham and Stoughton with the Department

of Public Health to secure funding under the Massachusetts
Tobacco Control Program. Our application was successful

and we have secured funding for the next four years for a
collaborative Board of Health ' tobacco Control Program that

SERSG will administer for the five municipalities.

In May and June, the Town Meetings of Foxborough,
Sharon and Easton Adopted a Right-of-Way By- Law which was
researched and drafted by the SERSG Regional Administrator.
This By-Law establishes a comprehensive regulatory scheme
to manage the public ways in these towns and protect the

taxpayer' s investment in their public infrastructure. The By-Law
is prospective in its application,  but requires that all entities

that wish to locate a facility in the public way must first apply
for a permit from the town. The By-Law establishes a formula
for determining a reasonable rental, an application procedure,
conditions of the permit, construction requirements and a

license agreement to he signed by the applicant of the town.      z
The By-Law assures that the Town can collect rental payments
from private companies that wish to use public ways in order to
make a profit for their business.

Cooperative invitations for Bids were prepared for
member municipalities in April for DPW Supplies and in

October for DPW Services. These cooperative procurements
resulted once again in significant savings for SERSG cities
and towns.

In October SERSG sponsored a Public Liability Workshop
for members of permit-granting boards such as Planning Boards,
Conservation Commissions, Boards of Health and Zoning
Boards of Appeals. The Workshop was held at the Howard
School in West Bridgewater. The first presentation focused on
how public officials should discharge their duties. It covered
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NORFOLK POLICE DEPARTMENT

The 2000 Police Department activities report is my will continue in its pursuit of grants applicable to the needs

seventh as Chief of Police of the Norfolk Police Department.      of the Town of Norfolk and the Norfolk Police Department.

Norfolk is one of the safest communities to live in as a result The department will continue to be involved in the NORSTAR

of our ability to pursue resources of personnel and equipment tactical unit. The unit is made up of officers from the 28 cities
through the support of the taxpayers and our continued pursuit and towns in Norfolk County and is available for all incidents
of grants.  requiring the services of a tactical unit including searches

for missing persons.
2000 brought many changes to the Norfolk Police

Department. The department hired several new reserve officers The department will continue to be proactive in our

including Christopher C. Antonetti, Kevin B. Collins, Kevin programs including D.A.R. E., Safe and Sober, Community
Roake, Eric Van Ness, Glen M. Lindsey, Joseph N. Deptula Oriented Policing, and traffic enforcement initiatives. We will
Jr., Robert J. Forsythe, and Robert W. Hoist. The department continue our Zero Tolerance Policy in dealing with underage
carries 10 reserve officers that fill open shifts and road details drinking for those individuals who are under the age of 21
and that number had dropped down to 2 officers as a result of and are caught drinking and driving. We will also continue to
people moving to full time positions elsewhere. In October perform a compliance check that includes enforcement initiatives
the department hired Kevin Roake as a full time officer and involving those businesses that hold liquor licenses to insure that
in November we hired Eric Van Ness. Kevin Roake was hired there are no sales to individuals under the age of 21.

using the COPS FAST grant and Eric Van Ness was hired to
replace John Holmes who had retired in 1999. The department We want to thank Officer Stephen K. Plympton for his

had been fortunate enough to regain staff that was lost during the tireless efforts and dedication to the D.A.R. E. program, the

layoff of 1996 as a result of a successful override.     youth of this town and the King Philip School District. We
want to thank the taxpayers for providing the resources for

The members of the Norfolk Police Department continue personnel that were necessary to maintain Steve' s presence
to provide quality service to the residents of our community.      at the schools for another year. The D.A.R.E. program is a
The department will continue to make every effort to provide partnership between the Norfolk Police Department, the parents
the level of services that you expect and deserve. We will and their children that we hope will help everyone achieve
continue to investigate the use of Federal, State and County a long, happy and fulfilling life, and we remain dedicated to
grants for both personnel and equipment in order to achieve these achieving that result with the help of each of the participants n
resources in the most cost effective manner. The department in the partnership.    

ore

p9
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REPORT OF THE DETECTIVE DIVISION OF THE 2000 ANNUAL POLICE AND FIRE
NORFOLK POLICE DEPARTMENT COMMUNICATIONS REPORT

The 2000 Norfolk Police Detective Division consisted The call volume in the communications department
of two officers who were assigned to work in that capacity.      continues to grow, there were almost 10,000 incidents involving
Detective Leo Ethier works full time in that position and the police alone, and an additional 1, 289 fire calls. That
Detective Glen Eykel who works part time. Detective Eykel represents a one hundred percent increase since 1997.
is paid through the use of a Community Policing Grant that
was received by the department during each of the last three In 2000 the 15 year old telephone system was replaced.
years.   

We now have the capacity to page all personnel within the
building and many have voice mail.

The detective division is also a member of the Norfolk
County anti- crime task force and attends monthly meetings There was a lot of emphasis on training this year; most
to exchange information on crimes that are occurring in this of our full time dispatchers attended some type of in-service
area. The department has also worked in conjunction with the training, while everyone participated in training new part-timers,
Norfolk County District Attorney' s Sexual Assault Unit on Nate Fletcher and George LaBonte served college internships
several incidents of sexual assault.     in our department which resulted in part- time dispatch positions

for both, and Eric Van Ness was hired as a full time police
Detective Ethier has also teamed up with Office Plympton officer leaving a vacancy.

and his D. A. R. E. program to educate the students in the
D.A.R. E. program about drugs and drug paraphernalia. This In closing, I would like to remind everyone that 9- 1- 1 is
was started several years ago at the request of Officer Plympton for use in the event of an emergency. All non-emergency calls
and has been received very well by the students in his program.      such as burning permits and school closing should be directed
The two officers show the students what drugs are being brought to the police and fire business lines.
into the community, how they might be packaged and how
to deal with the pressure to use drugs by those who profit
from by them,       

Respectfully submitted,

The detective division has also conducted several liquor Robert J. Shannon
license compliance checks to ensure that the owners of the
establishments are not selling alcohol to individuals under
the age of 21.

The arrest of a major drug dealer in the town of Norfolk
in 1997 has lead to two years of appeals in the court system.
But this year John Rice was sentenced to three years and a day
in prison. The town of Norfolk should also be receiving civil
property that was owned by Rice.

We would like to thank Chief Stone and the men and
women of the Norfolk Police Department for their continued
support and dedication to our efforts. We also want to thank the
citizens of Norfolk for their support and assistance.
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NORFOLK POLICE DEPARTMENT MISCELLANEOUS 1999 2000

YEARLY ACTIVITY Missing Persons 28 30

Missing Property 37 64

PART 1 CRIMES 1999 2000      ( lost and found)

Murder 0 0 Disturbance 155 159

Robbery 1 0      ( general/ gathering)
Forcible Rape 3 0 Domestic Disturbance 42 60

Aggravated Assault 2 4 Annoying Phone Calls 14 9

Burglary( B& E)   6 11 Suspicious Activity 360 479

Motor Vehicle( B& E)     6 3 General Services 1, 996 2,456

Larceny 34 38 Stolen Prop. Recovered 4 3

Motor Vehicle Theft 6 2 911 Investigations 102 86

Kidnapping 0 0      ( silent/abandoned)

Building Checks 102 108

PART II CRIMES found open)

Fraud 4 2 Animal Complaint 94 92

Assault and Battery 8 9 Assist- Lockouts 101 122

Arson& Bombing 5 0 Burglar Alarms 392 469

Forgery/Counterfeiting 1 0 Fire Dept. Assists 174 212

Receiving Stolen Prop 1 3 Mutual Aid 104 52

Vandalism 137 151       ( assist other PD' s)

Sexual Assault 1 3

Drug Law Violations 4 5

Oper. Under Influence 20 11

General Offenses 107 119

Trespassing 70 20

Attempted B& E 5 7

Threats 17 15

Harassment 39 35

Disorderly Conduct 5 3

ARRESTS

Arrests 51 65

Protective Custody 16 14

MEDICAL/EMERGENCY

Ambulance Assists 284 430

Sudden Death Invest 3 2

Suicide Attempt 1 5
i

TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS

Personal Injury 27 38

Property Damage 121 137

Fatal 0 0

TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT

Written Citations 320 288

Written Warnings 143 557

Verbal Warnings 300 574
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ANNUAL TOWN REPORT OF MAJOR INCIDENTS

THE FIRE DEPARTMENT
On January 16, firefighters responded mutual aid with an

engine to the town of Millis for a residential structure fire.
On behalf of the officers and the members of the fire

department, I submit the 2001) annual report of the fire
On January 30, firefighters responded mutual aid with an

department for you to review. If you have any questions about
engine to the town of Franklin for a residential structure fire.

this report or any fire prevention issues, please feel free to
Firefighters also responded to the town of Wrentham with ancall the station.  
engine for a residential structure fire.

Emergency responses by the fire department increased On March 6, firefighters responded mutual aid to the town
from the previous year with a total request for 731 emergency of Walpole with an engine and ladder truck for a multiple alarm
medical responses with emergency fire incidents totaling 538.      fire in a manufacturing building.I am pleased to report that with this significant increase in

responses there was no loss of life or serious injury to our On March 11, firefighters responded to a residentialfirefighters.
structure fire on Fleetwood Drive.

During the year, call firefigh'.er/ I MT' s Richard Clancy On April 8, firefighters responded mutual aid with anand Douglas Johnston were promoted to full time positions
engine to the town of Millis for a residential structure fire.

bringing the number of full time employees up to six. With
these two new positions it allows furl time coverage for two

On April 17, firefighters and emergency medical personnelshifts Monday through Friday from 7: 10 a. m. until 11: 00 p. m.      
responded to an airplane accident on River Road with the

allowing calls to he responded to immediately with an average
pilot sustaining serious trauma. Medical personnel requestedresponse time of three minutes from the time the call is received.      
Boston Medflight to transport the patient to a level one traumaEmergency responses on weeknights from 11: 00 p. m. until 7: 00 center in Boston.

a. m. and on weekends are responded to by" on-call" personnel
with an average response time of eight minutes. It continues to

On June 17, firefighters and emergency medical personnelbe a challenge to respond to the increasing number of request
responded to a pedestrian struck by a motor vehicle sustainingfor services with the limited number of personnel. We must
serious trauma. Medical personnel requested Boston Medflightseriously continue to explore ways to increase the number of
to transport the patient to a level one trauma center.full time firefighter/EMT' s to provide emergency services to

our citizens while providing safe working conditions for our
On August 11, firefighters responded to a residentialfirefighters in emergency situations.

structure fire on Arnold Road that was confined to the clothes

Also during the year, four call firefighter/EMT' s resigned.      
dryer.

James Masterson and Scott Thayer moved out of state to
pursue other careers, Pamela Holmes was hired by another On September 5, firefighters responded to a residential

department, and Leo MacDonald resigned due to his increased re fire

wall

Longmeadow Road that involved the clothes

work commitment for his business. These members served the
dryer and behind the dryer.

town and department with considerable commitment during
their years and will be clearly missed. I wish them all the luck in On October 6, emergency medical personnel responded
the future and thank them for their many years of service.    to a pedestrian struck by motor vehicle sustaining serious

trauma who was transported to a level one trauma center in

On behalf of the members of the department, I would like Providence.

to thank the residents, businesses, town departments, boards and
officials for their continued support during the year. I would also

On November 28, firefighters responded mutual aid to the
like to thank the dedicated officers and personnel of the Norfolk

alarm

of Walpole

a a

with

n

engine and ladder truck on a multiple

Fire Department for their commitment to provide professional
fire in a large mansion.

services to the citizens of Norfolk.
On December 4, firefighters responded with an engine

Respectfully submitted,     and ladder truck to a structure fire in a convenience store on
Main Street with the assistance of engines from Wrentham
and Millis at the scene and Medfield covering the fire station.Fire Chief William R Kelley
With firefighters conducting an aggressive interior attack we
were able to confine the fire to the single store with the other
businesses sustaining smoke damage. With the exception of the

50



PUBLIC SAFETY

convenience store the remaining business were able to• resume BUILDING DEPARTMENT
operations within one week.

1 The Building Department consists of the Building
On December 12, firefighters responded with a ladder

Commissioner/ Zoning Officer, Local Inspector, Electrical
truck mutual aid to Wrentham for a residential structure fire. 

Inspector, Assistant Electrical Inspector, Plumbing Inspector,
1 Gas Inspector and two part-time Administrative Assistants.

On December 25, firefighters responded with the tank

truck mutual aid to Dover for a residential structure fire.    
The Town of Norfolk Building Department conforms to

NORFOLK FIRE DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts State Building Code.
The Building Commissioner and the Local Inspector enforce
all provisions of this code and any other state statutes, rules,

INCIDENTS 2000 1999
regulations and by- laws. The Building Department Inspectors

Structure Fires 30 33
oversee construction and installation of wiring and plumbing,

Vehicle Fires 5 6
to insure compliance with all code requirements for the safety

Motor Vehicle 30 27
of the general public.

Outside Electrical Incidents 28 14

Outside Fires 25 30
The Building Commissioner carries out the State-

Hazardous Material Incidents 12 14
mandated duties of inspecting and certifying all school, phces

Carbon Monoxide Incidents 26 17
of assembly, public halls, and places of worship.

Fire Alarm Activated 74 81

Public Assistance 8 5
The Building Commissioner is also the Zoning Officer

Line Box Coverage 1 0
for the Town of Norfolk and a great deal of his time is devoted

Investigations 84 56

Miscellaneous 23 38
to the Town of Norfolk Zoning Bylaws.

Assist E.M.S. Unit 207 123

Emergency Medical Services 731 535
In November, I announced my retirement after having

Mutual Aid/Scene 5 12
served the Town for over eighteen years.

TOTAL INCIDENTS 1,289 985
The Building Department would like to thank the various

FIRE PREVENTION
town departments, boards and officials for their support and

Inspect Fire Alarm( New)   53 48 assistance during the year.

Inspect Fire Alarm( Resale)       167 176

Inspect Oil Burner 38 38
Gerald E. Hughes

Inspect Propane Storage 8 4 Building Commissioner

Inspect Temporary Heater 0 1

Inspect Building 5 1

Inspect Undergr. Storage 7 18

Inspect New Fuel Tank 3 10

Inspect Tank Truck 18 2

Inspect Sprinkler System 1 1

Conduct Fire Drill 4 6

Monitor Blasting 36 62

Issue Gun Powder Permit 4 1

Fire Safety Presentation 43 40

Miscellaneous 5 19

TOTAL FIRE PREVENTION 389 427

MISCELLANEOUS

Details 89 162

Meetings 12 9

Department Training 20 22

Recertification 6 6

Recruit Training 1 10

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 128 203

TOTAL ACTIVITY 1,806 1, 615
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HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT Crack Repair was completed on the following roadways,
Cleveland Street, Main Street and Seekonk Street.

The Town of Norfolk Highway Department is responsible
for the management, maintenance and rehabilitation ofmunicipal DRAINAGE MAINTENANCE
roadways, storm water systems, solid waste, grounds and AND REHABILITATION
green spaces including schools, cemeteries and recreational
areas. The Department also provides vehicle maintenance and The Department completed various repairs on failed

structures and piping systems Town wide and contracted therepair service for all municipal vehicles which include Police
COA and Water. 

service of cleaning the Town's catch basin system.

The Department installed a drainage discharge system atThe Department inspects and monitors all excavation
within the roadway right of way. Street opening permits for the intersection of Medway Street and Truro Road to correct
excavation within the right of way were issued from January private property runoff issues.
1, 2000 through December 31, 2000 pertaining to utilities,
development and single structures.      

ENGINEERING

ROADWAY MAINTENANCE The Department has begun preliminary design on theAND REHABILITATION following town roadways:

The Department completed various repairs on areas of Boardman Street from Rockwood Road to Seekonkfailed roadway town wide.  Street

Lawrence Street from Park Street to the Franklin i

In conjunction with Maple Park Estates II and Avoca town line
Village Subdivisions, roadway overlays, water main extension Pond Street and Pine Street from North Street to theand drainage corrections were performed on the following Foxborough town line. F'roadways. Cost for the project was born by the developer.   North Street from Pond Street to Union Street

Union Street from Diamond Street to Castle Road f;Eric Road from Erin Lane to Park Street( 890 LF)
Erin Lane from Eric Road to Erin Lane Ext.( 450 Due to the change in the traffic volumes and the scope of i.  iLF)   

the Town Center Reconstruction Project, it was necessary forPark Street from Hampton Road to House# 22 Park the department to revise and resubmit the 75% design plan forStreet( 3724 LF)     
Massachusetts Highway Department approval.

t99 milesA total of 5064 LF
The design for Rockwood Road from Cleveland Street i'

to Boardman Street including the intersection for BoardmanIn conjunction with Maple Park Estates I Subdivision,      Street and Rockwood Road was completed and is scheduled, 7 1the intersection of Park Street and Lawrence Street was for construction in 2001.
reconstructed. Cost for the redesign and reconstruction was

t

funded by the developer.  
GROUND MAINTENANCE

e

The Department completed pavement overlays and the The Department performed daily and annual maintenance ',  rreconstruction of the following roadways utilizing state chapter of municipal grounds and green spaces including schools,90 funds and FY-2001 appropriations to improve roadway
conditions and correct drainage and intersection issues,       

cemeteries and recreation areas.       
t

Roadside shoulder areas were trimmed and cut town wideSeekonk Street from Cleveland Street to house# 46 to improve sight distance.
7700 LF)      F

Medway Street frorm Main Street to Lake Street A special note of thanks to all Town Departments and i2252 LF)    Boards who assisted us in the last year.       b
s;

Short Street from Main Street to School Street( 200
LF)       

Remo R. Vito, Jr
School Street from Short Street to Franklin town Highway Superintendentline( 935 LF)

A total of 11, 087 LF( 2.10 miles)
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ys:,      TRANSFER STATION A special note of thanks to all Town Departments and
Boards who assisted us in the Iast year.

In 2000 the Town of Norfolk Transfer Station continuedntmued

to explore expansion of its recycling base. Remo R. Vito, Jr.,

Highway Superintendent
The town has entered into an agreement with the DEP

ed and the towns of Millis, Medway, Dover, Sherborn, Holliston,     TOWN OF NORFOLK TRANSFER STATION
he Walpole, Franklin, Ashland and Medfield to create a Regional ANNUAL REPORT 2000

Hazardous Waste ( HI-IW) collection center. The proposed

center, which was to be located in Medway was voted down All of the figures in this report relate to the calendar year

at by the residents of Medway at the October Town Meeting. The January 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000.
el consortium communities are in the process of identifying a

potential site for inclusion in future grants.   The Transfer Station was open to Norfolk residents twice

each week, on Wednesdays and Saturdays from January 1, 2000
The department has increased the town' s ability to address through December 31, 2000. The total number of operating

the disposal of household hazardous waste from our waste days in 2000 was 101.

c stream. In the spring of 2000 the DEP awarded Norfolk a grant
for a paint collection shed. The paint program began August 1,      Non- Recyclable Waste

2000 for Transfer Station decal holders. The addition of the paint The Town of Norfolk contracts with SEMASS Partnership for
program has allowed the town to remove 80% of the generated disposal of household waste and Browning Ferris Industries
IIHWfrom the waste stream on an annual basis.      for bulky waste.     

The department continues to work with the Board of Total compacted waste 810 tons

Health to revise regulations for private haulers for compliance i

1 with current DEP regulations for solid waste and recycling.  Total bulky waste 252 tons

f' We received revenues for newspaper, corrugated card-      Total non- recyclable waste 1, 062 tons

board, glass and wood waste. Town resources were used tohaulfor'
the recyclables and solid waste to end sites.    Daily average 10 tons 4i

The 810 tons of compacted waste represents 46, 170 bags of tV3.

The Town contracted for the removal of waste oil, tires
household waste.

and batteries. Brush and leaves were ground for mulch and 0 4{ t
Recyclable Waste g,

i made available to the residents of the Town.  
fr Newspaper 412 tons a

The Town recycled approximately 1, 000 tons of municipal
Corrugated Cardboard 106 tons

Office Paper 0 tons
7 waste, placing Norfolk for the fifth consecutive year, within the P

top five communities in the state not only meeting, but slightly
Plastics(# 1,# 2)  26 tons

exceeding the state' s goal of 46% community recycling.      
Waste Oil and Anti-Freeze 1 tons

Metal( white goods& metal cans)      148 tans

Tires 2 tons
To use the Recycling/Transfer Station, you must be a Batteries( automobile)      1 ton

resident of Norfolk andpurchase a decal for your vehicle.       
Glass( white and colored) 63 tons f

Specifics are outlined in our annual newsletter which is mailed
Brush 157 tons

to every household.       Leaves/Yard Waste 128 tons A.
Residents currently using a curbside pick lip service-       1, 044 tons

f

Total Recyclable Waste
Please feel free to come by and tour the facility. Daily Average 10 tons

i There, are many services available to you that you may The figure forbatteries and tires were derived by converting qi,

be aware of. For example: pounds to,tons using the average weight of a battery( 36 pounds)    
and the average weight of a tire( 25 pounds). s

Disposal of oil& antifreeze

Collection,area for yard& brush waste
Recycling Rate

Donations are accepted for charities; Total recyclable+ non- recyclable waste 2, 106 tons
Goodwill, Salvation Army, Lions( eye glasses) King

Li'l`,"

Philip Boosters( returnable bottles& cans) These figures give a Recycling Rate of 50% i S

0'
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REPORT FOR ANIMAL CONTROL Adoption Rate of Domestic Animals: 75%

DEPARTMENT 2000 Euthanasia Rate of Domestic Animals 25%

Total Calls for Department: 1, 352 Prison Calls:     13

Calls Received for Lost and Found Animals: 280
West Nile Testing 34

Dog Complaints:     351
Other Calls:    251

Cattle 7

Cat Complaints:       46 Rooster 2

Horses 38

Dogs Handled:       109
Sheep 14

Reptiles 0

Dogs Returned by Phone:     77
Deer 36

71
Coyote 58

Cats Handled: Birds 67
Domestic 14

Bats 11
Feral:    57

Turtles 17

Pig 1

Cats Returned by Phone: 2

Trips To Veterinarian:  17
Wildlife Handled:

Deer( DOA or Euthanised)       20

Incoming Veterinarian:  7
Rooster 1

Skunk( DOA or Euthanised)      9

Rabies Testing State Lab:      14 Squirrel, Gray/ Red 9

Opossum( DOA or Euthanised or rehab) 17

Dog Bites Reported:   17
Muskrat 0

Seagull( DOA or Euthanised or rehab)   2

Cat Bites Reported:     0
Raccoons( DOA or Euthanised or rehab) 9

Bats( DOA or Euthanised) 9

Ferret Bites: 0
Respectfully Submitted

Mutual Aid to Surrounding Towns:    57
Hilary N. Penlington

Neglect/Abuse Calls:  22
Animal Control Officer

Surrender/ abandonment/non claimed: 21

Ferret:

Adopted:   0
Euthanised: 0

Canine:

Adopted:  11

Euthanised: 0

Feline:

Domestic: 12

Adopted:   6

Euthanised: 6

Feral:      57

Adopted:   4

Euthanised:       53

54



EDUCATION, LIBRAA ARTS

NORFOLK ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS The School budget is funded from both state Chapter 70

monies and local taxes. The following represents the historic
THE SUPERINTENDENT' S REPORT relationships between state aid and local taxpayer effort in

I funding Norfolk schools and the requirements of Massachusetts

School Committee Members:   Term Expires Education Reform.

I Maureen Howard, Chairperson 2001

Nina Roe, Vice Chairperson 2002 Growth in Local Tax Effort and Chapter 70 Funding

I Beth Gilbert, King Philip Rep.      2002

7 David Kennedy, Legislative Rep.   2003
Taxpayer Chapter Total Required

Z Edward Piscatelli, Secretary 2003
Effort 70 School min. Local

B
Budget Contribution

1 In May, Chairperson John Spinney completed six years
FY96 3,522,764 1, 336,864 4,859,628 2,931, 752

I of exemplary service on the School Committee. He chose not to
FY97     , 178,774 1, 627,571 5, 106,350 3,068,252

6 run for a third term. Donna Angelico completed her appointed
FY98 3,689,476 2,005,616 5,695,092 3, 158,966

B term. She also chose not to run in the spring elections. The
FY99 3,867,011 2,296,523 6,163,534 3,365,598

7 Norfolk school community extends its heartfelt thanks to Mr. 
s 4,287,320 2,485,749*    6,773, 119 3,617,624

1 Spinney and Mrs. Angelico for their dedicated service, hard
FY01 4,731, 303 3,746,.509 7,477,812 3,739,972

7 work and commitment to improving our schools and programs.
1 Nina Roe and Beth Gilbert completed the first year of their

Total increase 46%  150% 72%

three- year terms. David Kennedy and Edward Piscatelli were
elected in May. Veteran member Maureen Howard was elected

Represents amounts actually appropriated, amount received

0 as the new chairperson of the School Committee.     
was$ 2,704,4 71

1

9 Members of the School Committee attended the joint
School Choice & Charter Assessments costs that are

9 conference of the Massachusetts Association of School deducted from the cherry sheet funds to Norfolk are not included

7 Committees and the Massachusetts Association of School
in these figures.

0 Superintendents in Worcester. They also attended numerous Taxpayer Effort Chapter 70
2 `   other workshops on school law, finance and school construction.  

I° of Total Budget       % of Total Budget
9 The Committee continued its ongoing practice of reviewing

FY96 72%       28%
9 and revising existing school policies and formulating new FY97 68%       32%

policy. Mrs. Gilbert and Mr. Kennedy( replacing John Spinney) FY98 65%       35%
served on the Policy Subcommittee. Mrs. Roe and Mr. Piscatelli FY99 63%       37%
replacing Mrs. Angelico) served on the School Committees FY00 63%       37%

Budget subcommittee.   
FY01 63%       37%

Recognizing that elementary school enrollment has Norfolk Public Schools Leadership Team
continued to grow, the School Committee formed a School

District-Wide
Building Needs Task Force to determine the long-term space Marcia Lukon, Ph. D,  Superintendent of Schools
needs of the district and to recommend a solution. Judy Warren Thayer Olson Business Manager
and Ed. Melanson are co- chairs of the task force,      

Laurie Sullivan Dir. Student Support Services

Town Meeting supported an elementary school budget
Joneta Rockett Dir. of Technology

of$ 7, 189, 189. Proposition 2 1/ 2 override questions totaling
Robin Glasser Dir. of Library Services

288, 623 were approved at Town Meeting and at a Special
Toby Lyons Supervisor of Buildings

Election. These funds were used to begin a K-6 Spanish Program
Mary Ann Carey Literacy Coordinator

and to meet growth needs in the schools, including adding H. Olive Day School( Pre-K to Grade 2)
two classes and related costs, and increases in services of

Linda A Balfour Principal
specialists and the assistant principals. Fall Town meeting

Lucia Godfrey Assistant Principal
approved$ 129,546 of the additional Chapter 70 Supplemental

School Aid from the state to purchase Reading/Language Freeman Centennial School( Grades 3- 6)
Arts Textbooks, replacement computers, and improvements to

Leo F. Fantinl Principal

the communications system and building security. Funds to Betteanne McMahan Assistant Principal
reconstruct one of the three playgrounds demolished during the
summer at Freeman Centennial School were also approved,
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Norfolk community is very fortunate to be served by Members of the Strategic Planning Committee:
a School Committee whose members dedicate their time,      Mr. Jack Olivieri Mr. Brian Fitzgerald

expertise and hard work to ensuring that every Norfolk student Mr. John Olivieri Ms. Nancy Bowers
receives a quality education in our schools. Our success is also Mr. John Spinney Ms. Mary Sullivan Kelley
the result of our staff members who contribute their expertise Mr. Leo Fantini Ms. Julie Dalzell

and hard work to achieving the long- term objectives of our Mr. Mark O' Brien Mrs. Veronica Vacca

Strategic Plan, 2000 and Beyond. The Norfolk community and Mr. Roy Kuphal Mrs. Robin Glasser

its community service organizations continue their generous Mr. Toby Lyons Mrs. Nina Roe

support for our schools, We see evidence of community Mrs. Barbara Burke Mrs. Marilyn Latimer

commitment to quality schools in a high level of volunteerism,      Mrs. Beth Gilbert Mrs. Linda Balfour

fundraising efforts, advocacy, committee involvement and Mrs. Beverly Panettiere Mrs. Laurie Bosh

budget support. On behalf of our students and staff, I thank Mrs. Bonnie O'Connell Mrs. Judy McKenna
you all. Mrs. Donna Angelico Mrs. Judith Holt

Mrs. Donna Spigarolo Mrs. Janice Piscitelli

Strategic Planning Ms. Nancy McCarthy Officer Steve Plympton

In April 28 community members and school staff joined Along with Superintendent Marcia Lukon and consultant Dr.
together to become the Norfolk Public Schools Strategic Ralph Jasparro.

Planning Committee for the purpose of establishing the district' s
future direction. Members analyzed all available data pertinent Student Achievement Test Results

to the schools including enrollment in public, private and charter
schools, new housing trends, demographics, build-out forecasts,     The school system introduced the Degrees of Reading
costs for regular and special education, results of satisfaction Power ( DRP) Testing Program for students in grades 2- 6 in
surveys from Norfolk parents and teachers, economic indicators the spring. This series of progressively more difficult tests of
and achievement test data. They identified the trends, forces,      reading comprehension will be given to all of Norfolk's student
and changing conditions in the external environment that are to measure reading progress each school year and from year
likely to affect the school district' s ability to make progress and to year. The results also help to identify students in need of
improve. Next they identified the district' s many strengths and additional intervention or more difficult text, and help teachers
the areas most in need of improvement.       and parents to determine books of appropriate difficulty to

challenge each student. The average percentile scores of out
A vision statement was written and the district' s mission students at every grade tested were well above the national

statement was updated. Next, six long-range focus goals were average of 50% ile. This is illustrated by the district Spring
set and first year strategies were planned. These are based on the 2000 results.  '

committee' s determination of the present status in the schools,
where we need to be headed, and what the district has the NORFOLK' S AVERAGE % ILE SCORES

capacity to accomplish in the coming years.
Grade 2:   88% ile ( This means that Norfolk students.

Norfolk' s 3-5 YEAR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES are: scored as well as, or better than, 88% of all Gr. 2 students;
nationwide.)       

efTo improve organizational effectiveness
To improve student achievement Grade 3: 80% ile 4
To provide an aligned Pre K-6 curriculum Grade 4: 77% ile

To expand and improve the use of technology and Grade 5:  79% ile
information resources Grade 6:  82% ile
To provide safe, secure, well-maintained facilities that
will accommodate growth of student population and All fourth grades took the state mandated Science;
programs

Technology, English Language Arts and Mathematics
To enhance communication effectiveness among fam-      Massachusetts Comprehensive Assessment System ( MCAS);

ilies, schools and the community which tests students mastery of standards in the Massachusetts

Curriculum Frameworks. Results for each test are reported ink
four categories: Advanced, Proficient, Needs Improvement and

c' 4,      Failing Norfolk students scored as follows:.
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Norfolk Public Schools Retirement

MCAS English Language Arts Results

lle
All grade 4 Students We are indebted to Martin Feeney for his 22 years ofP

100%    0%  0%  1%  service to the Norfolk Public Schools. Mr. Feeney retired
90%    36% 34% 28%       Advanced in January 2000 after 22 years of service as a custodian in
80%    36% 34% 28%       Advanced our schools.

70%    36% 34% 28%       Proficient

60%    58% 62% 67%      Needs Imp.      As I complete my first year as Superintendent, I share
50%    58% 62% 67% Failing with the staff and community a tremendous sense of pride in our
40%    58% 62% 67% Failing schools. I also look forward to achieving the objectives of the
30%    58% 62% 67% Failing district's new Strategic Plan for improving in the future.
20%    58% 62% 67% Failing
10%     6%  4% 3%   H. Olive Day School
0%

1
1998 1999 2000 The H. Olive Day School provides children with a solid

foundation for a lifetime of learning. Children are taught thefir'  
MCAS Science& Technology Results important basics of the " 3 R' s", as well as the social skills

All Norfolk Grade 4 Students through the district' s Social Competency Program. Many special
100%   18% 20%  17% events were celebrated together including 100th Day, Earth Day
90%    18% 20%  17% and Thanksgiving. To teach social responsibility our students

ding
80%    54% 55% 63%       Advanced participate in many service projects including food drives for

6 is
70%©    54% 55% 63%       Advanced the local food pantry, used clothing collection for families in

sol,  
60%    54% 55% 63%       Proficient need, our holiday " Adopt- a- Family Project" and a Hat and

cots
50%    54% 55% 63%      Needs Imp.       Mitten Tree. Many new library books were purchased for our
40%    54% 55% 63%      Needs Imp.       library thanks to our students eagerness to read and to the

year.  30%    54% 55% 63% Failing generosity of the sponsors in our Book-a-Than.d of
20%    25% 23% 19%

hers'  
10%    25% 23%  19%       Families of our students, the Norfolk Teacher Parent

Y to 0%       3%  2%  1%  Association ( TPA) and the Norfolk Community League have 1
QUI

1998 1999 2000 given generous financial and personal contributions to enrich our
Dnai"       

school in many ways. We thank Colleen Florence, the President
ring

MCAS Mathematics Results of the TPA, and all of the members of the TPA Executive
All Norfolk Grade 4 Students Board for their commitment to the children of Norfolk. The

100%   21% 19%  14% H. Olive Day School Council provided support and direction
90%    21% 19%  14% for our school. We thank School Council members, and the
80%    35% 31% 37%       Advanced town departments whose support and cooperation enhance our

nts 70%    35% 31% 37%       Advanced programs and reinforce the concept of our school community.
t60%    35% 31% 37%       Advanced Lieutenant Petruchik and the firefighters provided fire safety

50%    35% 31% 37%       Proficient programs and Officer Steve Plympton provided bus and personal.
40%    39% 42% 45%      Needs Imp.       safety programs for our young students.
30%    39% 42% 45% Failing
20%    39% 42% 45% Failing During 2000 the students and teachers continued to make
10%      6%  8% 4%  good use of the adjacent Kunde Conservation Forest. Not only 4"     '

0% did teachers use this resource with their students, but also
1998 1999 2000 Carole Mayer, a former HOD teacher, contributed her expertise

nce

by guided tours of the forest through the seasons. These tourstics! 
Literacy Coordinator enhanced students' knowledge of Norfolk' s physical environment

AS);      
and emphasized the importance of the conservation of open

etts;,       

Our success in being awarded a competitive Department spaces and the care of our community' s natural resources.
i tilt of Education School-wide Literacy Grant enabled us to hire Funds from the H. Olive Day Trust Fund were used to support
andi a much needed Literacy Coordinator to focus on improving this program.

literacy instruction and programs. The Literacy Coordinator's
responsibilities include district literacy leadership and program Our seventh busy and productive year at the H. Olive
coordination, curriculum development, parent workshops and Day School was highlighted by continued academic growth of
professional development.       our students, professional growth of staff and the growth and
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EDUCATION LIBRARY ARTS Members of the Strategic Planning Committee:
Norfolk community is very fortunate to be served by

a School Committee whose
members dedicate their time,      

Mr. Jack Olivieri
Mr. Brian Fitzgerald

Ms. Nancy

expertise and hard work to ensuring that every Norfolk
student Mr. John Olivieri

Ms.

Bowers

Kelley

receives a quality education in our
schools. Our success is also Mr. John Spinney

Ms. Marye Dl

Sullivaniv

the result of our staff members
who contribute their expertise

Mr. Leo Fantini
Mrs. Veronica

ell

1

achieving the long- term
objectives of our Mr. Mark O'Brien

Mrs. Robin Glasser 1

and hard work to b

Strategic Plan, 2000 and Beyond. The Norfolk community and Mr. Roy Kuphal
Mrs. Nina Roe

its community service
organizations continue their generous

Mr. Toby Ly
Mrs.  Latimer 1

Mrs. MarilynMnda
nBLatimer

support for our schools, We see
evidence of community Mrs.

Barbara

Gilbert Mrs.

commitment to quality schools in a high level of volunteerism,
fundraising efforts, advocacy, 

committee involvement and Mrs. Beverly Panettiere
Mrs. Laurie Bosh

Mrs. JudyMcKenna      
Mrs. Bonie

yo

budget support. On behalf of our
students and staff, I thank

Mrs. Donna Angelico

11
Mrs. Judith Holt

Mrs.) donna Spigarolo
Mrs. Janice Piscitelli

Ms. Nancy McCarthy
Officer Steve Plympton

Strategic Planning

In April 28 community members
and school staff joined Along

withSuperintendentMarcia
Lukon and consultant Dr.{'

together to become the Norfolk Public Schools Strategic Ralph J p

Planning Committee for the purpose of establishing the district' s
future direction. Members analyzed all

available data pertinent Student Achievement Test Results

to the schools including enrollment in public, private and charter school system introduced the Degrees of Readi
schools, new housing trends, demographics,

build-out forecasts,    y

costs for regular and special education, 
results of satisfaction hespring.

wer ( DP) TeThisstingProgramof

presor
students

inifficult
grades

tes6
surveys from Norfolk parents and teachers, economic indicators
and achievement test data. They identified the trends, forces,      reading comprehension will be given to all of Norfolk's stude+
and changing conditions in the external environment that

and to year. The results

alsoress
help to

each

identifyschool
year

students in

needom
likely to affect the school district' s ability to m

progress

improve. Next they identified the district' s many
strengths and

addanditional

parentstt determine books of appropr

atehelp
difficulty

the areas most in need of improvement. challenge each student. The average percentile scores of o

A vision statement was written and the district' s mission average of 50% il
dents at every eradeThistestedustrated by the district SpxA'p

statement was updated. Next, six, long- range focus goals w
set and first year strategies were planned. These are based on the 2000 results.     

ti.

committee' s determination of the present status in the schools,
where we need to be headed, and what the

district has the NORFOLK' S AVERAGE% ILE SCORES

capacity to accomplish in the corning
years.  

Grade 2:    88% ile ( This means that Norfolk studer.

Norfolk' s 3- 5 YEAR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES are: scored as well as, or better than, 88% of all Gr. 2 studer

nationwide.)

i'

To improve organizational effectiveness
Grade 3:  80/ oile

2

10 improve student achievement Grade
3: 80%

ile
To provide an aligned Pre K-6 curriculum GGrade

4: 

77% ile
To expand and improve the use of technology and

6: 82% ile

i,
r

information resources
Grade

To provide safe, secure, well-maintained facilities that
will accommodate growth of student population and

All fourth grades took the state mandated Scien,,
programs

Technology, English Language Arts and Mathema4
To enhance communication effectiveness among fam-      

Massachusetts Comprehensive Assessment System ( MCA
ilies, schools and the community

which tests students mastery of standards in the Massachuse
Curriculum Frameworks. Results for each test are reported
four categories: Advanced, Proficient, Needs Improvement a
Failing Norfolk students scored as follows:
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I

Norfolk Town Report 2000

I

Re: Correction to MCAS school information listed on page 57.
1

Please note that the MCAS data as listed on page 57 of the Town Report are
incorrect.

4
fl The graphs listed below are correct relative to the Freeman Centennial MCAS

scores for 1998, 1999, and 2000.

tii

If you have any questions about our MCAS scores, please feel free to call principal,
Leo Fantini at the Freeman Centennial School, 508- 528- 1266 at any time.

Norfolk Public Schools
MCAS English Language Arts Results

Alf Grade 9 Students
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EDUCATION, LIBRARY ARTS

improvement of our programs especially our literacy program.      Reading Power test was administered to all youngsters in the
In September. we began implementing new language arts fall and spring of the school year. The results assisted teachers

programs, Literacy Place 2000 and Cast-A-Spell. Our teachers in determining appropriate reading difficulty levels for each of
wrote curriculum, participated in professional development and their students and the strategies to modify reading instruction

planned lessons using new literacy materials. Due to our success for improved achievement and success. Spanish has become

in obtaining competitive grant funding from the state, we were part of our curriculum. Students are learning to communicate

able to begin a Reading Recovery Program, an individualized in Spanish, studying culture in Spanish speaking countries,

reading intervention program for first graders who are at risk and connecting Spanish with other curriculum areas. Former
of not learning to read in grade one. In addition, we added sixth grade teacher Laurie Bosh is our new Spanish teacher

Spanish instruction to our academic program. Ms. Barbara for grades 3- 6. All teachers are now trained in the Social

Ramuglia, our Spanish teacher, was responsible for successfully Competency- Open Circle Program through the Stone Center
introducing this exciting new program to our school.  at Wellesley College. This social skills program focuses

on teaching students to respect themselves, others and our

Our students are thriving and making wonderful use of environment. Of the student population of 652, 120 students

our programs and our beautiful school building. We thank participated in Advanced Band and 134 in our Beginner Band

the members of the community for not only providing the for a total of 254 children. Our instrumental music program

financial support for our programs, but also providing support continues to grow and thrive thanks to the outstanding support

through their volunteer work and reinforcement of our school of the community of Norfolk.
goals at home.

We at Freeman Centennial School appreciate the value

H. Olive Day School Council Members that Norfolk places on education and the support that enables

us to provide the instruction, support and encouragement our

Kelly Gulla Erin Hughes students need to achieve at increasingly higher levels.
Noelle Tonelli David McBride

Gail Ferguson Beverly Panettiere Freeman Centennial School Council Members

Lucia Godfrey Linda Balfour

Alicia Esparo Karin Montlack Laurie Bosh Debbie Ayer

Trish Gallerani Mrs. Linda Rankin

Linda A. Balfour,    Mrs. Donna Spigarolo Diana O'Brien

Principal of H. Olive Day School Mrs. Janice Daly Scott Greenwald

Freeman Centennial School Leo Fantini, Principal of Freeman Centennial School

Through the Norfolk School' s District Strategic Planning Special Education

process, long term goals were established to meet the needs
of our students, staffs, schools, and community. The Freeman All special education services in Norfolk comply with
Centennial School Council developed specific school improve-      the recently adopted state Special Education Regulations. Our
ment goals, connected to those of the district. The major special education department identifies children, beginning

academic focus has been improving student literacy achieve at age 3, who are in need of special education services and
ment. To achieve this essential goal a new integrated language provides them with the specialized instruction they need. The
arts program, Literacy Place 2000 was adopted. This program special education department offers a continuum of services

combines the teaching of reading, writing, vocabulary, spelling,      from the least restrictive setting commonly called" inclusion"
and listening. Third graders were also introduced to a new to out-of-district placement. A team consisting of the child' s

spelling program called Cast-a- Spell. Many teachers, including parents and school personnel make all decisions about the type
the entire sixth grade team, were trained in the Junior Great of service a child may receive.

Books Program, which emphasizes higher order questioning
and reading skills. Support from the TPA and the town enabled Our staff includes a Director of Student Support Services,
the purchase Junior Great Books for each grade level. The TPA special education teachers, speech therapists, a physical

also supported our efforts to improve literacy achievement therapist, an occupational therapist, a school psychologist,

by sponsoring author visits. Hearing from published authors an adaptive physical education teacher, nurse, instructional

themselves added another dimension to students understanding assistants and an office secretary. Norfolk subcontracted with
how stories are written, developed and interpreted.    other specialists to meet the individual needs of children,

including vision therapists, behavioral specialists, sign language
Assessment is an essential, part of determining the teachers and home consultants.

achievement and progress of our children. The Degree of
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Several grants provided parent and staff training on the community members provided an improved environment for
new" individual Education Plan( IEP) required for each special studying and conducting research,

education student, parent- child support groups, and training
in reading strategies, inclusion and standardized testing. Also Robin Glasser,

funded were salaries of a secretary, a speech/ language therapist Director of Libraries

and early childhood special educator.

Technology
The Norfolk Parent Advisory Council ( PAC) meets

monthly and is open to all parents of special needs students.     The work of the district' s technology team focused on
The PAC wrote and published a handbook for parents provided Strategic Objective 4: " To expand and improve the use of

after-school and weekend activities for children with special technology and information resources." Joneta I-iocket was
needs and purchased materials that teachers had on their" wish hired in July as Technology Administrator replacing Jim Lafave
list". Parent Judy McKenna is the PAC president. We greatly who left the district in January. The computer resource teachers
appreciate the support we receive from PAC and the community worked with classroom teachers to expand their integration

that enable us to provide quality programs to meet children' s i' technology into the existing curriculum. Installation of
individual needs. new research stations in F/C' s library enabled a more reliable

connection to regional libraries CD- ROMs and the Internet.

Laurie Sullivan,

Director of Student Support Services Use of the district-wide network increased as students

used the computers in their classrooms, computer labs and

Library/Media Services school libraries. Grant funding allowed the purchase of portable
Dream/Writer student word processors and online subscrip-

This was a year of change and improvement for both tions to the New Book of Knowledge, Groliers Multimedia

school library/ media services. Classes meet in the library Encyclopedia and the Lands and People. Additional computers

each week for instruction, reference, research, and book were added to equip new classrooms. Student data management
selection. Students and teachers borrowed 61, 756 books and system software was upgraded to enable the district to comply
other materials. This represents a 39% increase in usage over with the state mandate to collect and send student data to the

the past four years.       DOE electronically. Instructional software was also added at
both schools. chapter 70 funds approved at fall Town Meeting

There was a concerted community effort towork toward allowed for the replacement of many of our antiquated and failed
our strategic objective of expanding and improving the use computers. Technology continues to be an invaluable tool for
of technology and information resources and to meet the teachers, students and staff throughout the district.

Massachusetts School Library Media Association Standards.
This year 2,597 new books and audio visual materials were Joneta Hocket,

added, bringing us closer to meeting the state standard of Technology Administrator
22 books per student with our collection now standing at 20

r books/ student. Progress was also made toward the standard Buildings

B that " 70% of the entire print collection will have a copyright
d ;   date of no later than ten ( 10) years from the current date."     Major facilities projects for 2000 included improvements

e `   This was a serious issue with the non- fiction collection at the in energy efficiency, building safety, and playground equipment.
s Freeman/ Centennial Library. In 1998 only 38% of the collection Matching state funding was obtained from a competitive energy

met the standard while today it stands at 62%. Improvements grant program to retrofit some lighting systems at H. Olive
s f were made possible through increased funding from the town,      Day School and Feeeman Centennial School, and to install
e i'  the" Adopt-a- Book" program. TPA" Book Fair" donations, and several more efficient electric motors in the heating/ventilation

the H. Olive Day" Read- a- Thon".       system at H. Olive Day. Asbestos floor tiles were removed
from Freeman stairwells and were replaced with rubber treads.

a,  The libraries converted to SAILS Library Network that Three separate playground structures constructed from tires
tl allows access to nearly 2 million items that supplement our own and telephone poles were removed from the grounds of the
t,    collections. Additionally, staff and students have access to many Freeman Centennial through the joint efforts of the Department
d on- line resources, including InfoTrac Periodical Database,       of Corrections, the Highway Department, the Conservation
h SIRS Researcher & Discoverer, and Electric Library. The Commission and the School Department. One new code-

1, i thirty- year old furniture in the Freeman Centennial Library was compliant playground structure was installed.
e finally replaced. Generous support from the town, parents and

Toby Lyons,
Supervisor of Buildings.
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KING PHILIP REGIONAL
renovations. The district is very pleased that all three regional
community members supported this borrowing at Fall Town

SCHOOL DISTRICT Meetings. The School Committee plans to pursue final plan

NORFOLK - PLAINVILLE - WRENTHAM approvals for these building projects in the Spring of 2001.

SUPERINTENDENT' S REPORT
CLOSING REMARKS

The 2000 school year has once again proven to be a busy The KP Regional School District, your public secondary

and active year for all. Our enrollment continues to climb. As schools, will continue to work diligently with our three regional

of October 1, 2000 there were a total of 1800 students
enrolled communities in continuing to provide an educational that

in the KP schools. This represents . in increase of 259 students provides a challenging educational experience for our students.
over the past three yea' s.       

We are committed to the notion of continual improvement
and will strive to support both students and staff in that

EDUCATION REFORM ANI) MCAS realization.

For the third straight year KP students in grades 8 and 10 It is appropriate at this time to express thanks on behalf of

continued to score well above the state average in all MCAS the School Committee to the teachers, support staff, administra-

testing categories. We are especially
pleased to report that our tors, parents and community members for their support and

10th grade math scores increased dramatically while at the dedication to our young people of Norfolk, Plainville, and
same time the percentage of 10th graders scoring in the bottom Wrentham.

performance level decreased sharply.
Sincerely

The district continues to work hard to increase account-

ability and raise the standards of student
achievement. Our staff William H. McAlduff, Jr.

continues to implement curriculum revisions in the wake of
Superintendent of Schools

MCAS while also continuing to analyze MCAS results( year 3)
and devising strategies that will help students to become more KING PHILIP REGIONAL HIGH SCHOOL

successful in this endeavor. Our goal is, and will be, to show a CLASS OF 2000 STATISTICS

steady level of improvement through this process. Total Class population- Enrollment 176

STUDENT POPULATION GROWTH
TOTAL PERCENT

As noted above, KP' s student enrollment has grown by Four-Year State Colleges 54 31%

over 250 students in he past three years. Our 10- year enrollment Four-Year Private Colleges 73 41%

projection shows that the KP student enrollment will continue Two-Year State Colleges 14 8%

to increase through 2008. We estimate that enrollment will Two-Year Private Colleges 2 5%

peak at approximately 2300 students by that time. Given the Preparatory Schools 1 5%

anticipated growth in student enrollment the Regional School Military 5 3%

Committee has worked throughout the past school year to Employment 10 6%

develop a comprehensive plan for meeting both our enrollment Undecided 17 10%

and school facilities needs well into the future.
Total Population 176

KING PHILIP BUILDING PROJECTS
Total Students Continuing

This past summer a Feasibility Study of our two school their Education 144 82%

buildings along with a review of the educational programs were Total Students Four-Year Colleges 127 72%

completed by the architectural firm of Dore & Whittier Inc. In Total Students Two-Year Colleges 16 9% `

August 2000 the King Philip Building Committee recommended
a plan for addressing the issues of increasing student enroll-
ment and facility needs to the School Committee for their
review. In September, the School Committee authorized the

borrowing of$ 2,600,000 to develop final design plans for an
addition/ renovation project for the middle school and plans

for a major re- construction of the high school. Both plans
will address the need for increased space as well as building
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CLASS OF 2000 COLLEGE ACCEPTANCES Northwood College

Norwich University
Albertus Magnus College Northeastern University
Allegheney College Palm Beach Atlantic College
American University Plymouth State College

Arizona State University Providence College
Art Institute of Boston Quinnipiac College
Assumption College Radford College

Barry University Rensselaer Poly Tech. Inst.
Bentley College Rhode Island College
Boston College Rievier College

Boston University Roanoke College

Bowdoin College Rochester Inst. of Tech.

Brandeis University Roger Williams College
Bridgewater State College Sacred Heart College

Bristol CC Salem State College
Bryant College Salve Regina College
Cabrini College Springfield College

Cape Cod CC St. Anselm' s College

Catholic University St. Joseph's College

CCRI St. Leo's University
Champlain College St. Michael' s College

Clark University Stonehill College

Colby College SUNY

College of St. Rose Syracuse University
College of the Holy Cross UMA Amherst

College of William& Mary UMA Dartmouth

Connecticut College University of Maine-Orono
Cornell University University of Colorado-Boulder
Curry College University of Connecticut
Dartmouth College University of Delaware
Dean College University of Hartford
Duke University University of Iowa
Elms College University of Maine- Farmington
Elan College University of Maryland
Emanuel College University of Michigan i,
Endicott College Hesser College

Fairfield University Hobart& William Smith Colleges

Fitchburg State College Hofstra University
Framingham State College Humbolt State University
Franklin Pierce College Iona College 4
George Mason University Ithaica College

George Washington University James Madison University d

Georgia Tech John Hopkins University
Gordon College Johnson& Wales University
Green Mountain College Keene State University
Hartwick College Lasell College

Millersville University Liberty University
Mitchell College Lyndon State College

Museum School of Fine Arts Lynn University

New England Culinary Institute Marist College

New England Inst. of Technology Mary Washington College
Newbury College Mass Bay CC
Nichols College Mass College ofArt

North Adams State College Mass College of Communications
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Mass College of Liberal Arts TRI-COUNTY REGIONAL
Massasoit CC VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL
University of Montana SCHOOL DISTRICT
University of Montreal
University of New England

ANNUAL REPORT 1999- 2000

University of New Hampshire
University of North Carolina In July 2000 the School Committee reorganized and

University of Rhode Island re- elected the following officers: Robert J. Heavey ( Medway),

University of Rochester
Chairman, Karl Lord ( Medfield) Vice-Chairman, and Robert

University of Southern Maine McLintock( Seekonk) Secretary.

University of Vermont
University of Wisconsin

The School Committee conducts its regularly scheduled

Utah State University meetings on the third Wednesday of each month at 7: 30 P.M.

Utica College in the Committee Meeting Room at the school. Sub- committee

Villanova University
meetings are scheduled as needed.

Wentworth Inst. of Tech.

Western Connecticut State University
Graduation:

Western New England College

Westfield State College
On June 4, 2000, 150 students were graduated in an

Wheaton College impressive afternoon ceremony, Robert Heavey, Chairman of
Wheelock College the Tri-County School Committee, delivered the welcoming

Worcester Poly. Tech. Inst.      
address to more than one thousand guests.

Worcester State College
Music was provided by the King Philip High School

Band. Camilla Huston, Director of Pupil Personnel Services,
presented scholarships and awards totaling $ 200, 000 to

deserving seniors.

Pupil Personnel Services:

In September 1999, Tri-County welcomed approximately
837 students to the new school year. The district towns and
number of students are Franklin 212, Medfield 8, Medway
43, Millis 43, Norfolk 28, North Attleboro 192, Plainville 71,
Seekonk 87, Sherborn 4, Walpole 54, and Wrentham 41. Also 54
students were accepted from out-of-district areas.

During the 1999- 00 school year the Pupil Personnel
Department continued its programs to provide information to

students, parents, sending schools and District communities. The
Department provided counseling for students regarding career
pathways and post- secondary education. The Peer Helpers f
assisted in introducing Tri-County to junior high school students
in sending communities and assisted new students in adjusting to
Tri-County. A growing and successful Peer Mediators program
offered conflict resolution for students by students. Safe and

Drug Free presentations were offered to students school wide
The Guidance Department presented programs on preparing
for college with the assistance of personnel from Dean College.

Tri-County hosted Career Days for over 2000 Grade 8 students
from the Regional District.

Tri-Countyfs Career Advisement Program ( CAP) was
offered to all students in Grades 9 - 12 to assist students in

preparing for their career pathways. This was the 3rd year
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the program was offered having started in September 1997 In summary, Tri-County has focused energy on raising
with Grades 9 and 10. The program was fully implemented in student expectations and providing the necessary support to
1999- 2000 and includes all students in Grades 9- 12.  enable students to meet these expectations. The process is

ongoing. High Schools That Work continues to be the national
Academics:       model used to implement effective school changes that results

in higher academic achievement of all students.
For academic year 1999- 2000, the goal of Tri- County' s

academic programs was to raise the achievement level of all Vocational Technical Programs:
students. To that end, energies were focused on classroom
instruction; alignment of the special education and regular AUTO BODY - The Program has applied for A.S. E.

education curricula; and expansion of instructional technology certification and is preparing for the on-site visit by the National
in a meaningful way.     Automotive Technicians Education Foundation.

During the summer, teachers reviewed curriculum for AUTO TECHNOLOGY- The Auto Technology program
alignment with the Massachusetts Frameworks ai.J the MCAS has received A.S. E. Master Certification from the National
test. Changes were made to emphasize the content, strategies Automotive Technicians Education Foundation. the AYES
and types of questions used on the test. In the classroom,      ( Automotive Youth Educational System) program sponsored

cooperative teams were developed that included a regular by GM, Diamler-Chrysler, Toyota, Mercedes Benz, Audi and
1 education and special education teacher. The purpose of these Volkswagen has been introduced to our Auto Technology
f teams was to allow more students to transition from resource program; students explore job opportunities at local dealer-

classes to regular classes. The experience was successful and ships. A mentor is assigned to each student during a summer
will be expanded for the next academic year. To further raise internship.
achievement levels of special needs students, regular and

l special education teachers worked during the summer to CARPENTRY- OUTSIDE PROJECT- The work was

align curricula and create appropriate modifications without completed on the World War I Memorial Park Administration

o diluting content,  Building Addition & Renovation Project on Elmwood Avenue

in North Attleboro, which consisted of removing a flat roof and
Technology integration continues, A computer lab was constructing a 100' gable roof, constructing a 24 X 24 deck

developed in the South Wing to expand existing availability in over new addition, constructing suspension ceilings throughout

our library media center. Next year, a lab will be developed in building, installing vinyl siding on the ends of structure, and
y the North Wing to further this expansion. Additionally, every painting the exterior of building.
d teacher now has a computer and printer located in the classroom

y for professional and instructional use. The math department COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY - The program offers

1,    has purchased the Geometer Sketchpad computer program and the CISCO Networking Academy, provided by CISCO Systems,
4 30 graphing calculators. The English department utilizes 40 the worldwide leader in Internet technology. Students learn

licenses for the CCC Successmaker reading comprehension through an on- line curriculum and testing, as well as hands- on
program. Next year, the Special Education staff will receive labs, and have the opportunity to become a CCNA ( Cisco

1 targeted professional development of this program in reading and Certified Network Associate).

o `  math. Social Studies teachers have been provided technology
ie stations with internet access and include projection screens,     COSMETOLOGY - Cosmetologists provide a variety

a computer, a printer and an overhead projector. Professional of beauty services related to the care of the hair, scalp, skin and
rs development in its use is ongoing,      nails, Beginning students receive instruction in manicuring,
ts shampooing, hair cutting, finger waving, pincurl sets and scalp
O Freshmen and sophomores now attend math classes treatment. Advanced students learn to give permanent waves
it every day of both academic and shop weeks. The intent of this and facials treatments and have the opportunity to straighten,
d s change is to increase retention loss and reduce the need for bleach, and tint hair. The clinic is open to the public during
e.   time- consuming reviews. Another school-wide change is the the school year,

ig implementation of a standard homework policy. All academic
e,   and related classes must count homework for 25% of the grade.     CULINARY ARTS- The Culinary Program was awarded
ts The intent of this change is to reduce the number of students the ACF Certificate this year. The American Culinary Federa

who fail for not doing homework: Aligned with this effort is tion' s validation provides students with many opportunities,

our very successful Homework Center where students who fail Students who complete the program and pass the validated exam
is to do homework can be referred and appropriate controls are are given the title" certified cook" through the ACF. Students are
in provided to see the homework gets done- most notably, prompt also eligible for scholarships offered through the ACF,
ar parental communication.
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EARLY CHILDHOOD CAREERS- The Early Child-      opportunity for both customer service and the application of the
hood Careers program prepares high school students for various theoretical knowledge learned in the classroom.

careers in working with young children. Through in- depth
academic studies in child growth and development, students gain

MEDICAL CAREERS- Topics covered in this program

a solid understanding of the early childhood years and a working include care of the child and adult as patients, vital signs, CPR,

knowledge of children in this critical stage of development.      first aid, body systems, behavior, communication and nurse

Students work directly with pre- school aged children in the assistant skills. Students will receive a solid foundation in

on- campus facility, thus acquiring skill and confidence in their medical terminology and procedures if they choose to further

teaching abilities.       
their education in such areas as medical assistant, EMT,
nurse, physical therapist, dental hygienist, and more. Clinical

ELECTRICAL- OUTSIDE PROJECT- World War I experience is provided at chronic care and local health care

Memorial Park—" Administration Building" in North Attleboro.      facilities.

Electrical wiring was completed which included, a new electrical
service, all new inside & outside lighting, power outlets both PLUMBING& HYDRONIC HEATING- Graduates of

inside& out, emergency lights& signs. All the work was done this program may enter the workforce as apprentice plumbers,

in accordance with the State National Electric Code and was
inspected and approved by the local electrical inspector.      Continuing Education:

ELECTRONIC TECHNOLOGY - The Electronics The Continuing Education Program offers an Adult

Technology program teaches students electronic theory, design,      Cosmetology program during the day. The program runs from
construction and troubleshooting of electronic devices through a September to May and follows the high school calendar.
project-based curriculum. Classroom experience will consolidate Registration for this program takes place at the end of May

basic AC/DC theory, solid-state technology, digital theory and each year.

electronic communication theory with related circuits.
The Evening School Division enrolled approximately

FACILITIES MANAGEMENT- This course of study 500 students for the 1999-00 school year. Registration for the

involves eight areas of study: Carpentry, Plumbing, Electrical,      Evening Division takes place in September and January. New
Welding, Metal Fabrication, Painting, Landscaping, Estimating programs for the 1999- 00 school year include; Surfing the

Scheduling.   Internet and Basic Home Repairs.

DESIGN & PUBLISHING - Students learn basic and Student Activities:

advanced drawing and design skills that include elements of
design and composition, color theory, advanced illustration,     VICA, Vocational Industrials Clubs of America, is a

photography, airbrush, cartooning, painting and advertising national student organization serving trade, industrial, technical
design. The software programs include: Quark, PageMaker,      and health occupations students with leadership, citizenship

Freehand, Illustrator and Photo shop. Students also learn camera and character development activities and programs. Members

work, plate making & offset printing. The shop program has in high school trade preparatory and industrial cooperative
printed reports, forms and booklets for district police, fire,      programs have their own division and activities. Tri-County

and school departments. VICA during the 1999- 2000 school year had 137 members
in grades 10 through 12. Members fundraised some of the

HEATING, VENTILATING, AIR CONDITIONING club's monies by holding the annual Breakfast with Santa and
REFRIGERATION- Students are trained to install, repair,      Breakfast with the Easter Bunny. In the springtime, seventy-

and maintain cooling, heating, air handling, humidification,      two students attended the Central District competition. Twenty-

filtering, and refrigeration equipment including motors and one students qualified in their trade area to attend the state

controls. competition. At states, four students won the right to compete

at the national level held in Kansas City, Missouri during the
MACHINE TECHNOLOGY - The Machine Shop last week of June. Two competitors finished in 5 and 9th place

program provides training in the setup and operation of general-      nationwide in their respective categories, while the other two

purpose machine tools, as well as computerized equipment.  students came in 11th place.

MARKETING COMPUTER INFORMATION SYS-     DECA is a national organization for high school students

TEMS- The major emphasis is in the areas of banking, office enrolled in marketing program. DECA operates in 50 states, 4
technology, retailing and computer applications. The bank branch U.S. Territories, and Canada and prepares its members to be

of Dean Cooperative, and the computer laboratory provide America' s future leaders in the field of marketing, management
and entrepreneurship. There are four main parts emphasized
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leadership development, civic consciousness, social intelligence The Tri-County Boosters again awarded $ 1, 200 in
and vocational understanding. Students must compete in both scholarships to graduating seniors. The group had a great
written and oral competitions at the district, state and national fundraising year and continued to provide financial support to
levels. Teachers work throughout the year within the classroom the athletes of Tri- County.
preparing students for competitions. Students who place at
districts then travel to states and if successful they' re on to Summary:
nationals.

As we continue to provide for the educational needs

The National Honor Society, with thirteen members of our students, we wish to thank District residents for their

in grades eleven and twelve, organizes events promoting support and cooperation. We intend to maintain in the future

scholarship, leadership, and service. This group sponsored the high educational standard that has earned Tri- County that
the annual holiday food drive, which benefited the Fran;din support in the past.

Food Pantry and the Woonsocket Soup Kitchen. Other projects
included collecting money for Easter Seals at the basketball Robert J. Heavey, Chairman, IvM. away
tournament in February, participating in Pennies for Patients in Ronald Janosko, Norfolk

the spring, and sponsoring a Red Cross Blood Drive in May. The
Chapter again hosted a Leadership Breakfa, t for all students
in leadership position. NHS hosts Honors Night ceremonies,
assuming all organization, preparatory, and emceeing duties.

Athletics:

The 1999- 2000 athletic year was very successful for
the Tri-County Cougars, success being measured in records,
participation and, most importantly, sportsmanship. The year
started off with former New England Patriots Ron Burton

speaking to the fall athletes and their parents on the importance
of good health and wellness.

The third year Golf Team took home the Mayflower

League title playing their home matches at New England
Country Club. The boys' and girls' Cross Country teams ran
well and the Volleyball team had 30 girls competing on two
teams, The Soccer team finished in second place and advances

r
to the state playoffs. The Football team competed their four a

s year at Camp Mi-Te- Na. The hard work paid off with a strong
record. Meanwhile the cheerleaders continued their winning

yways of cheering on all teams.

The gym was busy during the winter season as five teams
a played Basketball. The Girls Varsity, Junior Varsity along r

with the Boys Varsity, Junior Varsity and Freshman teams
had successful seasons. The Wrestling team had several

e athletes compete in the State and Vocational tournaments. The

e Cheerleaders competed in team competitions as well as cheering

e,  on the Boys Basketball team.

e
1

The spring season saw a new team added to our school. A
Junior Varsity Lacrosse program had 30 students participating.
The first year program finished with an impressive 8 and 8
record. The Softball team had one of its best seasons competing

4 in both the State and Vocational tournaments. The Baseball team

ie did something no other Tri-County baseball team has done by
1t making it to the State South Sectional Semi Finals.

65



EDUCATION LIBRARY ARTS

REPORT OF THE During the summer the Library Building Committee was
reactivated and conducted a search for an architect to prepare the

DIRECTOR OF LIBRARIES schematic phase of the addition/ renovation program. The firm of
Wilson Rains& non Associates was hired and worked diligently

What' s new at the library?      throughout the Fall with the Library Building Committee&

Trustees to design plans according to the Library' s Building
Thanks to a successful override the library now has a full-      Program. A comprehensive grant was submitted to the Mas.

time children' s librarian and a new full-time reference/electronic sachusetts Board of Library Commissioners Construction
services librarian!      Program to offset a percentage of the construction cost.

SAILS Library Network was implemented in September.    Throughout 2000, the Friends of the Library were active
SAILS replaces the ABLE network with an expanded database

supporters. They planned many activities, including a highly
of 63 participating libraries and patrons have access via a successful membership campaign. Over 500 supporters joined
Web based catalog 24 hours per day from work, home or at the organization! In September they held a two- day book
the library.       sale extravaganza. By popular demand, the " Norfolk Com

memorative" afghan continues to be sold. Proceeds from these
4, 278 new books- both adult and children' s, as well as 600

activities were used to continue the best-seller lease program
video tapes, audio books, compact disks and CD- ROMs. The

that significantly shortens the amount of time patrons must wait
library' s holdings at year-end totaled 49,084 items.   for popular books. Friends continue to support the summer

As always, the Norfolk Public Library continues to be
reading program and to provide passes to the Boston Museum

a center of activity. Over 122,500 books & other materials
of Fine Arts, the Gardner Museum, Roger Williams Zoo,

were borrowed during the year by the 6, 767 registered library
Plymouth Plantation & the Kennedy Library Museum. The

patrons,
Friends continue to sponsor " Art for Everyone" -- a rotating

collection of prints that patrons may borrow. They also pledged

During this past year, 4,315 patrons used the library' s
funds toward the building expansion program, and helped the

electronic services for a total of 7, 223 hours. Over 15, 000 library purchase a much needed copy machine. Officers are

word processing sessions were logged & 422, 000 Internet Mary Jo Gothorpe, President; Paula Austin, Vice-President;

searches were conducted. Our electronic reference resources Beverly Baldoni, Secretary; Wendy Sonsire, Treasurer; and
were accessed 2,870 times; Homework Center resources were Maureen Buck, Nominating Committee.

used 4,630 & early childhood readiness programs were used
3,420 times.  The two elementary school libraries, H. Olive Day and

Freeman- Centennial, continue to be hubs of activity. At each

Sunday afternoon service, in its third year of implementa-      library, classes meet once each week for instruction,'

tion continues to be popular with patrons who spend time reference, research, and book selection. Last year students

studying, reading, or doing research. It is not uncommon and teachers borrowed 61, 756 items, 2597 new books and

for patrons to have to wait in line for a computer to become A-Vmaterials were added to the collections, including books

available. The library is a great place to hang out on those cold,      from the" Adopt-a- Book" program, TPA" Book Fair" donations,

winter Sunday afternoons.     and the H. Olive Day Read-a- Thon.

Once again, children' s librarian Sarina Bluhm was a" hit"    Both the Norfolk TPA& The Norfolk Community League

with Norfolk' s preschoolers. A variety of programs were held made significant donations to the Freeman- Centennial Library
each week for children between the ages of two and five. In to help update its aging non-fiction collection.
otal, 188 sessions of pre-school programs were held with

an attendance of 4,093! During the summer, 631 children Highest commendations are in order to the Board of

participated in the library' s reading club " Open Books,      Trustees, Friends of the Library and the entire library staff
Open Frontiers". 18 different program were held with a total and volunteers for their loyalty and support. These dedicated
attendance of 1, 000 children. These children recorded 113, 631 people continue to work tirelessly to make the library a vital
minutes of reading! In addition, Mrs. Bluhm presided over the and integral part of the Town of Norfolk.

ever-popular" Twilight Thies" for preschoolers.

Respectfully submitted,
Two new programs for school age children have been

added to- the roster this fall." Norfolk Reads" is an interactive Robin A. Glasser,

reading club for children in grades 1- 3 and " Jr. Friends" is Director of Libraries

a library service club that meets once a week for students
in grades 4- 7.
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REPORT OF THE

LIBRARY TRUSTEES
if

It is hard to believe that back in 1996 Town report, the

g library trustees stated that the library had " made substantial
progress to adapt the library building for the future...A Building
Committee of citizens has been formed and is hard at work

on these issues." Thanks to the patience and perseverance of the

library building committee, the work initiated over four y.. ars
ago came closer to completion in 2000 with a design submission
to the Massachusetts Board of Library Commissioners for

d funding. The Trustees extend our official and also our personal
k thanks to the Committee members: Mary Jo Gothorpe, Maureen

McPike, Susan Nelson, Bruce Reinhardt, Cecilia Shipley,
e and Judy Sterling.
n

it One of the issues that made the plans for a new library
addition protracted was the need to secure the parcel land in

n front of the present library building on North Street. Discussions
J,     began with developer/ owner Carlo Musto as early as 199.5,
ie assisted by members of the Board of Selectmen. It was not
ig until December, 2000 that agreement on acquisition of the land

d was completed. The outcome was well worth the time. The
ie present owner, Paul Borelli, deeded the entire parcel to the

e;     Town, retaining only subsurface rights for additional storm
t;     water drainage and retention. The result is another chapter in
id the public-private partnership that is creating a vibrant town

center for Norfolk. The Trustees are grateful to Mr. Borelli and

to his family for this$ 350, 000 gift of valuable land. Selectman
tel Jack McFeeley worked hard and ingeniously in framing the
h agreement. In this, he redeemed the many hours devoted to this

a,     issue by his predecessors, Selectmen Jim Giebfried and Yaffa
is Dratman. We thank them all.

cs In conclusion, two members of the trustees( Boulay and
s,     Nelson) must claim a portion of this report for themselves. We

do so in order to recognize the extraordinary service of our

colleague, Frances Holman. Fran has served as a library trustee
ae continuously since 1966. She is thus in her 35th year in this
ry position - a record of continuous service in elective office

that we believe is unprecedented in Norfolk. We noted above
that " patience and perseverance" are required to reach the

of major goals of our library. In this attitude Fran Holman set
ff the pattern. Thanks Fran.

al Respectfully submitted,

Frances M. Holman, Chair

Harvey Boulay, Clerk
Kenneth Nelson, Member
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PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

PLANNING BOARD Member is Kevin Darcy. The Board' s engineering consultant is
Judith Nitsch Engineering of Boston. The planning consultant is
PGC Associates of Franklin. The Board wishes to thank all other

The Planning Board continued its work on Growth Town Boards, Committees, Commissions and Departments for
Management, reviewing the Open Space By- law and amending their invaluable written comments that help the Board renderit in an effort to make it a more desirable option for developers,      

its decisions and approvals. Special thanks are extended to Lois
while preserving an area of open space for the benefit of the Boucher, Planning Board Administrator, for all of her efforts
Town. Also, the Estate Lot By- law was created and favorably in organizing all submissions, maintaining good relations with
voted on at Town Meeting. This Bylaw allows for currently other boards and applicants, and ensuring that the Board is
non- buildable lots, due to insufficient existing frontage, to adequately prepared for its weekly meetings and hearings.
be built upon, if certain additional criteria are met. Instead

of creating a new road and subdivision of multiple homes,     
The Board meets regularly Thursday evenings at 7: 45

the estate lot by- law allows for one single family home to be PM in the Town Hall. Planning Board meetings are posted in
constructed as long as certain other requirements are satisfied.      

accordance with Massachusetts General Laws in the Town Hall
Like the Open Space by- law, the Estate Lot by- law was created on the Town Clerk' s bulletin board at least 48 hours in advance,
in an effort to reduce density and reduce the impact cn the

Legal notices of public hearings and other Board events,
Town' s existing infrastructure: 

when required, are published in local newspapers. Direct

abutters to definitive subdivisions are directly notified priorThe Board continued its practice of encouraging applicants to hearings. Relevent materials are available to the public
to preview their potential development projects at an informal

for inspection.
pre- submission review". The Board found that this process

enables the Board to set parameters that will save the developers
ACTIVITY OF THE PLANNING BOARD- 2000

time and money. This practice assisted 23 projects this year by
identifying critical concept problems prior to a formal submittal

Type of Activity No of Plans No of Lots
thus streamlining their eventual approval.     

Definitive Subdivision Plans

Submitted in 1999, Approved 2000 4 83
In 2000, there were two( 2) Preliminary Plans submitted,     Submitted in 2000, Approved 2000 2 27

both which are still under review and pending. These were
Pending/ Under Review 2 21Spruce Acres( 3 lots) off of Spruce Road and Saddle Ridge( 7

lots) off of North Street.
Modified Definitive Plans 0 0

The Board approved four definitive subdivisions that
Preliminary Subdivision Planswere submitted in 1999 with a total of 83 lots that included the

Submitted in 2000 2 10Preserve at Keeney Pond( 50 lots) off of Grove Street, Maple
Approved in 2000 0 0Park Estates III( 22 lots) off Park Street, Stony Brook Estates,

an open space subdivision of 4 lots and Norfolk Commons
Non- Subdivision Plans Endorsed( 81- P) 16 30Phase I ( 7 lots) in the town center. The Board approved two

more subdivisions that were submitted in 2000 with a total
Lots Released in Subdivisions 15of 27 lots that included Norfolk Commons Phase II ( 10 lots)

in the town center and Maple Valley Estates ( 17 lots) off of
Medway Street. Special Permit Applications

Submitted in 1999, Approved 2000 2 11

The Planning Board has statutory responsibility for town
Submitted in 2000, Approved 2000 2 11

planning administration of the Subdivision Control Law, theSite Plans
Site Plan Approval and Special Permit Granting Authority for Submitted in 2000 6the Town of Norfolk. The Board operates under the authority
of M.G.L.c.41 & 81 and c.40A & 9. The Board' s Rules and

Approved in 2000 2

Regulations for the Subdivision of Land and Site Plan Approval Pending/Under Review 4

provides comprehensive guidance to parties wishing to undertake
the development of residential subdivisions and business and

Pre-submission sessions held 23

commercial sites in the Town of Norfolk.      
Shade Tree/Scenic Roads Act

The current board members are Francis A. Fitzpatrick,     Hearings conducted 5

Chairman, Robert Nicodemus, Vice-Chairman, David LaPointe,
Clerk, Arthur Spruch and Steven McClain. The Associate
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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS We wish to acknowledge our appreciation to the other

ANNUAL TOWN REPORT
boards, departments and committees for their cooperation and

input to our hearings, especially to the Planning Board and the
Conversation Commission. Our Town Counsel, George Hall, Jr.

The Zoning Board ofAppeals consists of 5 Full Members has always been available and cooperative regarding all issues
with 5 year staggered terms, and 2 Associate Members with in which the Board has sought guidance. We wish the best and a

1- year terms. The Board' s quasi- judicial authority is both happy retirement to long time Building Commissioner/ Zoning
conferred and limited by State statute and the Norfolk Zoning Enforcement Officer, Jerry Hughes.

Bylaws. The Board has very little discretion in granting Special
Permits and Variances, as decisions must be rendered by Respectfully Submitted,
consideration of the criteria in accordance with M.G.L. Chapter

40A, as amended, and the Norfolk Zoning Bylaws.       Bruce A. Simpson, Chairman

Lisa Keating, Vice Chairman

The Zoning Board of Appeals has the authority to hear Brian Wolf, Clerk

appeals from the decision of the Building Inspector, and John Burke, Full Member

petitions of Addendum' s to Special Permits, Comprehensive Lorraine Sweeney, Full Member
Permits, Repetitive Petitions and Variances. The Board does not Robert Garrity, Associate Member

draft zoning bylaws nor do they enforce them.    Nancy Lancellotti, Associate Member

During the 2000 calendar year, the Board received
10 applications for hearings. The Board issued 2 Variance
Extensions, 4 Special Permits, 2 Variances and granted 1 Appeal

of the Building Inspector' s decision. One application for a
special permit was withdrawn.

The Board also reviewed 43 applications for wetland
hearings forwarded to the Board of Appeals for comment and

input, as required by the Norfolk Wetland Protection Bylaw.
In addition to the quasi-judicial duties involving hearings and
rendering decisions in an expeditious and impartial manner, the
Board members also serve as communication liaisons to other
Town Boards, Departments and Committees. The Members

and the Zoning Administrative Assistant also attend zoning
seminars and workshops and research court decisions to keep

abreast of zoning issues and revisions to M.G.L. Chapter 40A,
as amended. Board members also attend court proceedings as

witnesses on behalf of the Town. Meetings of the Board are

held generally once per month unless an emergency dictates
otherwise. All meetings and public hearings are posted at least
48 hours in advance in the Office of the Town Clerk and are
conducted in accordance with the Open Meeting Law.

69



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

PERMANENT BUILDING NORFOLK RECREATION
COMMITTEE COMMISSION

The Permanent Building Committee ( PBC) had a busy The Norfolk Recreation Department is managed by five
year working on the new Pond Street Recreational Complex, the elected commissioners. This past May, Julie Chapski, was
new Senior Center, and a design for a new Fire Station.      elected as the Commission' s newest member. The co-directors,

Ann Proto and Jenifer Miller, perform the daily management
Throughout the year, the PBC continued work with the of the Recreation Department. The Assistant director is Kathy

contractor, J. E. Case Inc., North Attleboro, and the architect O' Brien.
Joe Marshall of Moriece & Gary, Inc., Charlestown, to bring
the new Pond Street Recreation Complex almost to conclusion.     The Recreation Department programs are self-supportingThe grass for the project was seeded in the fall of 2000 and through the use of a revolving fund. Fees are collected to
the Recreation Complex will he ready for use in the fall of participate in the programs, which, in turn, are used to pay2001.   

instructors, purchase supplies and offer some free programs
to the community.

The PBC continued work on the design and planning
phase of the new Senior Center, working closely with architect The variety and amount of programs offered by the
Bob Nicodemus of Bergmeyer Associates, Inc., Boston, and Recreation Department has continued to grow over the past year.
the Council on Aging. In late summer, Di Giorgio & Messina

Participants are represented by all members of the communityConstruction Company, Middleton, was selected as the general from infants through adults. Some of the more popular programs
contractor for the Senior Center project, and construction began.      are the Teen Dances, Sticky Fingers for Toddlers, as well as
Fite Center is expected to be completed by spring of 2001.   the extensive after school and summer sports programs. Due to

strong revenues from our programs, the department continues to
Late in the year, the PBC became involved with the design sponsor free programs such as the summer playground, Easter

phase for a possible new Fire Station, working with architect Egg Hunt, Family Open Gym and the Summer Concert Series.
Mark W. Barrett of Allen M. Lieb Architects, P.C., Ltd., and The Commission has also donated a generous amount to the
Fire Chief William Kelley.     Freeman Centennial School Playground project.

During the year, Ernie Alix resigned from the PBC after During the past year, the Case Construction Company has
many years of outstanding service. Apart from his service on the

completed work at the Pond Street Complex. Seeding of thePBC, Ernie also served as the Clerk of the Works for both the fields was done in the fall of 2000 with the scheduled use of the
H. Olive Day School addition and the construction of the new fields to begin no later than the spring of 2002.
Town Hall. The Town surely benefited from the extraordinary
expertise and skill that he brought to these projects in overseeing The Recreation Department welcomes requests to imple.
them to a successful conclusion, and we thank him for all of his

ment new programs and encourage participation by all memberstremendous contributions to the PBC and the Town.  
of the community.

Respectfully submitted, 
Respectfully submitted,

Robert P Lowndes, Chair
Barbara Gillis, Chair

Winsor F. Bowden
Tom Terpsta

David Capone
Joseph Byrne

Fred Pfischner
Noelle Tonelli- Secretary
Julie Chapski
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NORFOLK GOLF COMMITTEE METROPOLITAN AREA

PLANNING COUNCIL
The Norfolk Golf Committee consists of four members YEAR 2000 REPORT

who have been appointed by the Board of Selectmen, as well
as many other volunteer members, who have been active The Metropolitan Area Planning Council( MAPC) is the
participants.       regional planning agency representing 101 cities and towns

in the metropolitan Boston area. Created by an act of the
The mission of the Golf Committee is to locate a parcel Legislature in 1963, it serves as a forum for state and local

of land in the Town of Norfolk, which would be suitable or officials to address issues of regional importance. As one of 14
the development of a municipal golf course. The golf course members of the Boston Metropolitan Planning Organization
would be self supporting, and would also provide a revenue      ( MPO), MAPC has oversight responsibility for the region' s
source for the town.      federally funded transportation program. Council membership

consists of community representatives, gubernatorial appointees
The committee was awarded $ 25,000 at the May 2000 and city and state agencies who collaborate in the development

town meeting to conduct a study. A location next to the new of comprehensive plans and recommendations in areas of
town recreation complex on Pond Street was evaluated and population and employment, transportation, economic develop-
found not to be a suitable location. The committee is presently ment, housing, regional growth and the environment. The 25
evaluating other properties in town.     member elected Executive Committee meets 11 times a year.

The full Council meets three times a year. Meetings are held at
We would like to thank town meeting for its support,      various localities throughout the region.

as well as the Board of Selectmen, and the numerous other
boards and committees, town employees, and volunteers for MAPC works with its 101 cities and towns through

their help this past year.  eight subregional organizations. Each subregion has members
appointed by the chief elected officials and planning boards of

Joseph Byrne, Chairman the member communities and is coordinated by an MAPC staff
Todd Monjar planner. The subregions meet on a regular basis to discuss and
John Vancurra work on issues of local concern. Bellingham, Dover, Franklin,
John Czyzewski Holliston, Hopkinton, Medway, Milford, Millis, Norfolk,

Sherborn, and Wrentham are member communities of the

SouthWest Advisory Planning Committee ( SWAP) subregion.
The community representatives of the SWAP subregion consist
primarily of elected and appointed officials and town planners
from the eleven neighboring towns.

Transportation

This year, SWAP worked with the Central Transportation

Planning Staff on a Subregion ii Transportation Study. The
towns worked cooperatively to prioritize regional transportation
improvement projects in order to help the coordination of state

funding in the region. MAPC also worked with the SWAP
communities to get improvements to Route 109 programmed
on the region' s Transportation Improvement Program( TIP) list.
Beginning this year, and continuing into next year, SWAP will
provide input to the Year 2025 Regional "Transportation Plan,
which will guide funding for roads and transit for the next 25
years in the Boston Metropolitan region.
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Int ative Land Use Buildout Analysis and Executive Order 418

The SWAP subregion hosted a workshop on Conservation MAPC is continuing its work with local communities on
Subdivision Design, a model study completed by MAPC Buildout Analysis throughout the region. The Executive Office
on an innovative land use technique to preserve land while of Environmental Affairs has funded this two- year long effort
accommodating development. Conservation Subdivision Design and has contracted with MAPC to complete a buildout analysis
CSD) is a flexible planning tool, which allows a community to for every city and town in the metropolitan region. The purpose

meet both its development and conservation goals. It enables of the study is to create an approximate" vision" in quantitative
land conservation and preservation of resources, while still terms of the potential future growth permitted and encouraged
accommodating the full development potential of the parcel.      by a community' s bylaws. Thus far, four out of the eleven SWAP
Funded by the Executive Office of Environmental Affairs,      communities have had their buildout analysis completed. All
MAPC undertook this project in order to promote and enable of the communities will have their buildout analysis completed
the use of Conservation Subdivision Design( or CSD), arguably and presented to their town by the end of June 2001. Once the
the best refOon made to traditional cluster-type zoning to data.      buildout analysis have been presented to the local communities,
The project is intended to elevate.- the use of this alternative land the communities become eligible for additional state funding for
development technique to one that is commonly accepted ane planning assistance under Executive Order 418.
utilized, by serving as an educational tool particularly for Town
Planners, Planning Boards and developers.

1. 495 Initiative

The SWAP communities are part of the 1- 495 Initiative,
a partnership of local officials, business leaders, and others
affected by growth along the 1- 495 Corridor. The Initiative is
a joint project of MAPC and the Massachusetts Technology
Collaborative with funding from the Massachusetts Office of
Business Development. This year the Initiative held its third
Annual 1- 495 Conference, with Secretary of Transportation
Kevin Sullivan as keynote speaker. The Initiative kicked off a
new I- 495 Institute for Local Officials in cooperation with
the University of Massachusetts and worked on other water,
sewer, and transportation solutions designed to enhance the

Corridor' s business competitiveness while protecting its quality
of life.

The SWAP communities will continue to work with other
communities in the 1- 495 region through the I- 495 Initiative
and through joint cooperative efforts with MAPC' s MetroWest
subregion.

Legislative

Working with state legislators, MAPC defined the
parameters of a statewide road and bridge construction program

under Chapter 87 of the Acts of 2000. The legislation will help
to secure a more.stable funding source and insure an annual$ 400
million statewide road and bridge construction program. MAPC
also played a key role in shaping and insuring the passage of
legislation that reformed the funding of the Massachusetts Bay
Transportation Authority. Similar efforts this year led to the
passage of the Community Preservation Act and reform of the
Commonwealth' s Zoning Enabling Act.
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BOARD OF HEALTH BOH followed up on the smoking regulations put into affect
many years ago. This was done by an inspection of the" smoke
eating" technologies employed by the establishments on Rt. 1A.

Change in 2001 An amendment to the license renewal procedure was created

which will require the establishments to provide proof of

The BOH began the year reorganized in the following maintenance of those systems at the time of their renewal,

manner:

5. New Appointments
Peter Chipman- Chairman Animal Advisory Agent— The role of this position was

John J. Hurley- Clerk changed this year from a mediation role to manage animal
Thomas R. Gilbert- Member related disputes among neighbors. Thank you Bruce Simpson

for serving years in that capacity.
This organization, although a little bumpy in the begin-

ning, has really worked out well. As the board began to settle The animal control officer was appointed to fill a different
into 2000 business, each member has been able to provide a capacity that allows the BOI-I to take advantage of the experience
particular skill and allowed the board to function in a very and exposure while he/she is doing her•job. Any animals that are
efficient and value added manner. Decisions have been made being kept in an environment which could affect the health of
to protect the health of the community, including many that people in to  : aa will be reported back to the 130tH. This change
required changing some existing processes and creating some in responsibility will ensure the BOII can effectively manage
new ones. Below are many of these changes.  animal issues as the town continues to grow and neighbors

get closer. The BOH heard issues in several occasions which
I. Sanitation Inspection involved horses, dogs, sheep and a monkey. Thank you Hilary

for a job well done!
The sanitation inspector was busy with Norfolk this

year. Normal duties of inspecting eating establishments were Agent To The Zoning By- laws Committee-
increased by residential and commercial issues including the
unfortunate fire at Linda' s Variety. The BOH has begun to look Alan Chapski was appointed to this committee on behalf
at funding and time allocation of the inspector to be sure we are of the BOH. His experience with BOH issues over the last
leveraging this resource appropriately and we will be directing several years will provide the perspective the board needs
his activities more actively than in past and introduce a new one, ' Thank you to Lois Boucher who

filled this role for several years and expressed her continued
1 Health Watch interest this past year.

The BOH decided to improve communication with the 6, Staff Development

public. Items of interest were posted at town hall or announced

during the BOH meetings. We now post articles which the board The board has made an effort to develop the assistant,

believes are most relevant to our citizens in the paper under theBetsy Fijol. She attended class to broaden her knowledge of
title of" Health Watch". Look for us there!     sanitation management. We hope to continue developing her

this year and begin to use her skills to supplement the current

3. Meeting Frequency Sanitarian by having more frequent visits to the various food
establishment throughout town.

In an attempt to improve customer service, the BOH
agreed this year to meet twice monthly instead of once. A 7. Visiting Nurse Association
by-product of this idea was a hope that the meeting would be
shorter as well. The meetings continue to be several hours and A spokeswoman from the VNA attended one meeting to

they are bi-monthly. A sure sign of a growing community with re- introduce the board to the services provided in general and
more sophisticated needs. specifically the benefits for Norfolk. After reviewing the budget

for 2001, the BOH has decided to look closer at these services.
4. Tobacco Control Regulations The 2000 budget was a significant decrease from previous

years, due to the VNA receiving alternative funding, and
The board looked closely at regulations throughout Mas-      demand may be increasing due to the coverage changes in

sachusetts and the policies being adopted by many communities.       the insurance industry.
A decision was made not to go smoke- free. This decision was
made after meeting with the local food establishments face
to face in one of their establishments. For the first time, the
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Reguler Business/statistics:      WALPOLE AREA

A busy year for the B011 as indicated by the doubling of VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION
meetings and still maintaining a full agenda. A couple of items TOWN OF NORFOLK

worthy of notation were:
Board Officers:

1. Water Contamination- In early August 2000, testing by Daniel Nye President

the water department detected some contamination in one of Julie Bonenfant Vice President

the town wells. DEP dictated a boil order which was announced Mark Howe Treasurer

to the community via cable and BOH members making phone Susan Neary Secretary
calls to residents. The system was flushed and the detection

was not seen again after much testing. A new process was Management:

put in place for water testing further insuring the quality of Barbara E. Cade Executive Director

our drinking water. 'Thanks to Jim Martin for his attention Robert P. Bois Financial Manager
to this matter.      

S

Lucinda C. Williams Systems Manager

An issue that this situation presented was Norfolk' s CIinical Supervisors:

inability to communicate broadly to its residents. This has Sandra Kershner, R. N.     Nursing Supervisor
been discussed with the Board of Selectmen and remains an Maureen Bass, P.T. Rehabilitation Supervisor
area of focus in 2001.  Virginia Clarcq, R. N.      Home Health Aide Supervisor

2. West Nile Virus& Rabies- Massachusetts experienced The Walpole Area VNA successfully entered the year
an out- break of rabies and then the West Nile Virus which 2000 with no dreaded Y2K problems. The VNA has continued
is carried by the bird population. The animal control officer to experience a stabilization in overall visits during the calendar
working with the BOH kept a close eye on these issues within year 2000. Approximately 45,000 visits will be made by year
our animal population and communicated an awareness via end. There has been an increase in non- Medicare business with
Health Watch and a visit by Hilary Penlington to our televised a slight decline in Medicare business. The new switch to a
130H meetings. Thanks to Hillary for driving all of those dead Medicare Prospective Payment System in October will mean an
birds into Boston for evaluation. Fortunately for us no cases of emphasis on 60 day episodes of care instead of visits.
the West Nile virus was detected in Norfolk.

The Walpole Area VNA is accredited by the Community
Statistics Health Accreditation Program and is a Medicare and Medicaid

Certified Agency. The quality of care is reflected in client
The following are permits and licenses issued by the     ' satisfaction surveys and letters of appreciation from patients.

Board of Health.       Again, this year, the Walpole Area VNA received a Pinnacle
Award for excellence in patient satisfaction and is ranked in

Percolation Testing the top 10% of benchmark agencies, nationwide. The major
Septic System Permits strength of the VNA continues to be the competent, professional
Septic System Component Replacement and highly committed staff.
Form 1. 0 Applications( Review for Home Improvement)
Site-plan Review Plans The Walpole Area VNA provides programs in health
Well Permits

promotion to all age groups in addition to traditional home
Sub-Division Review health services. The three major components of the Health
Variance Hearings( Title 5 & local)    Promotion Program are:
Food Establishment Permits
Milk and Cream Permits Health Maintenance for the Elderly: Promotion ofTobacco Product Permits good health and maximum functioning for all residents over 60
Refuse Hauler Permits years of age. Elderly residents, who are homebound and have
Septic System Installer' s Permits multiple chronic illnesses or conditions, but do not qualify
Septic Removal Permits for skilled care in the Home Health Program are seen on a
Medical Waste Transport Permits periodic basis by a nurse at home. The goal of the program is
Massage Therapy Licenses to assess changes in physical condition, prevent complications
Camp Permits and prevent unnecessary hospitalizations. Ambulatory residents
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are seen for physical assessment and health counseling at the COUNCIL, ON AGING
senior citizen clinics, held at the Federated Church the third

Wednesday of every month. The Council on Aging was created by town meeting in

Maternal/Child Health: Promotion of the health and 1972 and is made up of 11 members appointed by the Board

stability of the family during the periods of reproductive
of Selectmen. There is an undesignated number of associate

maturation, pregnancy, childbirth, the postpartum period and the
members appointed by the Council. The Council' s function is

child rearing years. Services are provided by a maternal/ child to identify the needs of Norfolk Citizens who are 60 years and

health nurse specialist and a lactation consultant, through
over and to give information, to take action, or to refer the needs

home visits.       
to the appropriate agencies.

Communicable Disease: Prevention and control of
The Council employs an Executive Director who works

communicable disease through casefinding, education and
from an office in Town Hall three mornings a week and 2 days

provision of follow-up care, consistent with public health
from the Federated Church Senior Center. They also employ

practice.   
a Secretary anda van driver at twenty hours a week and two
outreach workers at 20 hours a month.

Public Health: Promotion of health awareness for the
prevention of serious illnesses. Periodic hypertension, diabetes

We received a Formula grant award from the Executive
Office of Elder Affairs

and bodyfat screenings are held at the clinics and in the
to provide additional support for the

community. The annual flu clinics were held in November
outreach program, and pay for dues and conference meeting

and December. The pneumonia vaccine was also offered this
attendance. We also received a Service Incentive award to be
used to hire a Tai-Chi instructor.

year.

The Town of Norfolk Public health statistics for 2000
Programs and services provided by the Council on Aging

are: General Information, referral to other agencies, outreach
r are as follows: program, caregiver support, food shopping assistance, health

Service Visits
screenings, fitness programs, intergenerational programs, tax

Home Visits/Health Maintenance 22
relief program, fuel assistance, transportation, congregate meals,

Maternal/ Child Health Visits 0 home delivered meals, community education, legal assistance,

Communicable Disease Follow-Up 22
tax assistance, newsletter, recreation and social events, non-

Senior Citizen Clinics 91
seniors fuel assistance and general information.

Flu Vaccine 213

Pneumonia Vaccine 5
A TRIAD Council was formed with Fred Kenney as the

Chairman. The purpose of the TRIAD Council is to establish a

working partnership among the various community departments,
residents of the community and the Sheriffs Department as a

is means of identifying service needs among the seniors. Their
meetings are immediately following the Council on Aging
meetings.
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On July 13, 2001) the Council dreams were answered with SELF HELP INCORPORATED
the ground breaking for the Senior Center on Medway Branch.
The Cowell would like to thank all who helped us achieve
this goal. We would also like to thank all of the volunteers During the program year ending September 30, 2000,
who provided hours of transportation, shopping assistance,      Self Help, Inc., received a total funding of approximately
reassurance calling, clinic assistance, Board members, The      $ 16.7M and provided direct services to 17,591 limited income
Friends of the Council on Aging, in-kind support donated to the households in the area.

Council for its operations, The Board of Health and Walpole
Visiting Nurses for sponsoring Health Clinics, the Highway In the TOWN OF NORFOLK, SHI provided services

r' servicingourvans, FireandPolicel) epartments,      totaling $ 132, 101 to 53 households during program yearDepartment for

the Federated Church Missions, Hessen ( Health and Social 2000.

Services Consortium, Inc.), the Executive office of ElderAffairs
and all who helped through the year. Self Help' s total funding of$ 16,699,454 does not tell the

real value of services delivered to the area as a whole. This
funding enabled us to mobilize an additional $ 1, 399, 684 ofThe Council on Aging meets on the third Monday of each

month at Town Hall in the Multi-Purpose Room at 9:30 a.m.      other community resources such as, volunteers, donations of
All are welcome to attend.     space, and private donations in the form of goods and services,

Therefore, the total impact of Self-Help, Inc., during the past
program year was$ 18,450,931.

In addition, Self-Help currently employs 280 individuals.
Many of these individuals are of limited income, and most
reside in our service area.

We feel that October 1, 1999 through September 30, 2000
was a successful program year for us because we were able to
assist as many individuals and/ or families as we did, regardless
of the challenges of being a human service provider.

We thank all the volunteers, the Board of Selectmen,
the limited income representative and the private sector
representatives, for helping to make Fiscal Year 2000 a
successful one.

Respectfully submitted,

Norma Wang
Executive Assistant/Human Resources
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NORFOLK COUNTY MOSQUITO HOUSING AUTHORITY

CONTROL PROJECT
The following officers were duly elected at the annual

The operational program of the Project integrates all meeting of the Norfolk Housing Authority held on May 9,

proven technologies into a system of mosquito control that is
2000.

rational, environmentally sensitive and cost effective. 
Joanne T. Smith Chairman

All mosquito eggs need water to hatch and to sustain
Robert G. Boucher Vice Chairman

larval growth.     
Walter Zagieboylo Treasurer

Thomas J. Collins Assistant Treasurer

Water Management Projects: Our primary efforts are
Matthew Capofreddi Secretnry

concentrated on the management of shallow, standing, stagnant
Staff:

water, and the maintenance of existing flow systems which can
contribute to mosquito breeding. Jan Moore Executive Director

Drainage ditches checked/ cleaned 8, 250 feet
Muriel St. Amand Administrative Assistant

Culverts checked/ cleaned 30 culverts Charles Anthony Maintenance

Richard Bracker Maintenance

Larval Control: Treatment of mosquito larvae during Modernization Programs ol' the Norfolk Housing Author-
aquatic development is the next most effective control effort. 

ity: The Hillcrest Septic System was completed during 2000.

Larval control by
Through the joint cooperation of the Housing Authority Board

backpack briquettes/ mistblowers 84.63 acres
of Commissioners, Town of Norfolk employees, the Department

Rain Basin treatments 894 basins of Housing and Community Development and the Housing
Authority staff, this project moved along smoothly.

Adult Control: The suppression of flying adult mosquitoes NHA Property:
becomes necessary when they are numerous, annoying, and/ or
threatening to residents. The Norfolk Housing Authority manages 84 units of State

Adult control aerosol
Aided housing. We are a self-sufficient unsubsidized Housing
Authority. Presently 64 units at Hillcrest Village, Rockwood

applications from trucks 3, 763. 2 acres Road, are for our Elderly and Disabled residents. Our Family
development Pine Knoll located on Arnold Road, contains 20

Surveys, inspections, and pre/post monitoring in support
of our program include locating and mapping breeding areas,      

residences of two and three bedro m units. Waiting lists are
kept for both properties and applications may be obtained at

larval and adult collections, and field work evaluations leading the Housing Authority office at Hillcrest Village or mailed by
to better water management.     request. We can be reached at 528- 4800, 8: 00 am to 2: 00 pm.

daily. All seniors interested in residing at Hillcrest Village, will
NCMCP received 70 calls from residents for information find our waiting list to be a very short wait.

and assistance.

Special Event Noted with Appreciation:
Respectfully submitted,

Charlie Anthony' s wonderful cookouts for our residents
John J. Smith, Superintendent at Hillcrest Village.

H. Olive Day Preschool Valentines Day Party for
our seniors.

The Fire Department' s annual Christmas Party.
The Lions Club Christmas parade and special attention

to our residents at Hillcrest Village.
Pine Knoll' s second annual children' s Halloween party,
thank you to all the parents, Girl Scout Leaders, Staff,
and Seniors at Hillcrest and a special thanks to Helmi
Bishop and her pony for the great pony rides.
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Si. Jude' s Confirmation students and staff for delivering SOUTH NORFOLK COUNTY
East: r, Thanksgiving and Christmas Baskets to our

ASSOCIATION FORElderly and Family Developments. You provided for
those who may not have had a Holiday dinner with RETARDED CITIZENS, INC.
your generosity and kindness.

On behalf of the individuals with mental retardation andSpecial Thanks:       
their families who reside in Norfolk, we wish to thank you for
your support over the many years of our partnership.

The Board of Commissioners, staff and residents wish
to express their appreciation to the dedicated Police, Fire Created in 1954 and governed today by several hundred;
and Highway Departments for their concern and service. The local families with children disabled by mental retardation,
Housing Authority also wishes to commend and thank Norfolk South Norfolk County Association for Retarded Citizens, Inc,
Together, the Norfolk Community League, St. Jude' s Parish      ( SNCARC) is a self-help, grass roots organization motivated
and the Council on Aging for their continued support, outreach by local needs. We are the voice and the heart of advocacy forand care of our residents.       

mental retardation for our 12 local towns. As a home-grown,
ncn-profit organization, we have always been accountable to,

Respectfully submitted,     and dependent on, local financial and volunteer supports. Our
job has been to use this platform of local support to advocate

Jan M. Moore, Executive Director for and draw into our communities other public and private
resources needed to serve the needs of our neighbors who are
disabled by mental retardation.

South Norfolk County Association for Retarded Citizens
applies these local supports to provide services which include:
family support programs encompassing case management,
emergency and clinical services, our Family Autism Center,
consultation and training and in-home respite care services. Also
included are the educational and rehabilitative day programs,
which continue the work of the school department, and the adult
and after-school social and recreational programs which provide

several social clubs and special events, evening educational '
classes, discussion groups and a variety of sports activities. We
also operate through our related party organization, Lifeworks, a
range of residential and vocational training programs.

The support from our local communities has provided the
funding base from which we have always operated. This local
support, control and accountability well serves local needs in a
highly cost efficient manner. Our request from all of our towns
is the same: 65 cents per capita. Last year we were granted
4,025.00 from the Town of Norfolk. We are requesting Level

Funding for FY2002.

By pooling this request with the funding given by the
other 11 towns to your local Association for Retarded Citizens,
Norfolk is able to achieve a cost efficiency which allows them
to do more for its mentally retarded citizens than it could
individually. I believe it a testament to this good financial sense,
as well as the good works performed by SNCARC, that each of
the 12 towns we serve continue to provide this funding support
as they have done for so many years.

We have provided the following services over the past
year to individuals and families from Norfolk:
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Average Total

program Number Cost Per Yearly
Served Individual Cost

Day Habilitation 8    $ 15,412.00   $ 123,296

Family Support/Respite Care 15 3,293.00 49,395

Family Autism 4 204.00 816

Harbor Counseling 1 1, 343.00 1, 343

Social/Recreation 10 230.00 2,300

Advocacy 32 67.00 2,144

Residential 0 42,365. 00 0

Residential- Individual Support 0 8,861. 00 0

Vocational Training/ Transport 4 13,558.00 54,232

The total expenses for all of the SNCARC Program/

Advocacy services provided last year in Norfolk was
233,526.

As you start your budget process, we would like to

formally request that you add us to the agenda for that meeting
so we might make an appeal for an allocation of$0.65 per capita
for your community' s services provided by SNCARC. This is
much below the financial report of numbers of clients served in
Norfolk and the average costs of those services.

I hope this summary helps clarify the nature and cost of
services we provided. We have served Norfolk and the other 11
communities for over 45 years, and plan to continue to build our

services in partnership with the town. The allocations at Town
Meeting are tremendously important to this partnership.

We look forward to speaking to you in person on the
subject of this extraordinary work and its ongoing importance
to the quality of life in Norfolk. Also, we extend a very sincere
invitation to you and your Board or Committee Members to
visit our programs at any time. If we can be of service in any
way, please be sure to give me a call.

Respectfully yours,

William F.Abel, Ph.D.
President
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WATER DEPARIMENT The Board of Water Commissioners is dedicated to the
delivery of potable water in sufficient quantity and quality to
meet the needs of our residents now and into the future and we

WATER SERVICE INFORMATION
will continue that mission.

1999 2000
The Commissioners wish to extend our gratitude to

Miles of Water niaitt in service 57.77 58.45
the staff of the department, headed by Superintendent James
A. Martin III, Administrative Assistant Marilyn A.

lima! Water services 1, 772 1, 828
Maintenance Operator Richard A. Watson, Collector Gail E.
Bernardo, Part- time Maintenance Markene Burton and Part-

Number of set vices
time Meter Readers Colleen O' Loughlin and Norman Lenihan,

per mile of v atci man 30.( 7 31. 27
These employees are dedicated and tireless in the efforts to
ensure the smooth overall operation of the Norfolk Water

Total gallons pumped 96222300 224,357,900
mrtnierit.

fatal gallons purchased 586, 104 4(11, 404
Submitted by

Average gallons pumped pm day 537,612 614,670
Board of Water Commissioners

Average annual galkms

used per service II i, 071 122, 986

Ave gallons used per

service per day 3114 337

Total Water Bill and

Betterment Revenue SO! 7,881. 02 5637, 318.02

In 2000, the total gallons pumped increased. fatal rainfall
was lower than the prior year.

The Norfolk Water Deportment has a comprehensive
Master Plan. This plan is tire blueprint for the logical build

out of necessary infrastructure. At this time, we are seeking a
third well source consistent with the Master Plan. We have also

identified potential new tank sites.

On August 7, 2000, D. E. P. issued a boil water order.
On August 8, 2000 the order was rescinded. A disinfection
program was implemented.

Town Meeting approved monies to improve the Gold
Street, the Spruce Road Pumping Stations and the Weeber Tank.
Additionally, monies for a water treatment at Spruce

Road was also approved. The Water Department applied kir and
received from the State Revolving Fund, a zero- interest loan
to upgrade the Spruce Rd. Pump Station. The Norfolk Water
Department was notified that we were included on the SRF
Intended Use Plan for FY 2001. The total approved was

642,000.00.

In the year 2000, the Water Department acquired 52.74
acres of land to ensure the protection around the Gold Street
Pumping Station,

80



tim tAi REsauRC+.r+

CONSERVATION COMMISSION The Commission receives valuable input and cooperation

from many citizens and Town Boards. We wish to acknowledge

The Norfolk Conservation Commission consists of
valuable work relationships with the Norfolk Water Department,

a seven- member board whose members are appointed for the Board of Health, the Planning Board, the Zoning Board

three- year staggered terms by the Board of Selectmen. The of Appeals, and especially the Norfolk Highway Department
and its Superintendent, Butch Vito. Their cooperation and

jurisdictional responsibilities are guided by the Norfolk willingness to helpthe Commission with its varied projects is
Wetland Protection Bylaw and the Wetland act, as mo:,t recently invaluable. We wish to thank' Town Counsel, George Hall, Jr.
revised, their promulgated regulations, and the Department of
Environmental Protection' s Program Policies. 

for his guidance to the Commission, Town Administrator Greg
Balukonis, and the B-)arii of Selectmen for their support and

During the 2000 calendar year, the Commission heard 43
confidence in our carrying out our duties and responsibilities.

wetland cases; up from 40 the previous year, and a near-20%  Respectfully Submitted:
jump from 1998. A large portion of these cases involved the
construction of single-family dwellings, remodeling projects,  Andrew W. Bakinciwski, Chairman
and septic repairs. Four involved residential subdivisions.    

nAndrew Ba

Vice-Chairman

However, the impact of these four filings is enormous to AllanAM.
ia Andrade, Clerk

the town.     Brian L Butler, Member

Joseph Simmons, Member
Specifically, the infrastructure to support the subdivisions Aimee Dudley, Member

plus the 91 individual housing lots represent 156 acres of lost ADley

open space. To preserve existing open space, the Commission Gail

James Giebfried, MemberemConsultant
gratefully accepts donations of open land, while also pursuing
the acquisition of additional open space for the protection of
wetlands, groundwater resources, wildlife resources, and the
preservation of the quality of life for the present and future
citizens of Norfolk.

In addition to its duties in hearing wetlands cases, the
Commission was active in conservation land management.
A selective timber harvest was conducted on the Lind' Farm
property, which will promote a healthier forest environment.
The Commission continues to develop a trails program and
passive recreation development plan for the Lind Farm. The
Commission was pleased to endorse several Boy Scout Eagle
projects, which enhanced the visual appeal and usability of
several properties. We extend, yet again, our most sincere
appreciation to Maryann Magner. Though Maryann retired
from the Commission this year after many years of service,
she continues as the Commission' s Project Manager for its
Conservation Land Management Program, working tirelessly for
the preservation and management ofopen space in the Town. We
also welcome our newest members, Aimee Dudley and James
Giebfried, and associate/ consultant Gail Hansche.
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TREASURER/COLLECTOR

The Treasurer/ Collector' s office is staffed by three full-      certificates, tax refunds, and the collection of delinquent taxitime employees. In addition to the Treasurer/ Collector, there is through tax title takings and deputy collection services.
an Assistant Treasurer and an Assistant Collector.

In addition to the many tax- related duties and responsibili,Tax- related duties and responsibilities focus on the billing ties, the office is responsible for receiving monies from the
and collecting of real estate, personal property, and motor Town' s various departments, processing of payment checksvehicle excise taxes. Over 17, 000 tax bills were mailed out for Town' s expenditures, maintaining and reconciling overresulting in over $ 12 million dollars in revenues. Other tax-      70 bank accounts, investing Town funds, borrowing shellrelated responsibilities include the processing of municipal lien and long term funds, and handling payroll for over 270 Town

employees.

REPORT OF THE TREASURER/ COLLECTOR
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2000

Demands&      Motor Vehicle
Real Estate Tax Interest Fees Excise Tax Interest2001 18, 801. 73 ees$0.00 0.00 2000 887,516. 41 1, 189.42    $ 10,261..00F002000 10,855,675. 98 13, 163, 36 2,348.41. 1999 152,885.81 524. 68 7,569.501999 43,273.20 2, 957.93 1, 307.98 1998 4,372.90 191. 73 1, 701.001998 506.62 108.56 94.29 1997 803. 44 48.06 007.001997 456.62 163. 80 5. 00 1996 326. 67 121.24 1106.001996 422.87 211. 28 33.00 1995 835.74 28. 18 522.431984- 1995 3, 130.50 1, 286.58 261. 00 1994TOTALS    $ 10, 903,465.79 17,891. 51      $ 4,049.68 1993

3

153. 75

3.75

393.
46 240.00

33. 46 956.43

Water Betterment Committed Int.  
1992 289.58 16.56 224.69

2000
Fees 1991 387. 14 20.34 220.0059, 1. 17.35 15,268.37 0.00 1990 5. 00 5. 00 33.00Pre- paymt 18, 577.78 491. 57 64.00 19891999 2,786. 21 633.33

23. 75.      17.00 53. 00
TOTALS 80,481. 34 16,393.27 64.00 1987

37 . 04

171. 04
31   . 4 58. 00

191. 25 159.00

Personal Property Interest
1986   .     17.50 13. 49 71. 90

2001 190.01
Fees 1, 048,483. 73 2,610.32    $ 23, 182.950.00 0.00

2000 147,266. 75 63.33 141. 00
1999 160. 94 65. 98 117.00
1998 149.56 50 33 135. 29
1997 9.64 4.04 43.00
TOTALS 147,776. 90 183. 68 436.29 Grand Totals

Collected:

Municipal Lien Ctfs 10175.00
2000 In Lieu of Taxes Water Betterments 80, 481. 34
2000

x 7, 803.37 All Taxes 12, 190,279. 11l:ax Deferral 2,267.98 All Interest& Fees2000 Municipal Lien 407@a$ 25     $ 10,175. 00
711. 5

Certificates TOTAL 12, 34455, 747.115
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ADVISORY BOARD some very important capital spending requests because there are
even greater needs at hand. The Advisory Board looks forward
to working with a new group that is currently being formed,

txe The Advisory Board is a nine-member board appointed the Capital Outlay Committee, which will address all of the
by the Town Moderator for three-year terms. Members of this identified long term capital needs of this town and propose a long
board are limited in that they are not permitted to hold any other range plan in which we try to fund these needs. Additionally,

ili.    appointed or elected position in the Town of Norfolk. The Board we have been able to maintain the Stabilization Fund at a

the is fortunate to have four Past Chairmen as current member.;       level to help insure lower interest rates and reduce short- term
cks This continuity of experience has provided invaluable insight borrowing.
ver into the ongoing issues we face year after year.
on The Board congratulate.; Past Chairman, Norm Gentry

wn The mission of the Advisory Board is to review every for all of his hard work and outstanding leadership he provided
article in a Town Warrant and to make a recommendation to during his tenure and is grateful that he continues to lend his
the Town Meeting. This process generally is accomplished by expertise as a current member of the board. We also wish to
the board thru a variety of methods: initially there is a long extend a hearty Thank You to our secretary, Dorothy Strohl, for
process of liaisons meeting with their appointed departments her extreme dedication to the job- without her help, the work of
and committees and bringing information back to the Advisory all the members would be far more time consuming.

Board. Liaisons will also extend an invitation for these groups
to present their budget and warrant article requests ata regularly Lastly, we would like to take this opportunity to acknowl-

e scheduled Advisory Board meeting. This process has led to edge the fine work of our Finance Director, Susan Gagner
OU establishing a very good rapport with the various departments and Town Administrator. Greg Balukonis in compiling the
50 and has enabled the Advisory Board to garner a considerable draft Budgets with appropriations balanced against projected
X)     understanding of the issues at hand as well as an opportunity revenues. These drafts greatly facilitate our analysis and
0 to clear up any questions they may still have. After hearing the

recommendations.

0 views of the proponents and opponents of each Article, the Board
13 takes a vote and this information is then provided to the general Respectfully submitted,
0 public in the form of the Advisory Board Recommendations
43 booklet. The Booklet is mailed to every registered voter prior Advisory Board Members
19 to the scheduled Town Meeting. These recommendations are Glenn Beenink

0 once again provided at Town Meeting, with the reading of the Edward Cannon. Past Chairman

0 Motions by Advisory Board members.     Kathleen Johnson

0 Norman Gentry, Past Chairman
0 The annual budget for Norfolk is decided at the Spring Nancy Seitz
0 Town Meeting. The Advisory Board is required to recommend Jonathan Sm;

0 `    a balanced budget that equitably distributes the available Graham Sterling, Past Chairman
S Operating and Capital resources. The Fall Town Meeting will Marc Waldman, Past Chairman

mostly address non- financial issues such as zoning or other James Ward, Chairman

bylaw changes. TheAdvisory Board will make recommendations
based on its analysis of each issue. A small Reserve Fund is,
also managed by the Advisory Board to offset any unanticipated
necessary expenses of any Department that cannot be deferred
to the next Town Meeting. For a detailed report on the results of
the Spring and Fall Town Meeting, please refer to the Minutes of
both meetings in the Annual Report of the Town Clerk, (under
the section titled: General Government).

In recent years the Advisory Board, with the help of the
Finance Director and the Town Administrator, has been faced
with meeting the needs of the community that is growing faster
than the available financial resources. The Annual Budgets
have reflected our effort to apportion the recurring revenue in

a way to maintain service levels across all Town Departments.
The Capital Budget is funded by non- recurring revenue and
addresses the top infrastructure needs of the community. In
recent years it is becoming more and more difficult to fund
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FINANCES

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE/

TOWN ACCOUNTANT

The following general purpose financial statements have
been prepared and audited in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles and present fairly the financial position of
the Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts, at June 30, 2000.

I would like to thank my staff, Lorraine H. Foley, Assistant
Town Accountant/ Employee Benefits Coordinator, and Mary
Noris, Data Processing/Accounts Payable Clerk. The staff
continues to do a remarkable job. Lorriane Foley announced
her retirement after thirty- four years of service. I would like
to personally thank her for her dedication and commitment
to the Town of Norfolk.

In August of 2000, Jane Lepardo was hired as the new
Treasurer/ Collector. Jane replaced David Okun, who left us
to become the Treasurer/Collector for the Thwn of Weston.
I' d like to thank David for his five, very effective years, as
Treasurer/Collector. Jane is proving to be a valuable addition
to the Finance staff. Thanks go out to the Treasurer/ Collector
and Assessing Department' s for their hard work, dedication and
cooperation. I am also grateful for the continuing cooperation

and support from all Town Departments.

Susan L. Gagner

Director of Finance/Town Accountant
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TOWN OF NORFOLK MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL PURPOSE

FINANCIAL STATEMENI'_S
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2000

TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR' S REPORTS
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FINANCES

John J.  O' Brien TeL 781- 878- 0770

Certified Public Accountant
Fax. 781- 982- 8108

P G. Box 2219

231 Centre Avenue

Abington, MA 02351

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR' S REPORT ON GENERAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Honorable Board of Selectmen
Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts

I have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the Town of Norfolk,
Massachusetts as of and for the year ended June 30, 2000, as listed in the Table of Contents.
These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the Town of Norfolk,
Massachusetts' management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose
financial statements based on my audit,

I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general
purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis,. evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial
statements.   An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial
statement presentation. I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In as much as the Commonwealth of Massachusetts does not require the capitalization of fixed
assets, the Town has not maintained complete historical cos records of its general fixed assets.
Accordingly, except for the enterprise fund, a statement of general fixed assets. required by
generally accepted accounting principles, is not included in the financial statements. The amount
that should be recorded in the general fixed assets account group cannot be reasonably
determined.

As described in Note Id to the financial statements, the Town does not accumulate the dollar
amount of vacation and sick leave earned by its employees during the year and accumulated at
year- end.  Generally accepted accounting principles require that such amounts, if material, be
recorded as a liability in the general purpose financial statements.

In my opinion, except, for the effect of the matters discussed in paragraphs 3 and 4, the generalpurpose financial statements referred to above, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Town of.Norfolk, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2000, and the results of its
operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types and non- expendable trust funds for the
year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

1-
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Board of Selectmen, Norfolk, Massachusetts
November 30, 2000

Tide endent Auditor' s Re ort( continued)

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report datedNovember 30, 2000, on our consideration of the Town of Norfolk Massachusetts' internal. controlover financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,regulations, contracts and grants.

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financialstatements taken as a whole.  

The Schedule of Treasurer' s Cash, and Schedule of Taxes, for theyear then ended June 30, 2000, on pages 21 and 22, are presented for purposes of additionalanalysis,  and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements.information has been, subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the generalpurpose financial statements and, in my opinion, except for the matters described in paragraphs 3and 4, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financialstatements taken as a whole,

John J O' Brien C.P.A.
November 30, 2000

2-
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John J.  O' Brien
FINANCES

Certified Public Accountant
Tel. 781- 878- 0770

Fax. 781- 982-8108
F? O. Box 2219

231 Centre Avenue
Abington, MA 02351

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR' S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Board of Selectmen
Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts

I have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Town of Norfolk. Massachusetts as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2000, and have issued my report thereon dated November 30.
2000.  I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts'
general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts,   However, providing an opinion on complianc., with those provisions was not an
objective of my audit and, accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit, I considered the Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts' internal
control over financial reporting in order to determine my auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing my opinion on the general purpose financial statements, and not to provide assurance
on the internal control over financial reporting.   My consideration of the internal control over
financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial
reporting that might be material weaknesses.  A material weakness is a condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level, the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to
the general purpose financial statements, being audited, may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. I noted

3-
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Board of Selectmen, Norfolk, Massachusetts
November 30, 2000

hrternal Control over Financial Reporting( continued)

no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that I consider
to be material weaknesses.  However, 1 noted other matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting that I have reported to the management of the Town of Norfolk,
Massachusetts, in a separate letter dated November 30, 2000.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management,
and others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Jrr u- 75"-® ( 3A;.12,,,...   ceA

John J. O' Brien, CFA
November 30, 2000

4-
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FINANCES

Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2000

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

FIDUCIARY

FUND TYPE-    TOTAL

SPECIAL CAPITAL EXPENDABLE       ( MEMORANDUM
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS TRUST ONLY) 2000

REVENUES:

Property Taxes 11, 107, 503       $       - 11, 107, 503
Intergovenmental Revenue 4, 488A22 482, 671 4, 971, 093
Licenses, Fees& Permits 384, 638 384,638
Investment Interest 287, 604 34, 330 41, 009 363,003
Excise Taxes 1, 030,098 1, 030,098
User Charges 219,896 902, 286 1, 122, 182
Intergovernmental Programs 245,212 245,212
Other 8, 351 34, 434 376,359 419, 144

Total Revenue 17, 771, 784 S 1, 453, 721       $ 417, 368       $     19, 642,873

EXPENDITURES:

Education and Libraries 10, 387,688      $   777, 417       $ 11, 165, 105
General Government 1, 058,607 275,545 1, 334, 152
Public Works 1, 186, 912 3, 826 1, 190,738
Protection of Person& Property 1, 986,549 89, 702 2, 076, 251
Human Services 228,486 228,466
State& County Assessments 383,762 383,762
Debt Service 1, 239,216 1, 239,216
Recreation 45, 616 115, 089 160, 705
Pension& Insurance 1, 109, 700 1, 109,700
Intergovernmental Programs 245, 212 245,212
Capital Expenditures 1, 137, 553 1, 137,553

Total Expenditures 17, 871, 728      $  1, 261, 579       $  1, 137, 553       $  20, 270, 860

Excess( deficiency) of
Revenue over Expenditures 99, 944)   192, 142 1, 137,553)     417, 368 627,987)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Transfer( To) From Other Funds 22, 148)  116, 453)   101, 756 36, 845

Total Other Financing Sources
Uses)       22, 148)      $   ( 116,453)      $    101, 756       $      38, 845       $   

Excess( deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures and Other

Financing Sources 122, 092)    75, 689 1, 035, 797)     454, 213 627,987)

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 2, 312,476 398, 901 2, 361, 913 769,852 5,843, 142

Fund Balance at End of Year 2, 190,384       $   474, 590       $  1, 326,116       $    1, 224,065       $      5,215, 155

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an Integral part of this statement,

6-
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FINANCES.
Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual( Non- GAAP Budgetary Basis)

General Fund Year Ended June 30, 2000

Variance Totals
Favorable Memorandum

Budget Actual Unfavorable)  Only) 2000
REVENUES:

Property Taxes 11, 229,571 11, 114, 016       $     ( 115, 555)       $  11, 114,016
Intergovernmental Revenue 4, 225, 662 4, 488, 422 262,760 4,488,422
Licenses, Fees& Permits 350, 000 384, 638 34, 638 384,638
Investment Interest 210, 000 287, 664 77, 664 287,664
Excise Taxes 950,000 1, 030, 098 80,098 1, 030,098
User Charges 216, 100 219, 896 3, 796 219,896
Other 8, 351 8, 351 8, 351

Total Revenue 17, 181, 333 17,533, 085 467,307       $   17,533,085

EXPENDITURES:

Education& Libraries 10,884, 953 10,589, 475       $     ( 295,478)       $   10,589, 475
General Government 1, 264, 133 1, 003, 995 260, 138)    1, 003, 995
Public Works 1, 311, 983 1, 190, 397 121, 586)    1, 190,397
Protection of Person& Property 2, 166,202 2,062, 753 103, 449)    2,062, 753
Human Services 244, 886 229, 353 15, 533)     229,353

State& County Assessments 383,762 383, 762 383, 762
Debt Service 1, 266,505 1, 239, 074 27,431)    1, 239, 074
Recreation 46,608 43, 510 3, 098)       43, 510
Pension& Insurance 1, 142,634 1, 096, 849 45,785)    1, 096,849

Total Expenditures 18, 711, 666 17,839, 168       $     ( 872,498)       $   17,839, 168

Excess( deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenditures 1, 530,333) 306,083)       $    1, 339,805       $     ( 306,083)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES( USES):

Transfer( To) From Other Funds 22, 148)       22, 148)    22, 148)
Other Available Funds 1, 552,481 1, 552, 481 1, 552,481

Total Other Financing
Sources( Uses)       1, 530,333 1, 530, 333       $  1, 530,333

Excess( deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources Over Expenditures and
Other Uses 1, 224, 250       $    1, 339,805       $    1, 224, 250

1

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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FINANCES

Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses,

and Changes in Retained Earnings and Fund Balances
Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2000

Proprietary Fund Total
Type- Water Non- Expendable Memorandum

Enterprise Trust Fund Only) 2000
OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for services 686, 045 686, 045
Other income 6, 089 6, 089

Total Operating Revenues 692, 134 692, 134

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries& Wages 161, 946 161, 946Maintenance& Operations 157, 326 157, 326Materials& Supplies 1, 996 1, 996Depreciation 197, 498 197, 498Indirect& Admin Costs 55, 128
55, 128

Total Operating Expenses 573, 894 573, 894

Operating Income 118, 240 118, 240

NON- OPERATING REVENUE
EXPENSES):

Investment Income 54, 814 2, 800 57,614

Interest Expense 101, 851)      
101, 851)

Net Non- Operating
Revenues/ Expenses 47,037)   2,800 44, 237)

Operating transfers from other funds
Operating transfers to other funds

Net Operating Transfers

Net Income/ Loss 71, 203 2, 800 74, 003Depreciation- Other Contributed 24, 437
Capital 24, 437

Increase Retained Earnings/ Fund
Balance:

95, 640 2, 800 98, 440

Beginning of Year 1, 167, 819 44, 548 1, 212, 367

End of Year
1, 263,459 47, 348 1, 310, 807

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts
Combined Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2000

Proorietary Fund Totals
Type- Water Non- Expendable       ( Memorandum

Enterprise Trust Fund Only) 2000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:

Operating Income 118, 240      $  118,240
Adjustments to reconcile net

income to net cash flows from

operating activities:

Depreciation:

Current Year 197, 498 197, 498
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 69,764) 69,764)
Increase) Decrease in. Betterments Rec.      98,594 98, 694

Increase( Decrease) in Accounts Payable 15,954) 15,954)
Increase( Decrease) in Deferred Betterments 98,694) 98, 694)

Net cash provided( used)- operating activities 230,020 230,020

CASH FLOWS FROM NON- CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Operating transfers from other funds
Operating transfers to other funds

Retirements and Adjustments to Property 9,291 9, 291 1

Net cash provided( used) from non-capital I
financing activities 9, 291 9, 491

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:       1

Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets 252, 681) 252, 681)  j '
Proceeds from Bond Anticipation Notes d,

Principal Paid on Bonds and Notes 167,000) 167,000)  
Interest Paid on Bonds and Notes 101, 851) 101, 851)  

f,
Net cash provided( used) from capital b
financing activities 521, 532) 521, 532)  1,',

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:   Asir
i

t Investment income 54,795 2,800 57, 595
l -'

I

Net cash provided( used) from investing i4
activities 54,795 2, 800 57,595

g   Net Increase( decrease) In cash 227,426)      2, 800 224, 626)  

14ytJ'  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
BEGINNING OF YEAR 1, 179,747 44,548 1, 224, 295 It' 4

I;   END OF YEAR 952, 321      $      47,348       $     999,669 If

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES:

Noncash financing transactions:   I{ l 4
Capital Assets Contributed by Developers 744, 519 744519

It

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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FINANCES

Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2000

I)   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting policies and financial reporting practices for municipalities in Massachusetts are
prescribed by the Uniform Municipal Accounting System  ( UMAS)  promulgated by the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Revenue.   The significant accounting policies
followed by the Town are as follows:

a) Financial Reporting Entity

The Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts ( the" Town") reporting entity consists of all significant funds,
account groups, agencies, boards, commissions, and authorities over which the Town exercises
oversight responsibility except for General Fixed Assets.  Oversight responsibility was determined on
the basis of financial interdependence, selection of a governing authority designation of management,
ability to significantly influence operations, accountability for fiscal matters and scope of public
service.

b) Fund Accounting

Financial transactions of the Town are recorded in the following funds or account groups:
1)  The General Fund reflects the financial transactions related to general government activities

which are not otherwise accounted for in another find.

Included within the General Fund are the unreserved fund balance and reserve for abatement and
exemption surplus:

The unreserved fund balance is the amount by which unrestricted cash, accounts receivable and
other assets exceed liabilities and reserves.

2) Special Revenue Funds account for proceeds of specific revenue sources ( other than special
assessments, expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures
for specific purposes. These sources include gifts and grants from outside sources which must be
expended in accordance with the provisions of the grants, and funds related to specific activities of
the Town.  These funds are available to fund future operations as prescribed by the Town.

3)  

The Capital Projects Funds account for the acquisition of capital facilities is financed in whole, orin part, by long—term debt,  Capital facilities financed through tax levies, are reflected as
expenditures in the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Transfers and Expenditures.

4)  

The Proprietary Fund, or Water Enterprise Fund, is accounted for using the economic resources
focus; the accounting objectives include determination of net income, financial position, and cash
flows. All assets and liabilities associated with a proprietary fund' s activities, are included on itsbalance sheet.   Proprietary fund equity is segregated into contributed capital and retainedearnings,

5)  

The Trust and Agency Funds account for money and securities received and held by the Town as
trustee or custodian for individuals, private organizations, and other governmental agencies.
Trust Funds are classified as expendable or nonexpendable depending on whether the principal
portion of the fund balance may be expended ( expendable), or whether only investment incomemay be used( nonexpendable).

10-
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FINANCES

Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2000

1)  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES( continued)

6)  The General Long-Term Debt Obligation Group of Accounts( Note 5) includes the liabilities for
long- term debt.  The balance payable on long- term debt is offset by resources to be provided
through taxation in future years for the retirement of unmatured bona;;.

c)   Accounting for Revenues

Revenues in the governmental fund types ( General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital

Projects Funds) are accounted for using a modified accrual basis whereby the receipts during the
July 1 to August 31 period that are allocable to the pt; ceding fiscal year are reflected as revenue
for that year.

d)   Accounting for Expenditures

Disbursements for material and supply inventories are considered expenditures at the time of
payment , and are not deferred or amortized.  Interest cost is recognized when due and is not

accrued over time. The repayment of long-term debt principal is recorded as an expenditure of
the General Fund. The Town' s policy is to recognize vacation and sick pay during the accounting
period, in which the payments are made. These amounts have not been accrued at the end of the

fiscal year.

e)   Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is used for the governmental funds. Encumbrances are recorded when
funds are appropriated , but not considered to be expenditures until liabilities for payments are
incurred.  Encumbrances are recorded as a reservation of fund balance on the balance sheet.
Encumbrances do not lapse at the close of the fiscal year, but are carried forward until liquidated.

1)   Accounting for Fixed Assets

Through June 30, 2000 the Department of Revenue did not require the recording of fixed assets in
the general ledger.  Accordingly, except for the Enterprise Fund, the Town does not recognize
general fund fixed assets in an asset account in the Town' s general ledger at the time of
acquisition, but expenses the assets when purchased.

g)  Budgetary Basis of Accounting

The Town must establish its property tax rate each year so that the resulting property tax levy will
comply with the limits required by Proposition 2 ''/ s, and also constitute the amount which will
equal the sum of a) the aggregate of all annual appropriations for expenditures, state and county
assessments, and transfers, plus b) provision for prior fiscal year' s deficits, if any, less c) the
aggregate of all non-property tax revenues and transfers projected to be received by the Town,
including available funds.

The Town' s budgets for all departments and operations of the Town, are prepared by the different
department heads, and presented to the Finance Committee.  The Finance Committee then

presents its recommendations on the budget at the Town Meeting.  Original and supplemental
appropriations are also acted upon by the Town Meeting Vote,
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s" INANCES

Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2000

I)    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES( continued)

h) Budgetary— GAAP Reporting Reconciliation

Accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ from
those used to present financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accountingprinciples ( GAAP).  A reconciliation of budgetary- basis to GAAP-basis results is presented
below:

Revenues Expenditures
As Reported on a Budgetary Basis 17, 533, 085 17, 839, 168

To Record Revenue on a Modified 6, 512)

Accrual Basis of Accounting
To Record 1999 Encumbrances and
Continuing Appropriations Paid in 2000 747, 276
To Eliminate 2000 Encumbrances
And Continued Appropriations 959, 927)

Payments made by the Commonwealth
of Massachusetts for Town employees
covered by the Mass Teachers'
Retirement Board,      245, 211 245, 211

As Reported on a GAAP Basis 17, 771, 784 17, 871, 728

Massachusetts' law does not require preparation of a budget for grants, accounted for in the
Special Revenue Funds, Since such grants are not budgeted, a budgetary comparison with actual
results of operations is not presented,

i)  ) teal and Personal Property Taxes

Real and personal property taxes are based on values as of each January 1'`, and are billed in
quarterly installments.  By law, all taxable property in the Commonwealth must be assessed at r.100% 

of fair cash value.  Taxes due and unpaid, alter the respective due dates, are subject to
interest and penalties. The Town has an ultimate right to foreclose on property, for which taxesr.have not yet been paid.  Levied property taxes, are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year of flevy.  Property tax revenues are recorded in accordance with the modified accrual basis ofaccounting described in Note 1( c).

A statewide limitation statute known as " Proposition 2 % 4" limits the property tax levy to anamount equal to 2%%
of the value of all taxable property in the Town. A secondary limitation is

that no levy, in a fiscal year, may exceed the preceding year' s allowable tax levy by more than 24%, 
plus taxes levied on certain property,newly added to the tax rolls.  Certain Proposition 2 %,     r'taxing limitations can be overridden by a Town-wide referendum vote. is
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Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2000

1)   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES( continued)

j)   Total Columns on Combined Statements

Total columns on the combined statements are captioned " memorandum only" to indicate that
they are presented only to facilitate analysis.  Data in these columns clo not present financial
position, results of operations, or changes in cash flows in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations
have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

k)  Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the
financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

2)  DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The Town' s deposits include cash and temporary investments that are available for use by ali funds. hi
addition, operating cash and investments are separately held by various funds of the Town, Each fund
type' s portion of cash and temporary, investments are presented on the combined balance sheet under
Governmental Fund Types" as pooled cash and cash equivalents.

a)  Cash

At year end, the carrying amount of the Town' s deposits of $ 3, 038 differed from bank balances
totaling$ 62, 409 because of outstanding checks and other normal reconciling items. The Town' s
total deposits in financial institutions at year-end were $ 3, 038, of which the entire amount was
covered by Federal Depository Insurance.

b)  Temporary Investments

State statutes authorize the Town to invest public funds in term deposits or certificates of deposit,
in trust companies, national banks, savings banks or banking companies, or in obligations issued
or unconditionally guaranteed by the United States Government, or any agency thereof, and
having a maturity of less than one year.  The statutes also authorize the Town to invest in
repurchase agreements, and in participation units in a combined investment fund

Funds that are the result of a grant, gift or trust must be invested in accordance with the terms of
such grant, gift or trust. Trust funds can be placed in interest-bearing accounts at stational banks
or at savings, trust or FDIC banking companies which are incorporated under the haws of the
Commonwealth, Funds can also be invested in participation units in a combined investment fund,
or in bonds, notes or securities which are legal investments for savings banks.

The Town' s temporary investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk
assumed by the Town at year end.

Category 1 — Insured or collateralized with securities held by the ' town, or by its agent in the
Town' s name.

Category 2 — Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution' s trust
department or agent in the Town' s name.

13-
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FINANCES

Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2000

2)  DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIQNS( continued)

Category 3 tincollateralized.

Funds on deposit with the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust cannot be classified above,
therefore they have been classified in an uncategorized category.

b) Temporary Investments

Categnry
Carrying Deposit

1 3 Amount Balance

Money Market and

Certificates of

Deposit 2, 378, 929' $   3, 067, 856 5, 446, 785   $   5, 446, 785

Pooled Investments

tlncategorized 1, 315, 718 1, 315, 718

TOTAL 2, 378, 929  $   3, 067, 856 6, 762, 503   $   6, 762,503

3)   PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT---ENTERPRISE FUND

Property, plant and equipment of the Enterprise Fund is stated at historical cost.  A summary of
changes in property, plant and equipment for the water department for the year ended June 30, 2000, is
as follows:

Accton Depr
Asset Cost 7/ 1/ 99 Additions Retired Cost 6/30/ 00 6/ 30/ 00

Land 455, 258 220, 994 676, 252
Buildings 177, 558 177,558 47, 152
Mains 9, 185, 204 641, 686 9, 826, 890 1, 604,928
Valves 522, 360 39,201 561, 561 114, 084
Wells 215, 409 215, 409 65, 868
Standpipes 356, 855 356, 855 96,351
Equipment 282,465 282, 465 153, 707
Laterals 1, 085, 272 48,269 5, 643 1, 127,898 299, 395
Meters 115, 131 7,000 3, 648 118, 483 65, 843
Hydrants 728, 052 34, 077 762, 129 174, 906
Vehicles 29, 535 29, 535 27,973
Furn& Fixt 10, 159 10, 159 5, 632

TOTALS 13, 163, 258 991, 227 9, 291 14, 145, 194 2, 655, 839

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET:   11. 489, 355  .
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FINANCES.

Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2000

3)  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT—ENTERPRISE FUND ( continued)

Depreciation is calculated on these assets using a straight- line method, with the following lives:

Life Assets

100 years Mains— except A/C pipe

50 years Mains/AC pipe, valves, standpipes, service ic,ierats, buildings, and
hydrants

30 years Wells

25 years
Equipment

50 years Building improvements
15 years Meters

6 years Vehicles

5 years Furniture and fixtures

4)  RETIREMENT PLANS

TOAD n employees except teaching staff.

Plan description:

The Town' s full-time employees, except for School Department teaching staff, participate in the
Norfolk County Retirement System(" System" or" NCRS"), a. cost- sharing, multiple- employer public

employee retirement system, administered by the Norfolk County Retirement Board, The NCRS plan
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and health benefits to the
plan members and beneficiaries as allowed by Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws, as
amended.  The Norfolk Coutity Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report, that
may be obtained by writing to the Norfolk County Retirement Board.

Funding policy:

Covered employees are requiredemployment.tbyo state
statute

thoseute
employees hired

toredp/ of their

Decemberesldepending
pendia

4
upon the employee' s date of p

additional 2% of their salary in excess of$ 30,000 must he contributed to the plan.  For fiscal year
2000, the Town' s annual contribution was determined by thr. State Division of Employee RetirementAdministration( PERA), in accordance with Chapter 32, Section 22D. The Town' s contribution to the
NCRS for the years ended June 30, 2000, 

1999, and 1998 were$ 486, 835, $ 463, 179, $ 464, 977, and

respectively. For each year, the amount contributed represented 100% of the required amount.
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FINANCES

Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2000

4)  RETIREMENT PLANS( continued)

Teaching staff, only.

Plan description:

The Teaching staff of the Town are covered by the Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement SystemMTRS). 

The Town is not legally required to contribute to the MTRS. MTRS is fully funded by theCommonwealth of Massachusetts, and by contributions from covered employees.  All full- timeteaching staff are covered by, and must participate in MTRS. Benefits fully vest after 10 years of full-time employment, An employee may receive retirement benefits after 20 years of service, or after 10years of service and having attained the age of 55,

Funding policy:

Covered employees are required by state statute to contribute 5% to 9% of their salaries, dependingupon the employee' s date of employment,  
For those employees hired after December 31, 1978, anadditional 2% of their salary in excess of $ 30, 000 must be contributed to the plan.   TheCommonwealth of Massachusetts is required to make actuarially determined contributions to maintainthe financial integrity, of the retirement system.

In June 1994, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, in its capacity as the standards settingorganization for stale and local governments, issued Statement No. 24, Accounting and FinancialReporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Au/stance.  Statement No. 24, which becameeffective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, established accounting and reporting standards for,among other items, payments made by a third party on behalf of a state or local government,particularly for fringe benefits and salaries.  As applied to the Town, this standard requires therecognition of a revenue and an expenditure, in equal amounts, for the payments made by theCommonwealth of Massachusetts, to the Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement System, attributable toservices performed by Town employees and retirees who participate in that retirement system.  Theamount of current funding by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts is$ 245, 212 for fiscal year 2000,paid to the Mass Teachers' Retirement System on behalf of Town employees.
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Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2000

5)  GENERAL LONG- TERM DEBT GROUP OF ACCOUNTS

The Town' s outstanding long- term debt as of June 30, 2000 is composed of:

Balance

Date of Outstanding at
Purpose Date of Issue Maturity Interest Rate June 30, 2000

Water Mains:

Noon Hill 1/ 15/ 93 2013 4. 90- 6.00% 881, 000

Pond Street. Various Various 4. 10- 6. 00% 179,000

Dedham Street 211/ 96 2009 4. 10- 4. 90% 148, 000

Leland Street 2/ 1/ 96 2009 4. 10- 490%  55, 000

Harlow Street 2/ 1/ 96 2009 4. 1( 1- 4. 90%  58, 00(1

Union Street 7/ 15/ 99 2019 4. 80- 5. 00% 468, 000

Total Enterprise Fund 1, 789, 000

School Debt:

Land Purchase 1/ 15/ 93 2011 4, 90- 6. 00% 252, 000

School Roof 1/ 15/ 93 2011 4. 90- 6. 00% 155, 000

Construction Various Various 4, 10- 6, 00%       6, 178, 000

School Remodel 11/ 15/ 97 2005 4, 50- 6. 75%  39, 000

Other:

Center Drainage 2/ 1/ 96 2009 4, 10- 4. 90% 476, 000

Town Hall 11/ 15/ 97 2017 5. 25- 6. 75% 918, 000

Landfill 11/ 15/ 97 2017 5. 25- 6. 75% 273, 000

Firetruck 11/ 15/ 97 2010 4. 90- 6. 75% 223, 000

Storage Tanks 11/ 15/ 97 2015 5. 20- 6. 75% 112, 000

Total General Long-Terni Debt Account Group 8, 626,000

Total Long-Term Debt 10, 415,000

Inside Debt Limit 8,353, 000

Outside Debt Limit 2, 062, 000
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FINANCES

Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2000

5)   GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT GROUP OF ACCOUNTS( continued)

Debt service on the above, for future years, consists of the following:
For the Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest TOTALS
2001 920,000  $    540, 986  $  1, 460,986
2002 920, 000 493, 977 1, 413, 977
2003 915, 000 448, 114 1, 363, 114
2004 910,000 404, 790 1, 314, 790
2005 910,000 360, 185 1, 270, 185
Thereafter 5, 840, 000 1, 335, 715 7, 175, 715

10, 415, 000  $  3, 583, 767  $ 13, 998, 767

a) Legal Debt Limit

Chapter 44, Section 10, of the Massachusetts General Laws permits the issuance of bonds up to5%

of the equalized valuation, plus an additional amount which would bring the total up to, butless than 10%
with the approval of the Emergency Finance Board. For example, at June 30, 2000,the total statutory debt limit of the Town was approximately $ 70, 753, 914, against which10, 415, 000 of the debt was outstanding applicable to such limit. The following is a computationof the legal debt margin as of June 30, 2000:

Inside Debt Outside Debt
Limit Limit TOTAL,Assessed Value

707, 539, 135Basis for Tax Rate)
Equalized Assessed

Value 707,539, 135

Debt Limit 5% of 35, 376, 957 35, 376, 957 70, 753, 914Equalized Value

Less Debt Outstanding 8, 353, 000 2, 062, 000 10,415,000

Total Legal Debt Margin 27023, 957 33 314957 60338914

The following are long-term debt transactions for fiscal year 2000.
Bonds Payable at July 1, 1999      $   8, 720,000
Debt Issued

2, 615, 000
Principal Payments 920, 000)

Bonds Payable at June 30, 2000     $$  10---   X15 000
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FINANCES

Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2000

6)  LOANS AUTHORIZED AND LOANS AUTHORIZED AND UNISSUED

Loans authorized and loans authorized and unissued consist of the following at June 30, 2000:

Fiscal Year

Purpose of Loan Authorized Authorized Unissued

Water Various 1, 318, 500 1, 318, 500

TOTALS 1,.; 8, 500 1, 318, 500

7)  NOTES PAYABLE—SHORT TERM

The following are short- term debt transactions for fiscal year 2000.

Bonds Payable at July 1, 1999      $   2, 615, 000

Debt Issued

Conversion of BANS to L-T debt       ( 2, 615, 000)

BANS Payable at June 30, 2000    $  

8)  2001 BUDGET

The Town anticipates a fiscal 2001 operating and capital budget totaling$ 20, 164, 860, which will be
financed from the following sources:

2001 Tax Levies, State Grants,
Departmental Receipts, etc.   18, 122, 965

Free Cash
393, 692

Other Available Funds
1, 648,203

TOTAL
20, 164, 860

In addition, the Town has carried forward encumbrances of$ 959, 927 from 2000 and prior years
for projects authorized by the Town Meeting but not yet completed.

9)  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Town is a defendant to a suit in the amount of $ 200, 000 relating to delay damages and
disapproved change orders in the construction of the Town' s new municipal building As Town
Counsel is uncertain as to the outcome of the suit, no provision has been made in these financial
statements.

There are also several cases pending in courts where the Tawn of Norfolk is a defendant.  In the
opinion of Town Counsel, there is no other pending litigation likely to result, either individually or in
aggregate, in final judgments against theTown that would materially affect its financial statements.
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FINANCES

Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2000

10) POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 4, the Town provides postretirement health care
and life insurance benefits, in accordance with state statutes, for all of the Town' s full- time employees
who retire from the Town on or after attaining age 55 with at least 10 years of service.  Currently, 32
retirees arc provided postretirement benefits.  The Town pays 55% of medical and life insurance

premiums for the retirees. The Town recognizes the cost of providing these benefits using the pay- as-
you- go- by method, which expenses the premiums in the year they are paid. The cost incurred in Fiscal
2000( net of retiree contributions) was$ 49, 060.

11) DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

The deficit of$ 127, 628 in the Highway Fund is the result of a timing difference, The Town expended
the funds in FY 2000, but was not reimbursed by the State until FY 2001.

l2) LANDFILL CLOSURE

In August 1993, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, in its capacity as the standards setting
organization for state and local governments, issued Statement No. 18, Accounting for Municipal
ifa.ste Landfill Closure and Poslclosure Care Costs.   Statement No. 18, which became effective for

the fiscal year ended June 30,  1994, establishes accounting and reporting requirements for
governmental units that operate or have operated solid waste landfills.  The accompanying general
purpose financial statements reflect an obligation for landfill closure and postclosure costs in
accordance with the requirements of Statement No. 18 as discussed further below.

hi accordance with regulations promulgated by the Massachusetts Department of Environmental

Protection, the Town is required to " cap" its landfill, which stopped accepting waste in 1990 and
monitor the landfill for a period up to thirty years. The constriction( capping) costs associated with
this project were complete as of the end of the current year. The Town has$ 273, 000 long- term debt as
of June 30, 2000 on this project.  The general long-term debt group of accounts also includes
postclosure monitoring costs of$ 459, 000.

Costs associated with the " capping" were paid through the issuance of long- term debt and Town
appropriation.  Postclosure costs will be funded through future appropriations of tax revenues.  The
actual costs to complete these components may be different due to the results of inflation, deflation,
effects of public bidding laws and/or changes in technology or applicable laws and regulations.
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FINANCES

Town of Norfolk, Massachusetts

Schedule of Treasurer' s Cash and Temporary Investments
June 30, 2000

Detail of Balances on June 30, 2000, by Bank:

Cash- Non- Interest Bearing

Cash on Deposit: Interest Bearing
Peoples Savings 1, 124, 196
Fleet Bank 603, 745
Sovereign Bank 914, 236
Boston Safe and Trust 1, 009, 862
Citizens Bank 444, 896
Century Bank 167,273
Bank of Canton 121, 711
Financial Investors Trust 108, 040

Mass Municipal Depository Trust 1, 315, 665
Unibank 77, 548
Mellon Bank 878,369

Total Interest Bearing 6, 765 541

Total Cash 6, 765, 541

See Independent Auditor' s Report
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FINANCES

GOVFEI?MENTA1 FTNANCIAI. SYSTEM
2x07/ 2101 10: 23: 10

Expenditure 9tiiide1ine TONN OF NOFM I
L1'.' EI. OF PETAIL 1. 0 TOFU 3. 0 FOP THE FEFION S1 JUL 01, 1999 THPDUDH JUN 30, 2000 8L520R 4' 06. 27 F0I

ANNUAL ACF MID POSTED ACT YTD POSTED REMA1f?1' 111,,
reuiee4 tc: iaet FNCUMPERED AND IN PPDCESS AND IH PPOCISS PALANCE PCT

01 f,FUFFAI. FUND

9114 700ERATOR
1100 Tf!LOFIE7

1, 00
4110

sfilAF1H20.00 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 100 -------65. 00 0. 00 06. 26 249. 97 15. 03 94 -TOTA1 : MO0EFATOP
266.0087.260. 00 250. 97 15. 03 94 ------_

5172 SEI. E6FMEN
11+: 6 SALAFIE124,156. 00
1111 SnIfFlES ENC.      

0. 00 13, 409. 78 117, 194. 50 6, 961. 50 94 ---1, 02.5. 75 0. 00 0. 00 776. 75 249. 00 75 --4026 IIOFAIO F1 IF GE FFIOF YFAPS 160. 74 0. 0014';' 7 SPECIAL ELECTION 0. 00 87. 82 72. 92 54
037

FPECI EELECS10
700. 00 0. 00 300. 00 700. 00 0. 00 1003, 000. 00 0. 00 65. 00 999. 80 2, 000. 20 33 ---4200 OFFICE SOPPLIES, 7U5LICAT' ON; 3, 800. 00 0. 004; 701 FFTf?Tlf?O AHO AGl' ERTTSII?G 79. 33 3, 136. 48 663. 52 82 --..---3,. 00. 00 0. 00 78. 97 1, 421. 831233 EDUIPMENT REPAIR 1 MAINr.    1, 000. 00 0. 00

2, 078. 17 40 -
1204 CAP.( MACHIN MENSES 0. 00 151. 24 842. 76 15 -100. 00 0. 00 0. 00 964. 44 1, 135. 56 45 -11 6 FLAGS

500. 00 0. 004214 OAFS AND SUFSE.FIFTIDIIS 5 p0
0. 00 423. 00 77. 00 84

421r'11YS[

C11
0, 00 0. 00 0. 00 4, 822. 38 177. 62 961, 700. 00 0. 00 1, 016. 75 5, 011 o 3, 311. 00-  294 --------1257FO=TACE

2, 300. 00
4239

TnASTAT,
MFETrNfS 4 DUES

0. 00 11. 44 1, 913. 14 386. 86 831 S4 0. 00 0. 00 1, 749. 335055 AFI 12r1198 uNOEDRNb UTILITY
3. 04

5, 345. 53 0. 00
a 209. 33-

11135
200 OAT OF STAFF NAVE(       891. 65 3, 120. 92 2, 224. 61 58

70; 0 OAT FT SFFND
950. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 801. 69 t

1. 00 0. 00
851. 69-  189 17427 OM 99 CARLE fV NEGfTIATIONS 8, 270. 00

0. 00 0. 00 1. 00 0 i
8005 APT 3/ T1?, OFFICE

0. 00 0. 04 6, 739. 75f ED. FAX COP 801. 42 0. 00
1, 530. 25 81

8102 001 3/ 1198 TANN WIDE CDMPUIR 50, 640. 10 0. 00
0. 00 571.

4091 230.

021 71
RC618564 ATM 99 1IROF Lk NTFSNED ASSE 0. 00 32, 329. 91 18, 310. 19 63 1

ARM 993/

TM18IR
CAMP F.  TRAIN SFE

1, 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0.00F0+      ,  19, 911. 04 0. 00
1, 500.

0010
P716 OtT6 AT19, s̀ FAEIES IIINOCIQAI! 3

0. 00 1, 093. 75 13, 8  . 70 5894. 70 0. 00 0. 00 0. 0087199 ATM 99 Ulf ROOF TRAMP HOUSE 2, 000. 00 0.003,894. 70 0
0749 I16 MOUES F0111' PO DEMOLITION 0. 00 2, 000.

0011151. 95-.
95 100

IOW: SELECTMEN
0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 151. 95743, 796. 28 0. 00

99999
15, 852. 92 187, 167. 08 56, 629. 20 76

5131 ODOISOFY PDAFO
1100 SALARIES T

4010 EXPENSES 3, 091. 00 0. 00 3, 891. 00 3, 891. 00 0, 00 1004011 MENUS EPIC. 
5, 650, 00 0. 00 2, 109. 60 r

4? 6. 46 3, 949. 83 1, 700. 17 69 --
4011 MENU

FUND 0. 00 0, 00 496. 46 0. 00 100       -90001: ADSERVEY MED
598. 54 0, 00 0. 00 0. 0010, 636, 00 0. 00 598. 54

50
6, 000. 60 8, 337. 29 2, 298 J1 78 t

5112 MUNICIPAL FINANCE
0145 I! E4? E9lIIPMFrsr

500. 00
c

1100 HE1AAlES 0. p0
164. 49335. 51 335. 51353 256. 00 679

1'3070 WPM 5FF1' If.-E 0. 40 30, 738. 32 350, 324. 92 2, 331. OB 993190 QUOIT
700. 00 0. 00 53. 00 2, 709.03a10, 500. 00 0. 00 9. 09-   1004011 MENSES Ht. 0. 00 10, 500. 00 0. 00 100380. 17 0. 00 0. 00 380. 17 0. 00 100 -

t
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FIN. N4: i S

104N OF 110RFOLr
GOVERNMENTAL

0:

23: 00
SYSTEM

Expenditure Guieeline GL520R- 1' 06. 27 PAGE

2/ 01i2np1 14:. 23: 00
LEVEL OF OE1A1l 1. 0 THRU 3. 0 FOR THE PERIOD( S1 JUL 01, 1999 THROUGH  .: LUN 30, 2000

ANNUAL ACT MTP POSTED ACT YTP POSTER REMAINING

revised ' budget ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS MANCE PCT

i.

31 GENERAL FUND

8192 MIJ ICIFAI. FINANCE aq

A20 OFFICE. SIIPPLIES, PUULICATIONS 5, 75(. 00 0. 00 1, 483. 69 5, 700. 86 49. 14

TAT EQUIPMENT REPAIR 8 MAINE.   15, 760. 00 0. 00 0. 00 11, 804. 80 3, 955. 12 74

4705 COMPUTER SERVICES 26, 200. 00 0. 00 4, 454. 94 21, 222. 27 4, 977. 73 81

1775 POSTAGE 6, 500. 00 0. 00 1, 290. 98 10, 311. 01 3, 811. 01-  158

4235 FIELD WORE - MILEAGE REIMS 450. 00 0. 00 09. 88 481, 84 31, 84-  1006
42.19 IRAVEI., MEETINGS 8 DUES 4, 130, 00 0. 00 463. 68 3, 998. 66 111. 34

8527 ATM 99 AFFRAISAL/ SERVER/ FEIN 24, 800. 00 0. 00 477. 32 24, 800, 00 0. 00 100

1732 MAINFRAME COMPUTER ATM 97 - 6 2, 430. 20 0. 00 342. 00 480. 00 1, 950. 20 19 -

10101: MIINICIFAL FINANCE 453, 356. 37 0. 00 39, 729. 32 443, 649. 21 9, 707. 16 97

Ti141 ASSESSORS
300. 00 600. 00 0. 00 100

1100 SALARIES 600. 00 0. 00

2735 REVALUATION 99 14, 000. 00 0. 00 0, 00 8, 993. 20 5, 006. 80 64

4010 EXPENSES 1, 500. 00 0. 00 480. 00 1, 036. 44 463. 56 69

TOTAL: ASSESSORS 16, 100. 00 0. 00 780. 00 10, 629. 64 5, 470. 36 66 -

5151 TOWN COUNSEL.

30? 4 LEGAL FEES 29, 500. 00 0. 00 3, 703. 86 24, 696. 55 4, 003. 45 83

ri 1091 LEGAL FEES ENC. 1, 764. 27 0. 00 0. 00 1, 764, 27 0. 00 100

0. 00 3, 283. 96 19 007. 13 5, 912. 87 76

894 LEGAL RETAINER 25, 000. 00

13( 01.: TOWN COUNSEL 56, 264. 27 0. 00 7, 067. 82 45, 547. 95 10, 716. 32 80

5152 PERSONNEL. HARD

1100 SALARIES 3, 310. 00 0. 00 3 2X30. 94 3, 230, 94 79. 06 97  --

12110.
00 1, 150. 00 0

PERSONNEL STUDY STM 98 ART 9 1, 150. 00 0. 00 0. 00
345, 00355.00 49

4010 EXPENSES 700. 00 0. 00'   60. 00

4011 EXPENSES ENC.    311.. 41 0. 00 0. 00 311. 41 0. 00 100

TOTAL: FERSONNE.L BOARD 5, 471. 41 0. 00 3, 290. 94 3, 607. 35 1, 504. 06 71 -------

51545154 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

1100 SALARIES 13, 675. 00 0, 00 09. 70 11, 397, 40 2, 277, 60 83

4414 EXPENSES3+861. 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 514. 96 1, 346. 04 65

0211 ATM 99 SFHP! H[ WRE/ Y2E CONTIN 15, 990. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0, 00 15, 990. 00 0 i

TOTAL: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 33, 526. 00 0. 00 89. 78 13, 912. 36 19, 613. 64 41 ••

5155 CONFUTER COMMITTEE
00 0, 44 0. 00 140. 44 0

4010 MINUS 100. 00
0. 00 0. 00 100. 00 0

TOTAL: COMPUTER COMMITTEE 100, 00 0. 00

5158 TAX TITLE FORECLOSURE 0. 00 13, 311, 33 4, F 88. 67 73

4010 EXPENSES   '   18, 000, 00 0. 00

TOTAL: TAX TITLE FORECLOSURE 18, 000. 00 0. 00 0'. 00 131311.: 33 4, 688. 67 73 -------

5159 TOWN HAIL. - OFERATIONS
0. 00 7, 669. 91 0. 00 100

4011 EXPENSES EMC.  7, 669. 91 0. 00
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FINANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FINANCIAL SYSTEM
a10:23:00TOWNOF MIP, 12/  

r nn7.... 01 Expenditure Guideline
GL520E- V06, 27 TO; I `LEVEL OF DETAIL 1. 0 THOU 3. 0 FOR THE PERIOD( S)  JUL 01, 1999 THROUGH JUN 30, 2000

ANNUAL ACT MID POSTED ACT YTD POSTED REMAINING
revived bu43et ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS BALANCE PCI

01 GENERAL 11100

5159 TARN HALL • KERATIN' S
4061 SERVICE CONTRACTS 5, 000, 00 0. 00 190. 00 982. 20 4, 017. 80 19 -4' 15 TELEPHONE 37, 700. 00 0. 00 2, 179. 79 32 372. 27 5, 327. 73 85 -4289 FORDING MAINTENANCE 10, 200. 00 0. 00 1,496. 03 10,650    .41 450. 41-  104 --------4! 11 CLEANING OERVFCE 11, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 9, 896. 74 1, 103. 26 890100   ; UT1. AND 0111111E5 38, 900. 00 0. 00 5, 087. 23 42, 391. 13 3, 591. 13-  1098101 0RT 3/ T149O TM EQUIP/ FURNISHO 19, 155. 59 0. 00 0. 00 11, 404. 49 7, 751. 10 5910TA1: TORN HALL - OFEPAi: ON6 179, 525. 50 0. 00 8, 953. 05 115, 367. 15 14, 158. 35 89

5161 Til=IN CCPR
1100   " ALAE IFS 53, 197. 003, 197. 00 0. 00 5, 637. 62 53, 194. 03 2. 97 99 -4010 EXPENSES 2, 800. 00 0. 00 380. 96 2, 579. 81 220. 19 92TOTAL: TONT! LIFO 55, 997. 00 0. 00 6, 018. 58 55, 773. 84 223. 16 .   99

5162 ELECTIONS
1100 SALARIES 3, 321. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 321. 00 0. 00 1001010 EXPENSES 4, 675. 00 0. 00 8. 58 4,008    .58 666. 42 85 I4011 E?. FENSFS ENC. 1, 633. 42 0. 00 0. 00 1, 633. 42 0. 00 100 -11027SPECIAL ELECTION EXPENSE 8, 299. 69 0. 00 4, 385. 49 7, 621. 32 678. 37 91TOTAL: FIFCIIANS 17, 929. 11 0. 00 4, 394. 07 16, 564. 32 1, 344. 79 92 -------   1

5163 VOTER REOISIRAT[ ON
1100 SAI. ARIES 750. 00 0. 00
4010 EXPENSES 2

250, OQ 509. 04 240. 96 67

TOTAL: VOTER. REGISTRATION
6, 50. 00 0. 00 333. 73 5, 638. 74 611. 26 907, 000. 00 0. 00 583. 73 6, 147. 78 852. 22 87 1

5171 CONSERVATION COMMISSION
1100 SALARIES 15, 229. 00 0. 00 1, 533. 48 14, 621. 89 607. 11 963021 WETLANDS PROTECTION EXP,     1253. 17
4010 EXPENSES

0. 00 132. 77 698. 75 554. 42 55 -1, 187. 00 0. 00 117. 14 1, 026. 73 2 1'4011 EXPENSES THC. 3, 049. 45 3, 160. 7 24
f

8012

EX

s   ,    
0. 00 0. 00 3, 048. 45 0. 00 100LM ERLAIIOT FUND 15, 589. 04 0. 00 0. 00TOTAL: CONSERVATION rOMIIISSIOII 39, 306. 66

439. 73 15, 149. 312
0. 00 1, 783. 39 19, 835. 55 19, 471. 1111 50

115 TI. ANNING BOOED I

1100 SALARIES 37, 146, 00 0. 00 q 589,3035 ART 9JTM98 GROWTH M: JMT STOGY 10, 000. 00 0. 00 0

00 37, 124. 80 21 90
3038 PLANNING SERVICES5 00 0. 00 14, 00 . OQ 050, 135. 78 0. 00 5, 845. 00 20, 820. 78 29, 315. 00 41 -3060 ENGINEERING SERVICES 9, 243. 80 0. 00 0. 00 3, 879. 26 5, 364. 54 41 ----
31161.   ENGINEERING FMC.     x, 948, 44 0. 001010 EXPENSES 0. 60 4, 41 . 42 529. 07.     7405,200. 00 0. 00 373. 30 2, 776. 492,423. 51 53 -8, 43 STREET ACCEPTANCES ATM 97- 22 2, 052. 79
TOTAL:       TNG Wm

0, 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 052. 79 0119, 726. 81 0. 00 10, 807. 90 69, 0220. 75 50, 706. 06 57 ----••
5176 2U1IING/ APPEALS POARD

i1140 SPECIFIES
16, 913. 00 0. 00 2, 250, 42 16, 818. 2694.74 99       ..--   `

i
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r,0:' pR11HFNIAI_ FINANCIAL- SYSIEM TOWN OF NORFMIL)

207/ 2001 10: 23: 0('       Expenditure Guideline 0157OF- V06. 27 FARE

MEL OF 9F TAIL 1. 0 THRU 3. 0 FOR THE PERIOD( S)  JUL 01, 1999 THROUGH JUN 30, 2000

ANNUAL ACT MTD FASTED ACT YIP FASTED TTMAINIHG

re'; isel hu40et ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS MANCE PCT

71 GENERAL FII) IO

5176 Pm41NG/ APPEALS EOAPO

1060 ENGINEERING 5FEVIL:FS 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1. 00 0

C19 EXPENSES 2, 095. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 357, 90 737, 02 64 --.._.-

1n14: 7081@G/ APPEALS BOARD 19, 009. 00 0. 00 2, 250, 42.       18, 176. 24 032. 76 95 ---------

5191 ENGINEERING SERVICES

060 FCG1( 1FERING SERVICES 950. 00 0. 00 0, 00 0, 00 950. 00 0

MI: ENGINEERING SERVICES 950. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 350. 00 6'

5( P9 FERMANE.NI EUILOIHG COMM.

1100 SALARIES 6, 1' 3. 00 0. 00 706. 08 4, 932. 68 1. 710. 32 23

1010 EXPENSES 600. 00 0. 00 241, 93 309. 37 210, 63 64

4011 FXFE(' SES ENC.     39. 99 0. 00 0. 00 79 V4 0. 00 100 -  -

8742   ; PRIOR CENTER DESIGN AIM 97 46, 421. 35 0. 00 0. 00 43, 053. 57 3, 362. 78 92

IOlfd: PERMANENT 81111 DING COMM.    53, 734. 34 0. 00 948. 81 48, 415. 61 5, 318. 73 90 ---------

M3 RLOA/ L108ILITT INSURANCE

7100 EIITI. DING/ LIABILITY INSURANCE 118, 257. 00 0, 00 5, 587. 20 118, 045. 34 211, 66 99

10101: SLOG/ LIABILITY INSURANCE 10, 257. 00 0. 00 5, 587, 20 118, 045. 34 211. 66 99

5195 TURN REPORTS

3170 PRINTING 5, 066. 00 0. 00 0. 00 5, 058. 79 7. 21

9910TA1: TONH REPORTS 5, 066. 00 0. 00 0. 00 5, 058. 79 7. 21 99

5210 POLICE

1100 SALARIES 1, 026, 072. 00 0. 00 112, 042. 32 979, 572, 54 46, 499. 46 95

1101 SALARIES ENC. 41, 965. 19 0. 00 410. 54 21, 972. 09 19, 993. 10 52 .._.--

4010 EXPENSES 80, 566. 00 0. 00 12, 558, 56 78, 992. 14 1, 573. 86 90 ---------

101110111 EXPENSES ENC.  4, 090. 07 0. 00 0. 00 4, 067. 94 22. 13 99 ---------

95958595 POLICE CFLIISEF 55, 056. 00 0. 00 0. 00 55, 017. 99 38. 01 99

0597 A1M 99 MOBILE. VIDEO CAMERAS 11, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 11, 000. 00 0

8715 APT6 ATM95 HEPATITIS TNNOCUL 700. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 700. 00 0

0735 MOBILE DATA TERMINALS ATM 97 7, 194. 00 0. 00 0, 00 0. 00 7, 194. 00 0

10101.: POLICE 1, 226, 643. 26 0. 00 125, 011. 42 1, 139, 622. 70 87, 020. 56 92 -------..

5220 FIRE
1100 SALARIES 320, 297. 00 0. 00 30, 928. 13 318, 183, 23 2, 113. 77 99

4010 EXPENSES 41, 370. 00 0, 00 4, 176. 95 37, 904. 91 3, 465. 09 91

4011 EXPENSES ENC.    290. 99 0. 00 0. 00 290. 69 0, 30 99

5055 ATM 99 FIRE S1111108 FEASA91. 1 10, 000. 00 0. 00 1, 500. 00 1, 500. 00       . 8, 500. 00 15 -

B549 ATM 99 COPY MACHINE 5, 784. 00 0. 00 29. 05 5, 704. 00 0. 00 100

1550 ACM 99 AIM 99 FOAM liMIT 1, 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 500. 00 0, 00 100

8551 ATM 99 INS 2 FESCUE FAUIF 5, 000. 00 0. 00 345. 00 4, 999. 29 0. 71 99

157i5 ART 3/ TM9R HEPATITIS SHOTS 7, 125. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 7, 425, 00 0

3576 FIRE COMMUNICATION SYS 9618 337. 72 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 337. 72 0

3512 ART : 3/ 1898 ICF./ MATER RESCUE 843. 80 0. 00 0. 0('  832. 20 11. 60 98
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FINANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FINANCIAL SYSTEM TOWN OF NORFBII
2/ 07/ 2031 10: 23: 40 Expenditure Guideline GL5208- V06. 27 NI

1E0E1 AT PETAH. 1. 0 TUG 3. 0 TOR THE PERIODIS)  JUL 01, 1999 THROUGH JUN 30, 2000

ANNUAL ACT MEG POSTED ACT YID POSTED REMAINING
reeked t•edget ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS BALANCE FCT

01 GENERA! FUND

TOTAL: FIRE 392, 940, 51 0. 00 36, 979. 13 370, 994. 32 21, 854. 19 94

5?: 31 AMBULANCE SERVICE
1100 SALARIES 68, 664. 00 0. 00 8, 568. 77 67, 381, 41 1, 282. 59 98 ---••-----  }
3120 TRAINING 0110 1311100 23, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 22, 996. 00 4. 00 99 ---------  ;
3121 TRAMPS ANT' 11111101! ENCUM' D 2, 157. 19 0. 00 0. 00 2, 124. 94 32. 25 98
4010 EXPENSES 8, 050. 00 0. 00 631. 72 7, 911. 90 135. 10 98 ----------
4011 EXPENSES ENC.   120, 00 0. 00 0. 00 120. 00 0. 00 100
TOTAL: AMBULANCE SERVICE 101, 991. 19 0. 00 9, 200. 49 100, 537. 25 1, 453. 94 98

5241 PIIILDIHG DEPARTMENT

1100 SALARIES 129, 848. 00 0. 00 13, 727. 91 129, 761. 04 ,  86. 96 99
4010 EXPENSES 2, 785. 00 0. 00 433. 14 2, 570. 32 214. 68 92
4202 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 300. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 300. 00 0
4800 FUEL AND UTILITIES 1, 400. 00 0. 00 1, 169. 93 1, 593. 18 193. 18-  113 I

4801 FUEL/ UTILITIFS ENC.     150. 00 0. 00 0. 00 150. 00 0. 00 100
TOTAL: BUILDING DEPARTMENT 134, 483. 00 0. 00 15, 330. 98 134, 074. 54 408. 46 99 d

p4
5244 1! EIGHTS AND MEASURES
1100 SALARIES 525. 00 0. 00 525. 00 525. 00 0. 00 100
4010 EXPENSES 31. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 31. 00 0
10101: WEIGHTS AND MEASURES 556. 00 0. 00 525. 00 525. 00 31, 00 94

5291 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
1100 SALARIES 599. 00 0. 00 599. 00 599. 00 0. 00 1004310 EXPENSES 1, 810. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 870. 00 0TO1A1 : EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 2, 469. 00 0. 00 599. 00 599. 00 1, 870. 00 24 --

5292 ANIMAL INSPECTOR
1100 SALARIES 1, 863. 00 0. 00 155. 25 1, 863. 00 0. 00 100 -- 

Y
4010 EXPENSES 100. 00 0, 00 0. 00 0. 00       •   100. 00 010101: ANIMAL INSPECTOR 1, 963. 00 0. 00 155. 25 1, 863. 00 100. 00 94

5293 ANIMAL CONTROL
1100 SALARIES 11, 590. 00 0. 00 965. 83 11, 590. 00 0. 00 100401.0 EXPENSES 2, 040. 00 0. 00 0, 00 2, 014. 90 25. 10 98 --•- r'4011 EXPENSES ENC,    77. 97 0. 00 0. 00 77. 97 0. 00 100TOTAL: ANIMAL CONTROL 13, 707. 97 0. 00 965. 83 13, 682. 87 25. 10 99 F

5294 SHADE. TREE DEPARTMENT
4010 EXPENSES 1, 500, 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 500. 00 0. 00 1004011 EXPENSES ENC.   750, 00 0. 00 0. 00 750. 00 0. 00 100TOTAL; SHAGS THE PEFAPTMENT 2, 250. 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 250. 00 0. 00 100

5295 FREEWARDENA..
1100 SALARIES 2, 832. 89 0.. 00 750. 00       . 2, 032. 89 0. 00 100 ----•       , X
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i0VFRNHE! 1AL FINANCIAL SYSTEM TOWN OF NOOFOLI

2In172001 10: 223: 00 Expenditure Guideline 015200- 806. 27 FADE

IF9E1. OF DETAIL 1. 0 TNRU 3, 0 FOR THE PERIODS)  JUL 01, 1999 THROUGH JON 30, 2000

ANNUAL ACT MID POSTED ACT YTD POSTED REMAINING
revised hedget ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS BALANCE PCI

01 GENERAL FUND

529`   i`. EE WARDEN
4010 E1TEHSE9 22, 067. 11 0. 00 4, 960. 00 21, 228. 90 839. 21 96 -----

PIMA TREE ! 4080F11 21, 900. 00 0. 00 5, 710. 00 24, 061. 79 338. 21 96

52290 FIFE/ FDIICF DISPATCHER

1109 SALARIES 174, 262. 80 0. 00 18, 707. 36 167, 865. 22 6, 397. 58 96

1010 EXPENSES 4, 900. 00 0. 00 446. 00 4, 697. 16 202. 84 95

19101: FIRE/ POLICE. DISPATCHER 179, 162. 80 0. 00 19, 153. 36 172, 562. 3B 6, 600, 42 96

5299 FIRE/ POLICE STATION

4010 FYPEUSES 13, 985. 00 0. 00 290. 41 10, 073. 67 3, 111. 33 77

4100 FUEL AND UTILITIES 24, 400. 00 0. 00 2, 244. 37 2.5, 114. 48 714. 48-  102

4001 FUEL/ UTILITIES ENC.   3, 700. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 605. 05 94, 95 97

8533 ART 3/ 1898 F/ P STATION CARPI 3, 992. 50 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 992. 50 0

854!   ATM 99 NEW FHOHF SYSTEM 21, 000, 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 21, 000. 00 0

n548 ATM 99 REMV GENERATOR/ SHRRS 6, 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 918. 00 5, 582. 00 14 -

8556 8114 99 REPAIR BLDG/ GARAGE EX 2, 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 500. 00 0

8578 ATM 99 OFFICE FURNITURE 5, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 384. 75 4, 615. 25 7

8587 F/ F STATION DICTAPHONE 9618 13, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 6, 192. 00 6, 808. 00 47 ----

R737 ROOF REPAIR ATM 97 ART 6 18, 300. 00 0. 00 5, 000. 00 5, 000. 00 13, 300. 00 27 --

10101: TIPS/ POLICE STATION 112, 377. 50 0. 00 7, 534. 78 52, 087, 95 60, 289. 55 46 ----

1119 EOUCATION

4021 FY 90 SCHOOL ENCUMBERED 5, 029. 85 0. 00 0, 00 3, 699. 92 1, 329. 93 73

1022 FY 99 SCHOOL ENCUMBERED 269, 079. 89 0. 00 4, 437. 85 253, 803. 64 15, 276. 25 94 --------_

9040 0171 3/ TM98 F/ C STEAM TRAP FF 13, 400. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 104. 15 12, 295. 85 B

8538 ATM 99 REPLACE BOILER 58, 100. 00 0. 00 0. 00 57, 794. 00 306. 00 99

8599 APT 3/ TM98 F/ C BOILER REPAIR 7, 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 184, 32 6, 315. 68 15 -

8514 0114 99 LANGUAGE ART TEXTBOOK 91, 000. 00 0. 00 89, 320. 62 89, 320. 62 1, 679. 38 98

8545 018 99 LIBRARY FURNITURE 5, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 5, 000. 00 0. 00 100

3581 ATM 99 LIBRARY FURNITURE 18, 0' 30. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 18, 000. 00 0

B721 08115 A11495 ROOF/ FLAYORD/ WIN 90. 37 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 90. 37 0

3738 ASBESTOS REMOVAL ATM 97 0Rf6 35, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 34, 997. 50 2. 50 99

P747 SCHL ADMIN DEUCE EXP 511490 32, 669. 85 0. 00 4, 423, 06 0. 407. 56 24, 262. 29 25 --

8718 511499 ART3 HOOAY FORM . 4 ERUI 52, 000. 00 0. 00 1, 088. 89 48, 741. 09 3, 255. 91 93

8751 81899 8P113 RETROFIT LIGHTS 5, 600. 00 0. 00 55, 600. 00 5, 600, 00 0. 00 100

8/ 52 SfM99 ART13 RETRO/ REPL MOTOR 13, 000. 00 0. 00 3, 740. 00 3, 740. 00 9, 260. 00 20 --

TOTAL: EDUCATION 605, 469. 96 0. 00 108, 610. 42 513, 395. 80 92, 074. 16 84

5302 KING PHILIP REGIONAL

4010 EXPENSES 2, 892, 024. 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 892, 024. 00 0. 00 100

8718 ANNUAL KP CAPITAL ASSESSMENT 34, 879. 00 0. 00 0. 00 34, 879, 00 0, 00 100 -------.--

101111:10101: KING PHILIP REGION AI.     2, 926, 903, 00 0, 00 0. 00 2, 926, 903. 00 0. 00 100 ---•      -

5343 191- COUNTY REOOONAL

401n MENSES 709, 910. 00 0, 00 0. 00 209, 910. 00 0. 00 100
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GL520R- V06. 27 TARLEVEL OF OETAIL 1. 0 THOU 3. 0 FOR THE PERIODIS)  JUL 01, 1999 THROUGH JUN 30, 2000

mum.  ACT MTD POSTED ACT YTD POSTED REMAINING
rp" i; e4 h'. i; iaet ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS BALANCE PCI

01 GENERAL FUND

101A1.: IRI- COUNTY REGIONAL 209, 910. 00 0. 00 0. 00 209, 910. 00 0. 00 100

5120 HIGHWAY DEPARINFOI
1100 SALARIES 374, 569. 00 0. 00 51, 616. 68 363, 711. 69 10, 857. 31 97 11101 SALARIES ENC.   249. 97 0. 00 0. 00 248. 92 0. 00 1003060 ENGINEERING SERVICES 10, 000. 00 0. 00 2, 302. 00 14, 311. 32 4, 311. 32-   1433013 PACING SER' JICER 115. 00 0. 00 12. 95 169. 32 5. 68 964011 EXPENSES ENC. 6, 139. 58 0. 00 0. 00 6, 139. 58 0. 00 1001202 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 21, 309. 00 0. 00 1, 549: 57 22, 014. 23 705. 23-  1034204 COPY MACHINE EYPEHSET 800. 00 0. 00 0. 00 500. 00 300. 00 62 --4207 BIDS, ADVERTISING, POSTAGE 1, 700. 00 0. 00 152. 53 1, 316. 65 353. 35 79

I
4215 TEIEPHONF. 1, 326. 00 0. 00 82. 27 988. 98 337. 02 744216 NAIER 570. 00 0. 00 0. 00 600. 32 30. 32-  1051720 SPECIAL PROTECTS 130, 000. 04 0. 00 243. 24 64, 954. 19 65, 045. 82 49 --1223 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1, 060. 00 0. 00 34. 70 766. 56 293. 44 724739 STREET SIGNS 4, 000. 00 0. 00 136. 86 4, 000. 00 0. 00 100 ---------1239 1TRAVEEL, MEETINGS 9 DUES 600. 00 0. 00 0. 00 129. 38170.624241 UNIFORM GLEANING 3, 000. 00

71 --••----   )
0. 00 163. 75 1, 850. 23 1, 149. 77 614244 STREET LINING 9, 800. 00 0. 00 0. 00 4, 223. 41 5, 576. 59 434245 CATCH ROSIN CLEANING 9, 400. 00 0. 00 302. 50 14249 ROOD REPAIRS AND MAINIEN0NCF 49 081.

663. 00 4, 983. 76 81 -
0. 00 1, 561. 73 43, 097. 24 4, 983. 76 894249 POLICE DETAILS 2, 143. 00 0. 00 0. 00 6, 376. 504251 PROFESSIONAL. 

LICENSES199.00

4, 99. 00 297 •
360. 00 0. 00 80. 00 161. OD 1 444252 GUARD PAIL FETOIF 2, 000, 00 0. 00 0. 00 465. 49 1, 534. 51 23 --4253 VEHICLE INSPECTIONS 280. 00 0. 00 0. 00_ 106. 00 114. 00.    37 ---4254 COMPUTER EXPENSE 1, 175. 00 0. 00 0. 00 617. 49 557. 51 524255 RA010, REPAIR/ MAINTENANCE 637. 00 0. 00 0. 00 124. 00 513. 00 19 -4256 TRAFFIC CONTROL MAINTENANCE 580, 00 0. 00 162. 43 310. 1717789 RUILOINI, MAINTENANCE 12 695.00662.93 53

0. 00 827. 19 11, 922. 06 1,4800612.94 86FUEL AND UTILITIES 14, 176. 00 0. 00 321. 93 9, 349. 24 4, 826. 76 658112 AIM 99 11- 7 404 3/ 4 IN PICKUP 21, 500. 00 0. 00 0, 00 27, 499. 19 0. 81 999; 10 ATM 99 HYDRAULIC LIFT 5, 000. 00 4: 00 0. 008532 ATM 99 REP OVRHCAO GRGE' 0008 6, 786. 00
786. 00 0. 00 160

I.0. 40.    0. 00 6, 786. 00 0. 00 1008552 ATM 99 H- 3 UTILITY TRACK 31, 500. 00 0. 00TOTAL: HIGHWAY DEFARTMFy10.00 31, 500. 00 0. 00 100727, 610. 50 0. 00 59, 550. 33 636, 332. 15 91, 278. 35 87 --  a

5421 HIGHWAY GAFAGE
001 FUE1/ UTILITIES ENC.    600. 00
TOTAL: HCOIIWA' I GARAOF

0. 00 0. 00 412. 75 187. 25 68 ••600. 00 0. 00 0. 00 412. 75 187. 25 68 -••---
5472 TOWN VEHICLE FUEL
4010 EXFENSES

900. 00
4800 FUEL ANO UTILITIES4.40 0. 00 750. 00 150. 00 8339, 235. 00 0. 00 9 193. 76 35 000. 65 4 2101AL: TORN VEHICLE FUN 40 135, 00

r 334. 35 89
0, 00 4, 193. 7b 35, 750. 65 4, 384'. 35 89

5423 SNOW AND ICE CONTROL
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ANNUAL ACT MTD POSTED ACT YID POSTED REMAINING
revised budget ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS BALANCE FIT

01 GENERAL FUND

5121 SNOW AND ICE CONTROL

oi0 EXPENSES 121, 700. 00 0. 00 0. 00 121, 693. 38 6. 62 99

MAL: SNOW ANO ICE CONTROL 121, 700. 00 0. 00 0. 00 121, 693. 38 6. 62 99 ---------

54; 4 0000005 MAINTENANCE

i 1110 SALARIES 66, 357. 00 0. 00 8, 337. 60 63, 736. 25 2, 620. 75 96

4110 EXPENSES 17, 711. 00 0. 00 1, 753. 17 16, 407. 86 1, 303. 14 92

gun ATM 99 0- 16 EQUIPMENT TRAILR 6, 000. 00 0. 00 253. 23 5, 736. 67 263. 33 95 --

9551 AIM 99 G- 1 1 TON 4X4 DUMP 1X       : 39, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 38, 352. 35 647. 65 98

j
10101: GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 129, 068. 00 0. 00 10, 344. 00 124, 233. 13 4, 834, 87 96

l
5131 TRANSFER STATION

1100 SALARIES 95, 79:. 00 0. 00 9, 350. 21 93, 233, 70 2, 557. 30 97

3430 PRINTING 1, 700. 00 0. 00 231, 85 1, 125. 85 274. 15 83 --    --

4011 EXPENSES ENC.  7, 499. 00 0. 00 1, 148. 26 7, 495. 89 3. 11 99

17,03 VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 10, 973. 00 0. 00 997, 03 7, 685. 66 3, 287. 34 70

4; 9'0MAJOR REPAIR 3, 600. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 600. 00 0, 00 100 ----------

4215 TELEPHONE/ IS 240, 00 0. 00 12, 60 151. 33 88. 67 63

4221 RECYCLING COSTS/ TS 6, 324. 00 0. 00 729. 50 3, 716. 20 2, 607. 80 58 --

1222 TRASH REMOVAL FEES/ TS 6:3, 609. 00 0. 00 7, 438. 32 59, 619. 14 3, 929. 26 93 -----

4' 224 FACILITY MAINTENANCE 7, 830. 00 0. 00 5, 471. 14 6, 358. 31 1, 471. 69 81 --------

U1-! 

i 5 POSTAGE 567. 00 0. 00 0. 00 410. 31 156. 69 72

1241 UNIFORMS 700. 00 0. 00 46. 68 639. 02 60. 98 91

4212 GEN. OPERATING METERIALS/ TS 1, 898. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 841. 66 56. 34 97

i;    
4247 STIGkER5 8 DECALS/ IS 4, 120. 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 245. 00 1, 875. 00 54

rt 1000 FUEL ANO UTILITIES 8, 065. 00 0. 00 25, 94 4, 116. 59 3, 948. 41 51
1

8190 ATM 99 40 CY COMPACTOR CONT 4, 800. 00 0. 00 0. 00 4, 800. 00 0. 00 100

d 0,511 ATM 99 TRNSPRI VEH COVER SYS 6, 600. 00 0, 00 0. 00 6, 600. 00 0, 00 100

1 MAL: TRANSFER STATION 224, 316. 00 0. 00 25, 451. 53 203, 999. 26 20, 316, 74 90 ---------

54. 1?   LANDFILL.

3065 ENGINEERIING/ 1ANOFILL 18, 000. 00 0, 00 7, 157, 22 18, 000. 00 0. 00 100
P.

3066 LEACHATE REMOVAL/ LANDFII. 1.  23, 384. 60 00 8, 108, 40 21, 494. 25 1, 890. 35 91

3067 TRASH REMOVAL/ TOWN DEPT' S 10, 618, 00 0. 00 0. 00 10, 614, 96 3, 04 99

1 4011 EXPENSES ENC,  9, 719. 00 0. 00 0. 00 9, 719. 00 0. 00 100

7120 ATM 99 LEACHATE MONITORING 5, 000. 00 0. 00 2, 146. 21 3, 022. 92 1, 977. 08 60 ------

To.     OTAL.: LANDFILL 66, 121. 60 0. 00 11, 411. 8:1 62, 851. 13 3, 870. 47 94

5440 SF. 411 RAGE
7110 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 1, 831. 70 0. 00 50, 00 1, 640, 00 191. 70 89 --------

TOTAL: SEWERAGE 1, 831. 70 0.. 00 50, 00 1, 640. 00 191, 70 89

5491 CEMETERY
1100 SA!.( iRIES 17, 996, 00 0. 00 517. 00 17, 943. 30 52. 70 99 ---------

4010 EXPENSES 9, 7.89. 00 0. 00 453. 78 7, 704. 88 1, 584. 12 82

g 4011 EXPENSES ENC.    314. 00 0. 00 0. 00 313. 88 0. 12 99

C

x'

e
t
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ANNUAL ACT MID POSTED ACT YID POSTED REMAINING
revi; e4 budget ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS BALANCE PCf

01 GENERAL FANO

5491 CF METER I'

8213 AIM 99 PONOVILI. E SERV ROADS 9, 928. 00 0. 00 0. 00 8, 920. 00 0. 00 100 -
TOFA1_: CEMETERY 36, 5 7. 00 0. 00 970. 78 34, 890. 06 1, 636. 94 95 ---•------

5492 CUSTODIAN Of VETERANS GROVES
1100 SALARIES 626. 00 0. 00 626. 00 626. 00 0. 00 100
4010 EXPENSES 2, 378. 00 0. 00 619. 28 2, 266. 76 111. 24 95
TOTAL: CUSTODIAN OF VEIERANS GRAVES 3, 004. 00 0. 00 1, 245. 28 2, 892. 76 111. 24 96

5495 STREET LIGHTING
4810 STREET 110011) 10 29, 900. 00 0. 00 4, 127. 80 23, 142. 24 6, 757. 76 77TO1AL: STREET LIGHTING 29, 900. 00 0. 00 4, 127, 80 23, 142. 24 6, 751. 76 71       --

5510 BOARD OF HEALTH
1100 SALARIES 10, 739. 00 0. 00 4, 316. 00 39, 001. 05 1, 736. 95 954010 EXPENSES 36, 278. 00 0. 00 7, 447. 20 35, 612. 78 665. 22 984011 EXPENSES ENC, 2, 505. 38 0. 00 0. 00 2, 505. 38 0. 00 100 -T0TA1.: BOARD OF HEALTH 19, 521. 38 0. 00 11, 763. 20 71, 119. 21 2, 402. 17 96

5520 SFECIAL PROGRAMS
3180 HUMAN SERVICES PROGRAMS 10, 675. 00 0. 00 0. 00 10, 675. 00 0. 00 100 ---_-----.181A1_: SPECIAL PROGRAMS 10, 675. 00 0. 00 0. 00      - 10, 675. 00 0, 00 100

5541 COUNCIL ON APING
1100 SALARIES 62, 355. 00 0. 00 6, 889. 68 62, 169. 32 185. 68 992700 1011111IES RENTAL 3, 000. 00 0. 00 750. 00 3, 000. 00 0. 00 1002710 TRANSPORTATION EXPENSE 2, 155. 00 0. 00 445. 91 884. 43 1, 270. 57 41 ----2713 SERVICE PR,01300H 113, 10/ 9310 10, 000. 00 0. 00 2, 111. 03 1, 316. 31 2, 683. 69 734010 EXPENSES 3, 360. 00 0. 00 1, 119. 57 3, 288. 00 72. 00 97TOTAL: COUNCIL ON AGING 80, 870, 00 0. 00 11, 319. 19 76, 658. 06 4, 211. 94 94

5543 VETERAN' S SERVICES
1100 SALARIES 3, 243. 00 0. 00 257. 41 3, 088. 924110 EXPENSES 154. 08 95

146. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 146. 00 07700 VETERANS BENEFITS 1, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1000. 00 0TOTAL: IIFIERAN' S SERVICES 4, 389. 00 0. 00 257. 41 3, 088, 92 1, 300. 08 70 - 7-----

5610 LIBRARY

1100SALARIES 197, 277. 00 0. 00 21, 192, 69 196, 670. 51 606. 49 992105 AIM 99 ABLE UPGRADE LI9/ SCHL 22, 000. 00 0. 00 436. 00 19, 890. 88 2, 109. 12 904010 EXPENSES 88, 195. 86 0. 00 6, 629. 89 85, 612. 23 2, 583. 63 974011 EXPENSES ENC.   811. 21 0. 00 0. 00 817. 03 60. 18 934900 FUEL AND UTILITIES 11, 200. 00 0. 00 1 955. 17 11 151. 0597 ì3 31099 0R1150LIBRARY ROOF RPR 0. 0
48. 95 99

TOrnI: 11PRnRY 0. 00 2, 119, 84 41, 280. 15 5
369, 550. 07 0. 00 30, 213. 75 316, 861. 54 52, 688, 53 85

5630 RECREATION
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1f7E1 Of DETAIL. 1. 0 THOU 3. 0 FOR THE PERIDDTS)  JUL 01, 1999 THROUGH JUN 30, 2000

ANNUAL ACT MID POSTED ACT YTO POSTED REMAINING

revised budget ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS BALANCE.      F". 1

l,1 GE. NEF: AI. FUND

iO4 RECREATION

1100 SALARIES 40, 536. 00 0. 00 4, 392. 31 40, 536. 00 0. 00 100

4010 EXPENSES 2, 156. 00 0. 00 252. 82 1, 883. 18 272. 82 01

4011 EXPENSES ENC.     67. 63 0. 04 0. 00 67. 63 0. 00 100

9100 ART 3/ TM98 KIDS PLACE IMPRVE 3, 000. 00 0. 00 0, 00 2, 307.: 31 692. 69 76

10101: RECREA11011 45, 759. 63 0. 00 4, 645. 13 44, 794. 12 965. 51 97
1

5611 HISTORICAL COMMISSION

1010 EXPENSES 323. 00 0. 00 47. 59 317. 67 5. 33 98

10TAL: HISTORICAL COMMISSION 323. 00 0. 00 47. 59 317. 67 5. 33 98 -.

5632 MEMORIAL DAY

441. 0 EXPENSES 525. 00 0. 00 504. 49 504. 49 20. 51 96

MAL: MEMORIAL DAY 525. 00 0. 00 504. 49 504. 49 20, 51 96

5710 MATURING DEBT

4011 EXPENSES ENC.    142. 00 0. 00 0. 00 142. 00 0. 00 100 ----------

94101410 90ND REGISTRATION FEE 1, 925. 00 0, 00 0. 00 1, 825. 00 0. 00 100

91551 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ROOF DEBT 15, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 15, 000. 00 0. 00 100

9452 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ROOF INT. 9, 465. 00 0. 00 0, 00 9, 465. 00 0. 00 100

9453 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LAND DEBT 24, 000. 00 0, 00 0. 00 24, 000. 00 0. 00 100 ---••------

9451 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LAND INT. 15, 375. 00 0. 00 0. 00 15, 375. 00 0. 00 100

9455 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL BLDO. DF.BT 327, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 327, 000, 00 0. 00 100

9456 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL BOLO.  INT.      252, 090. 00 0. 00 0. 00 252, 090. 00 0. 00 100

9465 PAY SCHOOL ADDITIONAL DEBT 16, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 16, 000. 00 0. 00 100

94666 DAY SCHOOL AOUITIONAL INT.   7, 322. 00 0. 00 0. 00 7, 322. 00 0. 00 100

9467 LANDFILL CLOSE. DEBT 16, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 16, 000. 00 0. 00 100 -

1169 LANDFILL CLOSE INTEREST 14, 169. 00 0, 00 0. 00 14, 169. 00 0. 00 100

9476 DRAINAGE DEBT 53, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 53, 000. 00 0. 00 100

9177 DRAINAGE INTEREST 23, 430. 00 0. 00 0. 00 23, 430, 00 0. 00 100 --

3497 FREEMEN/ CENT CAPITAL DEBT 8, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 9, 000. 00 0. 00 100

9488 FREEMEN/ CENT CAPITAL INTERES 2, 290. 00 0, 00 0. 00 2, 289. 51 0. 49 99 ---------

9489 TOWN HALL DEBT 53, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 53, 000. 00 0. 00 100

9490 TOWN HALL - INTEREST.       47, 481. 00 0. 00 0. 00 47, 180. 50 0. 50 99 ---

9491 STOEAOF TANKS - DEBT 7, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 7, 000, 00 0. 00 100

9492 STORANGE TANKS- INTEREST 5, 782, 00 0. 00 0. 00 5, 792. 00 0. 00 100

9494 FIRE TRUCK - DEBT 21, 000. 00 0. 00 0, 00 21, 000, 00 0. 00 100

91? 5 FIRE TRUCK - INTEREST 11, 634. 00 0, 00 0. 00 11, 634. 00 0. 00 100 ------

9497 H. O. DAY ADDITION - PRINCIPA 220, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 213, 000. 00 7, 000. 00 96

3198 H. O. DAY ADDITION - INTEREST 115, 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 89, 899. 50 25,
600. 50 77 --

MAL; MATURING GEP, T 1, 266, 505, 00 0. 00 0, 00 1, 233, 903. 51 32, 601. 49 97

00 1200000 525720   ! 4ATF_R DEBT
0. 00 0.   000. 00 130 -- i

9111 UNION 51 NTE MAINS - DE.BI 40, 000. 00
0

9112.   UNION ST NIR MAIMS - INTERES 46, 000, 00 0. 00 0. 00 30, 045. 36 15,. 54. 64 65   _..-_

9175 MILT. FIVER- DEPT 5, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 5, 000. 00 0
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APPAL AC1 MID POSTED ACT YTD POSTED REMAINING
e vis ed hud7et ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS BALANCE PCI

01 GENERAI. F9110

726 Hop, DEBT

9176 MILL RI' JEF - INTEREST 5, 700. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 5, 700. 00 0
9177 MILL RIVER POOP DEBT 30, 300, 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 30, 000. 00 0
9178 MITI RTUEP P1161' - INTIM' 93, 900. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 33, 900. 00 0
9179 TIN CTR ITR MAINS ONION DEBT 20, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 20, 000. 00 0
9100   ( MM CTF MTF MAINS UNION INTO 19, 550. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 19, 550. 00 0
71i7 NOON HILL 491 71, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 71, 000. 00 0. 00 100
14W.   NOnN HILL INTEREST 53, 540. 00 0. 00 0. 00 53, 540. 00 0. 00 100
9463 POND STREET DEBT 13, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 13, 000. 00 0. 00 100
9464 FOND STREET INTEREST 10, 030. 00 0, 00 0, 00 10, 030. 00 0. 00 100
9169 DEDHAM STREET DEBT 16, 000. 00 0, 00 0. 00 16, 000. 00 0. 00 100
9470 DEDHAM STREET INTEREST 7, 277. 50 0. 00 0. 00 7, 277. 50 0. 00 100
9178 LITCHFIELU/ HApTOW DEBT 7, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 7, 000. 00 0. 00 100
9479 LIICHFTLED/ HAFLOW INTEREST 2, 867. 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 867. 00 0. 00 100
9100 LELAN0 DEBT 6, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 6, 000. 00 0, 00 1009481 WAND INTEREST 7, 707. 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 707. 00 0. 00 1009185 POND ST ADDITIONAL DEBT 2, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 000. 00 0. 00 1009486 FOND ST ADDITIONAL INTEREST 696. 50 0. 00 0. 00 696. 50 0. 00 100
TOTAL: WAFER DEBT 392, 260. 00 0. 00 0. 00 274, 163. 36 118, 104. 64 69 --

5030 COUNTY ASSESSMENTS/ CHOPGES
6000 COUNTY TAX 51, 988. 00 0. 00 0. 00 51, 988. 00 0. 00 100TOTAL: COUNTY ASSESSMENTS/ CHARGES 51, 988. 00 0. 00 0. 00 51, 988. 00 0. 00 100

9035 CHEERY SHEET PHAEGES
6120 MOTOR VF. 1110ET EXC. lAX RILLS 0. 00 0. 00 590. 00 1, 180. 00 1, 180. 00- 99996121 MOSQUITO CONTROL 21, 910. 00 0. 00 5, 475. 00 24, 653. 00 2, 735. 00-  1126122 MET. ATP POLLUTION CONTROL 2, 467. 00 0. 00 616. 00 2, 467. 00 0. 00 1006123 MET. AREA PLANNING COUNCIL 2, 106. 00 0. 00 525. 00 2, 106. 00 0. 00 140 ---------

r6124 M, R. T. A, ASSESSMENT 238 199. 00 0. 00 50, 279. 00 226,, 367. 00 11, 832. 00 956126 SCHOOL CHOICE/ CHARTER ASSESS 35, 000, 00 0. 00 22, 731. 00 73, 821. 00 38, 821. 00-  2106177 NON RENEWAL E+ TIOF TAX 2, 040. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 180. 00 860. 00 57
i.

TOTAL: CHERRY SHEET CHARGES 301, 730. 00 0. 00 80, 216. 00 331, 774. 00 30, 044. 00-  109 --•-

9913 EMFIOYF.E BENEFITS
1710 MEDICAL INSURANCE 368, 424. 00 0. 00 2, 810. 97-    358, 813. 47 9, 610. 53

974

1120 LIFE INSURANCE 7, 574. 00 0. 00 542. 13 7, 441. 76 132. 24 98 --------•/1730 LONGEVITY 52, 399. 26 0. 00 0. 00 50, 418. 97 1, 980. 29 961739 EMPLOYEE ASSISIANCE PROGRAM 3, 500. 00 0. 00 282. 33 3, 387. 96 112, 04 96 t1736 MEDICARE 77, 000. 00 0. 00 9, 485. 23 78 202. 59 1 2140 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 5, 000. 00 0 00
02. 59'  101

0. 00 723. 00 4,, 277. 00 14 -1150 STATE/ COUNTY RETIREMENT 500, 000. 00 0. 00 843. 00-     486, 834. 59 13, 165. 41 974011 MENSES ENC, 12, 850. 83 0. 00 0. 00 12, 850. 83 0. 00 100 sTOTAL: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1, 026, 748. 09 0. 00 6, 655. 72 998, 673. 17 28, 074. 92 97

5990 TRAl1SFF,RS
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FINANCES

cmF09601ni FINANCIAL SYSTEM TOWN DF NOFFOI. k

2/ 01/ 2001 10: 2.3: 00 Expenditure Guideline 802AR- V06. 27 PAGE

We or DETAIL 1. 0 ' NFU 3. 0 FOP THE FERIOO( 8)  JUL 01, 1999 THROUGH JUN 30, 2000

ANNUAL ACT MID POSTED ACT YID POSTED REMAINING

revised budget ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS BALANCE FCT

f1 CFI! ERni. FINN?

5910 TRANSFERS

10 1P1NSFE6 OUT 0. 00 0. 00 199, 900. 00 199, 900. 00 199, 900, 00- 9999

OWAW: TRANSFERS 0. 00 0. 00 199, 900. 00 199, 900. 00 199, 900. 00. 9999 ----  -  -!

6110 SCHOOL COMMITTEE.

9107 CLERICAL. SALARY 989. 00 0. 00 0. 00 910. 91 78. 03 92

1104 CONTRACTED SERVICES 25, 289. 00 0. 00 8, 929. 45 15, 811. 92 9, 447. 08 62

9105 FOS1AOE/ PETTY CASH 1, 116. 00 0. 00 33. 98 642. 30 473. 70 57

0110 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 625. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 847. 00 1, 222. 00-  295 ---- •----!

6116 MISC 1, 800. 00 0. 00 0, 00 1, 089. 22 710. 78 60

0116 ADVERTISING/ RIO PERSONNEL 2, 303.[) 0 0. 00 3, 756. 55 9, 071. 04 6, 768. 04-  393

9156 PUBLICATIONS 565. 00 0. 00 0. 00 270. 00 295. 00 47 ----

TRIAL: SCHOOL COMMITTEE-    32, 687. 00 0. 00 12, 719. 98 29, 672. 39 3, 014. 61 90

6120 SUPERINTENDENT' S OFFICE

0201 SALARY 92, 790. 00 0. 00 6, 692. 30 89, 221. 94 3, 568. 06 96 ---------

x202 SUPPORT STAFF SALARIES 36, 676. 00 0. 00 4, 212. 00 36, 659. 28 16. 72 99

0704 CONTRACTED SERVICES 1, 080. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 350. 54 270. 54-  125 ---

0205 SUPPLIES/ MATERIALS 1, 741. 00 0. 00 381. 03 2, 289. 44 548. 44-  131
0207 DUES 1, 223, 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 558. 00 335. 00-  127

0210 SIIPERI! ICENOENT PROF. 0E0.    1, 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 189. 80 1, 689. 80-  212

0215 POSTAGE/ PETTY CASH 800. 00 0. 00 65. 26 85. 69- 885. 69 10 -

022.6 IN STATE TRAVEL 1, 000. 00 0. 00 221. 03 4, 296. 91 3, 296. 91-  429

0246 PRINTING FORMS 274. 00 0. 00 0. 00 116. 00 158. 00 42 ----

0256 PUBLICATIONS 354. 00 0. 00 0. 00 316. 62 37. 38 89

101AL: SUPERINTENDENT' S OFFICE 137, 438. 00 0. 00 11, 571. 62 138, 912. 84 1, 474. 84-  101 -,--------

6121 SUPERINTENDENT/ CLERICAL

0210 CLEPICAL PROFESSIONAL. DEV.     200. 00 0. 00 35. 74 134. 74 65. 26 67 ----

10101: SUPERINTENDENT/ CLERICAL 200. 00 0. 00 35. 74 134. 74 65. 26 61 --  -_

6122 BUSINESS OFFICE.

0201 SALARY 45, 000. 00 0. 00 3, 461. 54 44, 684. 68 315. 32 99 ---------

r 0202 SUPPORT STAFF SALARIES 34x 008. 00 0. 00 3, 969. 60 34, 057. 12 30. 88 99

0205 SUPPLIES/ MATERIALS 463. 00 0. 00 18. 59 626. 31 163. 31-  135

0206 OTHER EXPENSES 295, 00 0. 00 21. 00 143. 70 151, 30 48 ----

0210 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 1, 700. 00 0. 00 492. 38 1. 581. 30 118. 62 93

0304 CONTRACTED SERVICES 1, 270. 00 0. 00 0. 00 700. 00 570, 00 55

TOTAL: BUSINESS OFFICE 82, 816. 00 0. 00 7, 969. 11 81, 793. 19 1, 022. 81 98

6220 PRINCIPAL' S OFFICE
0201 SALARY 148, 426. 00 0: 00 11, 304. 30 146, 956. 00 1, 470.. 00 99

0202 CLERICAL SALARY 103 187. 00 0. 00 11, 930. 07 99, 885. 98 3, 601. 02 96

0703 ASSISTANT FRINCIFAL 56, 798. 00 0. 00 13, 160. 26 57, 028. 00 230. 00-  100

0205 SUPPLIES/ MATERIALS 3, 000, 00 0, 00 447. 42 3042. 11 342: 11-  111 -  -       !

0267 DUES 1, 468. 00 0. 00 0. 00     .  1, 663. 00 195, 00-  113
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FINANCES

GOVERNMENTAL. FINANCIAL SYSTEM
TOWN OF NORM07/ 2001 10: 23: 00 Expenditure Guideline 6L5208- V06, 27 PAGE.IEVEI OF OEIAIL 1. 0 THRU 3. 0 FOR THE PERIOOISI JUL 01, 1999 THROUGH JUN 30, 2000

ANNUAL ACT MID POSTED ACT YID POSTED REMAINING
revised budget ENCUMBERED ANO IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS BALANCE PCT

01 GENERAL FUND

6220 PRINCIPAL' S OFFICE
6208 CONFERENCES 1, 350. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 350. 00 0
0210 PR[ NCIPALS FROF. DEVELOPMENT 2, 400. 00 0. 00 129. 00-       1, 075. 66 1, 324. 34 44
0215 POSTAGE/ PETTY CASH 1, 650. 00 0. 00 357. 08 1, 577. 08 72. 92 95 ------
0226 IN STATE ( RAVEL 800. 00 0. 00 0. 00 81, 00 719. 00 10 -0246 PRINTING FORMS 5, 100. 00 0, 00 586. 99 5, 076. 22 23. 78 99TOTAL: PRINCIPAL' S OFFICE 324, 419. 00 0. 00 37, 657. 12 316, 685. 05 1, 793, 95 97

6221 PRINCIPAL/ CLEFICA(.
0210 T,1EFICAI FROFESSIINAL DEV.    600. 00 0, 00 0. 00 0. 00.  800. 00 0
TOFAL: PRINCIPAL/ CLERICAL 800. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 800. 00 0

6227 GUIDA110E
0201 SALARY 87, 340. 00 0. 00 17, 723. 23 84, 907. 01 2, 432. 99 97 -0205 SUPPLIES/ MATERIALS 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 40. 24 459. 76 810001: GUIDANCE 87, 840. 00 0. 00 17, 723. 23 84, 947. 25 2, 892. 75 96

6230 TEACHING
0301 SALARIES 2, 986, 547. 00 0. 00 630, 673. 95 2, 936, 266. 49 50, 280. 52 980304 CONTRACTED SERVICES 10, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 12 369. 55 2, 369. 55-0305 TEACHING SOFTIIES 76, 169. 00 0. 00

123

0310 PROFESSIONAL9EV
4, 272. 66 67, f93. 02 8, 475. 98 88EIOPMENI 82, 556. 00 0. 00 275. 91-      37, 640, 72 44, 915. 28 45 ----0311 SUBSTITUTES 33, 381. 00 0. 00 5, 757. 50 49 435. 35 16, 054. 35-  148 10322 KINOEROARTEN AIrES 61, 269, 00 0. 00 5,715.3552, 821. 83 8, 447. 17 860331 COURSE REIMBURSEMENTS 25, 444. 00 0. 00 103. 00-       5, 415. 60 20, 028. 40 21 -0336 TRAVEL 525, 00 0. 00 83. 40 351. 00 174. 00 660345 NEW EQUIPMENT 5, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 5, 000. 00 0TOTAL: TEACHING 3, 280, 891. 00 0. 00 646, 124, 17 3, 161, 993. 55 118, 897. 45 96 ---------

6240 TEXTBOOKS
0405 1EXTBOOKS/ WORKB000S 43, 406. 00 0. 00 2, 009. 19 30, 122. 09 13, 283. 91 69TOTAL: rE4TBOOK3 43, 406, 00 0. 00 2, 009. 19 30, 122. 09 13, 283. 91 69

6250 LIBRARY
0301 SALARIES 105, 815, 00 0. 00 11, 687. 90 106, 350. 74 535. 74-  1000505 SUPPLIES 1, 300. 00 0. 00 225. 38 998. 01 301. 99 760515 BOO1S/ MATERIAL5 8, 600, 00 0. 00 0, 00 8, 561. 35 38. 65 99 -0516 ABLE NETWORK 8, 093. 00 0, 00 0. 00 6, 163. 12 1, 929. 88 7610101: LIBRARY 123, 808, 00 0. 00 11, 913. 28 122, 073. 22 1, 734. 78 98

6260 AUDIO VISUAL SERVICES
0605 AV SUPPLIES/ MATERIALS 4, 200. 00 0. 00 0. 00 4, 184. 89 15, 11 990814 REPLACEMENT' OF EQUIPMENT 2, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 580, 55 419, 45 7910101 : 0110I0 019001 SERVICES 6, 200. 00 0. 00 0. 00 5, 765. 44 434. 56 92

6210 VOCATIONAL EDUCATION
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ANNUAL ACT MTD POSTED ACF YT0 POSTED REMAINING

rrvised budget ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS BALANCE PCT

rel OENF.FA1 FUND

6: 70 VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

r7?,9 VOCATIONAL. EDUCATION 2, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 000. 00 0

1011L: VOCATIONAL EDUCATION 2. 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 000. 00 0

x.790 TFCHNOLOGTCAL SUPPORT

4201 SALAEV 150, 357. 00 0. 00 21, 641. 15 132, 292. 81 18, 064. 19 87

6705 SIJPPI. TES/ MATERIALS 3, 487. 00 0. 00 247. 30 4, 455. 18 968. 18-  127 ---    --- 1

0304 CONTRACTED SERVICES 2, 750. 00 0. 00 125. 00 1, 100. 00 1, 650. 00 40 ----

0170 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 6, 260. 00 0. 00 0. 00 2, 947. 44 3, 312. 56 47 ----

0813 SOFTWARE 18, 950. 00 0. 00 0. 00 12, 480. 26 6, 469. 74 65 -------

oils NEW EgUIPMENT 66, 950. 00 0. 00 351. 52 63, 966. 99 2, 983. 01 95

MAI: TECHNOLOGICAL SUPPORT 248, 754. 00 0. 00 22, 364. 97 217, 242. 68 31, 511. 32 87

6320 HEALTH

0301 SALARIES 54, 738. 00 0. 00 12, 541. 02 55, 413. 41 675. 41-  101

i1204 CONTRACTED SERVICES 2, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 487. 50 1, 512. 50 24 --

1310 PPOFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 130. 00 370. 00 26 --

0505 SUPPLIES 1, 321. 00 0. 00 159. 80 1, 448. 30 127. 30-  109

Tn1AL: HEALTH 58, 559. 00 0. 00 12, 706. 82 57, 479. 21 1, 079. 79 98

6330 PUPIL fRANSPORFATION

0324 REGULAR TRANSPOP.IATION 343, 720. 00 0. 00 34, 712. 00 343, 160. 00 560. 00 99

TOTAL: PUPIL. TRANSPORTATION 343, 720. 00 0. 00 34, 712. 00 343, 160. 00 560. 00 99 -   •

6340 FOOD SERVICES

0110 IPOFFS5IONAL_ DEVELOPMENT 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 105. 00 395. 00 21 --

TOTAL: FOOD SERVICES 500. 00 0. 00 0. 00 105. 00 395. 00 21 --

6411 CUSTODIAL

0341 SALARIES 265, 397 00 0. 00 27, 489, 68 265, 067. 44 329. 56 99

4104 CONTRACTED SERVICES 3, 500. 00 0. 00 437. 92 3, 201, 57 298. 43 91

0410 FROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 300. 00 0. 00 0. 00 210. 00 90. 00 70 ---_ --

1' 415 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 10, 700, 00 0. 00 0. 00 10, 695. 41 4. 59 99

0421 TPAVEI 600. 00 0. 00 0. 00 386. 70 213, 30 64 --

0122 MOTORIZED EXPENSE 25. 00 0. 00 0. 00 5. 50 19. 50 22 --

MAL: CUSTODIAL 280, 522. 00 0. 00 27, 927. 60 279, 566. 62 955. 38 99

6412 HEATINO OF RUILO.FNGS

0456 OIL 36, 000, 00 0. 00 0. 00 32, 264. 23 3, 735. 77 89

IT1A1: HEATING OF BUILDINGS 36, 000. 00 0. 00 0, 00 32, 264, 23 3, 735. 77 89 --------

f113 UTILITIES

041$   ELECTRICITY 102, 500. 00 0. 00 17, 956. 12 90, 994. 09 11, 505. 91 88

0126 GAS 350. 00 0. 00 165. 36 506. 36 156. 36-  144 I

0436 NATER 5, 290. 00 0. 00 0. 00 5, 401. 61 151. 61-  102

0446 TELEPHONE 16, 250. 00 0. 00 8, 729, 23 22, 303. 94 6, 053. 94-  137 L

123



FINANCES

0OVEPNMENIAI FINANCIAL. SYSTEM
01t2001 10: 23: 00 Expenditure Guideline TOWN OF MIX

LEVEL OF DETAIL 1. 0 TURN 3, 0 FOP THE FERMIS)  JUL 01, 1999 THROUGH JUN 30, 2000 GL,  QR V06.? 7 PARE

ANNUAL ACT MTD POSTED ACT YTD POSTED REMAINING,
revised hudaet ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS PALANCE PCT

Iii GENEFRL FUND

1NTAL: UTILITIES 124, 350. 00 0. 00 26, 850. 71 119, 206. 00 5, 144. 00 95 --------

6132 MAINTENANCE OF BUILDING
0404 CONTRACTED SERVICES 49, 081. 00 0. 00 6, 952. 48 50, 955. 93 1, 874. 93-  103 -0117 SUPPLIES/ MAIERIALS BLDG/ MT 8, 900. 00 0. 00 13. 22 3, 545. 39 5, 354. 62 39 -TOTAL: MAINTENANCE. OF BNILDING 57, 981. 00 0. 00 6, 965. 70 54, 501. 31 3, 479. 69 93

6423 MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT
0404 CONTRACTED SERVICES54042; MAINTENANCE OF ECESfMF.h' f 22, 260' 00 0. 00 107. 07 18, 354. 29 3, 905. 71B227,260. 00 0. 00 107. 01 18, 354. 29 3, 905. 71 82

07701 EQUIPMENT
0011 REPLACEMENT OF EQUIPMENT 90. 00 0. 00

915 NEW EQUIPMENT 0. 00 0. 00 90. 00 03, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 108. 41 008. 41-  103TOTAL: EQUIPMENT 3, 090. 00 0. 00 0. 00 3, 148. 41 18. 41-  100 -----
PO?   SONAR OF PRIDING
0814 REPLACEMENT OF EQUIPMENT 910, 00 0. 00 0. 00 723. 68 186. 32 79 -------TOTAL: REHAB OF BUILDING,      910. 00 0. 00 0. 00 123. 68 186. 32 79 ••
7221 SUPERVISION SPECIAL ED.
0201 SALARY

57, 989, 00 0. 00 14, 784. 15 60, 080. 970202 CLERICAL BAI. ARY 11, 500, 00 2, 091. 97-36103

0205 SUPFLIESiMAIECIALS
0. 00 3, 904. 80 10, 146. 40 1, 353. 64 89

0205
SUPPLIES/

ES
550. 00 0. 00 10. 96 842. 62
450. 00 0.00292.62-  1110210 PPOFFSSIONAI. DEVELOPMENT50.00 5Q 0. 04 50. 00-  

1000215 POSTAGE/ PETTY CASH
200. 00 0. 00 0: 00 0. 00 200. 00 0       .-_••

0215 IN STATE TRAVEL
1, 320. 00 0. 00 0. 00 1, 320. 00 0. 00 10052262: SUPERVISION SPECIAL E0.

350. 00 0. 60 91. 80 401. 91
72, 359. 00 0. 00 18, 841. 71 73 291. 90

3 . 9 -  114

932. 90-  101
7223 TEACHING SFECTAI. F.D.
0301 SALARIES

523, 345. 00 0. 00 100, 433, 00 452, 677. 91 70, 667. 09 86
0304 COFITP,ACTEO SERVICES 166 110. 00 0. 00 25, 679. 67 1490305 TEACHING SUPPLIES 12,

688    .
00 849. 24 t6 839. 56 89

0.321 AIDES 0. 04 294. 62.      11, 849. 44 839. 56 93
0815 ADEEOUIPMEIIT

245, 979, 00 0. 00 21, 030. 66 221, 079. 98 24, 899. 02 89
TOTAL: TEACHING SPECIAL E0.       9

5, 750. 00 0. 00 2, 708. 99 4, 567. 11 1, 182. 89 7953, 872. 00 0. 00 150, 146. 84 839, 632. 73 114, 239. 27 88
7228 PSYCHOLOGICAL SERVICES/ CN 76
0201 SAIAFY

30, 389. 00 0. 00 7, 012. 74 30, 388. 50 0. 50 99
0204 CONTRACTED SERVICES 4, 000. 00 0. 00 2, 120. 22 3, 583. 22 416. 78 89
0205 SUPPLIESIMATEPJAIS 438. 00
TOTAL: PSYCHOLOGICAL SERVICES/ CH 16 0. 00 0. 00 263. 95 174. 05 6034, 827. 00 0. 00 9, 132. 96      34, 235. 67 591. 33 98
7130 IPANSFORTATIOII SPECIAL ED.
0324 TRANSPORTATION 131, 915. 00 0. 00 90, 133. 59 97, 238. 37 34, 676, 63 73
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11 AAgFRNNEENTAL FINANCIAL ! MUM TOWN OF NORFOLM
E 2/ Q7/ 2001 10: 23: 00 Expenditure Guideline 015201106. 27 FAGS

it El, OF DETAIL 1. 0 THOU 3. 0 FOR THE PERIODS)  JUL 01, 1999 THROUGH JUN 30, 2000

ANNUAL ACT MTD POSTED ACT YTD POSTED RENAI111NG
revised budget ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS BALANCE PCf

p1 BENERAL FUND

Mipl.: TRANSPORTATION SPECIAL. En. 131, 915. 00 0. 00 30, 133, 59 97, 238. 37 34, 676. 63 73

1900 SCH, SP. ED. PRGRM/ OFHER GIST' S
c'.101 TUITIONS 280, 936. 00 0. 00 14, 342. 71 278, 406. 48 2, 529, 52 99

iThil; SCH, SP. ED. PRORM/ OTHER DI5T'' S 280, 936. 00 0. 00 14, 342. 71 278, 406. 48 2, 529. 52 99

IAIAL: GENERAL. FUND 19, 125, 038. 91 0. 00 2, 014, 825. 36 18, 151, 063, 05 973, 975. 86 94
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FINANCES

000ERMMENFAL FINANCIAL SYSTEM
2/ 47i2941 10: 23: 00 Expenditure Guideline TOWN OFNORF4I;

LEVEL OF DETAIL 1. 0 THRU : 3, 0 FOR THE PERIODS)  JUL 01, 1999 THROUGH JUN 30, 2000 GL5rys0R J06,^ 7 TART

ANNUAL ACT MID POSTED ACT YTD POSTED REMAINING
revised budget ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS BALANCE PCT

25 MATER ENTERPRISE FUND

5450 HATER DEPARTMENT
1100 SALARIES 176, 416. 00 0. 00 18, 000. 58 161, 945. 55 14, 470. 45 91 -430 PURCHASE OF MATER 7, 900. 00 0. 00 305. 71 1, 996. 39 5, 903. 61 25 --3060 ENGINEERING SERVICES 25, 652. 00 0. 00 0. 00 17, 847. 74 7, 804. 26 69 -3075 SOURCE OELINIATION 89- 10/ 91 30, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 30, 000. 00 09222 NEW WELL EXFIOPATION 86- 92 19, 325. 25 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 19, 325. 25 01010 EXPENSES 68, 816. 00 0. 00 5, 409. 65-      55 948. 86 12, 867. 12 814011 EXPENSES ENC. 3, 977. 08 0. 00 0. 00 3, 977. 08 0. 00 1001050 INDIRECT COSTS 72, 136. 00 0. 00 559. 42 55, 128. 30 11, 007. 70 76 -4100 PROJECTS ( BUDGET)   32, 500. 00 0. 0025,616. 007, 820. 40 6, 884. 00 78 --1301 PROJECTS ENCUMBERED 5, 272. 00 0. 00 0. 00 5, 272. 0.0 0. 00 1004800 FUEL AND UTILITIES 34, 925. 00 0. 00 2, 203. 74 22. 231. 80 12, 693. 20 634101 FUELnJrILIrIES ENC.     3, 05. 40 0. 00 0. 00 2, 650. 18 374. 82 878222 APT 10/ 1M98 HIR TNR SITING 16, 250. 00 0. 00 1, 250. 00 16, 250. 00 0. 00 1008292 ART 11/ 1498 410 SOURCE- ENGIN 30, 000. 00 0. 00 0. 00 0. 00 30, 000. 00 08560 SPRUCE ED. PLILP ST. 834 94ATM 139, 890. 32 0. 00 0. 008561 SCHOOL 8T. WATER MAIN835 9414 35, 242. 96 0. 00

0. 00 135, 242. 96 0

8602 RCKW' D PD NOV96 ART5( 363500)       11, 419. 24 0. 00
0. 00 0. 00

11, 419. 24,

449. 24 0

8724 ART21 1495 MILL OUR ENG/ P. S.       20 323. 60
0. 00 0. 00

5

0
s 0. 00 2, 227. 22 3, 063. 74 17, 259, 86 15 - 8745 HTR MAIN UNION, NDRTH, RING 97 39, 969. 79 0. 00 18715. 00-8154 FY00 ARTS GOL. O ST WELL PURCH 470' 000. 00 0. 00 220'    

0. 04-      69,

001.
30 0

TOTAL: WATER DEPARTMENT 1, 243, 040. 24
998. 70 469, 001. 34 01, 243, 040. 24 0. 00 212, 751. 98-     372, 926. 32 870, 113. 92.     30 ---

5460 WATER DEPT DEPRECIATION EXP
9720 EUILDINGS

0. 00 0. 00 3, 551. 00 3 559731 MAINS 3, 551. 00 1. 00 9999
9732 VALVES

0. 00 0. 00 120, 423. 10 120, 423, 10 120, 423. 10- 9999
4733 STAND PIPES

0. 00 0. 00 10, 737. 00 10, 737. 00 10, 737. 00- 9999 r

9734 WELLS
0. 00 0. 00 7, 137. 00 7, 137. 00 1, 137. 44- 9999

3710
WELLS

ENr
0. 00 0. 00 7, 100. 00 7, 180. 00 7, 180. 00- 99999710 ESU'

IPCE LATERALS
0. 00 0. 00 11, 884. 00 11, 884, 00 11, 884. 00- 9999 i "

97579752
0. 06 0. 00 21, 893. 00 21, 893. 00 21, 893. 00- 9999METERSRF( TS
0. 00 0. 00 6, 139. 00 6, 139. 00 6, 139. 00- 9999

9/

60
VEHICLESDN0.00 0. 00 14, 785. 00 14, 785. 00 14, 785. 00- 99999770

FURNITURE b FIXTURES
0` 00 0. 00 3, 124. 00 3, 124. 00 3, 124. 00- 9999

TOTAL: WATER
0. 00 0. 00 2, 032. 00 2, 032. 00 2, 032. 00- 9999 iDEPT DEPRECIATION EXP 0. 00 0. 00 208, 885. 10 208, 885. 10 208, 885. 10- 9999

5955 REVOLVING FUNDS
1031 HIGHLAND LAR. STATE REPO 1, 361, 00
TQrAI: REVOLVING FUNDS0'00 0. 00 750. 00 611. 00 551, 361. 00 0. 00 0. 00 750. 00 611. 00 55
5959 SPECIAL. REVOLVING FUND
2033 CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL REV 4, 284. 00 0. 00TOTAL: SPECIAL REVOLVING FUND 0. 00 2, 720. 00 1  . 64, 00 634, 284, 00

20. 00 0. 00

F

120. 00 1, 564, 00 63
TOTAL: WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 1, 248, 685, 24 0. 00 3, 866. 88-     585, 281. 42 663, 403. 82 46 ----

i
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SPA OF DETAIL 1. 0 TNRU 3. 0 FAR T' HE PERIODS)  JUL 01, 1999 THROUGH JUN 30, 2000

ANNUAL ACT MID POSTED ACT YTD POSTED REMAINING

revised budget ENCUMBERED AND IN PROCESS AND IN PROCESS BALANCE PCT

DRANN O TOTAL 20, 313, 724. 15 0. 00 2, 010, 958. 48 18, 736, 344. 47 1, 637. 379. 68 91

lug NUMBER OF RECORDS PRINTED 452

fik
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FINANCES

REAL ESTATE ASSESSMENTS AND ABATEMENTS

TOTAL

EXEMPTIONS
TOTAL GRANTED

EXEMPTIONS CLAUSE TOTAL

NO. OF TOTAL GRANTED 37A, 17D 18 ABATEMENTS

YEAR DWELLINGS VALUATION VETERANS 41A& 41C PROCESSED

2000 2798 801, 451, 400 56 20 37

1999 2756 641, 174, 600 56 22 21

1998 2701 594, 297,600 58 23 51
1997 2704 594, 221, 800 57 20 16
1996 2659 537, 368, 800 61 20 29

1995 2631*    507, 492, 70()    59 26 48
1994 2726 542, 210,900 57 35 47
1993 2619 540, 154, 100 57 33 72
1992 2548 529,677, 990 57 33 70

1991 2424 519, 317, 777 61 31 48

1990 2382 602, 174, 559 63 35 49

DECREASE OF DWELLINGS DUE TO RE-CLASSIFICATION OF VACANT LAND.

MOTOR VEHICLE ASSESSMENT AND ABATEMENTS

MOTOR VEHICLE
NO. OF EXCISE TOTAL TOTAL COMMERCIAL
EXCISE TAX MONEY ABATEMENTS AMOUNT VALUE OF

YEARS BILLS COMMIIlED PROCESSED ABATED VEHICLES

2000 9336 1, 086,224.93 407 44320. 11 44,449,000
1999 9177 992,003.07 492 30,897.65 39,680, 120
1998 8849 917,003. 88 428 35,734.96 36,680, 160
1997 8655 839,485. 12 602 40,891. 41 33, 579, 400
1996 8688 776, 163. 48 433 37,027.65 31, 046, 520
1995 8775 750,292.63 598 40, 166. 77 30,011, 720
1994 8458 697,827. 98 602 35, 306. 92 27,913, 119
1993 8394 617,048. 77 569 34,041, 43 24,683, 951
1992 8012 549,355. 76 356 20,873. 14 24,721, 360
1991 7951 598,036.22 350 14, 729.43 25,321,045
1990 7883 556,948.20 452 23, 444.40 24, 928, 263
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For the year ending December 31, 2000

TOTAL AMOUNTS TO BE RAISED:
0.70164, 86

Total appropriations to be raised by taxation
20,    

860. 70

Total appropriations to be taken from available funds
764,

20624.
0(1

Total educational offsets

Fiscal 2001

County Assessments:
County Tax:    

53, 287, 00
53, 287. 00

State Assessments:

Mass Bay Transportation
226,367.00

Air Pollution Control Dist.    2, 537.00

Met Area Planning Council 2, 186. 00

Mosquito Control Project 21, 406.00
252,496.00

Total

Overlay of Current Year
20,642,646.38

Total Amount to be raised

Estimated Receipts and other Revenue Sources:

2001 Fiscal Year Receipts as
certified on Cherry Sheet 4, 547,215.00

Motor Vehicle& Trailer Exise 1, 030,097.00

Licenses& Pennits 238,672.00

Fines& Forfeits 18, 859.00

Penalties& Interest on
223 00

Taxes& Excise
533

Charges for service— water 51, 939.

002,
93

Other Charges for Services
Charges for Services—

557.00
Trash Disposal

1219,,
557.

00
Fees

2 _548,
255.,25500

Rentals

Other Departmental Revenue
00

Investment Income 66300
In Lieu of Tax Payments

8,319._
0_

Refunds& Reimbursements 6,529,427.00
Total:

Amount to be taken from available funds
For particular purposes and to reduce 0-

H, 25,764.70
The Tax Rate

5

Total Estimated Receipts and Available Funds 18, 515,761, 70

Net amount to be raised by Taxation on Property 12, 116,886.38

TOTAL RECEIPT'S FROM ALL SOURCES
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Total Valuation:

Real Estate 814, 139, 100
Personal Property 10,551, 680

Total
824, 828, 780

Fiscal Year 2001 Tax Rate per Thousand:
Total:     14. 69

130



FINANCES

BOARD OF ASSESSORS

2000 was an exciting year for the Board of Assessors.     The Board of Assessors would like to extend its thanks

The year' s top event was a
recertification of Real Estate values to Chief Assessor, Debbie Robbins for her professionalism and

for Fiscal Year 2001. The Board of Assessors would like to dedication to the office. The Board of Assessors also wishes to

thank the Chief Assessor, Debbie Robbins and Appraisal extend its appreciation to Senior Clerks, Kathleen Mullineaux

Vision Technology, Inc. for completing this re- certification and Joan l  ,  ndDaa
lletohrHarshall for

in a timely manner.     
knowledge,      ies andservice r thepublic.

Mrs. Donna L. Putt was elected as Chairman with Mr.     As we begin another year, the Board of Assessors and

David A. Roche serving as Clerk and John G. Robbins serving its

staBoaraand
will

lts

continue

taff

a to

will makn

e

th to seerve

he

ooce
re efficient.ffi ient.

ty he
e

as Member. a professional manner.
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TOWN MEETING WARRANT

NORFOLK, ss.

To either Constable in the Town of Norfolk, in said County:
GREETINGS:

You are required in the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts to notify and warn the inhabitants
of Norfolk, qualified to vote in Town affairs residing in Precincts 1, 2, and 3, to assemble in the
designated polling places in the Freeman/ Centennial School, MacBride Auditorium, 70 Boardman Street,Norfolk, Massachusetts, on Tuesday, May 1, 2001 at 7: 00 a. m., for the election of town officers under
ARTICLE 1, of the Annual Town Meeting; and thence to meet oh Saturday, May 5, 2001, at 9: 00 a. m.
at the King Philip High School, 201 Franklin Street, Wrentham, Massachusetts 02093, for the
adjourned business session of the Annual Town Meeting, then and there to act on the following articlescommencing with Article 2: viz.

ARTICLE 1,
Submitted by Town ClerkTo choose by ballot the following officers:  

viz, one Moderator for a one year term; one Selectman for athree year term; one Assessor for a three year term; one Assessor for one year to complete an unexpiredterm; one Board of Health member for a three year term; one Library Trustee for a three year term; one
Water Commissioner for a three year term; two Planning Board members each for a three year term; twoRecreation Commission members each for a three year term; one Housing Authority member for a five
year term; one Norfolk School Committee member for a three year term, and two Constables each for athree year term, and to choose by ballot the following question:
QUESTION 1

Shall the Town of Norfolk accept Sections 3 through 7, inclusive, of Chapter 44B of the MassachusettsGeneral Laws ( the " Community Preservation Act"), as petitioned by 5% of the registered voters, asummary of which appears below?

Yes - No

SUMMARY:

If passed, the Act will be effective beginning July 1, 2001.

According to guidelines set forth in the Act, acceptance of Sections 3 to 7 inclusive, will enable the Townof Norfolk to create a funding mechanism, form a specialized committee, establish a designated fund, andrecommend allocation of funding, for community preservation purposes consisting of:   acquisition,creation and preservation of open space, including land for recreational use; acquisition, creation andpreservation of historic structures and landscapes; and creation and preservation of community housing.
a) 

Credignsibsi2mniuMechanism

According to guidelines set forth in Section 3 of the Act, the Town of Norfolk hereby establishes afunding mechanism to support community preservation. The funding mechanism shall be in the formof a three percent ( 3%) 

surcharge on the real estate tax levy imposed upon real property asdetermined annually by Norfolk's Board of Assessors.
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b) Authorized Exemptions and Abatements Not Affected

All exemptions and abatements of real property authorized by Chapter 59 of the Massachusetts
General Laws or any other law for which a taxpayer qualifies as eligible shall not be affected by the
Act.  A taxpayer receiving an exemption of real property authorized by said Chapter 59 or any other
law shall be exempt from any surcharge on real property established under Section 3 of the Act. The
surcharge to be paid by a taxpayer receiving an abatement of real property authorized by said
Chapter 59 or any other law shall be reduced in proportion to the amount of such abatement.

c) Exemptions

In addition, the Town of Norfolk hereby accepts the following exemptions provided in Section 3( e) of
the Act from the three percent( 3%) surcharge:

1 Property owned and occupied as a domicile by a person who would qualify for low
income housing or low or moderate income senior housing in the Town; and

2 100, 000 of the value of each taxable parcel of residential real property in the Town.

d) Creation of a Community Preservation Committee

A Community Preservation Committee will be established by adding a new section, Section 8, to
Article III, Committees, of the General Bylaws as follows:

Section 8 Community Preservation Committee

a) Establishment of Committee; Purpose: A Community Preservation Committee is hereby.
eestablished pursuant to Section 5 of Chapter 44B of the Massachusetts General Laws, as

authorized by Chapter 267 of the Acts of 2000, whose purpose is to make recommendations to
the Town Meeting for community preservation.

b) Definitions: The terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall be given the definitions set
forth in Sections 1 and 2 of the Massachusetts Community Preservation Act.

c) Membership and Appointment:       Hinted members.
a.  The Community Preservation Committee shall consist of nine( 9) app
b.  The nine members of the Community Preservation Committee shall consist of the

following members:
I.  One member of the Conservation Commission established under Section 8C of

Chapter 40 as designated by the Commission;
ii.  One member of the Historical Commission established under Section 8D of

Chapter 40 as designated by such commission;
iii.  One member of the Planning Board established under Section 81A of Chapter 41

as designated by such board;
iv.  One member of the Recreation Commission established under Section 2 of

Chapter 45 as designated by such commission;
v.  One member of the Housing Authority established under Section 3 of Chapter

121B as designated by such authority;
vi.  Four citizens appointed by the Board of Selectmen.

c.  The four citizens appointed by the Board of Selectmen pursuant to Section ( c) b. vi. herein
shall be chosen one from each of the four precincts.

d.  The Director of Municipal Finance shall be an Ex Officio, Non Voting member of the
Community Preservation Committee.
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d)  Term of appointment:
a.  

The terms of the Community Preservation Committee members appointed by the
Conservation Commission, Historical Commission, Planning Board, Recreation
Commission and Housing Authority as provided in Sections ( c) b. i. through v. shall be for
one( 1) year, and such boards and commissions shall appoint their respective designeeannually

b.  

The terms of the Community Preservation Committee members appointed by the Board
of Selectmen as provided in Section ( c) b. vi. shall be for three ( 3) years, except for the
first appointments made pursuant to this bylaw, in which case two appointments shall be
two( 2) year appointments and two appointments shall be three ( 3) year appointmentsc.  

The members of the Community Preservation Committee may be reappointed for as
many terms as authorized by the appointing authority.d.  

All appointments become effective upon being duly sworn in by the Town Clerk.
e) Powers and Duties: The Community Preservation Committee shall have all of the powers and

duties intended for such committees as set forth in Section 5 of the Massachusetts CommunityPreservation Act, which includes, among others, the followinga.  

To make recommendations ( including anticipated cost information) to Town Meeting forthe acquisition, creation and preservation of open space including land for recreationaluse; for the acquisition and preservation of historic resources; and for the creation,
preservation and support of community housing;b.  

To submit an annual administrative and operating budget for the CommunityPreservation Committee, which cannot exceed five percent( 5%) of the annual revenuesin the Community Preservation Fund, to Town Meeting for approval;c.  

To establish rules and regulations for its operation, election of officers, conduct of publichearings and performance of any and all other administrative acts as are within the
scope and intent of the Massachusetts Community Preservation Act or this bylaw, as
necessary to accomplish the purposes of the Massachusetts Community Preservation Actand this bylaw;

d.  

As provided in the Massachusetts Community Preservation Act, no expenditures shall be
made from the Community Preservation Fund without the approval of Town Meeting.

ARTICLE 2.

Snnel BoardTo see if the Town will vote to amend the Norfolk Personnel Bylawsu by adding to the ClassificationSchedule the following:

SECTION IX.    
ADMINISTRATION OF THE SALARY CLASSIFICATION PLANC.   Classification Schedule
Administrative/ Clerical
Clerk, Planning Board Grade 6

or take any other action relative thereto.
ARTICLE 3.
STosee if the Town will vote to add the duties and functions

ofu
he' previosly approved

by Board of
ePPersonnelAdministrator position to the duties

and responsibilities of the Town Administrator;   r take any
el

action relative thereto.    y other

ARTICLE 4.
To see if the Town

will vote to fix the salary and compensation of allleelected
Bo

f Selectmen
the Town asprovided for by Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 41, Section 108; and to authorize any board orcommittee to employ its members for additional

salary or compensation, and to fix the salary or
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compensation thereof; and further to see what sum of money the Town will raise and appropriate,
transfer from any available source of funds, borrow or bond, to defray the departmental and incidental
expenses of the Town not otherwise provided for, for the fiscal year commencing on July 1, 2001; or take

any other action relative thereto. ( Omnibus Budget)

ARTICLE 5. Submitted by Water Commissioners
To see what sum of money the Town will vote to transfer from Water Department revenue to fund the
Water Department, maintenance, and operating expenses; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 6.   Submitted by Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from any available source of funds, borrow
or bond pursuant to any applicable statute to fund capital and other expense items; or take any other
action relative thereto.  ( Omnibus Capital)

ARTICLE 7. Submitted by Water Commissioners
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, borrow pursuant to any applicable statute, or
transfer from Water Department' revenue a sum of money for the center of Town Revitalization Project in
conjunction with Article 5, of the November 1996 Fall Town Meeting; or take any other action relative
thereto.

ARTICLE 8.       Submitted by Personnel Board

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate or transfer from available funds a sum of money to
fund a Study of the Town of Norfolk Personnel Bylaw Classification and Compensation Schedules; or take
any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 9.       Submitted by King Philip.High School Superintendent
To see if the Town will raise and appropriate a sum of money for the Town' s share of the King Philip
Regional School' s Capital Plan for Fiscal Year 2002; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 10. Submitted by Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to transfer management of three adjacent parcels of land described as the
old town hall property, as shown on Assessors Map 14, Block 56, Lot 33; the old town pond property, as
shown on Assessors Map 22, Block 56, Lot 34, and the Robert Foss Memorial Park, as shown on
Assessors Map 14, Block 56, Lot 32, to the Board of Selectmen for the purpose of relocating the Norfolk
MBTA train station, and to petition the State Legislature, if necessary; or take any other action relative
thereto.

ARTICLE 11.     Submitted by King Philip High School Superintendent
To see if the Town will vote to approve the indebtedness authorized by the Regional District School
Committee of the King Philip Regional School District for the cost of additions,  renovations and
remodeling of the existing high school and the cost of construction of an addition to and remodeling and
renovations to the existing middle school, which approval shall not take effect until the Town votes to
exempt from the limitation on total taxes imposed by G. L. c59, S. 21C ( Proposition 2 1/ 2 ) amounts

required to pay for the Town' s share of the principal and interest on the borrowing authorized by the
District.

ARTICLE 12.
Submitted by Golf Study Committee

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from any available source of funds, or
borrow or bond, pursuant to any applicable state statute, a sum of money to fund the purchase of
various parcels of land to be used for the construction of a municipal golf course, including costs
incidental thereto; or take any other action relative thereto.     
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ARTICLE 13.    Submitted by Golf Study Committee
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from any available source of funds, or
borrow or bond, pursuant to any applicable state statute, a sum of money to fund study, planning and
design costs for the construction of a municipal golf course, including costs incidental thereto; or take any
other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 14.    Submitted by Golf Study Committee
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from any available source of funds, or
borrow or bond, pursuant to any applicable state statute, a sum of money to fund construction costs for
a municipal golf course, including costs incidental thereto; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 15.    Submitted by Library Trustees
To see if the Town will vote to approve the renovation and expansion of the Norfolk Public Library; or
take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 16.    Submitted by Library Trustees
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, borrow or bond, a sum of money to design,
construct, renovate and furnish an expanded/ renovated public library including costs incidental thereto,
on Main Street, located on Assessors Map 14, Block 51, Lot 1 and Map 14, Block 41, Lot 10, and that the
Treasurer be authorized to borrow under the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44,
Section ( 7) 3 or any other enabling authority and to issue bonds or notes therefor, with the approval of
the Board of Selectmen; said borrowing to be contingent on ( a) the approval by the town of a debt
service exemption ballot referendum in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws,  Chapter 59,
Section 21C, and ( b) on receipt of funding from the Massachusetts Public Library Construction Program;
or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 17.       Submitted by Fire Department/ Permanent Building Committee
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from any available source of funds, or
borrow/ bond pursuant to any applicable statute, a sum of money for the purpose of purchasing by
negotiated purchase or by eminent domain a parcel of land, and that the Board of Selectmen be
authorized to enter into any and all agreements and execute any and all instruments as may be
necessary on behalf of the Town of Norfolk to affect said purchase; or take any other action relative
thereto. ( Site is to be the location of the proposed new Fire Station).

ARTICLE 18. Submitted by Fire Department/ Permanent Building Committee
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from any available source of funds, or
borrow/ bond pursuant to any applicable statute, a sum of money for Architectural and Engineering
Design of the proposed new Fire Station, costs designated as Phase 1 on the Facility Needs Assessment
dated February 14, 2001 prepared by A. Lieb Architects; or take any other action relative thereto.
ARTICLE 19.       

Submitted by Board of Selectmen
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a sum of money to be used for road repairs as
outlined in the Street Inventory Report prepared for the Town of Norfolk dated February, 2001, said
funds contingent upon the vote of an override; or take any other action relative thereto.
ARTICLE 20.

Submitted by Board of Selectmen
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from any available source of funds, or
borrow or bond pursuant to any applicable statute, to increase the sum of money that was voted in
Article 10 of the 2000 Fall Town Meeting to construct sanitary sewer lines along Old Populatic Road,
including shared costs with the Town of Franklin; or take any other action relative thereto.
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ARTICLE 21. Submitted by Board of Selectmen
To see if the Town will choose any committee, or to hear or act on the report of any committee, town
officer, or to instruct any committee or town officer; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 22. Submitted by Petition
To see if the Town of Norfolk will vote to abandon one Toils End Road as it pertains to 39 Maple
Street/ Lot 2 as viewed on Plan # 299 of 1997 in Plan Book 447 at the Norfolk Registry of Deeds; or take

any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 23. Submitted by Petition
To see if the Town will vote to amend Zoning By Laws by deleting Section F.4.b. 2 in its entirety, and
insert a new Section F. 4. b. 2 as follows:

If a nonconforming structure has been destroyed or damaged by fire, flood, earthquake, or other
catastrophe, such building riay be rebuilt or restored subject to the granting of a building permit:
provided such rebuilding and restoring shall be completed within twelve months of the issuance of a
building permit, and the structure as rebuilt or restored shall not be in greater non- conformity than
before; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 24. Submitted by Petition

To see if the Town will vote to petition the State Legislature to enact the following Recall Procedure; or
take any other action relative thereto.

An Act Providing for Recall Elections in the Town of Norfolk

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Court assembled, and by the
authority of the same, as follows:

Section 1.      A holder of an elected office in the Town of Norfolk may be recalled therefrom by the
registered voters of said town as herein provided, except that the maximum number of members of a
board that may be recalled is a majority.

Section 2.      Any two hundred registered oters of the Town of Norfolk may initiate a recall petition by
filing with the Town Clerk an affidavit containing the name of the officer sought to be recalled and a
statement of the grounds for recall.  At least sixty-six names of registered voters shall be from each of
the voting precincts into which said town is divided.  Said Town Clerk shall thereupon deliver to said

voters making such affidavit, a sufficient number of copies of petition blanks demanding such recall, a
supply of which shall be kept on hand.   Such blanks shall be issued by the Town Clerk, with his/ her
signature and official seal attached thereto.   Further, such blanks shall be dated, shall be addressed to
the Selectmen of said town and shall contain the names of all persons to whom they are issued, the
name of the person whose recall is sought and the grounds of recall as stated in the affidavit and shall
demand the election of a successor to said office.   A copy of the affidavit shall be entered in a record
book to be kept in the office of said Town Clerk.  Said recall petition shall be returned and filed with the
Town Clerk within twenty days after the filing of the affidavit and shall be signed by at least fifteen
percent of the registered of said town, who shall add to their signatures their place of residence,
including their street, number and precinct; provided; however, that not more than thirty-three and one
third percent of the total number shall be from any one precinct.
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The Town Clerk shall, within twenty-four hours of receipt thereof, submit the signed petition to
the Registrars of Voters in the town and said registrars shall, within five working days, certify thereon the
number of signatures which are names of registered voters of the town.

Section 3.      If the petition shall be found and certified by the Town Clerk to be sufficient, said Town
Clerk shall submit the same with his certificate to the Selectmen within five working days, give written
notice of receipt of the certificate to the officer sought to be recalled and shall, if the officer does not
resign within five days thereafter, order an election to be held on a date fixed by them not less that sixty-
five nor more than ninety days after the date of the Town Clerk's certificate that a sufficient petition has
been filed; provided, however, that if any other town election is to occur within one hundred days after
the date of the certificate the Selectmen shall postpone the holding of the recall election to the date of
such other election.  No person shall be subject to recall if his term of office expires within ninety days of
this certificate.  If a vacancy occurs in said office after a recall election has been ordered, the election
shall nevertheless proceed as provided in this section.

Section 4.      An officer sought to be removed may be a candidate to succeed himself and, unless such
officer requests otherwise in writing, the Town Clerk shall place his name on the ballot without
nomination.  The nomination of other candidates, the publication of the warrant for the removal election
and the conduct of same, shall be in accordance with the provisions of law relative to elections unless
otherwise provided herein.

Section 5.      An incumbent shall continue to perform the duties of the office until a recall election is
held.  If not recalled, such officer shall continue in office for the remainder of his unexpired term subject
to recall as before, except as provided in this section.  If such officer is recalled in the recall election, he
shall be deemed removed upon the qualification of his successor, who shall hold office for the remainder
of the unexpired term.  If a successor fails to qualify within five days after receiving notification of his
election, the incumbent shall thereupon be deemed removed and the office vacant.
Section 6.      Ballots used in a recall election shall submit the following propositions in the orderindicated:

For the recall of( name of officer).
Against the recall of( name of officer).

Immediately at the right of each proposition there shall be an oval in which a voter, by
filling in the oval, may vote for either of said propositions.  Under the propositions shall appear the wordCandidate?, the directions to the voters required by Section forty-two of Chapter fifty-four of the
General Laws and, beneath this, the names of candidates nominated in accordance with the provisions of
law relating to elections.  If two-thirds of the votes cast upon the question of recall is in the affirmative,
the candidate receiving the highest number of votes shall be declared.  If more than one-third of the
votes on the question are in the negative, the ballots for candidates need not be counted.
Section 7.      No recall petition shall be filed against an officer within ninety days after he takes office
nor, in the case of an officer subjected to a recall election and not recalled thereby, until at least ninetydays after the election at which his recall was submitted to the voters.
Section 8.      No person who has been recalled from an office or who has resigned from office while
recall proceedings were pending against him shall be appointed to town office within one year after such
recall or such resignation.

Section 9.     This act shall take effect upon its passage.
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ARTICLE 25. Submitted by Petition

To see if the Town will vote to petition the State Legislature to enact the following Recall Procedure; or
take any other action relative thereto.

AN ACT PROVIDING FOR RECALL ELECTIONS IN THE TOWN OF NORFOLK.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Court assembled, and by the
authority of the same, as follows:

SECTION 1.  Any holder of an elected office in the Town of Norfolk may be recalled therefrom by the
qualified voters of said town as provided in this act for any of the following reasons: lack of fitness;
neglect of duties; corruption; misfeasance or violation of oath.  Exercising discretion in voting or acting

on matters before such office holder shall not constitute a reason for recall.

SECTION 2.  Any 200 registered voters of the Town of Norfolk may file with the Town Clerk an affidavit
containing the name of the officer sought to be recalled and a statement of the grounds for such recall.
At least 66 names of registered voters shall be from each of the voting precincts into which said town is
divided.   Upon certification of the required signatures, said Clerk shall thereupon deliver to the first
named voter on the affidavit copies of petition blanks addressed to the board of selectmen demanding
such recall, copies of which printed forms he shall keep available.  Said blanks shall be issued by said

Clerk with his signature and official seal attached thereto.  They shall be dated, shall contain the names
of all persons to whom they are issued, the name of the person whose recall is sought and the grounds
of recall as stated in the affidavit and shall demand the election of a successor to such office.  A copy of
the petition shall be entered in a record book to be kept in the office of said Clerk.  The recall petition
shall be returned and filed with said Clerk within 30 days after the filing of the affidavit and shall have
been signed by at least 25 per cent of the registered voters of the town as of the date such affidavit was
filed with said Clerk.  To every signature shall be added the place of residence of the signer, giving the
street and number, if any.  Said Clerk shall, within 72 hours of receipt thereof, submit the petition to the
registrars of voters in the town, and said registrars shall forthwith certify thereon the number of
signatures which are names of registered voters of the town.
SECTION 3. If the petition shall be found and certified by the Town Clerk to be sufficient, he shall
submit the same with his certificate to the board of selectmen without delay and said board shall
forthwith give written notice of the receipt of the certificate to the officer sought to be recalled.  If such

officer does not resign within five days thereafter, said board shall order an election to be held on a date
fixed by them not less than 65 nor more than 90 days after the date of said Clerk's certificate that asufficient petition has been filed; provided, however, that if any other town election is scheduled to occur
within 120 days after the date of the certificate, said board shall postpone the holding of the recall
election to the date of such other election. If a vacancy occur in said office after a recall election has
been ordered, the election shall nevertheless proceed as provided in this section.
SECTION 4. Any officer sought to be removed may be a candidatethe ballot withouthimseif

nless
he

The

requests otherwise in writing, the Town Clerk shall place his name
nomination of other candidates, the publication of the warrant for the recall election and the conduct of
the same shall all be in accordance with the provisions of law relating to elections, unless otherwise
provided in this act.

SECTION 5. The incumbent shall continue to perform the dutiesofhis unexpired term,
his office until the recall election.

recallonIf
l of

he is not recalled, he shall continue in office for the remainder
before, except as provided in section 7.   If he is recalled, he shall be deemed removed upon the
qualifications of his successor, who shall hold office during teleune pined term.  If

e incumbent

the

ssuccessor
thereupon be

to

qualify within five days after receiving notification of his

deemed removed and the office vacant.
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SECTION 6. Ballots used in a recall election shall submit the following propositions in the orderindicated:

For the recall of( name of officer)
Against the recall of( name of officer)

Immediately at the right of each proposition there shall be a square in which the voter, by making a crossmark ( x), may vote for either of said propositions.   Under the proposition shall appear the word
Candidates" and the directions to voters required by section 42 of chapter 54 of the General Laws and,beneath this, the names of candidates nominated as herein before provided.  If two-thirds of the votes

cast upon the question of recall is in the affirmative, then the candidate receiving the highest number ofvotes shall be declared elected.   If more than one- third of the votes cast on the question is in the
negative, then the ballots for candidates need not be counted.   If fewer than 25 per cent of the
registered voters of the town participate in the election, no votes need be counted and the election shallbe deemed to have determined that the incumbent should not be recalled.

SECTION 7. No recall petition shall be filed against an officer within six months after he takes office, nor
the last six months of his term, nor in the case of an officer subjected to a recall election and not recalled
thereby, until at least six months after the election at which his recall was submitted to the voters of thetown has elapsed.

SECTION 8. No person who has been recalled from an office or who has resigned from office while
recall proceedings were pending against him shall be appointed to any town office within two years aftersuch recall or resignation.

SECTION 9. This act shall take effect upon its passage.
ARTICLE 26.

Submitted by Board of Selectmen
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from any available source of funds a sum
of money to pay unpaid bills of a prior year pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 44, Section64; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 27.
Submitted by Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from any available source of funds a sum
of money to be added to departmental budgets and appropriations for the fiscal year ending on June 30,2001; or take any other action relative thereto.
ARTICLE 28,

Submitted by Board of SelectmenTo see if the Town will vote pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 53E 1/ 2, to
authorize the use of a revolving fund for the purpose of paying expenses related to the collection ofparking ticket violations; said fund to be credited with receipts collected not to exceed $ 1, 000 in fiscal
year 2002, under the direction of the Board of Selectmen; or take any other action relative thereto.
ARTICLE 29,

Submitted by Highway Superintendent
To see if the Town will vote to accept and authorize the Board of.Selectmen to enter into contracts forthe expenditure of Chapter 90 funds allocated by the Commonwealth for the construction, reconstruction,or improvements of public and other improvements within the Town, as requested by the Selectmen, and
to authorize the Treasurer to borrow or bond, pursuant to any applicable statute in anticipation ofreimbursement; or take any other action relative thereto.
ARTICLE 30.

Submitted by Highway SuperintendentTo see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to release or acquire by gift, purchase,
or otherwise, such easement as may be necessary for drainage purposes and the laying out of public
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ways, and to raise and appropriate, or transfer from any available source of funds, a sum of money for
said purpose; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 31.      Submitted by Water Commissioners

To see if the Town will vote to accept all State and Federal Grants and reimbursements for the Water
Department which do not require matching funds from the Town or any representative or agency thereof,
and will not obligate or encumber any resident of the Town of Norfolk without a town meeting; or take
any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 32.      Submitted by Water Commissioners

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the use of a revolving fund, pursuant to Massachusetts General
Laws, Chapter 44, Section 53E 1/ 2 for the purpose of a Department of Environmental Protection Cross
Connection Control Program, said revolving fund shall be credited with receipts from Inspection Services
under the authority and direction of the Board of Water Commissioners, such expenditures not to exceed

5, 000 and to see what sum of money the Town will appropriate from available funds to establish the
revolving fund; or take any other action relative there ..

ARTICLE 33. Submitted by Highway Superintendent

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from any available source of funds, or
borrow or bond pursuant to any applicable statute sums of money necessary to complete work associated
with the installation of underground utilities and provided utility companies to repay the Town for the
cost of such work pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 166, Section 22E, or special
legislation enacted at the request of the Town under Article 14 of the 1998 Fall Town Meeting; or take
any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 34. 
Submitted by Highway Superintendent

To see if the Town will vote pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 53E 1/ 2, to
authorize the use of a revolving fund for the purpose of paying the expenses of snow removal including
maintenance and replacement of equipment, from private property to Include the King Philip Regional
School and subdivision roads as required by the Planning Board rules and regulations; said fund to be
credited with receipt of fees charged for this service under the authority and direction of the Board of
Selectmen, such expenditures not to exceed $ 20, 000.00 in fiscal year 2002; or take any other action
relative thereto.

ARTICLE 35. 
Submitted by Highway Superintendent

To see if the Town will vote pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 53E 1/ 2, to
authorize the use of a revolving fund for the purpose of paying the expenses of Recreational Field
Maintenance, including materials, replacement and rental of equipment and contract labor; said fund to
be credited with receipt of fees charged for this service under the authority and direction of the
Recreation Commission, such expenditures not to exceed $ 50, 000. 00 in fiscal year 2002; or take any
other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 36. 
Submitted by Highway Superintendent

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to accept grant funds from the
Massachusetts Technology Park Corporation in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws Chapter
40), Section 4E and to apply or transfer such grant funds to offset fees incurred with the SEMASS
Partnership; or take any other action relative thereto.

141



ARTICLE 37. Submitted by Conservation Commission
To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Conservation Management Revolving Fund pursuant to
Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 53E 1/ 2, from which to receive and disburse funds to

develop and oversee management activities and projects on town-owned conservation land,  in an
amount not to exceed $ 5000 during fiscal year 2002; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 38. Submitted by Conservation Commission
To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Conservation Commission Revolving Fund pursuant to
Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 53E 1/ 2, from which to receive and disburse wetland

hearing application fees for payment of legal advertisement for said hearing, in an amount not to exceed
5000 during fiscal year 2002; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 39.      Submitted by Planning Board
To see if the Town will vote to re-authorize, pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44,

Section 53E 1/ 2, a Planning Board Revolving Fund for receipt of subdivision performance inspection fees,
as they may be established by the Planning Board, with the authorization of the Planning Board to
expend funds in the account for services related to the inspection and approval of subdivisions, such
payments not to exceed $ 40,000 in the aggregate during fiscal year 2002; or take any other action
relative thereto.

ARTICLE 40.      Submitted by Planning Board
To see if the Town will vote to re-authorize, pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44,

Section 53E 1/ 2, a Planning Board Revolving Fund for receipt of mitigation funds, required by the
Planning Board under the Shade Tree Act and Scenic Roads Act, with the authorization to the Planning
Board to expend funds in the account for the purchase and planting of replacement trees, such payments
not to exceed$ 40,000 in the aggregate during fiscal year 2002; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 41.      Submitted by Planning Board
To see if the Town will vote to re-authorize, pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44,

Section 53E 1/ 2, a Planning Board Revolving Fund for receipt of mitigation funds,  required by the
Planning Board, relative to off-site improvements required due to the approval of subdivisions and site
plans, with the authorization to the Planning Board to expend funds in the account for such off-site
improvements, such payments not to exceed $ 500,000 in the aggregate during fiscal year 2002; or take
any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 42.      Submitted by Planning Board
To see if the Town will vote to re-authorize, pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44,
Section 53E 1/ 2, a Planning Board Revolving Fund for receipt of funds required by the Planning Board
relative to the cleaning and maintenance of unaccepted subdivision roadways and drainage structures as
may be required by the Planning Board for subdivision approvals, such payments not to exceed $ 50, 000
in the aggregate during fiscal year 2002; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 43.      Submitted by Planning Board
To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to accept any monies received through
grants applied for by various Town Departments/ Boards; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 44.      Submitted by Planning Board
To see if the Town will vote to reaffirm its vote under Article 25 of the Town Meeting of October 28, 2000
to accept as a gift of land, or take by eminent domain pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws Chapter
79, and further to accept as a public way, Cress Brook Road, a distance of 492. 15 +/- feet from Medway
Street to the end of the cul- de-sac, together with the utility, sight line, sidewalk, future through- roadway,
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To see if the Town will vote to adopt a new zoning map which was prepared by Judith Nitsch
Engineering, Inc. and is dated April 16, 2001, and to revise Section C. 2. a. of the zoning bylaws, by
deleting the current section and replacing it with a new section to read as follows:

C. 2.a. Said districts are located and bounded as shown on a map entitled " Zoning Map, Norfolk
Massachusetts", dated April 16, 2001 as most recently amended and on file in the office of the Town
Clerk, The Zoning Map, with all explanatory matter thereon, is hereby made part of this bylaw."

The proposed new zoning map is available for public inspection in the office of the Town Clerk and
Planning Board office.)

or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 49.     Submitted by Property Owner
To see if the Town will vote to amend the Norfolk Zoning Bylaw to create the following new Section L, C-
6 Residential/ Commercial Use District ( Route 1A, Dedham Street) and to amend Sections C. 1, D. 1. e. 2,
D. 1. e. 3, D. 2, E. 1. b, F. 7. b, F. 7. e, F. 9. b, F. 12. c. 1, F. 13, H. i.b, H. 1. c. 2 & H. i.c. 6 as follows:

L. 1. Purpose

The Master Plan of the Town of Norfolk has identified the goal of promoting development which can
enhance the fiscal stability of the town and provide additional opportunities for employment and services
as further described in Parts A and B of the Master Plan.  In order to implement these goals, the Town
establishes this section for the C- 6 Residential/ Commercial Use District.

L. 2,  Local Standards

Section L shall supersede the following sections of the Zoning Bylaw:  Section D. 1. e.  Buffer/ Green
Belt/ Landscaping Requirements in Non- Residential Districts, D. 2. ( Use Regulation), E. 1. b. ( Schedule of
Dimensional Requirements), E. 1. c. ( LOT Width, FRONTAGE, Setback Line), E. 1. d (YARD Requirements),
E. 1, e, ( BUILD FACTOR), E. 2. ( Modifications) except E. 2. e. ( Visual Corner Clearance), F.4.a. ( Alteration
and Enlargement), and F. S. ( ACCESSORY BUILDINGS) except F. 5. e. ( MOBILE HOMES).  All other sections

of the Zoning Bylaw, except where otherwise specifically stated herein, shall apply within the C- 6
Residential/ Commercial District.

L. 3. District Boundaries

The C- 6 District has as its non- road boundaries the Norfolk/ Walpole Town Line at its eastern limit and the
southeastern property line of assessors map 26, parcel 15 along with the southeastern property line of
the New York/ New Haven/ Hartford Railroad at its' southeastern limit.  The district boundaries are more
specifically shown on the Norfolk Zoning Map as most recently amended.
L.4.  Lot and Yard Requirements and Standards

L.4. a. General C- 6 District Requirements:

L.4, a. 1. PLANNED MULTI- LOT DEVELOPMENT.   PLANNED MULTI- LOT DEVELOPMENT (" PMLD") is

the development of not less than 80,000 square feet of land into a formally associated group of LOTS or
BUILDING sites as part ofa common scheme by Special Permit by the Planning Board so that such LOTS
or BUILDING sites need not be self-sustaining and adequate common provisions are made for parking,
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L. 4. a. 5. Location of Drives and Streets.  Major street or site entrances shall not be located within 250
feet of each other.  Sites whose uses will generate a single daily peak traffic volumes of 150 vehicles or
more must provide a second emergency accessway onto the site.  Such access may be for emergency
vehicles only and need not be a functioning roadway other than maintained for emergency vehicle
usability.

L4.a. 6. Street Trees.   Other than as needed for drives and entrances, a 30 foot wide grass strip
adjacent and parallel to the FRONTAGE of any LOT On Highway shall be landscaped with high canopy
trees in accordance with the Town' s subdivision regulations and low- lying plants which will not obstructsight distances from entry drives.  All LOTS or building sites Off Highway shall be landscaped with a 20
foot landscaped area and with STREET trees as required by the Town' s subdivision regulations.
On Highway shall be defined to be a LOT or site with FRONTAGE on a public way or STREET.   Off
Highway shall be defined to be a private access road that is not a public way or street.
L.4. a. 7. Building Height.  Buildings shall not be more than 45 feet in height.

L. 4. a. 8. Building Scale.  No BUILDING FOOTPRINT, other than Offices, shall exceed 50,000 square feet
except by Special Permit by the Zoning Board of Appeals.

L.4,a. 9. Utilities.   All utilities shall be located underground.   All utility outlets, service entrances,
transformers and utility services shall generally be centrally clustered in a neat and orderly fashion and
shall be located to the rear of BUILDINGS or if at a non- rear location shall be screened from view.

L. 4.a. 10 Street Lights. The applicant shall be responsible for furnishing and erecting street lights at
locations approved by the Planning Board. Street light fixtures and standards shall conform to fixtures
and standards as most recently installed in the Town of Norfolk at the time of application. In the
alternative, such fixtures and standards may be as approved by the Planning Board as part of acomprehensive plan submitted under L. 4. a. 2.

L.4. b.  Lot and Building Requirements and Standards

L. 4. b. 1.  General Requirements

L.4. b. 1. A.  No Commercial BUILDING, STRUCTURE, use, PARKING AREA, driveway, vehicle circulation
area or other vehicle access way shall be located within 50 feet of a residentially occupied BUILDING' Sproperty or LOT line or within 50 feet of a Residential District.
L.4. b. 1. B.  Any use, except those listed in Section D. 1. c. ( public, religious, educational, etc.) of this

zoning bylaw, FARMER' S MARKETS, Open Space, Village Greens and Squares, shall have a BUILDINGwith a minimum FOOTPRINT of 1, 000 square feet.

L,4. b. 1. C.  A green belt shall be provided on any commercially used LOT that abuts a Residential District
or a LOT with a residentially occupied BUILDING.  A green belt shall be provided on any LOT having anASSISTED LIVING FACILITY. Such green belt shall:
L.4, b. 1. C.1.  Be located on the LOT along the shared property line.

L,4. b. 1. C. 2.  Have a minimum depth from the shared property line of 50 feet.
L.4.b. 1. C. 3.  Be used for no purpose other than planting and/ or sidewalks.

L. 4. b. 1. C. 4.  Constitute a screen of evergreen trees and/ or shrubs not more than 15 feet apart planted intwo or more staggered rows.  The distance between each row shall not be more than 10 feet.  Plantsshall be no less than 6 feet in height at the time of planting and shall be continuously maintained.
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In those circumstances where an effective screen of existing plantings already provides an appropriate
buffer, the Planning Board has the discretion, during the Site Plan Approval process, to waive strict
compliance with Section L. 4.b. 1. D., provided that the intent of Section L. 4. b. 1. D. is met. If such a waiver
is granted, the Planning Board shall, in its Site Plan Approval, require that the green belt be maintained
and replanted where necessary to provide an effective screen throughout the life of the site and the
STRUCTURE.

L. 4. b. 1. D. All YARD setbacks are to be measured from the LOT lines.

L.4. b. 1. E.  Landscaping Requirements:  For each foot of FRONTAGE and each linear foot of private access

road, the LOT shall contain 40 square feet of landscaping.  This requirement shall not be condi io' ed to
require landscaping of more than 20% of the LOT.  In those circumstances where an effective screen of

existing plantings already provides an appropriate buffer, the Planning Board has the discretion, during
the Site Plan Approval process, to waive strict compliance with Section L. 4. b. 1. C., provided that the intent
of Section L.4. b. 1. C. is met.   If such a waiver is granted, the Planning Board shall, in its Site Plan
Approval,  require that the green belt be maintained and replanted where necessary to provide an
effective screen throughout the life of the site and the STRUCTURE.
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L. 4. b. 2. Highway Oriented Buildings ( along Route 1A and Dedham Street)

r----.   Lots and Yard Requirements and Standards for On Highway Oriented Buildings
Planned Multi- Lot Commercial Planned Multi-Lot Residential
Commercial Residential
Development Development

Minimum front 50 feet 50 feet 50 feet 50 feetYARD setback

Minimum LOT size 8, 000 square feet 30,000 square feet 8, 000 square feet 30, 000 square feet
Maximum LOT 70 percent-    60 percent 60 percent 60 percentCOVERAGE

Minimum side 0 feet* 25 feet 0 feet*  25 feetYARD setbacks

Minimum LOT 40 feet 75 feet 40 feet 150 feetFRONTAGE

Minimum rear 10 feet 25 feet 50 feetYARD setback 50 feet

from lot line)

Except end buildings which shall have the SIDEYARD setbacks for commercial or residentialdevelopment.

L.4. b.3. Non- Highway Oriented Buildings and Standards for Off Highway Oriented Buildings

Lots and Yard Requirements and Standards for Off Highway Oriented Buildings I
Planned Multi- Lot Commercial Planned Multi- Lot ResidentialCommercial

Residential
Development

Development
Minimum front 15 feet 40 feet 50 feetYARD setback 50 feet

Minimum LOT size 8, 000 square feet 30, 000 square feet 8, 000 square feet 30,000 square feet
Maximum LOT 80 percent 60 percent 60 percent 60 percentCOVERAGE

Minimum side 0 feet* 25 feet 0 feet*YARD setbacks 25 feet

Minimum LOT 40 feet 100 feet 40feetFRONTAGE 150 feet

Minimum rear 10 feet 25 feet 50 feetYARD setback 50 feet
from lot line)

Except end buildings which shall have the SIDEYARD setbacks for commercial or residentialdevelopment.
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L.4. b.4. Residential Buildings and AGE RESTRICTIVE HOUSING

A)  Location:  AGE RESTRICTED HOUSING shall be configured pursuant to the requirements of
section L.7. a.     ASSISTED LIVING FACILITIES shall be defined with a property/ site limit
boundary).

B)  Landscape Requirements:  For each foot of FRONTAGE and each linear foot of private access

road, the LOT shall contain 40 square feet of landscaping.   This requirement shall not be

conditioned to require landscaping of more than 20% of the LOT.

C)   Road and Circulation Requirements.   AGE RESTRICTED HOUSING shall have a through

access road providing two points of access to those residential buildings from a public way. Such
access road shall comply with the Planning Board Rules and Regulations for a residential STREET.
Dwellings configured on a cul de sac must comply with the Planning Board Rules and Regulations
for subdivision road/ drive layout and this road/ drive must connect directly to the through road.

D)  Building Height:  AGE RESTRICTED HOUSING units shall not exceed two and one half ( 2
1/ 2) Stories and shall not exceed a height of 35 feet.  ASSISTED LIVING FACILITIES shall not

exceed three ( 3) stories and shall not exceed a height of 45 feet.

E) AGE RESTRICTED HOUSING develop ments
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L. 5.  Sign Regulations

All signs and advertising devices within the C- 6 Residential/ Commercial District shall be subject to Section
F.9. Sign Regulations of the Zoning Bylaws.

L. 6.  Parking Requirements

The requirements of Section F. 7.,  Parking,  of these zoning bylaw are modified by the following
subsections.  In the event of a conflict between Section F. 7. and any of the following subsections, the
following subsections shall control.

L. 6. a.  Shared Parking.  Where the APPLICANT demonstratess to the Planning
la

withinBoard
C6 District

the
Site

be

Plan Approval process that parking spaces on the same side
utilized by more than one use located within 450 feet, such that vehicles occupying a particular number
of spaces are unlikely to require the use of those

spaces at the same time of day or the same day of the
week, the immediate construction of up to 30% of a parking area may

iben

ostponed, provid) 

ted:

ed:

ar(

i)

adequate land area is reserved for additional parking should it be needed
reserved for future parking is shown on the site plan, ( iii) no BUILDING or STRUCTURE may be placed in
any area reserved for future parking, ( iv) surety or other means of performance assurance in a form and
amount acceptable to the Planning Board Is given to the Town to ensure that such additional parkingr

i

of

area ( including drainage and landscaping) will be constructed if needed, and ( v) as apostponing such construction, the Planning Board shall review the adequacy of the parking area every
three years after endorsement of the site plan,  or more frequently upon

conmust to be suffic
est of the Zoninengt

Enforcement Officer,' and certify that the number of parking spacesprovided
having regard for the actual uses of the site.  The Planning Board shall be the determining authority
regarding the future need of such parking.
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L. 6. b.  Attribution of Parking.  Parking spaces may be considered as a part of the requisite parking
allocated to a particular LOT or use, if those spaces are entirely on that LOT or the use of the spaces has
been assured by assignment through easement or other legal guaranty on another lot.

L. 6.c.  Linked Parking.  PARKING AREAS of adjacent LOTS shall have reasonable and convenient off-
STREET vehicular connections.   Where adjacent property has not been developed, provision shall be
made for future off-STREET connections with adjacent properties; " reserved" strips of land or other
measures which preclude or are designed to prevent such off-STREET connections shall not be permitted.

L.6. d.  Residential Parking Requirements.  ASSISTED LIVING FACILITY parking shall have one off
street parking space per two residential units adjacent to the building plus one space per each four units
provided within the shared or attributed parking provisions of the C- 6 District.   AGE RESTRICTED
HOUSING shall have a minimum of two off street spaces per unit.

L. 7. Allowed and Special Permit Allowed Regulated Uses in the C- 6 District

No BUILDING, STRUCTURE or land in the C- 6 District shall be used for any purpose or in any manner
other than as set forth in this section.  Any use not specifically enumerated herein shall be deemed
prohibited.

All residential uses herein permitted shall be subject to Section F. 11 Site Plan Approval and Section F. 12
Design Review,

L.7, a. Allowed Uses

AGRICULTURAL, GREENHOUSE, Retail Nursery;
ADULT DAY CARE;

AGE RESTRICTED DWELLINGS shall not exceed two bedrooms per dwelling unit and shall not exceed a
ratio

of three units per acre on a single lot or an entire PMLD with the following Permitted Dwelling
Configurations: ( 1) Detached one Family dwelling; ( 2) Attached one-family dwellings in a Town house
style building not exceeding six; ( 6) Dwellings units per building and not exceeding two and one half
stories in height.];

ANIMAL HOSPITAL AND CLINIC;
Banks;

Community Gardens;
Dance or Gymnastics School;
Day Care, Family Home;
Exercise/ aerobics studio;

Facility for Physical Therapy, Rehabilitation, Health Club, Sports Medicine;
General office where clients or customers are seen, met or dealt with or without appointment;
business offices existing other than ancillary to a permitted use;
INDOOR COMMERCIAL RECREATION ( operated for profit);
Meeting Rooms or Buildings accessory to AGE RESTRICTED HOUSING;
Municipal, County, State or Federal;
Off-street parking of vehicles as provided for in Section F. 7.;
OUTDOOR COMMERCIAL RECREATION operated for profit.
Professional office where patients and clients are seen,  such as the office of a physician,
psychiatrist, physiotherapist, speech therapist, or other licensed health professionals occupied by
practitioners not resident on the premises;

RESTAURANT permitting the take out of prepared food as an accessory use to a RESTAURANT
use and occurring only from within the RESTAURANT facility;
Retail Stores or establishments offering primarily retail services;
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ROADSIDE STAND selling produce the major part of which is raised on the premises;
Signs as provided for in Section F. 8.;
Variety Store.

L.7. b. Special Permit Uses by the Zoning Board of Appeals
ASSISTED LIVING FACILITIES not exceeding a density of 16 bedrooms per acre for single lot or an

entire PMLD with Adult Day Care ( drop- in center) as an ancillary use and Meeting Rooms or
Buildings accessory to ASSISTED LIVING FACILITIES;

Dry Cleaning Establishments;
Garaging of commercial vehicles ancillary to an allowed or special permit use;
Licensed INN;

Small wastewater treatment facilities as regulated by the Town Board of Health to serve allowed or
special permit uses within the C6 district;Telecommunications consisting of WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES limited to the Wireless
Communications Overlay District 3 as provided for in Section F. 13.
WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY Equipment Building limited to the Wireless Communications
Overlay District 3 as provided for in Section F. 1:!

L. 7. c.  Prohibited Uses in the C- 6 District except as expressly exempt from restriction by Statute.
Aviation Field;

ADULT BUSINESS;

Class 3 Operations or Sales;
COMMERCIAL COMPOSTING;

DRY CLEANING OR POWER LAUNDRY;
Massage Parlors;

Power Generating Plant Generating More than 1500 Kilowatts of Electricity;
Foundation or Cellar Hole for Residence;
Hazardous Waste Treatment Facility;
Noncommercial Riding Stable;
Nonprofit General Acute Care Hospital;
OUTDOOR BUSINESS;

Outdoor Commercial Vehicle Storage;
SCRAP YARDS;
Truck Terminal or Motor Freight Station.

151



By amending Section C. 1. a. by striking" Health Maintenance and Professional Office" and" HM & P0" and
inserting in place thereof" Commercial- 6"" C- 6" so that the Types of Districts will read as follows:

C. 1. Types of Districts

C. 1. a.  For the purposes of this bylaw, the Town of Norfolk is hereby divided into the followinguse districts:

Residence R- 1
Residence R- 2
Residence R- 3
Business- 1 B- 1
Business- 2 through Business- 4 B- 2/ B- 4
Commercial- 1 C- 1
Commercial- 2 through Commercial- 5 C- 2/ C- 5
Commercial- 6 C- 6

By amending Section D. 1. e. 2 by deleting " HM & P0" as it appears therein so that D. 1. e. 2. will read asfollows:

D. 1. e. 2.  In the B2- B4 Districts, no BUILDING or STRUCTURE shall be located less than 50 feet
from a Residential District.  In the C2, C3 and C5 Districts, no BUILDING or STRUCTURE shall be
located less than 150 feet from a Residential District.  In the B2- B4, C2, C3 and C5 Districts, no
use ( including PARKING AREAS, driveways, vehicle circulation areas or other vehicle access ways)
shall be located less than 50 feet from a Residential District.

By amending Section D. 1. e.3 by deleting " HM & PO" as it appears therein so that D. 1. e.3. will read asfollows:

D. 1. e. 3.   In the B2- B4 Districts, a green belt shall be provided on any LOT that abuts a
Residential District should any use on said LOT ( including any BUILDINGS,  STRUCTURES,
driveways, PARKING AREAS, vehicle circulation areas or other vehicle access ways) be located
less than 100 feet from the Residential District.  In the C2, C3 and C5 Districts, a green belt shall
be provided on any LOT that abuts a Residential District. Such green belt shall:

D. 1. e.3. a.  Be located on the non- residential LOT along the shared property line.
D. 1. e.3. b.  Have a minimum depth from the shared property line of 30 feet.

D. 1. e. 3. c.  Be used for no purpose other than planting and/ or sidewalks.
D. 1. e. 3. d.  Constitute a screen of evergreen trees and/ or shrubs not more than 15 feet
apart planted in two or more staggered rows.  The distance between each row shall not
be more than 10 feet.  Plants shall be no less than 6 feet in height at the time of plantingand shall be continuously maintained.

In those circumstances where an effective screen of existing plantings already provides an
appropriate buffer, the Planning Board has the discretion, during the Site Plan Approval process,
to waive strict compliance with Section D. 1. e. 3., provided that the intent of Section D. 1. e. 3, is
met. If such a waiver is granted, the Planning Board shall, in its Site Plan Approval, require that
the green belt be maintained and replanted where necessary to provide an effective screenthroughout the life of the site and the STRUCTURE.
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iii

By amending Section D. 2. SCHEDULE OF USE REGULATIONS by deleting the column entitled " HM & PO"

and replacing it with a column entitled " C- 6****" with no uses noted;  and by adding at the end of

Section D. 2. a notation with **** and the phrase" See Section L". Section D. 2 shall then read as follows:

D. 2. SCHEDULE OF USE REGULATIONS

DISTRICTS

C2/

R B1 l B2-   Cl

i
C3/   C4 C6

B4    **     C5    ***    ****

D. 2. a. Public and Semi- Public Uses

D. 2. a. 1. Religious
Yes Yes Yes

D. 2. a. 2.  Municipal, County, State or Federal SP

p.2. a. 3.  Public Educational
Yes YesIIISP

D. 2. a. 4.  Cemetery
SP

1111
D. 2. a. 5. Private Club not conducted for . rofit SP   . Yes   SP

D. 2.a. 6.    Non- profit general acute care hospital No SP No

including facilities for the evaluation and treatment
of acutely ill alcoholic or drug dependent patients
and for persons suffering from mental illness who do
not appear to be dangerous to others at the time of
admission in the opinion of the attending ph sician

D. 2.a. 7.   Other hospitals,   convalescent home,   No SP No 1111
sanitarium cam.

SP    SP   . No   .®
D. 2. a. 8. Da care nurse

D. 2. a. 9.   NURSING HOME,   HOSPICE,   RESPITE No SP No

FACILITY, life care center, PHYSICAL THERAPY AND
REHABILITATION FACILITY, HEALTH CLUB, SPORTS
MEDICINE FACILITY ASSISTED LIVING FACILITY

D. 2. a. 10. Facility for the evaluation, 
treatment and No No No

counseling of persons suffering from alcoholism,
drug dependence or mental illness who do not
require general hospital admission

D. 2. a. 11.  Schools of nursing, laboratory technician No No II
No IIskills, physiotherapy with dormitory facilities ancillary

thereto

D. 2. a. 12.  Office or meeting room of a non- profit No Yes I` No

service or. anization
D. 2. b. l. Telephone exchange, transformer station,   

SP cP II Sp 11111transmission lines, substation, pumping station, or
other • ublic utili

D. 2. b. 3. Aviation field
No— No No
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ZONING BYLAW FOR THE TOWN OF NORFOLK, MASSACHUSETTS
Section D. USE REGULATIONS

DISTRICTS

R B1 B2-    Cl C2/

B4     **     C3/    C4 C6

CS     ***    ****
D2. b. 4.  Power generating plant generating more
than 1500 kilowatts of electricity No No No
D. 2. b. 5.  WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY

limited to Wireless Communications Overlay District
1 and Wireless Communications Overlay District 3 SP SP No
and as provided in Section F. 13.

D. 2.c. Residential Uses

D. 2. c. 1. SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING Yes SP No

D. 2. c.2. Conversion of a SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING,   SP SP No
in existence at the time of bylaw adoption, to a two
FAMILY DWELLING

D. 2. c. 3 HOME OCCUPATION Yes Yes Yes

D. 2. c.4. The use of a portion of a DWELLING or a Yes Yes No

BUILDING accessory thereto by a resident builder,
carpenter, painter, plumber, or other artisan, or by a
resident tree surgeon or landscape gardener for
incidental work and storage in connection with his
off-premises occupation.   Subject to the same
conditions and limitations as are specified above for
HOME OCCUPATIONS.

D. 2. c.5.  Renting of rooms to not more than 4 Yes Yes No
persons and furnishing of table board to not more
than 5 persons

D. 2. c.6. Use of trailers, buses and mobile units for No No No
residence in excess of 30 days

D. 2. c.7. Foundation or cellar hole for residence No No No

D. 2. c. 8. DAYCARE, FAMILY HOME Yes Yes Yes

D. 2.c. 9. Conversion of SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS SP SP SP

D. 2.d. Agricultural Uses

D. 2.d. 1; AGRICULTURAL, GREENHOUSE or nursery Yes Yes Yes

D. 2. d. 2.  ROADSIDE STAND selling produce the Yes Yes Yes
major part of which is raised on the premises

See Section I.
See Section J.
See Section K.
See Section L.
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r DISTRICTS

R B1 B2-   Cl C2/

84    **     C3/   C4 C6

C5    ***    ****

D. 2. d. 3.  Poultry or stock raising exceptthat the Yes No No

number of swine shall be limited to not more than 5

D. 2. d. 4.  Noncommercial riding stable
Yes Yes No

p.2. b. 5.  Kennel ( 4 or more dogs) SP SP No

D. 2. b. 6 Animal Hospital
No SP No

D. 2.e. Commercial Uses

D. 2. e. 1 RESTAURANT
No Yes No

D. 2. e. 2.  RESTAURANT, FAST FOOD No No No

D. 2. e. 3.  RESTAURANT, TAKE OUT
No No No

D. 2. e. 7.  News• a• er or JOB PRINTING No Yes SP

D. 2. e. 8.  Retail store
No Yes SP

D. 2. e. 9.  Wholesale store
No SP SP

D. 2.e. 10.   Garaging of more than one
commercial No Yes SP

vehicle

D. 2. e. 11.  Garaging of more than three commercial No SP SP

vehicles

D. 2. e. 12.    Parking of house trailers or MOBILE I No
SP SP

HOMES nearer to the STREET.  than the main
BUILDING

D. 2. e. 13.    Professional office where patients or No Yes SP

clients are seen by appointment, such as the office
of a physician, psychiatrist, physiotherapist, speech
therapist,  or other licensed health professionals
occupied by practitioners not resident on the

remises

D. 2. e. 14.  General office where clients or customers No
Yes SP

are seen, met or dealt with or without appointment;
business offices existing other than as ancillary to a
permitted use; banks

D. 2. e. 15. Truck terminal or motor freight station
No No No
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DISTRICTS

R B1 B2-    Cl C2/   C4 C6

B4     **     C3/   ***    ****

C5

D. 2. e. 16.  SHOPPING MALL where the ground area No SP SP
covered by the BUILDINGS exceeds fifteen thousand
15, 000) sq. ft.

D. 2. e. 17.  Hazardous waste treatment facility No No No

D. 2. e. 19.  Exercise/ aerobics studio No Yes SP

D. 2. e. 20.  Dance or Gymnastics School No Yes SP

D. 2. e. 21.       Any of the following service

establishments dealing directly with the consumer:   No Yes No

Beauty salon,  barber shop,  COLLECTION CENTER
FOR DRY CLEANING AND POWER LAUNDRY,

dressmaker or tailor,  shoe repair shop,  clothing
rental establishment,  household appliance repair,

typewriter or computer repair shop

D. 2. 3. 22. DRY CLEANING OR POWER LAUNDRY No No No

D. 2. e. 23,  CHILD CARE FACILITY Yes Yes Yes

D. 2.e. 24. ADULT BUSINESS No No No

D. 2.e. 25.  LIMITED USED MOTOR VEHICLE SALES No Yes Yes

D. 2.f. Manufacturing Uses

D. 2.f.1. MANUFACTURING No No Yes

D. 2. g.  Miscellaneous Uses

D. 2. g. 1. Off-STREET parking of vehicles as provided Yes Yes Yes
for in Section F. 7,

D. 2. g. 2. SIGNS as provided for in Section F. 9.   Yes Yes Yes

D. 2. g. 3.  Golf course ( excluding miniature golf)  SP SP SP

D. 2.g. 4.  DRIVE UP WINDOWS No SP SP

D. 2. g. 5.  SCOREBOARD SP SP SP
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By amending
Section E. 1. b. Schedule of Dimensional Requirements by deleting the row entitled " HM & P0" so that the Schedule of

Dimensional Requirements will now read as follows:

E. 1. b. Schedule of Dimensional Requirements

District Minimum Lot Size Minimum Required Minimum Maximum Maximum

sq. ft.)     Frontage ( in Circle Yard Setback Lot Building

feet)  in feet)    in feet)  Coverage*       Height

Front Side Rear Stories Ft

Residence 1

Residence

30,000 f 150 I 150 I 50 25 25

50 25 25

25% 2- 1/ 2 35

dence 2 I 43, 560 I 200 I 200 I 25% 2- 1/ 2 35 I

Residence 3 I 55, 000 200 r 200 50 25 25 25% 2- 1/ 2 35

Business 2- 4 I 30,000 I 150 I I 25 25 25 I 30%* 40

Comermcial 30,000 1
150 50 25 25

I
30%"  0

23, 5

60% when PARKING AREAS are included.

Including ACCESSORY BUILDINGS

By amending Section F. 7. b Schedule of Minimum Off- Street Parking Requirements to add " Meeting Rooms or Buildings accessory to
AGE RESTRICTED HOUSING so that Section F. 7. b. will now read as follows:

F. 7. b. Schedule of Minimum Off-    et1Stre
Parking Requirements

Permitted Use
Minimum Number of Spaces*

F. 7. b. 1. SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING
2 per unit

F. 7. b. 2. Elderly housing
1 per unit

F. 7. b. 2. a. ASSISTED LIVING FACILITIES 1 per two residential units adjacent to the
BUILDING plus one space per four units

k.  provided within the shared or attributed parking
t space provisions of the District

F. 7. b. 3. NURSING HOME, other inpatient 1 per 4 beds

health care facility

F. 7, b. 4. Hospital, other mixed out and in pa-    2 per bed

tient health care facility

F. 7. b. 5.  Religious
1 per 150 sq. ft. USABLE FLOOR AREA or 1 per
3 seats, whichveer is greater

F, 7, b, 6. Libraries, museums, and other non-     1 per 200 sq. ft. USABLE FLOOR AREA
f recreational floor space public facilities

F. 7. b. 7. Theaters, auditoriums, gymnasiums,    
1 per 3 persons capacity

i'    
meeting halls, and other places of assembly
based on Massachusetts State Building Code

F, 7. b. 8. Athletic fields, stadiums, etc.   
1 per 6 linear ft, of bench seating or 1 per 4
seats

F. 7. b. 9. Day Care nurseries, nursery
schools 1 per 5 children the facility is 1lcensed to serve

1 F. 7. b. 10. Elementary and junior high school
2 per classroom

F. 7. b. 11. Senior high school
4 per classroom plus those required for the
largest place of assembly( gymnasium or audito-
rium)
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F. 7. b. Schedule of Minimum Off-Street

Parking Requirements

F. 7. b. 12. Retail, service, or mercantile es-       1 per 150 sq. ft. USABLE FLOOR AREA
tablishment

F. 7. b. 13. Professional office or general 1 per 150 sq. ft. USABLE FLOOR AREA
office

F. 7. b. 14. Motel, hotel, inn, lodging, or 5 per 4 units

boarding house

F. 7. b. 15. Restaurants 1 per 100 sq. ft. usable floor area or 1 per 3
persons capacity, based on Mass. State Building
Code, whichever is greater

F. 7. b. 16. Automotive service garages 3 per bay

F. 7. b. 17. Automotive retail, retail nurseries,     1 per 150 sq. ft. usable inside floor area plus 1
greenhouses, and any use with large outdoor per 750 sq. ft. outdoor display area
display areas

F. 7. b. 18. Space in a MANUFACTURING, 1 per 500 sq, ft. usable floor area
retail, professional or general office that is

specifically allocated for storage and/ or
shipping/ receiving

F. 7. b. 19. Office space accessory to an 1 per 200 usable floor area
industrial use area

F. 7. b. 20. Other uses- Parking spaces 1 per 50 sq. ft. usable floor area or a lesser
adequate to accommodate the vehicles of number by Special Permit from the Zoning Board
occupants, employees, members, customers,    of Appeals

clients, and visitors to the premises shall be
provided

F. 7. b. 21 Meeting rooms or buildings 1 per 300 sq. ft. usable floor area
accessory to AGE RESTRICTED HOUSING

By amending Section F. 7. e. by adding " Commercial 6" district so that the section now reads:

F. 7. e. In the Business 1 through Business 4 and Commercial 1 through Commercial 6 districts, PARKING AREAS shall be located in
the rear YARD or side YARD of STRUCTURES and not in the front YARD of such STRUCTURES, unless otherwise authorized by
Special Permit issued by the Zoning Board of Appeals.
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By amending
Section F, 9. b. Schedule of Sign Regulations by deleting " HM & PO" and revising the column entitled " C1.- C5 to read

C1 • C6 so that the Schedule of Sign Regulations will read as follows:

F, 9• b. Schedule of Sign Regulations

DISTRICTS

F. 9. b. Schedule of Sign Regulations
R B1-    C1-

Bpi C6

F. 9. b. 1. On premises signs or advertising devices:

F. 9. b. 1. a. Name Plate
Yes Yes Yes

One SIGN for each FAMILY residing on the premises indicating the name of
the owner or occupant or pertaining to a permitted ACCESSORY USE,
provided that each SIGN does not exceed 2 sq. ft. in area.  ( Restrictions

relating to free standing SIGNS do not apply to this type of SIGN.)
F. 9. b. 1. b. Announcement

One SIGN not exceeding 8 sq. ft. in area per side in a residential district or
12 sq. ft. per side in all other districts for each of the following purposes:

F. 9. b. 1. b. 1. Advertisement for the sale, rental or lease of the building or Yes Yes Yes

premises.  Such SIGNS shall be removed not later than seven ( 7) days
following the sale ( date of closing) or rental of the subject property

F. 9. b. 1. b. 2.  Advertisement for a building contractor only while
Yes Yes Yes

construction is occurring on the site

IF.9. b. 1. c. Advertising

F. 9. b. 1. c. 1. One wall SIGN not to exceed 8 sq. ft. or one freestanding
Yes Yes Yes

SIGN not to exceed 8 sq. ft, in area per side located on property whose
primary use is for AGRICULTURAL purposes. Said sign shall be used for
advertisement of AGRICULTURAL produces of produce. If located in a
residential zone signs are not to be illuminated,

F. 9. b. 1. c. 2.  One wall SIGN for each separate
and distinct establishment

No Yes Yes

advertising the goods or services rendered on the premises not exceeding
12 sq. feet in area

MI
F. 9. b. 1. c. 3.  One window SIGN.  

No SP SP

F. 9. b. 1. c. 4. One freestanding SIGN on the ground for each separate
No Yes Yes

BUILDING, housing one or more establishments, not exceeding 12 sq. ft. in
area per side.

F. 9. b. 1. c. 5. Wherever a premises has a separate entrance frontingig
onto

a
No SP SP

second public way, one additional freestanding SIGN meeting
the me

criteria

F. 9. b, 1. c. 6: A residential subdivision shall
be permitted one freestanding

SP No No

SIGN bearing the name of the subdivision and not exceeding 8 sq. ft. per
side.       

F, 9. b, 1. c. 7. A non- residential subdivision shall be permitted one
Na SP SP

freestanding SIGN not exceeding 12 sq. ft, per side.      

F. 9. b, 2, Off- premises SIGNS or advertising devicin
providedvidepermit

has
No SP SP

been granted by the Outdoor Advertising
y withis

Section 29 through 33, Chapter 93 of the General Laws and such permit
valid and outstanding.   
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By amending Section F. 12. c. 1. by deleting the phrase " Health Maintenance and Professional Office" and changing the phrase
Commercial 1 through Commercial 5" to read " Commercial 1 through Commercial 6" so the section reads as follows:

F. 12. c. 1. Exterior actions requiring a Building Permit

All new STRUCTURES, ALTERATIONS, or additions to existing STRUCTURES, changes in outdoor land use or changes in
site design which require a building permit and which affect the exterior architectural appearance of a BUILDING shall be
subject to review by the Design Review board, provided that the action occurs on land which is located in the Business 1
through Business 4, or Commercial 1 through Commercial 6 zoning district and is used for non- residential purposes or non-conforming uses in Residential 1- 3 Districts.

By amending Section F. 13. Overlay District 3 and replacing it with a new section to read as follows:
F. 13. WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY( S).

Wireless Communications Overlay District 3. This district shall include all land within the C- 6 ( Residential/ Commercial Use)District limited to Assessors Maps 26 and 27, Block 80, Lot 3 within 300 feet of the Walpole Town Line.

By amending Section H. 1. b. by changing the phrase " Commercial 1 through Commercial 5" to read " Commercial 1 through
Commercial 6" and by deleting the phrase " or health maintenance and professional offices" so that the section will read as follows:

H. 1. b. Special Permit Guidelines

Before granting special permits to increase the Maximum LOT COVERAGE intensity of use for a business in Commercial 1
through Commercial 6 zones, the PERMIT GRANTING AUTHORITY shall find that in its judgment all the conditions specifiedin G. 6. c. 1.- 7 are met.

By amending Section H. 1. c. 2 by changing the phrase " Commercial 1 through Commercial 5" to read " Commercial 1 through
Commercial 6" and by deleting the phrase " or health maintenance and professional office zone" so that the section reads as follows:

H. 1. c, 2.  
Incentive contributions- If the PERMIT GRANTING AUTHORITY grants a Special Permit for an increase in the

Maximum LOT COVERAGE intensity of use in a Business or Commercial 1 through Commercial 6 zone, said Authority shallrequire the APPLICANT to make a contribution into a Traffic Safety and Infrastructure Fund.(" Fund"). The rate of

contribution shall be three dollars per square foot of GROSS FLOOR AREA of a BUILDING whose primary use shall be for
office or retail space; and the rate of contribution shall be one dollar per square foot of GROSS FLOOR AREA of a BUILDING
whose primary use will be for industrial, MANUFACTURING, warehousing, product and material distribution or similarpurposes.  

The primary use of a BUILDING or BUILDINGS, for the purpose of this Section, shall be deemed to be office or
retail use where the total square foot floor area used for office or retail purposes, considered either individually or whereboth uses are added together, constitutes more than twenty percent( 20%) of the entire gross square foot area of the
BUILDING or BUILDINGS in questions. Otherwise the primary use of the BUILDING or BUILDINGS shall be deemed for a use
other than office or retail, and the rate of contribution shall be one dollar per square foot of gross square foot area.

By amending Section H. 1. c, 6. by changing the phrase " Commercial 1 through Commercial 5" to read " and Commercial 1 throughCommercial 6" and also deleting the phrase " or health maintenance and professional office zone" so that the section reads asfollows:

H. 1. c. 6. Escrow Pending Fund Creation- If said Traffic Safety and Infrastructure Maintenance Fund has not been
authorized or created at the time any payment under this Section becomes due, the APPLICANT shall make the payment to
the town of Norfolk. The Town of Norfolk shall place any payments received, on account of said Traffic Safety andInfrastructure Maintenance Fund, into an escrow account to be held therein for the benefit of said Fund, until such time as
the said Fund is established. Any monies being held in escrow pursuant to this Section shall forthwith be transferred to saidFund.

Said monies shall be paid by all APPLICANTS seeking a special permit for Maximum LOT COVERAGE increased intensity ofuse in Business 1 through Business 4 and Commercial 1 through Commercial 6 zones.
Furthermore, all contributions shall be paid in full before the granting of an occupancy permit.

Or to take any other action relative thereto.
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ARTICLE 50.   Submitted by Personnel Board
To see if the Town will vote to add to the Town of Norfolk Personnel Bylaws a new section
entitled WORK AT HOME as follows:

XXVI.   WORK AT HOME

1. 0 Application

This policy applies to all employees under the Town Personnel Bylaw.

2. 0 Policy
The Town believes that employees should perform their work at their
Town Work Site.  It is the Town' s policy not to allow at-home work.  If
an employee cannot perform his/ her duties at the Town Work Site,
written authorization is required in advance by the employee's supervisor
and the Personnel Board.   Once approved, at-home work must be

separately noted on an employee's time sheet, including days and hours
worked.   A copy of the authorization will be on file in the Finance
Department;

or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 51. Submitted by Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town of Norfolk General Bylaw by adding a new
section, Section 8, to Article III, Committees, of the General Bylaw as follows:

Section 8 Community Preservation Committee

f)  Establishment of Committee; Purpose:  A Community Preservation Committee is hereby
established pursuant to Section 5 of Chapter 44B of the Massachusetts General Laws, as
authorized by Chapter 267 of the Acts of 2000,  whose purpose is to make

recommendations to the Town Meeting for community preservation.

g) Definitions:   The terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall be given the
definitions set forth in Sections 1 and 2 of the Massachusetts Community Preservation
Act.

h) Membership and Appointment:
a.  The Community Preservation Committee shall consist of nine ( 9) appointed

members.

b.  The nine members of the Community Preservation Committee shall consist of the
following members:

i.  One member of the Conservation Commission established under Section
8C of Chapter 40 as designated by the Commission;

ii.  One member of the Historical Commission established under Section 8D
of Chapter 40 as designated by such commission;

iii.  One member of the Planning Board established under Section 81A of
Chapter 41 as designated by such board;

iv.  One member of the Recreation Commission established under Section 2
of Chapter 45 as designated by such commission;

v.  One member of the Housing Authority established under Section 3 of
Chapter 121B as designated by such authority;

vi.  Four citizens appointed by the Board of Selectmen.
c.   The four citizens appointed by the Board of Selectmen pursuant to Section

c) b. vi. herein shall be chosen one from each of the four precincts.
d.  The Director of Municipal.Finance shall be an Ex Officio, Non Voting member of

the Community Preservation Committee.
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i)  Term of appointment:

a.  The terms of the Community Preservation Committee members appointed by the
Conservation Commission,  Historical Commission,  Planning Board,  Recreation

Commission and Housing Authority as provided in Sections ( c) b. i. through v.
shall be for one ( 1) year, and such boards and commissions shall appoint their

respective designee annually
b.  The terms of the Community Preservation Committee members appointed by the

Board of Selectmen as provided in Section ( c) b. vi. shall be for three ( 3) years,

except for the first appointments made pursuant to this bylaw, in which case two
appointments shall be two ( 2) year appointments and two appointments shall be
three( 3) year appointments

c.  The members of the Community Preservation Committee may be reappointed for
as many terms as authorized by the appointing authority.

d.  All appointments become effective upon being duly sworn in by the Town Clerk.
j)  Powers and Duties: The Community Preservation Committee shall have all of the powers

and duties intended for such committees as set forth in Section 5 of the Massachusetts

Community Preservation Act, which includes, among others, the following
a.  To make recommendations ( including anticipated cost information) to Town

Meeting for the acquisition, creation and preservation of open space including
land for recreational use;  for the acquisition and' preservation of historic

resources; and for the creation, preservation and support of community housing;
b.  To submit an annual administrative and operating budget for the Community

Preservation Committee, which cannot exceed five percent ( 5%) of the annual

revenues in the Community Preservation Fund, to Town Meeting for approval;
c.  To establish rules and regulations for its operation, election of officers, conduct

of public hearings and performance of any and all other administrative acts as
are within the scope and intent of the Massachusetts Community Preservation
Act or this bylaw, as necessary to accomplish the purposes of the Massachusetts
Community Preservation Act and this bylaw;

As provided in the Massachusetts Community Preservation Act, no expenditures shall be made
from the Community Preservation Fund without the approval of Town Meeting;

or take any action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 52.       Submitted by Highway Superintendent
To see if the Town will vote to abandon the cul- de-sac portion of land on Ferndale Avenue,
beyond the Town of Norfolk recorded street layout, as shown on sheets 2 and 3 of Plan 369 of
1962, recorded in plan book 212 at the Norfolk County Registry of Deeds; the abandoned cul- de-
sac sections beyond the recorded town way will be granted to the, owner of the property
identified as lot 20, on Assessors Map 15, Block 35.  A plan of this land is on file in the office of
the Town Clerk; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 53.       Submitted by Highway Superintendent
To see if the Town will vote to accept as a public way and to accept all easements related
thereto, Liberty Lane formerly known as a portion of North Street, as approved by the Board of
Selectmen in accordance with a plan drawn by Coler & Colantonio Engineers of Norwell,
Massachusetts, a copy of which is on file in the Office of the Town Clerk; or take any action
relative thereto.

ARTICLE 54.       Submitted by Highway Superintendent
To see if the Town will vote to accept as a public way and to accept all easements related
thereto, Independence Drive, formerly known as North Street Connector, as approved by the
Board of Selectmen in accordance with a plan drawn by Coler & Colantonio Engineers of Norwell,
Massachusetts, a copy of which is on file in the Office of the Town Clerk; or take any action
relative thereto.
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ARTICLE 55. Submitted by Board of Selectmen
To see if the Town will vote to require all plans for all municipal and school structures and
facilities be reviewed by the ADA Compliance Committee prior to final approval by any other
board or committee for recommendations. The ADA Compliance Committee shall have thirty( 30)
calendar days from receipt of the plans to make recommendations, or state its approval.
Recommendations by the ADA Compliance Committee will be non- binding, but will become a
matter of record; or take any other action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 56. Submitted by Board of Selectmen
To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to advertise in a local
newspaper and sell at public sale from time to time, as it may deem in the best interest of the
Town, any and all lands or portions thereof which the Town has acquired or may acquire as Tax
Title land, so called, such sales to be made on behalf of the inhabitants of the Town of Norfolk,
and to authorize the Selectmen to expend from the proceeds of such sale the necessary costs of
recording fees, documentary stamps, and auctioneer' s fees, if required; or take any other action
relative thereto.

ARTICLE 57. Submitted by Board of Selectmen
To see if the Town will vote to grant the Board of Selectmen permission to sell surplus property
of the Town, exclusive of buildings and land, no longer needed by the Town; or take any other
action relative thereto.

ARTICLE 58. Submitted by Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, transfer from any source of available funds,
or otherwise provide for the Stabilization Fund pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter
40, Section 5B; or take any other action relative thereto.
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Hereof, fail not, but make due return of this warrant, with your doings thereon to the TownClerk, on or before the hour of said meeting.   Given under our hands and seal of the Town ofNorfolk on the 19th day of March, 2001, A. D.

NORFOLK BOARD SELECTMEN

L r

Joyce  . Terrio, Chairman

In
Viatpti

fin J. McFeeley, Clerk

0Z.,,/,,

LiZe"
0-24-4-‘7,--......-

R. William Perron, Member

A true copy, attest:
Town of Norfolk
Norfolk, ss

By virtue of this Warrant, I have notified and warned the legal voters of the Town of Norfolkaforesaid to meet at the time and place and for the purposes
specified in said Warrant, byposting true and attested copies thereof in the Town Hall, and in at least one public place in eachof the three precincts, not less than Seven ( 7) days at least before the date of said meeting.

Constable

Date
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s TOWN OF NORFOLK

e,,`  130th ANNUAL REPORT

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 2000

ETTLED:       1678 SCHOOLS:   H. Olive Day, Pre K-2
l',.ii . CORPORATED:       1870 Freeman/Centennial, 3- 6

r1P' OPULATION:  9, 126 King Philip Regional Junior High, 7- 8
ICI POPULATION:     1, 397 King Philip Regional Senior High, 9- 12

I , l1REA;   15 Square Miles Tri County Vocational Reg, Technical School, 9- 12
1   ,

OCATION:     20 miles south of Boston, 22 miles north of Norfolk County Agricultural School, 9- 12
Providence, RI

BOUNDED BY:  Foxboro, Franklin, Medfield, Medway,   TRANSPORTATION:

Millis, Walpole, and Wrentham MBTA rail service daily to Boston
F. ELEVATION:    220 feet two taxi cab companies

VOTERS: 5, 726

TAX RATE:      1'4,69 per$ 1, 000 SENATORS IN CONGRESS:     
VALUATION:    824,838, 780 Edward M. Kennedy, JFK,Federal Building, Room

r PROPERTY CLASSIFICATION:  95% Residential 409, Governme0t Center, Boston, MA 02203

3% Commercial' Tel.( 617) 565- 3170
1%. Industrih1
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Sttu 4Y1ÌYI'e1 to4.41Io lrt' n/    0,,st6 1r

11 ilavt, !„ '   t`tlif i 1 eI  * 1 X 1(3,   ! 0, 0 STATE'SENATOR i   ,', 
r

i ChyJ,, y

1 J&t?t ' l0 r n,,

yBµ1Itj4141.`
tRele*1 i i    : +,r

t 1{  `
r' i

1 t
l

4Y

Y

U,,,.-, G11.. 1-   .'Nh }^''     1' 
r   .:'       

I
j

1 / i

Thelodera`
tgdiQC,   alt 4a0t kS# itpal Tel ( (' 1t    F

l5 IY T M
j t

M1

10,.;,, 11 S'tJitd, P'  ,       & y r
41 S7' AREPRE TWTT4" na„nUe1V   r y i 2 I   , ,   

I It       !, 
I     :  ,,

y,# 

I I  , P     '    xr
r (,    uJ 7'     I' r f tl SIU n1!, d 746, 1t` ,p

7' t A'm'{ '    r, m1 4:-  C1,? Un i rrr , i,'   ( (rC  :„ 
r      .:I.,     

r,  7P

uQy'
jF°   

viii,:

inf49 l
r,,,,,  

HY1„    +

2a''  r,' I
v r4 Id       !    I, '   {'

i' k®    '   1® P/ r      „., !  ' S '). v r  , t{       I„ I. Q'!   t, Ar     '     r i r
F s e

J   ,     t r°} '

j£  

f
r' k   /

aI1- -$

10'' 10 d r 4 i o III I
d

7 + I ! 1 t ' C   Y r
1 °   {' 4„-,::"-', i1"',;.:,4,,',,','(   il

Y   , , r J ' r+,,,. F n
Y, !      Y„' r r 1 r t t r r       `, 1

i   ' 140. 7x,4 'Ii f,,:soA”l 9
i'',,

1.      Y - v 1       (     .
f  /^   £ r

rG

1 f t  ''  f t   -       f"; 1:::',1:,:',.",,,,1 I,  
r      '+`

vYn0   .   

1
f 711131 S r, - , fi' N'0i al,     o J1 t I    '

l"

9'( Q{ n I ,, !  '4 a     ,,, !     i1''    it 11

r   'p

rP 3"   t 7' 7a'"

y'"',    
1      ' t y+£ f       (  1 t 1 I

1 r',       1' I 1„,, R, TI ,,    ,'bin©„ i6 3
a rFn

r
j    {     1 I y'

r.,      r' 
r r l r I t, ((   r r

t

i'

iird1 1
a d t'    9     {      ;

if r r I,    ,       ,    Il}>  ' I( i11 i  , rI.     

K
f Y;- f. C .    r p;    

t    ”       ah, r-'s a iy r i. 1.   u SrJ' , ll     -

n   , d
1       (

n   /  
r

c''{ Iti       ) yy, a µl 
Iv7, Nr   } r, JR t,   `  ''   v Rn v" 1 p h

a° ''', a 1 it
g ni t 15 1 r 1'/ r f ir 1+'   

y    {    
i j 1 1,  (    

1 x t F,' 4..G r LL fr i   {"' , rh '.-^ S     k„ 7o f' h fv:; SF Ay I I,,
If .   

7r,,,-     1 £
W!+* 1p i  .. 4, 4'..1.,4.0;P.,':1;., 1l1 '  r 4 1 yY(

r s u     „ k, fd.¢¢¢rr lr.. '7 ;, n  , r tr,',    a     a{

jr„' a I" n itrj +{) w Y^, vi I,
a, T  . :, I     ,  

lr -' µ f       ,      '.       ,
r I ! '„

r

t'- 
h1      ',:

C r  „       l 4 11. ll]    *   : 4t4 y(, r t 0
a' i' r     /     

k

I

f 1

loll      -'
oYI     'i      ,  t', I N Jld' r xr   ^   ,  ''

y I ! t,    w y
c,  

1   ,,

11     ''{'
I

l''' 4,-.+,..' ;:   r/

il £'£
r ti Y / nk§: rf” k/,'yrs 0l df r{ tt+f441,,,I?' R# 1Arr' tay fl

r, ';      Y.M I  ,,     '  '
j 1 i Iu i. '  r+'

R Wa I,  " t,,,  ' I' r   4. 1P(n M r

f 1 i4''   a T : t 1 i,°`   ` r
v lJ PI,   Ir'r k", o-,', 1 7 fi{ n'' 1 I l r, 

4y
1 , , j  li 1 ' Irt M1I

i i,

y'', 11,, y'ff(   ! 
1'  oiz r „ r , I  .  {

rr r

AI    '£
r 

rltt    ,,

gid 75 ` 1 r;     

37 1 la $ P S
Ii

IN
of °   5?' A:

i71I
fi vJ

n,;       }, j

An'„ 
hF/'  ,

Ir%   rt' ',  ry

Iv S nl ,      ,      vm

f''
A' 1 r r ,  j   /,

JR: , 
e 7{,       t  ,,,, y1    ', c{e,.       

1 114., p n,,', ' ct'w,,3+ de Q W£.# , 4',yi!?   1 1 11",7,7, 1 DI TCTA nO..>
z ' y to {,;'; 11   !     1 I 4.44,:.,:',•44, 1

y'  y j yin 1
I   er  ' x ` f r   ,  ( I  ,'       ', 12        t Y 1Ill. rtlpdt.,as 0`'Td,       / 

I'   R X J

Y

1 J
r l   ( 

Ij n( k r r / o r ,     I5 ! r f r

j5+ee      $( i' e e ? ale t  ` n s
I

lel( l J 1 1
1

n ( qI   '
r i 1 y j all

I ,.   I
i t̂ 1 Fe-rale g4,.,01 16' 154   '   

Iy£  
T I iv„ 1 r tl 1,  J 4 v 11 j, 11 c

L.aforfye   ,       r 1S 4£ Qe
r

4   /   

itC
fi

ry r,       a n   { 
j

Please stue

axlitcuSe

ou

eop    ,,,,,..,  
OFA   ? 04r3 M ., If r F

iTJAL,Il1CA'  0. F®    5T PNAW     , N      ..:".. A. 1,,,,,,„.",.   0bt'Tla ' i t ; nt.     Clerk's
b    ''     f 4 '  iti6f' a     "   0atm iO t Mondq ott :,4''T4'...,      p, r .    .

1,

4 i       ” 11, 4 na4g o'es'Si4,r' i o t O y0m,1 eld 1,' 1t eg#sart4i's`p edell0_',;e eS l  , (   

TAS BILIS

P

4

ll tJt dy e • t 1x duet fi1st secondpaymentis d eqt , 1, Veet,   , rp

a 16    -     ' u 1   :   re10,4J 6hW      ,   
M:    fb1 ul f ieVer i aisst   ..,,_, ,,•,,,,,,,„ehcle e

euaiq As"fq delieA1ti  ,.W,   F,:P,  .    dugs Fim tlaltng
I,     y3  

1 10I  [ ya,6f10 8.4111 ! 1011II I4     ,   ii#14”, WS T, 4„ I 7
i ,   * 1,'..'"'. 1',"::'"';:.;!...'''' 1".."  '". 1. I

X Ii'   /    f
U ' 

C   ,      IS   + r y f1     ,    r 1 -  ,     . 1 I I

t1
t iF     

I r n  '   l   )   , I 3h 4 d 1 >   
l:;':..       I

SA . ilk 1i..W rr r7rs. r  r11C r ',,. 0      ?      .  u u 7 r:,    '      s I       . ..., 7



ipip....

Town Departments

Accounting Department 528- 5686
Animal Control 528- 4101
Board of Appeals 541- 8455
Assessors 528- 1120
Town Clerk 528- 1400
Tax Collector 520- 0058
Conservation Commission 541- 8455

Council on Aging 528- 4430
Finance Director 528- 3152
Fire Department( Information)  528- 3207
Board of Health 528-7747

Building Department 528- 5088

Highway Department 528- 4990

Library 528- 3380
U°    Planning Board 528- 2961

Police Department( Information)       528- 3206 1
Recreation 520- 1315
Schools:

Superintendent' s Office 528- 1225
i

Freeman/Centennial School 528- 1266 4
H, Olive Day 541- 5475 1

King Philip Regional High School 384- 1000

King Philip Regional Junior High School 541- 7324

Tri-County Reg. Vocational High School 528- 5400

Norfolk County Agricultural School 668- 0268
i Selectmen/Town Administrator 528- 1408

Treasurer 541- 3984.    
9i

t POLICE/FIRE/AMBULANCE EMERGENCY 9. 1- 1

4' Sl

NO SCHOOL SIGNALS
t

r4

ls ALL SCHOOLS ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS ONLY

1ol,
E'{     Fire Whistle blows at 6:30 a.m.   Fire Whistle blows at 7: 00 a.m.

i -1;,.111TRANSFER STATION HOURS 1
1' ` x` TO USE THE RECYCLING/TRANSFER STATION:

4,       You must be a legal resident of Norfolk and must purchase a decal for your vehicle in order to use the Transfer Station.
1' 1 RECYCLING/TRANSFER STATION

1 1 HOURS OF OPERATION
ti   ' Wednesday:  Summer hours: 4/ 1- 9/ 30 11: 30 a.m.-7: 00 p.m,

l i Winter hours: 10/ 1- 3/ 31 9: 30 a.m.-5: 00 p.m.

t Saturday:     8: 00 a.m.-4: 00 p.m.

Closed Legal Holidays

Decals may be purchased at the Transfer Station during normal hours of operation.

l




